
FY 2017
City of Fort Worth, Texas

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2017



COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

For the Fiscal Year Ended
September 30, 2017

CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS

ELECTED OFFICIALS

2017 CITY COUNCIL

Betsy Price, Mayor
Carlos E. Flores Brian Byrd

Cary Moon Gyna Bivens
Jungus Jordan

Kelly Allen Gray
Dennis Shingleton

Ann Zadeh

CITY MANAGER

David Cooke

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Aaron J. Bovos

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Weaver and Tidwell, L.L.P.

Prepared by the Department of Financial Management Services

Financial Reporting Accounting Treasury
Brian A. Hickman, CPA Anthony M. Rousseau, CPA John R. Samford, CPA
Stephen C. Nesbitt, CPA Peter James Ramona Nails
Jezel G. Bailey, CPA Catherine Perry Cathy Simpson
Revah Howard Karen A. Houters, CPA Jay Rutledge
Michele L. Suppes, CPA Accounting Staff Alex Laufer
Nia Williams Treasury Staff
Mary J. Brack, CPA
Susanne Helgesen Purchasing Administration
Su Huynh Cynthia Garcia Angela Estrada
Carolyn Graham Purchasing Staff April Jacquez
LaTonya Brown
Edgar Da Aroynard
Nabil Zaiour





City of Fort Worth, Texas

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE

INTRODUCTORY SECTION:
Transmittal Letter................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................vi

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................xix

Organization of City Government................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................xx

Elected Officials................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................xxi

FINANCIAL SECTION:
Independent Auditor's Report................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................1

Management's Discussion and Analysis................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................5

Basic Financial Statements
Government-wide Financial Statements:

Statement of Net Position................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................20

Statement of Activities................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................21

Fund Financial Statements:

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................23

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Position................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................24

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................25

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................26

Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................29

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Funds................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................31

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................33

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Funds................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................35

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position - Fiduciary Funds................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................36

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................37

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................123

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................124

Employees' Retirement Fund - Schedule of Contributions to the Retirement Fund -
Last Ten Fiscal Years................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................126

Employees' Retirement Fund - Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability -
Last Ten Fiscal Years................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................127

Other Postemployment Benefits - Schedule of Funding Progress................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................129

Other Postemployment Benefits - Schedule of Employer Contributions................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................129

i



City of Fort Worth, Texas

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Continued

PAGE

Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Debt Service Fund................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................133

Nonmajor Governmental Funds:

Combining Balance Sheet................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................137

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................139

Other Blended Component Units:

Combining Balance Sheet................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................141

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................142

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Crime Control and Prevention District Fund................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................143

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Environmental Management Fund................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................144

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Culture and Tourism Fund................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................145

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Other Special Revenue Fund................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................146

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Public Improvement Districts Fund................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................147

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Golf Fund................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................148

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Botanic Gardens................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................149

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds:

Combining Statement of Net Position................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................151

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................154

Combining Statement of Cash Flows................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................155

Internal Service Funds:

Combining Statement of Net Position................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................159

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................160

Combining Statement of Cash Flows................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................161

Fiduciary Funds:

Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................165

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................166

Other Supplemental Information
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Enterprise Funds................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................169

ii



City of Fort Worth, Texas

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Continued

PAGE

STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED): TABLE

Financial Trends:

Net Position by Component................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................1 173

Changes in Net Position................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................2 175

Fund Balances, Governmental Funds................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................3 179

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................4 181

Revenue Capacity:

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................5 183

Property Tax Rates - All Direct and Overlapping Tax Rates................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................6 184

Property Taxes Levies and Collections................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................7 185

Property Tax Rate Trend................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................8 186

Appraised Value by Type................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................9 187

Property Tax Revenue................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................10 189

Property Tax Revenue (Per Capita)................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................11 191

Principal Property Taxpayers................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................12 193

Debt Capacity:

Ratio of Outstanding Debt by Type................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................13 195

Percent of Total General Debt Outstanding to Assessed Value
and Total General Debt Outstanding Per Capita................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................14 197

Legal Debt Margin Information................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................15 199

Tax Rate Allocation................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................16 201

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................17 202

Pledged-Revenue Coverage................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................18 203

Demographic & Economic Information:

Demographic and Economic Statistics................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................19 204

Principal Employers Fort Worth Metropolitan Area................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................20 205

Population Growth................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................21 207

Total Appraised Value................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................22 209

Appraised Value Per Capita................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................23 211

Appraised Value Per Capita (Inflation Adjusted)................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................24 213

Median Family and Per Capita Income (Unadjusted for Inflation)................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................25 215

Median Family and Per Capita Income (Adjusted for Inflation)................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................26 216

Average Home Value................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................27 217

Median Home Value................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................28 219

Operating Information:

Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function/Program................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................29 221

Operating Indicators by Function/Program................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................30 223

Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................31 225

iii



 

 

 

 

iv



IN
TR

O
D

U
C

TO
R

Y
 SEC

TIO
NINTRODUCTORY

SECTION



�

'(3$570(17�2)�),1$1&,$/�0$1$*(0(17�6(59,&(6�

&,7<�2)�)257�:257+�������7(;$6��675((7���)257�:257+��7(;$6�������
���������������)D[��������������

�

�
�

)HEUXDU\����������

�

7R�WKH�+RQRUDEOH�0D\RU��0HPEHUV�RI�WKH�&LW\�&RXQFLO��&LWL]HQV�DQG�6WDNHKROGHUV�RI�WKH�&LW\�RI�)RUW�:RUWK��

7H[DV��� �

�

:H�DUH�SOHDVHG�WR�VXEPLW�WKH�&RPSUHKHQVLYH�$QQXDO�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUW��&$)5��RI�WKH�&LW\�RI�)RUW�:RUWK��

7H[DV� �WKH� ³&LW\´� RU� ³)RUW�:RUWK´��� IRU� WKH� ILVFDO� \HDU� HQGHG� 6HSWHPEHU� ���� ������ � 7KH�'HSDUWPHQW� RI�

)LQDQFLDO�0DQDJHPHQW�6HUYLFHV�SUHSDUHG�WKLV�UHSRUW�WR�SUHVHQW�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�RI�WKH�&LW\���7KH�&$)5�

GHVFULEHV�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�UHVXOWV�RI�RXU�RSHUDWLRQV��WKH�FDVK�IORZV�RI�RXU�SURSULHWDU\�IXQG�W\SHV��DQG�FKDQJHV�LQ�

SODQ�QHW�SRVLWLRQV�RI�RXU�SHQVLRQ�DQG�SRVW�HPSOR\PHQW�EHQHILW�WUXVWV���7KH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DQG�VXSSRUWLQJ�

VFKHGXOHV� KDYH� EHHQ� SUHSDUHG� LQ� DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK� JHQHUDOO\� DFFHSWHG� DFFRXQWLQJ�SULQFLSOHV� DQG�PHHW� WKH�

UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�6WDWH�RI�7H[DV�DQG�WKH�&LW\�&KDUWHU���

�

7KH�&LW\�&KDUWHU�&KDSWHU�;��6HFWLRQ����UHTXLUHV�WKDW�DQ�DQQXDO�DXGLW�RI�DOO�DFFRXQWV�RI�WKH�&LW\�EH�PDGH�E\�

DQ�LQGHSHQGHQW�FHUWLILHG�SXEOLF�DFFRXQWDQW�DQG�DQ�DQQXDO�ILQDQFLDO�UHSRUW�EH�SXEOLVKHG�E\�WKH�&LW\���7KH�DQQXDO�

ILQDQFLDO�UHSRUW�PXVW�EH�SULQWHG�DQG�IXUQLVKHG�WR�WKH�0D\RU�DQG�HDFK�PHPEHU�RI�WKH�&LW\�&RXQFLO��WKH�&LW\�

0DQDJHU�DQG� WR�HDFK�FLWL]HQ�ZKR� UHTXHVWV� D� FRS\�� �7KLV� UHSRUW� LV�SXEOLVKHG� WR� IXOILOO� WKH�DIRUHPHQWLRQHG�

UHTXLUHPHQWV� IRU� WKH�PRVW� UHFHQW� ILVFDO�\HDU�� � ,Q�DGGLWLRQ�� WKLV� UHSRUW� LV�XVHG� WR�FRPPXQLFDWH�EDFNJURXQG�

LQIRUPDWLRQ�RQ�WKH�&LW\�DQG�WKH�HQYLURQPHQW�ZKLFK�LW�RSHUDWHV��VFKHGXOHV�WKDW�GHPRQVWUDWH�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�

ILQDQFH�UHODWHG� OHJDO� DQG� FRQWUDFWXDO� SURYLVLRQV� DQG� VWDWLVWLFDO� LQIRUPDWLRQ� WKDW� RIIHUV� PXOWL�\HDU� WUHQG�

LQIRUPDWLRQ��DORQJ�ZLWK�UHOHYDQW�HFRQRPLF�DQG�GHPRJUDSKLF�LQIRUPDWLRQ��

�

0DQDJHPHQW� DVVXPHV� IXOO� UHVSRQVLELOLW\� IRU� WKH� FRPSOHWHQHVV�� IDLUQHVV� DQG� UHOLDELOLW\� RI� WKH� LQIRUPDWLRQ�

FRQWDLQHG� LQ� WKLV� UHSRUW�� EDVHG�XSRQ�D� FRPSUHKHQVLYH� IUDPHZRUN� RI� LQWHUQDO� FRQWUROV� HVWDEOLVKHG� IRU� WKLV�

SXUSRVH���%HFDXVH�WKH�FRVW�RI�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO�VKRXOG�QRW�H[FHHG�DQWLFLSDWHG�EHQHILWV��WKH�REMHFWLYH�LV�WR�SURYLGH�

UHDVRQDEOH��UDWKHU�WKDQ�DEVROXWH��DVVXUDQFH�WKDW�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�IUHH�RI�DQ\�PDWHULDO�PLVVWDWHPHQWV��

�

:HDYHU�DQG�7LGZHOO��/�/�3��LVVXHG�DQ�XQPRGLILHG�RSLQLRQ�RQ�WKH�&LW\¶V�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG�

6HSWHPEHU������������7KH�,QGHSHQGHQW�$XGLWRU¶V�5HSRUW�LV�ORFDWHG�RQ�SDJH���RI�WKLV�UHSRUW��

�

0DQDJHPHQW¶V�'LVFXVVLRQ�DQG�$QDO\VLV��0'	$��LPPHGLDWHO\�IROORZV�WKH�,QGHSHQGHQW�$XGLWRU¶V�5HSRUW�DQG�

SURYLGHV�D�QDUUDWLYH�LQWURGXFWLRQ��RYHUYLHZ��DQG�DQDO\VLV�RI�WKH�EDVLF�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DQG�VKRXOG�EH�UHDG�

LQ�FRQMXQFWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�EDVLF�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��

� �

vi



�

�

�&LW\�RI�)RUW Worth Profile�

)RUW�:RUWK��LQFRUSRUDWHG�LQ�������LV�D�SROLWLFDO�VXEGLYLVLRQ�DQG�PXQLFLSDO�FRUSRUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�6WDWH�RI�7H[DV��
ORFDWHG�LQ�7DUUDQW��'HQWRQ��3DUNHU��:LVH��DQG�-RKQVRQ�&RXQWLHV���7KH�&LW\�FRYHUV�DSSUR[LPDWHO\�����VTXDUH�
PLOHV�DQG�VHUYHV�D�SRSXODWLRQ�RI����������� �
�
)RUW�:RUWK�RSHUDWHV�XQGHU�D�&RXQFLO�0DQDJHU� IRUP�RI�JRYHUQPHQW�ZLWK�D�&LW\�&RXQFLO�FRPSULVHG�RI� WKH�

0D\RU�DQG�QLQH�&RXQFLO�PHPEHUV���7KH�0D\RU�LV�HOHFWHG�DW�ODUJH�DQG�WKH�QLQH�&RXQFLO�PHPEHUV�DUH�HOHFWHG�

IURP�VLQJOH�PHPEHU�GLVWULFWV���%RWK�WKH�0D\RU�DQG�&RXQFLO�PHPEHUV�VHUYH�WZR�\HDU�WHUPV���7KH�0D\RU�DQG�

&LW\�&RXQFLO�DSSRLQW�WKH�&LW\�0DQDJHU��&LW\�$WWRUQH\��&LW\�6HFUHWDU\��&LW\�$XGLWRU��DQG�WKH�PXQLFLSDO�MXGJHV���

2Q�0D\����������D�VSHFLDO�HOHFWLRQ�ZDV�KHOG�WR�YRWH�RQ�DPHQGPHQWV�WR�WKH�&LW\¶V�&KDUWHU���3URSRVLWLRQ���WR�

LQFUHDVH�WKH�QXPEHU�RI�FRXQFLO�PHPEHUV�IURP�QLQH�PHPEHUV�WR�HOHYHQ�ZDV�DSSURYHG�DQG�EHJLQV�ZLWK�WKH�ILUVW�

HOHFWLRQ�IROORZLQJ�WKH������FHQVXV��

�

6HUYLFHV�SURYLGHG�E\�WKH�&LW\�XQGHU�JHQHUDO�JRYHUQPHQWDO�IXQFWLRQV�LQFOXGH�SXEOLF�VDIHW\��PXQLFLSDO�FRXUWV��

SROLFH�DQG�ILUH�SURWHFWLRQ���KLJKZD\V�DQG�VWUHHWV��FXOWXUH�DQG�UHFUHDWLRQ��XUEDQ�UHGHYHORSPHQW�DQG�KRXVLQJ��

KHDOWK�DQG�ZHOIDUH��DQG�JHQHUDO�JRYHUQPHQW�VHUYLFHV��

�

:DWHU�DQG�VHZHU�VHUYLFHV��VWRUPZDWHU�XWLOLW\�VHUYLFHV��DLUSRUWV��FLW\�RZQHG�SDUNLQJ�JDUDJHV�DQG�ORWV��DQG�VROLG�

ZDVWH�FROOHFWLRQ�DUH�SURYLGHG�XQGHU�DQ�HQWHUSULVH�IXQG�FRQFHSW��ZLWK�XVHU�FKDUJHV�VHW�E\�WKH�&LW\�&RXQFLO�WR�

HQVXUH�DGHTXDWH�FRYHUDJH�RI�RSHUDWLQJ�H[SHQVHV�DQG�SD\PHQWV�RI�RXWVWDQGLQJ�GHEW�� � ,Q�DGGLWLRQ�� WKH�&LW\�

SURYLGHV� ZDWHU� DQG� ZDVWHZDWHU� WUHDWPHQW� IRU� VHYHUDO� QHLJKERULQJ� MXULVGLFWLRQV�� � (TXLSPHQW� VHUYLFHV��

LQIRUPDWLRQ�V\VWHPV��FDSLWDO�SURMHFW�VHUYLFHV��JURXS�KHDOWK�DQG�OLIH�LQVXUDQFH��DQG�ULVN�ILQDQFLQJ�DUH�SURYLGHG�

WKURXJK�LQWHUQDO�VHUYLFH�IXQGV��

�

$V� UHTXLUHG� E\� JHQHUDOO\� DFFHSWHG� DFFRXQWLQJ� SULQFLSOHV� LQ� WKH� 8QLWHG� 6WDWHV� RI� $PHULFD� �*$$3��� WKH�

ILQDQFLDO� UHSRUWLQJ� HQWLW\� LQFOXGHV� DOO� IXQGV� RI� WKH� SULPDU\� JRYHUQPHQW� �WKH� &LW\��� DV� ZHOO� DV� WKH� &LW\¶V�

FRPSRQHQW� XQLWV�� � &RPSRQHQW� XQLWV� DUH� OHJDOO\� VHSDUDWH� HQWLWLHV� IRU� ZKLFK� WKH� SULPDU\� JRYHUQPHQW� LV�

ILQDQFLDOO\�DFFRXQWDEOH���2UJDQL]DWLRQV�WKDW�GR�QRW�PHHW�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�DFFRXQWDELOLW\�FULWHULD�IRU�LQFOXVLRQ�DV�D�

FRPSRQHQW�XQLW�FRXOG�EH�LQFOXGHG�EDVHG�XSRQ�PDQDJHPHQW¶V�GHWHUPLQDWLRQ�WKDW�LW�ZRXOG�EH�PLVOHDGLQJ�WR�

H[FOXGH� WKHP�� �'XULQJ�)LVFDO�<HDU������� WKHUH�ZHUH�HLJKW�EOHQGHG�FRPSRQHQW�XQLWV�� �2QH�RI� WKH�EOHQGHG�

FRPSRQHQW�XQLWV��)RUW�:RUWK�+RXVLQJ�)LQDQFH�&RUSRUDWLRQ��DOVR�KDV�HLJKW�/LPLWHG�/LDELOLW\�&RUSRUDWLRQV�

�//&V��� ZKLFK� DUH� UHSRUWHG� DV� EOHQGHG� FRPSRQHQW� XQLWV�� DQG� RQH� /LPLWHG� /LDELOLW\� 3DUWQHUVKLS� WKDW� LV�

GLVFUHWHO\�SUHVHQWHG��

�

7KH�ILVFDO�\HDU�RI�WKH�&LW\�EHJLQV�RQ�WKH�ILUVW�GD\�RI�2FWREHU�DQG�HQGV�RQ�WKH�ODVW�GD\�RI�6HSWHPEHU���2Q�RU�

EHIRUH�WKH�ILIWHHQWK�GD\�RI�$XJXVW�RI�HDFK�\HDU��WKH�&LW\�0DQDJHU�VXEPLWV�WR�WKH�&LW\�&RXQFLO�D�SURSRVHG�

EXGJHW�IRU�WKH�HQVXLQJ�ILVFDO�\HDU���7KH�&LW\�0DQDJHU¶V�SURSRVHG�EXGJHW�SURYLGHV�D�FRPSOHWH�ILQDQFLDO�SODQ�

RI�DOO�&LW\�IXQGV�DQG�DFWLYLWLHV�IRU�WKH�XSFRPLQJ�ILVFDO�\HDU���7KH�EXGJHW�LV�SUHSDUHG�E\�IXQG��RUJDQL]DWLRQ�XQLW�

RU� GHSDUWPHQW�� SURJUDP�� SXUSRVH� RU� DFWLYLW\�� DQG� REMHFW�� � $V� UHTXLUHG� E\� WKH� &LW\� &KDUWHU�� WKH� DXGLWRUV�

FRPSOHWHG�D�VHSDUDWH�UHYLHZ�RI�WKH�&LW\¶V�EXGJHW�DGRSWLRQ�SURFHVV���7KH�&LW\�0DQDJHU�PD\�WUDQVIHU�UHVRXUFHV�

ZLWKLQ� D� GHSDUWPHQW�� � 7UDQVIHUV� EHWZHHQ� GHSDUWPHQWV�� KRZHYHU�� UHTXLUH� DSSURYDO� IURP� WKH�&LW\�&RXQFLO���

'HOHJDWHG�DXWKRULW\�KDV�EHHQ�SURYLGHG�E\�WKH�0D\RU�DQG�&LW\�&RXQFLO�WR�WKH�&LW\�0DQDJHU�WR�FRPSOHWH�FHUWDLQ�

DQG� VSHFLILF� EXGJHWHG� WUDQVIHUV� EHWZHHQ� GHSDUWPHQWV� DQG� WR� XWLOL]H� 1RQ�'HSDUWPHQWDO� DSSURSULDWLRQV� DV�

DQWLFLSDWHG��

vii



�

�

/RFDO�(FRQRP\�

�

)RUW�:RUWK�LV�FRQVLVWHQWO\�UDQNHG�DPRQJ�WKH�WRS�SODFHV�LQ�WKH�QDWLRQ�WR�OLYH��ZRUN��DQG�SOD\���:LWK�D�JURZLQJ�

ZRUNIRUFH�� WRS�HGXFDWLRQDO� IDFLOLWLHV�� ORZ�FRVW�RI�GRLQJ�EXVLQHVV��KLJK�TXDOLW\�RI� OLIH��SULPH� ORFDWLRQ��DQG�

FOLPDWH��WKH�&LW\�LV�DQ�DWWUDFWLYH�FKRLFH�IRU�FRPSDQLHV�ORRNLQJ�WR�H[SDQG�WKHLU�RSHUDWLRQV���

0DMRU�HPSOR\HUV�LQ�)RUW�:RUWK�LQFOXGH�$05�$PHULFDQ�$LUOLQHV��/RFNKHHG�0DUWLQ��-36�+HDOWK�1HWZRUN��

&RRN� &KLOGUHQ¶V� +HDOWKFDUH� 6\VWHP�� 7DUUDQW� &RXQW\�� 1$6� )RUW� :RUWK� -RLQW� 5HVHUYH� %DVH�� )RUW� :RUWK�

,QGHSHQGHQW�6FKRRO�'LVWULFW��7H[DV�+HDOWK�+DUULV�0HWKRGLVW�)RUW�:RUWK�+RVSLWDO��$OFRQ�/DERUDWRULHV��&LW\�

RI�)RUW�:RUWK��%HOO�+HOLFRSWHU��DQG�*HQFR�$7&���0DQXIDFWXULQJ�DQG�GLVWULEXWLRQ�UHPDLQV�DQ�LPSRUWDQW�SDUW�

RI�WKH�)RUW�:RUWK�HFRQRP\���7KH�OLVW�RI�FRPSDQLHV�LQ�GLVWULEXWLRQ�DQG�PDQXIDFWXULQJ�RSHUDWLRQV�LQFOXGH�$FPH�

%ULFN��$OFRQ�/DEV��$OOLHG�(OHFWURQLFV��$7&�/RJLVWLFV�	�(OHFWURQLFV��+DJJDU�&ORWKLQJ��)HGHUDO�([SUHVV��-�&��

3HQQH\¶V��0RWKHU�3DUNHU¶V�7HD�DQG�&RIIHH��&RFD�&ROD�(QWHUSULVHV��%HQ�(��.HLWK�&R���0LOOHU�&RRUV�//&��

:LOOLDPVRQ�'LFNLH��3UDWW�,QGXVWULHV�86$��,QF���1*&�5HQHZDEOHV��//&��&DUROLQD�%HYHUDJH�*URXS��//&��*(�

0DQXIDFWXULQJ�6ROXWLRQV��DQG�7KH�'DQQRQ�&RPSDQ\���

$�UHOHDVHG�HFRQRPLF�LPSDFW�VWXG\�E\�7KH�3HUU\PDQ�*URXS�FUHGLWV�RLO�DQG�QDWXUDO�JDV�H[SORUDWLRQ�IRU�DGGLQJ�

������ELOOLRQ�LQ�JURVV�SURGXFW�SHU�\HDU�DQG�PRUH�WKDQ���������SHUPDQHQW�MREV�WR�WKH�1RUWK�7H[DV�UHJLRQ���2LO�

DQG� JDV� SURGXFWLRQ�� GULYHQ� E\� WKH� %DUQHWW� 6KDOH�� KDV� SURYLGHG� D� QXPEHU� RI� HFRQRPLF� EHQHILWV� IURP�

H[SORUDWLRQ��GULOOLQJ�DQG�UHODWHG�DFWLYLW\�� �&RYHULQJ�DSSUR[LPDWHO\�������VTXDUH�PLOHV�DQG����FRXQWLHV�WKH�

DQQXDO�WD[�LPSDFW�LV�DERXW��������PLOOLRQ�WR�PXQLFLSDOLWLHV��FRXQWLHV�DQG�RWKHU�JRYHUQPHQWDO�HQWLWLHV��DV�ZHOO�

DV��������PLOOLRQ�WR�WKH�VWDWH�RI�7H[DV���7KH�%DUQHWW�6KDOH�KDV�\LHOGHG�RYHU����WULOOLRQ�FXELF�IHHW�RI�QDWXUDO�

JDV�ZLWK�DERXW��������ZHOOV�LQ�WKH�VKDOH�VLQFH��������7KDW¶V����SHUFHQW�PRUH�WKDQ�WKH���WULOOLRQ�FXELF�IHHW�LQ�

�����DQG�GHVSLWH�RQO\����ULJV�RSHUDWLQJ�LQ�WKH�%DUQHWW�DV�RI�6HSWHPEHU�����������7KH�VWXG\�FUHGLWHG�DOPRVW����

SHUFHQW�RI�WKH�UHJLRQ¶V�LQFUHPHQWDO�JURZWK�VLQFH������DV�D�GLUHFW�UHVXOW�RI�%DUQHWW�6KDOH�DFWLYLW\���'HVSLWH�

WHSLG�SULFLQJ�IRU�QDWXUDO�JDV�DQG�WKH�UHFHQW�GHFLVLRQ�E\�;72�WR�FRQVROLGDWH�WKHLU�)RUW�:RUWK�RIILFHV�LQ�QHZ�

IDFLOLWLHV�LQ�7KH�:RRGODQGV��+RXVWRQ�DUHD���WKH�HQHUJ\�LQGXVWU\�UHPDLQV�D�VWURQJ�DQG�LPSRUWDQW�VHJPHQW�RI�

WKH�ORFDO�DQG�UHJLRQDO�HFRQRP\���

7KH�&LW\¶V� LQGXVWU\� FOXVWHUV� UHPDLQ�GLYHUVH�ZLWK� WUDGH�� WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�� DQG�XWLOLWLHV�PDNLQJ�XS� WKH� ODUJHVW�

SHUFHQWDJH�RI�WKH�)RUW�:RUWK�$UOLQJWRQ�0HWURSROLWDQ�'LYLVLRQ��0'��LQGXVWU\�FRPSRVLWLRQ�DW�������6LQFH�

�����WUDGH��WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ��DQG�XWLOLWLHV�FRPSDQLHV�KDYH�JURZQ�FRQVLGHUDEO\�DGGLQJ�RYHU��������MREV�WR�WKH�

DUHD�� �(GXFDWLRQ� DQG� KHDOWK� VHUYLFHV��PDQXIDFWXULQJ�� UHWDLO� WUDGH�� SURIHVVLRQDO� DQG� EXVLQHVV� VHUYLFHV�� DQG�

OHLVXUH�DQG�KRVSLWDOLW\�DUH�DOVR�ODUJH�VHFWRUV��FRPSULVLQJ����������������������������DQG�������RI�WKH�)RUW�

:RUWK¶V�ZRUNIRUFH�UHVSHFWLYHO\���(PHUJLQJ�HFRQRPLF�VHFWRUV�LQFOXGH�DHURVSDFH�PDQXIDFWXULQJ�DQG�GHVLJQ��

OLIH�VFLHQFHV�GHOLYHU\�DQG�LQQRYDWLRQ��JHRWHFKQLFDO�HQJLQHHULQJ��DQG�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�LQQRYDWLRQ��

7KHUH� DUH� RYHU� ������� UHJLVWHUHG� EXVLQHVV� ILUPV� LQ� WKH� )RUW�:RUWK�$UOLQJWRQ�0'�� �$ERXW� ����RI� WKHVH�

EXVLQHVVHV�DUH�VPDOO�WR�PLG�VL]H�ILUPV�WKDW�HPSOR\�DQ\ZKHUH�IURP�RQH�WR�����LQGLYLGXDOV��ZKLFK�KLJKOLJKWV�

WKH�FRQWLQXHG�LPSRUWDQFH�RI�VPDOO�EXVLQHVV�GHYHORSPHQW���/DUJH�EXVLQHVV�ILUPV�ZLWK�RYHU�������HPSOR\HHV�

PDNH�WKH�RWKHU�KDOI�RI�WKH�DUHD¶V�ZRUNIRUFH������

7KH�)RUW�:RUWK�$UOLQJWRQ�0'�ERDVWV�D�VWURQJ�ODERU�IRUFH�RI�����PLOOLRQ�WKDW�FRQWLQXHV�WR�JURZ���7KH�)RUW�

:RUWK�$UOLQJWRQ� 0'� KDV� H[SHULHQFHG� SRVLWLYH� DQQXDO� HPSOR\PHQW� JURZWK� VLQFH� VXPPHU� ������ � 7KH�

XQHPSOR\PHQW� UDWH� RI� ����� LV� VWLOO� OHVV� WKDQ� WKH� ����� VWDWH� XQHPSOR\PHQW� UDWH� DQG� WKH� ����� QDWLRQDO�

XQHPSOR\PHQW�UDWH�WKURXJK�$XJXVW�������

viii



�

�

/RFDO�(FRQRP\��&RQWLQXHG��

�

7KH�FKDUW�EHORZ�VKRZV�DQQXDO�ODERU�IRUFH�GDWD�IRU�WKH�&LW\�RI�)RUW�:RUWK��WKH�'DOODV�)RUW�:RUWK�$UOLQJWRQ�

0HWURSROLWDQ�6WDWLVWLFDO�$UHD��DQG�7DUUDQW�&RXQW\��ZLWK������UHSUHVHQWLQJ�VWDWLVWLFV�IURP�$XJXVW�������

� ϮϬϬϳ� ϮϬϬϴ� ϮϬϬϵ� ϮϬϭϬ� ϮϬϭϭ� ϮϬϭϮ� ϮϬϭϯ� ϮϬϭϰ� ϮϬϭϱ� ϮϬϭϲ� ϮϬϭϳ�

�ŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�&Žƌƚ�tŽƌƚŚ�

>ĂďŽƌ�&ŽƌĐĞ� ϯϭϰ͕ϵϳϲ� ϯϮϯ͕ϯϭϰ� ϯϯϮ͕ϰϭϵ� ϯϱϳ͕ϵϮϳ� ϯϲϵ͕ϳϭϴ� ϯϳϳ͕ϭϮϯ� ϯϴϰ͕ϲϭϯ� ϯϴϵ͕ϳϳϴ� ϯϵϮ͕ϰϭϱ� ϰϬϭ͕ϯϮϳ� ϰϬϵ͕ϴϲϬ�

hŶĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ� ϭϰ͕ϬϮϬ� ϭϲ͕ϮϭϬ� Ϯϱ͕ϴϳϵ� Ϯϴ͕ϰϰϭ� Ϯϳ͕ϲϮϴ� Ϯϰ͕ϯϬϭ� ϮϮ͕ϴϴϬ� ϭϵ͕ϮϬϬ� ϭϲ͕Ϯϳϳ� ϭϲ͕ϳϲϰ� ϭϳ͕ϭϭϰ�

hŶĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�ZĂƚĞ� ϰ͘ϱй� ϱ͘Ϭй� ϳ͘ϴй� ϳ͘ϵй� ϳ͘ϱй� ϲ͘ϰй� ϱ͘ϵй� ϰ͘ϵй� ϰ͘ϭй� ϰ͘Ϯй� ϰ͘Ϯй�

�ĂůůĂƐͲ&Žƌƚ�tŽƌƚŚͲ�ƌůŝŶŐƚŽŶ�D^��

>ĂďŽƌ�&ŽƌĐĞ� ϯ͕ϭϬϲ͕ϵϲϰ� ϯ͕ϭϰϲ͕ϰϴϳ� ϯ͕ϭϴϳ͕ϬϬϭ� ϯ͕ϯϬϬ͕ϳϲϭ� ϯ͕ϯϳϰ͕ϰϭϰ� ϯ͕ϰϮϬ͕ϭϴϲ� ϯ͕ϰϳϴ͕ϭϵϴ� ϯ͕ϱϮϵ͕ϳϬϬ� ϯ͕ϱϳϭ͕Ϭϰϵ� ϯ͕ϲϴϰ͕ϲϳϯ� ϯ͕ϳϳϯ͕ϱϳϵ�

hŶĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ� ϭϯϮ͕ϬϴϬ� ϭϱϯ͕ϱϲϯ� Ϯϰϴ͕ϯϴϯ� Ϯϲϲ͕ϱϵϯ� Ϯϱϱ͕Ϯϳϭ� ϮϮϱ͕Ϭϭϰ� Ϯϭϭ͕Ϭϳϳ� ϭϳϳ͕ϯϱϵ� ϭϰϱ͕ϭϳϲ� ϭϰϭ͕ϴϭϴ� ϭϰϲ͕ϳϰϯ�

hŶĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�ZĂƚĞ� ϰ͘ϯй� ϰ͘ϵй� ϳ͘ϴй� ϴ͘ϭй� ϳ͘ϲй� ϲ͘ϲй� ϲ͘ϭй� ϱ͘Ϭй� ϰ͘ϭй� ϯ͘ϴй� ϯ͘ϵй�

dĂƌƌĂŶƚ��ŽƵŶƚǇ�

>ĂďŽƌ�&ŽƌĐĞ� ϴϲϴ͕ϲϴϬ� ϴϴϬ͕ϴϮϲ� ϴϵϲ͕ϯϬϱ� ϵϮϰ͕ϵϱϭ� ϵϱϬ͕ϱϭϰ� ϵϲϲ͕Ϯϱϵ� ϵϴϮ͕ϲϲϱ� ϵϴϵ͕ϯϱϬ� ϵϴϴ͕ϯϮϰ� ϭ͕ϬϬϴ͕ϬϮϬ� ϭ͕ϬϮϵ͕ϯϬϱ�

hŶĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ� ϯϲ͕ϴϮϯ� ϰϮ͕Ϭϰϴ� ϲϴ͕ϵϯϲ� ϳϱ͕ϯϳϱ� ϳϭ͕ϳϴϴ� ϲϮ͕ϵϰϰ� ϱϵ͕ϭϬϱ� ϰϵ͕ϲϳϮ� ϰϭ͕ϭϬϰ� ϯϵ͕ϳϳϰ� ϰϬ͕ϱϬϮ�

hŶĞŵƉůŽǇŵĞŶƚ�ZĂƚĞ� ϰ͘Ϯй� ϰ͘ϴй� ϳ͘ϳй� ϴ͘ϭй� ϳ͘ϲй� ϲ͘ϱй� ϲ͘Ϭй� ϱ͘Ϭй� ϰ͘Ϯй� ϯ͘ϵй� ϯ͘ϵй�

�

Source: Texas Workforce Commission, Labor Market Information 

7KH�$OOLDQFH�7H[DV�GHYHORSPHQW�LQ�IDU�QRUWK�)RUW�:RUWK�FRQWLQXHG�LWV�JURZWK�E\�DGGLQJ�PRUH�WKDQ�������MREV�

RYHU�WKH�SDVW����PRQWKV��RQH�RI� LWV� ODUJHVW� LQFUHDVHV�VLQFH� WKH� UHFHVVLRQ�� �(PSOR\PHQW�DW� WKH��������DFUH�

GHYHORSPHQW��ZKLFK�LQFOXGHV�D�VXEVWDQWLDO�ORJLVWLFV�SDUN��UHVLGHQWLDO�VXEGLYLVLRQV��VKRSSLQJ�FHQWHUV�DQG�WKH�

&LUFOH�7�5DQFK��D�������DFUH�PDVWHU�SODQQHG�PL[HG�XVH�FRPPXQLW\���WRSSHG��������LQ�������

5RFN�&UHHN�5DQFK�FRQWLQXHG�ZLWK�GHYHORSPHQW�

RQ�WKHLU�������DFUHV�LQ�VRXWKZHVW�)RUW�:RUWK�RII�

WKH�&KLVKROP�7UDLO�3DUNZD\���7KH�GHYHORSPHQW�

ZLOO� LQFOXGH� FRPPHUFLDO�� PL[HG� XVH� DQG�

UHVLGHQWLDO��DV�ZHOO�DV�D�QHZ����DFUH�FDPSXV�IRU�

7DUOHWRQ� 6WDWH� 8QLYHUVLW\�� � 7KH� FDPSXV� LV�

DQWLFLSDWHG� WR� RSHQ� LQ� -DQXDU\� ����� DQG� LV�

H[SHFWHG� WR� KDYH� ������ VWXGHQWV���

�

�
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:DOVK�5DQFK�LV�D�������DFUH�GHYHORSPHQW�WKDW�ZLOO�HYHQWXDOO\�IHDWXUH�DV�PDQ\�DV��������KRPHV���7KH�ILUVW�

SKDVH�RSHQHG�LQ�$SULO������ZLWK�DQ�DQWLFLSDWHG�����KRPHV�DFURVV�������DFUHV���:DOVK�(OHPHQWDU\��D�WZR�

VWRU\����������VTXDUH�IRRW�FDPSXV�RQ����DFUHV��RSHQHG�LQ�WKH�)DOO��������7KH�GHYHORSPHQW�LV�DQWLFLSDWHG�WR�

KDYH�D�EXLOG�RXW�FRVW�RI������%LOOLRQ�RYHU����WR����\HDUV���

'LFNLHV� $UHQD�� ZKLFK� LV� VFKHGXOHG� WR� RSHQ�
1RYHPEHU� ������ LV� XQGHU� FRQVWUXFWLRQ� RQ� WKH�
:LOO� 5RJHUV� 0HPRULDO� &HQWHU� FDPSXV�� � 7KH�
DUHQD�ZLOO�DWWUDFW�D�ZLGH�YDULHW\�RI�KLJK�TXDOLW\�
HQWHUWDLQPHQW� RSWLRQV� WR� WKH� )RUW� :RUWK� DUHD�
LQFOXGLQJ� FRQFHUWV�� VSRUWLQJ� HYHQWV� DQG� IDPLO\�
VKRZV�� DV� ZHOO� DV� KRVW� WKH� PRQWK�ORQJ� )RUW�
:RUWK�6WRFN�6KRZ�DQG�5RGHR�� � ,Q�DGGLWLRQ� WR�
H[FLWLQJ� HQWHUWDLQPHQW� DQG� VSRUWLQJ� HYHQWV��
'LFNLHV� $UHQD� ZLOO� KDYH� WKH� FDSDFLW\� WR�
DFFRPPRGDWH� FRQYHQWLRQV�� H[KLELW� HYHQWV��
EXVLQHVV� PHHWLQJV� DQG� SULYDWH� UHFHSWLRQV� ZLWK�
IOH[LEOH� PHHWLQJ� DQG� HYHQW� VSDFHV� UDQJLQJ� LQ�
IURP�����VTXDUH�IHHW�WR��������VTXDUH�IHHW�VL]H��
�

�
� �
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(QFRUH� 0XOWLIDPLO\�� //&�� D� VXEVLGLDU\� RI� WKH� 'DOODV�EDVHG� (QFRUH� (QWHUSULVHV�� ,QF��� LV� RIILFLDOO\� XQGHU�

FRQWUDFW� WR� EUHDN� JURXQG� RQ� WKH� ILUVW� SULYDWH� GHYHORSPHQW� RQ�3DQWKHU� ,VODQG�� � 7KH� WKRXJKWIXOO\� GHVLJQHG�

��������VTXDUH�IRRW�PXOWL�IDPLO\�FRPPXQLW\�ZLOO�IHDWXUH�FUHDWLYH�VROXWLRQV�WR�FRQQHFW�WKH�VWUHHWVFDSH�WR�WKH�

5LYHUZDON� HQYLURQPHQW� SODQQHG� IRU� WKH� GLVWULFW�� � 5HVLGHQWV� ZLOO� EH� DEOH� WR� HQMR\� H[FHSWLRQDO� DPHQLWLHV�

LQFOXGLQJ�ZDWHUIURQW�EDOFRQLHV��DQ�LQILQLW\�SRRO�ZLWK�FDVFDGLQJ�ZDWHUIDOOV��D�VWDWH�RI�WKH�DUW�ILWQHVV�IDFLOLW\�DQG�

D�WRS�IORRU�ORXQJH�WKDW�ZLOO�IHDWXUH�WKH�PRVW�G\QDPLF�YLHZV�RI�GRZQWRZQ���/RFDWHG�DW�WKH�LQWHUVHFWLRQ�RI��WK�

6WUHHW�DQG�1RUWK�0DLQ�6WUHHW��UHVLGHQWV�DW�WKH�����XQLW�FRPPXQLW\�ZLOO�EH�ZDONLQJ�GLVWDQFH�WR�3DQWKHU�,VODQG�

%UHZLQJ��&R\RWH�'ULYH�,Q�DQG�3DQWKHU�,VODQG�3DYLOLRQ��

)RUW�:RUWK�+HULWDJH�'HYHORSPHQW��//&�ZLOO�FRQVWUXFW�D�PL[HG�XVH�UHGHYHORSPHQW�DQG�QHZ�GHYHORSPHQW�

SURMHFW�ORFDWHG�LQ�WKH�KLVWRULF�)RUW�:RUWK�6WRFN\DUGV���7KH�SURMHFW�ZLOO�FRPSULVH�DSSUR[LPDWHO\�RQH�PLOOLRQ�

VTXDUH�IHHW�RI�VSDFH�FRQVLVWLQJ�RI�D�KRWHO��UHWDLO��UHVWDXUDQWV��RIILFH�DQG�UHVLGHQWLDO�DSDUWPHQW�XQLWV�DPRQJ�RWKHU�

XVHV���7KH�GHYHORSPHQW�ZLOO�EH�FRQVWUXFWHG�LQ�WKUHH�SKDVHV�FRPSOHWLQJ�E\�'HFHPEHU��������

&OHDUIRUN� LV� D� ����DFUH�� PXOWL�SKDVH�

GHYHORSPHQW� SURMHFW� WKDW� XOWLPDWHO\� ZLOO�

LQFRUSRUDWH���PLOOLRQ�VTXDUH�IHHW�RI�RIILFH�VSDFH��

���� PLOOLRQ� VTXDUH� IHHW� RI� UHWDLO�� GLQLQJ� DQG�

HQWHUWDLQPHQW��DQG�������PXOWLIDPLO\�UHVLGHQWLDO�

XQLWV� DW� FRPSOHWLRQ�� � 7KH� ILUVW� SKDVH� RI�

GHYHORSPHQW� LV� FRPSOHWH� ZLWK� FRQVWUXFWLRQ�

RQJRLQJ�IRU�VXEVHTXHQW�SKDVHV��

�
�

7KH� &LW\� RI� )RUW� :RUWK¶V� /RFDO� 'HYHORSPHQW� &RUSRUDWLRQ� FRPSOHWHG� D� ILYH�VWRU\�� PL[HG�XVH� EXLOGLQJ�

GRZQWRZQ�QDPHG�3LQQDFOH�%DQN�3ODFH����7KH�JURXQG�IORRU�FRQVLVWV�RI�EDQN�RIILFHV�DQG�UHWDLO���7KH�IRXU�IORRUV�

DERYH�KDYH�����DSDUWPHQWV��,Q�DGGLWLRQ��WKH�SURMHFW�LQFOXGHV�D�SDUNLQJ�JDUDJH�RQ�WKH�EDFN�RI�WKH�SURMHFW���7KH�

EXLOGLQJ��ORFDWHG�RQ�:HVW�/DQFDVWHU�$YHQXH�EHWZHHQ�-HQQLQJV�DQG�7KURFNPRUWRQ�VWUHHWV��RSHQHG�LQ�HDUO\�

�����DQG�KDV�DOUHDG\�EURXJKW�VLJQLILFDQW�DFWLYLW\�WR�WKH�DUHD�ZLWK�WKH�DGGLWLRQ�RI�WKH�SURSHUW\¶V�UHVLGHQWV��

)DFHERRN�UHFHQWO\�RSHQHG�D�ODUJH����ELOOLRQ�SOXV�GDWD�FHQWHU�LQ�)RUW�:RUWK���7KH�GDWD�FHQWHU�LV�ORFDWHG�LQ�WKH�

$OOLDQFH�&RUULGRU��LQ�QRUWK�)RUW�:RUWK���7KH�QHZ�GDWD�FHQWHU�LV�ORFDWHG�DW�WKH�FRUQHU�RI�3DUN�9LVWD�%OYG��DQG�

6WDWH� +LJKZD\� ���� DQG� XOWLPDWHO\� FRQVLVW� RI� ILYH� ��������VTXDUH�IRRW� EXLOGLQJV� RQ� D� ����DFUH� VLWH���

&RQVWUXFWLRQ� RQ� WKH� ILUVW� SKDVH� ZDV� UHFHQWO\� FRPSOHWHG� DQG� WKH� GHYHORSPHQW� RI� IXWXUH� SKDVHV� KDV� EHHQ�

DFFHOHUDWHG���

6PLWK�	�1HSKHZ�,QF��KDV� OHDVHG�D��������VTXDUH�IRRW�EXLOGLQJ�DW�&KLVKROP�7UDLO�3DUNZD\�DQG�&OHDUIRUN�

0DLQ�6WUHHW�� �7KH�ILUP�KDV�PDGH�)RUW�:RUWK� WKH�8�6��KHDGTXDUWHUV�RI� LWV�$GYDQFHG�:RXQG�0DQDJHPHQW�

GLYLVLRQ���7KH�/RQGRQ�EDVHG�PDNHU�RI�ZRXQG�FDUH�DQG�VXUJLFDO�SURGXFWV�DJUHHG�WR�DGG����SRVLWLRQV�WR�LWV�ORFDO�

VWDII�E\�'HFHPEHU�����������SXVKLQJ�WRWDO�VWDIILQJ�WR������ZLWK�DQ���������DYHUDJH�VDODU\�IRU�DOO�IXOO�WLPH�

HPSOR\HHV��

�
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7DQJHU�2XWOHWV��7DQJHU��FRQVWUXFWHG�D���������

VTXDUH�IRRW�VKRSSLQJ�FHQWHU�LQ�QRUWK�)RUW�:RUWK�

DFURVV� IURP� 7H[DV� 0RWRU� 6SHHGZD\�� � 7DQJHU�

SODQQHG� WR� LQYHVW� ���� PLOOLRQ� WR� EXLOG� WKH�

VKRSSLQJ� FHQWHU�� � 7DQJHU� DQWLFLSDWHV� ���� IXOO�

WLPH�HPSOR\HHV�E\�'HFHPEHU������������

'HWURLW�EDVHG� 7LWOH� 6RXUFH�� WKH� ODUJHVW� LQGHSHQGHQW� SURYLGHU� RI� WLWOH� LQVXUDQFH�� SURSHUW\� YDOXDWLRQV� DQG�

VHWWOHPHQW�VHUYLFHV�LQ�WKH�QDWLRQ��ZLOO�PRYH�LWV�'HQWRQ�RIILFH� WR�D�QHZ�ORFDWLRQ�LQ�)RUW�:RUWK�� �7KH�QHZ��

�������VTXDUH�IRRW�RIILFH�LV�ORFDWHG�DW�+LOOZRRG�&RPPRQV���������+LOOZRRG�3DUNZD\�LQ�QRUWK�)RUW�:RUWK���

&RQVWUXFWLRQ� LV� QHDULQJ� FRPSOHWLRQ� RQ� )URVW�

7RZHU� DW� ���� 7D\ORU� 6WUHHW� GRZQWRZQ�� � 7KH�

����� PLOOLRQ�� ���VWRU\� RIILFH� WRZHU� ZLOO� KDYH�

JURXQG�IORRU� UHWDLO� VSDFH� DQG� ��� IORRUV� RI�

SDUNLQJ�� LQFOXGLQJ���XQGHUJURXQG�� ,W�ZLOO�KDYH�

DQ�DGGLWLRQDO����IORRUV�RI�RIILFH��UHVLGHQWLDO�DQG�

UHVWDXUDQW�VSDFH���,W�ZLOO�EH�WKH�QHZ�KHDGTXDUWHUV�

IRU�)RUW�:RUWK�EDVHG�RLO�DQG�JDV�FRPSDQ\�-HWWD�

2SHUDWLQJ� DQG� D� UHJLRQDO� ILQDQFLDO� FHQWHU� IRU�

)URVW�%DQN��ZLWK�UHPDLQLQJ�VSDFH�OHDVHG�WR�RWKHU�

WHQDQWV��

�
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/RFDO�(FRQRP\��&RQWLQXHG��

�

'RZQWRZQ�)RUW�:RUWK¶V�KLVWRULF�6LQFODLU�%XLOGLQJ�LV�EHLQJ�WUDQVIRUPHG�LQWR�DQ�XSVFDOH�����URRP�0DUULRWW�

$XWRJUDSK� &ROOHFWLRQ� KRWHO�� DQG� WKH� HPSW\� DQG� IRUPHU� +LOWRQ� $QQH[� ZLOO� EH� PDGH� RYHU� LQWR� FRUSRUDWH�

DSDUWPHQWV���$OVR�XQGHU�UHGHYHORSPHQW�E\�WKH�VDPH�GHYHORSPHQW�JURXS��WKH�DGMDFHQW�6DQJHU�%URV���%XLOGLQJ�

UHFHQWO\�FRPSOHWHG�D�IXOO�UHIXUELVKPHQW�DQG�XSGDWLQJ�RI�H[LVWLQJ�RIILFH�VSDFH�DQG�LV�UHDG\LQJ�WKH�ILUVW�WZR�

IORRUV�RI�WKH�EXLOGLQJ�WR�KRXVH�&96�3KDUPDF\���$GGLWLRQDO�LPSURYHPHQWV�WR�WKH�EXLOGLQJ�LQFOXGH�IDFDGH�DQG�

VWUHHWVFDSH�LPSURYHPHQWV��JURXQG�IORRU�UHWDLO��RQH�IORRU�RI�PHHWLQJ�DQG�EDQTXHW�VSDFH�WKDW�FRQQHFWV�WR�WKH�

KRWHO�E\�VN\�EULGJH��D�VSD��DQG�SRWHQWLDOO\�RIILFH�UHPRGHOLQJ��FRQYHUVLRQ�RI�VRPH�HPSW\�VSDFH�WR�KRXVH�GDWD�

FHQWHUV��DQG�FRQYHUVLRQ�RI�PRUH�VSDFH�IRU�KRWHO�VHUYLFHV���

&DWDO\VW�8UEDQ�'HYHORSPHQW�SODQV�WR�FRQVWUXFW�

D� ����XQLW� DSDUWPHQW� SURMHFW� QHDU� /DQFDVWHU�

$YHQXH� DQG� &KHUU\� 6W��� WR� EH� NQRZQ� DV� WKH�

%XUQHWW� /RIWV�� � 7KH� SURMHFW�� DQWLFLSDWHG� WR�

LQYROYH�DW� OHDVW�����PLOOLRQ� LQ� LQYHVWPHQW�ZLOO�

DOVR�IHDWXUH�������VTXDUH�IRRW�RI�UHWDLO�VSDFH���

1LOHV�&LW\�5HVRUWV�UHFHQWO\�DQQRXQFHG�SODQV�WR�
LQYHVW� ���� PLOOLRQ� IRU� WKH� FRQVWUXFWLRQ� RI� D�
PLQLPXP� ����URRP� ��VWDU� KRWHO� LQ� WKH� )RUW�
:RUWK�6WRFN\DUGV���/RFDWHG�RQ�WKH�KLVWRULF�VLWH�
RI�WKH�IRUPHU�$UPRXU�SDFNLQJ�SODQW��WKH�SURMHFW�
ZLOO�EH�NQRZQ�DV�WKH�$UPRXU�+RWHO��

7KH�&LW\�RI�)RUW�:RUWK�UHFHQWO\�FRPSOHWHG�WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�DQ�HFRQRPLF�GHYHORSPHQW�VWUDWHJLF�SODQ�WKDW�LV�

GHVLJQHG�WR�JXLGH�&LW\�HFRQRPLF�GHYHORSPHQW�SULRULWLHV�IRU� WKH�FRPLQJ�ILYH�\HDUV�DQG�EH\RQG���7KH�SODQ�

GHOLYHUHG�NH\�LQVLJKWV�LQWR�WKH�FRPSHWLWLYHQHVV�RI�)RUW�:RUWK�FRPSDUHG�WR�RWKHU�UHJLRQV�DFURVV�WKH�8QLWHG�

6WDWHV�DQG�DEURDG�DQG�SURYLGHG�IRFXVHG�UHFRPPHQGDWLRQV�RQ�LQGXVWU\�WDUJHWV�DQG�WDFWLFDO�PHDVXUHV�DLPHG�DW�

LQFUHDVLQJ� WKH� HFRQRPLF� YLWDOLW\� DQG� LQGXVWULDO� VWUHQJWK� RI� )RUW� :RUWK� DQG� WKH� VXUURXQGLQJ� UHJLRQ��

�

0RRG\¶V�,QYHVWRUV�6HUYLFHV��0RRG\¶V���6	3�*OREDO�5DWLQJ�6HUYLFHV��6	3���DQG�)LWFK�5DWLQJ�6HUYLFHV��)LWFK��

KDYH�DOO�DVVLJQHG�UDWLQJV�WR�WKH�&LW\�RI�)RUW�:RUWK¶V�RXWVWDQGLQJ�GHEW�����7KH�&LW\¶V�JHQHUDO�REOLJDWLRQ�ERQGV�

DUH�UDWHG�³$D�´�E\�0RRG\¶V��DQG�³$$�´�E\�ERWK�6	3�DQG�)LWFK���7KH�&LW\¶V�ZDWHU�DQG�VHZHU�V\VWHP�UHYHQXH�

ERQGV�DUH�UDWHG�³$D�´�E\�0RRG\¶V��³$$�´�E\�6	3��DQG�³$$´�E\�)LWFK���7KH�&LW\¶V�GUDLQDJH�XWLOLW\�V\VWHP�

UHYHQXH�ERQGV�DUH�QRW�UDWHG�E\�0RRG\¶V��DQG�DUH�UDWHG�³$$�´�E\�ERWK�6	3�DQG�)LWFK���7KH�&LW\¶V�VSHFLDO�WD[�

UHYHQXH�ERQGV�DUH�QRW�UDWHG�E\�6	3��DQG�DUH�UDWHG�³$�´�DQG�³$$�´�E\�0RRG\¶V�DQG�)LWFK��UHVSHFWLYHO\���7KH�

&LW\¶V�UDWLQJV�DUH�FRPSOLPHQWDU\�RI�RXU�VWURQJ�ILQDQFLDO�SHUIRUPDQFH��PDLQWDLQLQJ�UHVHUYHV��DQG�ILQDQFLDO�

JRYHUQDQFH�� � 7KH� &LW\¶V� SHQVLRQ� RELOJDWLRQV� DQG� IL[HG� FRVWV�� GLVFXVVHG� IXWKHU� LQ� WKLV� GRFXPHQW�� FUHDWH�

GRZQZDUG�SUHVVXUH�RQ�WKH�&LW\¶V�UDWLQJV��� �
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/RQJ�WHUP�)LQDQFLDO�3ODQQLQJ�DQG�0DMRU�,QLWLDWLYHV��

�

7KH�&LW\µV�VWUDWHJLF�JRDOV�HQDEOH�WKH�&LW\�&RXQFLO�WR��

x� %HWWHU�XQGHUVWDQG�)RUW�:RUWK¶V�FXOWXUDO�KHULWDJH�
x� +DYH�D�FRQVHQVXV�RQ�ZKDW�WR�DFFRPSOLVK�RYHU�WKH�QH[W�ILYH�\HDUV�
x� 7UDQVODWH�WKH�YLVLRQ�LQWR�DQ�DFWLRQ�SODQ�
x� 3ULRULWL]H�WKH�XVH�RI�OLPLWHG�FLW\�UHVRXUFHV�
x� 6XSSRUW�VWDII�DQG�FRPPXQLW\�JURXSV�LQ�IRFXVLQJ�HIIRUWV�RQ�WKH�YLVLRQ�DQG�SULRULWLHV�

�

&LW\�&RXQFLO�ZLOO�UHILQH�DQG�DGMXVW�WKH�VWUDWHJLF�JRDOV��DV�FLUFXPVWDQFHV�FKDQJH���2YHUDOO��WKH�&LW\�RI�)RUW�

:RUWK�FRQFHQWUDWHG�RQ�QLQH�WRS�SULRULW\�VWUDWHJLF�FKDOOHQJHV�DQG�RSSRUWXQLWLHV�IRU�)LVFDO�<HDU��������7KHVH�

DUHDV�ZHUH�LGHQWLILHG�WR�SURYLGH�D�FOHDU�DQG�FRQFLVH�VWDWHPHQW�DERXW�ZKHUH�WKH�0D\RU�DQG�&LW\�&RXQFLO�ZDQW�

)RUW�:RUWK�WR�IRFXV�RYHU�WKH�QH[W�ILYH�\HDUV�DQG�WR�VWLPXODWH�EURDGHU�GLVFXVVLRQ�RI�WKH�LPSRUWDQW�LVVXHV�IDFLQJ�

)RUW�:RUWK�QRZ�DQG�LQ�WKH�IXWXUH���$�QXPEHU�RI�RQJRLQJ�DGPLQLVWUDWLYH�DQG�FRPPXQLW\�SURFHVVHV�ZLOO�PDNH�

WKH�JRDOV�UHDOLW\��

�

7KH�&LW\�&RXQFLO¶V�VWUDWHJLF�FKDOOHQJHV�DQG�RSSRUWXQLWLHV��
x� (IIHFWLYH�5HVRXUFH�0DQDJHPHQW�
x� 6XVWDLQDEOH�*URZWK�
x� 3XEOLF�,QIUDVWUXFWXUH�
x� 7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�
x� +RXVLQJ�
x� )LQDQFLDO�6WDELOLW\�
x� &LW\�6HUYLFH�'HOLYHU\�
x� (GXFDWLRQ�	�:RUNIRUFH�'HYHORSPHQW�
x� /HDGHUVKLS�DQG�(QJDJHPHQW�

�

7KHVH�VWUDWHJLF�FKDOOHQJHV�DQG�RSSRUWXQLWLHV�HQDEOH�WKH�&LW\�&RXQFLO�WR�KDYH�D�FRQVHQVXV�RQ�PLVVLRQ��YLVLRQ��

DQG�YDOXHV�IRU�WKH�IXWXUH�DV�IROORZV��

�

Mission��:RUNLQJ�WRJHWKHU�WR�EXLOG�D�VWURQJ�FRPPXQLW\��

�

%XLOGLQJ�D�VWURQJ�FRPPXQLW\�PHDQV�EXLOGLQJ�VWURQJ�QHLJKERUKRRGV��GHYHORSLQJ�D�VRXQG�HFRQRP\��SURYLGLQJ�

D�VDIH�FRPPXQLW\��DQG�IRVWHULQJ�D�KHDOWK\�HQYLURQPHQW��

�

Vision��)RUW�:RUWK�ZLOO�EH�WKH�PRVW�OLYDEOH�DQG�EHVW�PDQDJHG�FLW\�LQ�WKH�FRXQWU\��

�

7KH�&LW\
V�YLVLRQ�VWDWHPHQW�VHWV�IRUWK�RXU�DVSLUDWLRQ�WR�EHFRPH�HYHQ�EHWWHU�WKDQ�ZH�DUH�WRGD\�DV�D�FRPPXQLW\�

DQG�DV�DQ�RUJDQL]DWLRQ��
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/RQJ�WHUP�)LQDQFLDO�3ODQQLQJ�DQG�0DMRU�,QLWLDWLYHV��&RQWLQXHG��

 

Values��7KHUH�DUH�VL[�YDOXHV�WKDW�JXLGH�RXU�HPSOR\HHV�DV�WKH\�JR�DERXW�WKLV�ZRUN��

x� ([FHSWLRQDO�&XVWRPHU�([SHULHQFH�
x� $FFRXQWDELOLW\�
x� (WKLFDO�%HKDYLRU�
x� 'LYHUVLW\�
x� 0XWXDO�5HVSHFW�
x� &RQWLQXRXV�,PSURYHPHQW�

�

7KH�&LW\�FRQWLQXHV�WR�IRFXV�PDMRU�HIIRUWV�RQ�WKHVH�VWUDWHJLF�FKDOOHQJHV�DQG�RSSRUWXQLWLHV�ZKLFK�GULYH�GHFLVLRQ�

PDNLQJ�DQG�KHOS�WKH�&LW\�&RXQFLO�IXUWKHU�WKH�&LW\¶V�PLVVLRQ�DQG�YLVLRQ�E\�WUDQVODWLQJ�WKDW�YLVLRQ�LQWR�DQ�DFWLRQ�

SODQ���7KH�&LW\¶V�OLPLWHG�UHVRXUFHV�DUH�WKHQ�SULRULWL]HG�WR�DFKLHYH�WKDW�SODQ���7KH�&LW\¶V�DFWLRQV�WR�LPSOHPHQW�

WKH�HVWDEOLVKHG�VWUDWHJLF�FKDOOHQJHV�DQG�DGGUHVV�FRPPXQLW\�LVVXHV�DUH�QXPHURXV�DQG�YDULHG����
�

3HQVLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�
�

,Q�$XJXVW������� WKH�&LW\�&RXQFLO� UHTXHVWHG� WKDW� WKH�&LW\�0DQDJHU�IRUP�D�FRPPLWWHH�³WR�GHWHUPLQH�ZKDW�
DGGLWLRQDO�VWHSV�PD\�EH�QHFHVVDU\�WR�PDQDJH�WKH�ULVN�RI�WKH��UHWLUHPHQW��SODQ�DQG�LPSURYH�WKH�RYHUDOO�ILQDQFLDO�
FRQGLWLRQ�´��7KH�3HQVLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�ZDV�DVVHPEOHG�VLQFH�WKDW�PHHWLQJ�DQG�FRQVLVWV�RI�WKH�&LW\�0DQDJHU�DQG�
RWKHU�VWDNHKROGHUV�RI�WKH�&LW\��LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�&LW\¶V�)LQDQFLDO�$GYLVRU��)LUVW�6RXWKZHVW���
�

7KH�3HQVLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�KDV�EHHQ�FKDUJHG�ZLWK�GHILQLQJ�DQG�DVVHVVLQJ� WKH� ORQJ�WHUP�VXVWDLQDELOLW\�RI� WKH�
(PSOR\HHV¶� 5HWLUHPHQW� )XQG� RI� WKH� &LW\� DQG� HYDOXDWLQJ� RSWLRQV� WR� LPSURYH� WKH� FXUUHQW� SRVLWLRQ� RI� WKH�
UHWLUHPHQW�IXQG��ZLWKRXW�GLUHFWO\�RU�LQGLUHFWO\�UHTXLULQJ�DGGLWLRQDO�FRQWULEXWLRQV�IURP�WD[SD\HUV�UDWHSD\HUV����
�
,Q�RUGHU�WR�PHHW�WKH�FKDUJH��WKH�3HQVLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�ZLOO���
�

x� 'LVFXVV�DQG�DJUHH�LQ�KRZ�ORQJ�WHUP�VXVWDLQDELOLW\�ZLOO�EH�GHILQHG��DV�LW�UHODWHV�WR�DPRUWL]DWLRQ�
SHULRG��GLVFRXQW�UDWHV��IXQGHG�UDWLRV��HWF���
�

x� (YDOXDWH�WKH�FRPSHWLWLYHQHVV�RI�WKH�&LW\¶V�SHQVLRQ�SODQ�LQ�WKH�FRQWH[W�RI�WRWDO�FRPSHQVDWLRQ�±�
ZLWK�WKH�JRDO�RI�PDLQWDLQLQJ�FRPSHWLWLYH�UHFUXLWPHQW�DQG�UHWHQWLRQ���7RWDO�FRPSHQVDWLRQ�ZLOO�
LQFOXGH�VDODU\��SHQVLRQ��KHDOWKFDUH��DQG�RWKHU�EHQHILWV�VXFK�DV�SDLG�OHDYH��
�

x� (YDOXDWH�SHQVLRQ�PDUNHWSODFHV�WR�LQFOXGH�RWKHU�7H[DV�VWDQG�DORQH�SODQV�DQG�WKH�7H[DV�0XQLFLSDO�
5HWLUHPHQW�6\VWHP�WR�LQFOXGH��DW�D�PLQLPXP��WKH�IROORZLQJ�GDWD��
o� )LQDQFLDO�FRQGLWLRQ�RI�RWKHU�SODQV�
o� 9HVWLQJ�
o� %HQHILW�IRUPXOD��PXOWLSOLHU��ILQDO�VDODU\�FDOFXODWLRQ��RYHUWLPH��HWF���
o� (PSOR\HU�(PSOR\HH�FRQWULEXWLRQV�

�

6LQFH�IRUPDWLRQ��WKH�3HQVLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�DQG�WKH�&LW\�0DQDJHU�KDYH�UHOHDVHG�D�VHULHV�RI�³3HQVLRQ�5HFDS´�
DUWLFOHV�XSGDWHV�WR�&LW\�HPSOR\HHV�UHJDUGLQJ�WKH�SURJUHVV�EHLQJ�PDGH�E\�WKH�FRPPLWWHH���7KHVH�XSGDWHV�
RXWOLQH�LPSRUWDQW�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DERXW�WKH�SHQVLRQ�SODQ�DQG�WKH�FRQWLQXHG�FKDOOHQJHV�DV�FXUUHQWO\�VWUXFWXUHG���
7KH�3HQVLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�ZLOO�SUHVHQW�EHIRUH�&LW\�&RXQFLO�WKHLU�UHFRPPHQGDWLRQ�RI�DQ\�SURSRVHG�FKDQJHV�
WR�WKH�SHQVLRQ�SODQ�LQ�WKH�FRPLQJ�PRQWKV���,PSOHPHQWDWLRQ�RI�UHFRPPHQGDWLRQV�IURP�WKH�&LW\¶V�FRQVXOWDQWV�
3)0��DUH�DQWLFLSDWHG�GXULQJ�WKH�FXUUHQW�ILVFDO�\HDU��
�

)RU�PRUH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�RQ�WKH�(PSOR\HHV¶�5HWLUHPHQW�)XQG�RI�WKH�&LW\�RI�)RUW�:RUWK��7H[DV��SOHDVH�UHIHU�WR�
1RWH�,��
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5HOHYDQW�)LQDQFLDO�3ROLFLHV�
�

7KH�&LW\�KDV�DGRSWHG�D�FRPSUHKHQVLYH�VHW�RI�)LQDQFLDO�0DQDJHPHQW�3ROLF\�6WDWHPHQWV�WR�KHOS�HQVXUH�WKDW�WKH�

&LW\¶V�ILQDQFLDO�UHVRXUFHV�DUH�PDQDJHG�LQ�D�SUXGHQW�PDQQHU���7KH�&LW\�ZLOO�PDLQWDLQ�D�PLQLPXP�8QDVVLJQHG�

)XQG�%DODQFH�LQ�WKH�*HQHUDO�)XQG�HTXLYDOHQW�WR�WHQ�SHUFHQW�������RI�UHJXODU�RQJRLQJ�RSHUDWLQJ�H[SHQGLWXUHV��

ZLWK�D�JRDO�RI�WZR�PRQWKV����������RI�UHJXODU�RQJRLQJ�RSHUDWLQJ�H[SHQGLWXUHV���,Q�WKH�HYHQW�UHVHUYHV�H[FHHG�

WKH�PLQLPXP�EDODQFH�UHTXLUHPHQWV��DW�WKH�HQG�RI�HDFK�ILVFDO�\HDU��DQ\�H[FHVV�UHVHUYHV�PD\�EH�XVHG�LQ�WKH�

IROORZLQJ�ZD\V��

�

�����������)XQG�DFFUXHG�OLDELOLWLHV��LQFOXGLQJ�EXW�QRW�OLPLWHG�WR�GHEW�VHUYLFH��SHQVLRQ��DQG�
RWKHU�SRVW�HPSOR\PHQW�EHQHILWV�DV�GLUHFWHG�DQG�DSSURYHG�ZLWKLQ�WKH�ORQJ�WHUP�
ILQDQFLDO�SODQ�DQG�WKH�DQQXDO�EXGJHW�RUGLQDQFH���3ULRULW\�ZLOO�EH�JLYHQ�WR�WKRVH�
LWHPV�WKDW�UHOLHYH�EXGJHW�RU�ILQDQFLDO�RSHUDWLQJ�SUHVVXUH�LQ�IXWXUH�SHULRGV��

�
�����������$SSURSULDWHG�WR�ORZHU�WKH�DPRXQW�RI�ERQGV�RU�LQFUHDVH�WKH�SD\�DV�\RX�JR�

FRQWULEXWLRQV�QHHGHG�WR�IXQG�FDSLWDO�SURMHFWV�LQ�WKH�&LW\¶V�&DSLWDO�,PSURYHPHQW�
3ODQ��

�
�����������2QH�WLPH�H[SHQGLWXUHV�WKDW�GR�QRW�LQFUHDVH�UHFXUULQJ�RSHUDWLQJ�FRVWV�WKDW�FDQQRW�

EH�IXQGHG�WKURXJK�FXUUHQW�UHYHQXHV���(PSKDVLV�ZLOO�EH�SODFHG�RQ�RQH�WLPH�XVHV�
WKDW�UHGXFH�IXWXUH�RSHUDWLQJ�FRVWV��RU�
�

�����������6WDUW�XS�H[SHQGLWXUHV�IRU�QHZ�SURJUDPV��SURYLGHG�WKDW�VXFK�DFWLRQ�LV�DSSURYHG�
E\�WKH�&LW\�&RXQFLO�DQG�LV�FRQVLGHUHG�LQ�WKH�FRQWH[W�RI�PXOWL�\HDU�SURMHFWLRQV�RI�
UHYHQXH�DQG�H[SHQGLWXUHV�DV�SUHSDUHG�E\�WKH�'HSDUWPHQW�RI�)LQDQFLDO�0DQDJHPHQW�6HUYLFHV��

�

7KH� XVH� RI� IXQGV� ZLWKLQ� WKH� &DSLWDO� 3URMHFWV� )XQG� VKDOO� EH� JXLGHG� E\� WKH� &DSLWDO� ([SHQGLWXUHV� DQG�

,PSURYHPHQWV�3ROLF\�6WDWHPHQWV���7KH�&LW\�PDLQWDLQV�UHVHUYH�SROLFLHV�IRU�WKH�YDULRXV�IXQG�W\SHV��SOHDVH�UHIHU�

WR�1RWH�$�����IRU�WKH�UHPDLQLQJ�)LQDQFLDO�0DQDJHPHQW�3ROLFLHV�UHODWHG�WR�IXQG�EDODQFH��

�

7KH�8QDVVLJQHG�)XQG�%DODQFH�LQ�WKH�*HQHUDO�)XQG�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�ILVFDO�\HDU�ZDV�������PLOOLRQ�RU�������

RI�WRWDO�*HQHUDO�)XQG�H[SHQGLWXUHV����

�

�
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$ZDUGV�

7KH� *RYHUQPHQW� )LQDQFH� 2IILFHUV� $VVRFLDWLRQ� RI� WKH� 8QLWHG� 6WDWHV� DQG� &DQDGD� �*)2$�� DZDUGHG� D�

&HUWLILFDWH�RI�$FKLHYHPHQW�IRU�([FHOOHQFH�LQ�)LQDQFLDO�5HSRUWLQJ�WR�WKH�&LW\�IRU�LWV�&$)5�IRU�WKH�ILVFDO�

\HDU�HQGHG�6HSWHPEHU������������7KLV�ZDV�WKH��WK�FRQVHFXWLYH�\HDU�WKDW�WKH�&LW\�KDV�DFKLHYHG�WKLV�SUHVWLJLRXV�

DZDUG���,Q�RUGHU�WR�EH�DZDUGHG�D�&HUWLILFDWH�RI�$FKLHYHPHQW��WKH�&LW\�PXVW�SXEOLVK�DQ�HDVLO\�UHDGDEOH�DQG�

HIILFLHQWO\�RUJDQL]HG�&$)5���7KLV�UHSRUW�PXVW�VDWLVI\�ERWK�JHQHUDOO\�DFFHSWHG�DFFRXQWLQJ�SULQFLSOHV�DQG�

DSSOLFDEOH�OHJDO�UHTXLUHPHQWV��

$�&HUWLILFDWH�RI�$FKLHYHPHQW�LV�YDOLG�IRU�D�SHULRG�RI�RQH�\HDU�RQO\���:H�EHOLHYH�WKDW�RXU�FXUUHQW�&$)5�

FRQWLQXHV�WR�PHHW�WKH�&HUWLILFDWH�RI�$FKLHYHPHQW�3URJUDP¶V�UHTXLUHPHQWV�DQG�ZH�DUH�VXEPLWWLQJ�LW�WR�WKH�

*)2$�WR�GHWHUPLQH�LWV�HOLJLELOLW\�IRU�DQRWKHU�FHUWLILFDWH��

7KH� &LW\� DOVR� UHFHLYHG� WKH� *)2$¶V� 'LVWLQJXLVKHG� %XGJHW� 3UHVHQWDWLRQ� $ZDUG� IRU� LWV� DQQXDO� EXGJHW�

GRFXPHQW� IRU� WKH� ILVFDO� \HDU� EHJLQQLQJ� 2FWREHU� ��� ������ � 7R� TXDOLI\� IRU� WKH� 'LVWLQJXLVKHG� %XGJHW�

3UHVHQWDWLRQ�$ZDUG�� WKH� &LW\µV� EXGJHW� GRFXPHQW� KDG� WR� EH� MXGJHG� SURILFLHQW� DV� D� SROLF\� GRFXPHQW�� D�

ILQDQFLDO�SODQ��RSHUDWLRQV�JXLGH��DQG�D�FRPPXQLFDWLRQV�GHYLFH��

$FNQRZOHGJHPHQWV�

7KH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�RI�WKLV�UHSRUW�FRXOG�QRW�KDYH�EHHQ�DFFRPSOLVKHG�ZLWKRXW�WKH�IXOO�VXSSRUW�DQG�LQYROYHPHQW�

RI�WKH�&LW\�0DQDJHU¶V�2IILFH�DQG�DOO�&LW\�GHSDUWPHQWV�ZKR�SURYLGHG�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�DQDO\VHV�FRQWDLQHG�
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7KH�+RQRUDEOH�0D\RU�DQG�&LW\�&RXQFLO�0HPEHUV�
&LW\�RI�)RUW�:RUWK��7H[DV�
�
5HSRUW�RQ�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�
�
:H� KDYH� DXGLWHG� WKH� DFFRPSDQ\LQJ� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV� RI� WKH� JRYHUQPHQWDO� DFWLYLWLHV�� WKH� EXVLQHVV�W\SH�
DFWLYLWLHV��WKH�DJJUHJDWH�GLVFUHWHO\�SUHVHQWHG�FRPSRQHQW�XQLW��HDFK�PDMRU�IXQG��DQG�WKH�DJJUHJDWH�UHPDLQLQJ�IXQG�
LQIRUPDWLRQ�RI�WKH�&LW\�RI�)RUW�:RUWK��7H[DV���WKH�&LW\��DV�RI�DQG�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG�6HSWHPEHU����������DQG�WKH�
UHODWHG�QRWHV�WR�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��ZKLFK�FROOHFWLYHO\�FRPSULVH�WKH�&LW\¶V�EDVLF�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DV�OLVWHG�
LQ�WKH�WDEOH�RI�FRQWHQWV���
�
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
�
7KH�&LW\¶V�PDQDJHPHQW� LV� UHVSRQVLEOH� IRU� WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�DQG� IDLU�SUHVHQWDWLRQ�RI� WKHVH� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV� LQ�
DFFRUGDQFH� ZLWK� DFFRXQWLQJ� SULQFLSOHV� JHQHUDOO\� DFFHSWHG� LQ� WKH� 8QLWHG� 6WDWHV� RI� $PHULFD�� WKLV� LQFOXGHV� WKH�
GHVLJQ�� LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ��DQG�PDLQWHQDQFH�RI� LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO� UHOHYDQW� WR� WKH�SUHSDUDWLRQ�DQG�IDLU�SUHVHQWDWLRQ�RI�
ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�WKDW�DUH�IUHH�IURP�PDWHULDO�PLVVWDWHPHQW��ZKHWKHU�GXH�WR�IUDXG�RU�HUURU��
�
Auditor’s Responsibility 
�
2XU�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�LV� WR�H[SUHVV�RSLQLRQV�RQ� WKHVH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�EDVHG�RQ�RXU�DXGLW��:H�GLG�QRW�DXGLW� WKH�
ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�(PSOR\HHV¶�5HWLUHPHQW�)XQG�RI� WKH�&LW\�RI�)RUW�:RUWK��ZKLFK�UHSUHVHQW����SHUFHQW�����
SHUFHQW�� ��� SHUFHQW�� DQG� ��� SHUFHQW�� UHVSHFWLYHO\�� RI� WKH� DVVHWV�� OLDELOLWLHV�� QHW� SRVLWLRQ�� DQG� DGGLWLRQV� WR� QHW�
SRVLWLRQ� RI� WKH� ILGXFLDU\� WUXVW� IXQGV� RI� WKH� &LW\��:H� GLG� QRW� DXGLW� WKH� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV� RI� WKH� )RUW�:RUWK�
+RXVLQJ�)LQDQFH�&RUSRUDWLRQ��ZKLFK�UHSUHVHQW����SHUFHQW����SHUFHQW�����SHUFHQW��DQG���SHUFHQW��UHVSHFWLYHO\��RI�
WKH� DVVHWV�� OLDELOLWLHV�� IXQG�EDODQFH�� DQG� UHYHQXHV�RI� WKH� QRQPDMRU� JRYHUQPHQWDO� IXQGV�RI� WKH�&LW\��:H�GLG�QRW�
DXGLW� WKH� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV�RI�7HUUHOO�+RPHV��/WG��ZKLFK� UHSUHVHQWV�����SHUFHQW�RI� WKH�DVVHWV�� OLDELOLWLHV��QHW�
SRVLWLRQ�� DQG� UHYHQXHV�RI� WKH�GLVFUHWHO\�SUHVHQWHG�FRPSRQHQW�XQLW�RI� WKH�&LW\��7KRVH� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV�ZHUH�
DXGLWHG�E\�RWKHU�DXGLWRUV�ZKRVH�UHSRUW�WKHUHRQ�KDV�EHHQ�IXUQLVKHG�WR�XV��DQG�RXU�RSLQLRQ��LQVRIDU�DV�LW�UHODWHV�WR�
WKH�DPRXQWV� LQFOXGHG� IRU� WKH�(PSOR\HHV¶�5HWLUHPHQW�)XQG�RI� WKH�&LW\�RI�)RUW�:RUWK�� WKH�)RUW�:RUWK�+RXVLQJ�
)LQDQFH�&RUSRUDWLRQ�DQG�7HUUHOO�+RPHV��/WG���LV�EDVHG�VROHO\�RQ�WKH�UHSRUW�RI�WKH�RWKHU�DXGLWRUV��:H�FRQGXFWHG�
RXU� DXGLW� LQ� DFFRUGDQFH� ZLWK� DXGLWLQJ� VWDQGDUGV� JHQHUDOO\� DFFHSWHG� LQ� WKH� 8QLWHG� 6WDWHV� RI� $PHULFD� DQG� WKH�
VWDQGDUGV�DSSOLFDEOH�WR�ILQDQFLDO�DXGLWV�FRQWDLQHG�LQ�Government Auditing Standards, LVVXHG�E\�WKH�&RPSWUROOHU�
*HQHUDO� RI� WKH�8QLWHG�6WDWHV��7KRVH� VWDQGDUGV� UHTXLUH� WKDW�ZH�SODQ� DQG�SHUIRUP� WKH� DXGLW� WR� REWDLQ� UHDVRQDEOH�
DVVXUDQFH�DERXW�ZKHWKHU�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�IUHH�IURP�PDWHULDO�PLVVWDWHPHQW��7KH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�RI�
WKH� (PSOR\HHV¶�5HWLUHPHQW� )XQG� RI� WKH�&LW\� RI� )RUW�:RUWK�ZHUH� QRW� DXGLWHG� LQ� DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�Government 
Auditing Standards��
�
$Q� DXGLW� LQYROYHV� SHUIRUPLQJ� SURFHGXUHV� WR� REWDLQ� DXGLW� HYLGHQFH� DERXW� WKH� DPRXQWV� DQG� GLVFORVXUHV� LQ� WKH�
ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��7KH�SURFHGXUHV�VHOHFWHG�GHSHQG�RQ�WKH�DXGLWRU¶V�MXGJPHQW��LQFOXGLQJ�WKH�DVVHVVPHQW�RI�WKH�
ULVNV� RI�PDWHULDO�PLVVWDWHPHQW� RI� WKH� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV��ZKHWKHU� GXH� WR� IUDXG� RU� HUURU�� ,Q�PDNLQJ� WKRVH� ULVN�
DVVHVVPHQWV��WKH�DXGLWRU�FRQVLGHUV�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO�UHOHYDQW�WR�WKH�HQWLW\¶V�SUHSDUDWLRQ�DQG�IDLU�SUHVHQWDWLRQ�RI�WKH�
ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�LQ�RUGHU�WR�GHVLJQ�DXGLW�SURFHGXUHV�WKDW�DUH�DSSURSULDWH�LQ�WKH�FLUFXPVWDQFHV��EXW�QRW�IRU�WKH�
SXUSRVH�RI�H[SUHVVLQJ�DQ�RSLQLRQ�RQ�WKH�HIIHFWLYHQHVV�RI�WKH�HQWLW\¶V�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO��$FFRUGLQJO\��ZH�H[SUHVV�QR�
VXFK� RSLQLRQ�� $Q� DXGLW� DOVR� LQFOXGHV� HYDOXDWLQJ� WKH� DSSURSULDWHQHVV� RI� DFFRXQWLQJ� SROLFLHV� XVHG� DQG� WKH�
UHDVRQDEOHQHVV� RI� VLJQLILFDQW� DFFRXQWLQJ� HVWLPDWHV� PDGH� E\� PDQDJHPHQW�� DV� ZHOO� DV� HYDOXDWLQJ� WKH� RYHUDOO�
SUHVHQWDWLRQ�RI�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��
�
�
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&LW\�RI�)RUW�:RUWK��7H[DV�

�

:H�EHOLHYH�WKDW�WKH�DXGLW�HYLGHQFH�ZH�KDYH�REWDLQHG�LV�VXIILFLHQW�DQG�DSSURSULDWH�WR�SURYLGH�D�EDVLV�IRU�RXU�DXGLW�
RSLQLRQV��
�
Opinions 
�
,Q�RXU�RSLQLRQ��EDVHG�RQ�RXU�DXGLW�DQG�WKH�UHSRUW�RI�WKH�RWKHU�DXGLWRUV��WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�UHIHUUHG�WR�DERYH�
SUHVHQW� IDLUO\�� LQ� DOO� PDWHULDO� UHVSHFWV�� WKH� UHVSHFWLYH� ILQDQFLDO� SRVLWLRQ� RI� WKH� JRYHUQPHQWDO� DFWLYLWLHV�� WKH�
EXVLQHVV�W\SH�DFWLYLWLHV�� WKH�DJJUHJDWH�GLVFUHWHO\�SUHVHQWHG�FRPSRQHQW�XQLW�� HDFK�PDMRU� IXQG�� DQG� WKH�DJJUHJDWH�
UHPDLQLQJ�IXQG�LQIRUPDWLRQ�RI�WKH�&LW\�RI�)RUW�:RUWK��DV�RI�6HSWHPEHU�����������DQG�WKH�UHVSHFWLYH�FKDQJHV�LQ�
ILQDQFLDO�SRVLWLRQ�DQG��ZKHUH�DSSOLFDEOH��FDVK�IORZV�WKHUHRI�IRU�WKH�\HDU�WKHQ�HQGHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�DFFRXQWLQJ�
SULQFLSOHV�JHQHUDOO\�DFFHSWHG�LQ�WKH�8QLWHG�6WDWHV�RI�$PHULFD��
�
Other Matters  
�
Required Supplementary Information�

�
$FFRXQWLQJ� SULQFLSOHV� JHQHUDOO\� DFFHSWHG� LQ� WKH� 8QLWHG� 6WDWHV� RI� $PHULFD� UHTXLUH� WKDW� WKH� 0DQDJHPHQW¶V�
'LVFXVVLRQ�DQG�$QDO\VLV��WKH�%XGJHWDU\�&RPSDULVRQ�6FKHGXOH�±�*HQHUDO�)XQG��WKH�(PSOR\HHV¶�5HWLUHPHQW�)XQG�
±�6FKHGXOH�RI�&RQWULEXWLRQV�WR�WKH�5HWLUHPHQW�)XQG�±�/DVW�7HQ�)LVFDO�<HDUV��WKH�(PSOR\HHV¶�5HWLUHPHQW�)XQG�±�
6FKHGXOH� RI�&KDQJHV� LQ�1HW� 3HQVLRQ�/LDELOLW\� ±�/DVW� 7HQ� )LVFDO�<HDUV�� WKH�2WKHU� 3RVWHPSOR\PHQW� %HQHILWV� ±�
6FKHGXOH� RI� )XQGLQJ� 3URJUHVV� DQG�2WKHU� 3RVWHPSOR\PHQW� %HQHILWV� ±� 6FKHGXOH� RI� (PSOR\HU� &RQWULEXWLRQV� EH�
SUHVHQWHG� WR� VXSSOHPHQW� WKH� EDVLF� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV�� 6XFK� LQIRUPDWLRQ�� DOWKRXJK� QRW� D� SDUW� RI� WKH� EDVLF�
ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV�� LV� UHTXLUHG� E\� WKH�*RYHUQPHQWDO�$FFRXQWLQJ� 6WDQGDUGV�%RDUG��ZKR� FRQVLGHUV� LW� WR� EH� DQ�
HVVHQWLDO� SDUW� RI� ILQDQFLDO� UHSRUWLQJ� IRU� SODFLQJ� WKH� EDVLF� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV� LQ� DQ� DSSURSULDWH� RSHUDWLRQDO��
HFRQRPLF�� RU� KLVWRULFDO� FRQWH[W�� :H� KDYH� DSSOLHG� FHUWDLQ� OLPLWHG� SURFHGXUHV� WR� WKH� UHTXLUHG� VXSSOHPHQWDU\�
LQIRUPDWLRQ� LQ� DFFRUGDQFH� ZLWK� DXGLWLQJ� VWDQGDUGV� JHQHUDOO\� DFFHSWHG� LQ� WKH�8QLWHG� 6WDWHV� RI� $PHULFD�� ZKLFK�
FRQVLVWHG� RI� LQTXLULHV� RI� PDQDJHPHQW� DERXW� WKH� PHWKRGV� RI� SUHSDULQJ� WKH� LQIRUPDWLRQ� DQG� FRPSDULQJ� WKH�
LQIRUPDWLRQ� IRU� FRQVLVWHQF\�ZLWK�PDQDJHPHQW¶V� UHVSRQVHV� WR� RXU� LQTXLULHV�� WKH� EDVLF� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV�� DQG�
RWKHU�NQRZOHGJH�ZH�REWDLQHG�GXULQJ�RXU�DXGLW�RI�WKH�EDVLF�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��:H�GR�QRW�H[SUHVV�DQ�RSLQLRQ�RU�
SURYLGH� DQ\� DVVXUDQFH� RQ� WKH� LQIRUPDWLRQ� EHFDXVH� WKH� OLPLWHG� SURFHGXUHV� GR� QRW� SURYLGH� XV� ZLWK� VXIILFLHQW�
HYLGHQFH�WR�H[SUHVV�DQ�RSLQLRQ�RU�SURYLGH�DQ\�DVVXUDQFH��
�
Other Information�
�
2XU� DXGLW� ZDV� FRQGXFWHG� IRU� WKH� SXUSRVH� RI� IRUPLQJ� RSLQLRQV� RQ� WKH� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV� WKDW� FROOHFWLYHO\�
FRPSULVH� WKH� &LW\� RI� )RUW� :RUWK¶V� EDVLF� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV�� 7KH� LQWURGXFWRU\� VHFWLRQ�� WKH� FRPELQLQJ� DQG�
LQGLYLGXDO�IXQG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DQG�VFKHGXOHV��WKH�RWKHU�VXSSOHPHQWDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�WKH�VWDWLVWLFDO�VHFWLRQ�
DUH�SUHVHQWHG�IRU�SXUSRVHV�RI�DGGLWLRQDO�DQDO\VLV�DQG�DUH�QRW�D�UHTXLUHG�SDUW�RI�WKH�EDVLF�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��
�
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�

7KH�FRPELQLQJ�DQG�LQGLYLGXDO�IXQG�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DQG�VFKHGXOHV�DQG�WKH�RWKHU�VXSSOHPHQWDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DUH�
WKH� UHVSRQVLELOLW\� RI�PDQDJHPHQW� DQG�ZHUH� GHULYHG� IURP� DQG� UHODWH� GLUHFWO\� WR� WKH� XQGHUO\LQJ� DFFRXQWLQJ� DQG�
RWKHU�UHFRUGV�XVHG�WR�SUHSDUH�WKH�EDVLF�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��6XFK�LQIRUPDWLRQ�KDV�EHHQ�VXEMHFWHG�WR�WKH�DXGLWLQJ�
SURFHGXUHV� DSSOLHG� LQ� WKH� DXGLW� RI� WKH� EDVLF� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV� DQG� FHUWDLQ� DGGLWLRQDO� SURFHGXUHV�� LQFOXGLQJ�
FRPSDULQJ� DQG� UHFRQFLOLQJ� VXFK� LQIRUPDWLRQ� GLUHFWO\� WR� WKH� XQGHUO\LQJ� DFFRXQWLQJ� DQG� RWKHU� UHFRUGV� XVHG� WR�
SUHSDUH� WKH� EDVLF� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV� RU� WR� WKH� EDVLF� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV� WKHPVHOYHV�� DQG� RWKHU� DGGLWLRQDO�
SURFHGXUHV� LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�DXGLWLQJ�VWDQGDUGV�JHQHUDOO\�DFFHSWHG�LQ�WKH�8QLWHG�6WDWHV�RI�$PHULFD�E\�XV�DQG�
WKH�RWKHU�DXGLWRUV��,Q�RXU�RSLQLRQ��EDVHG�RQ�RXU�DXGLW��WKH�SURFHGXUHV�SHUIRUPHG�DV�GHVFULEHG�DERYH��DQG�WKH�UHSRUW�
RI� WKH� RWKHU� DXGLWRUV�� WKH� FRPELQLQJ� DQG� LQGLYLGXDO� IXQG� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV� DQG� VFKHGXOHV� DQG� RWKHU�
VXSSOHPHQWDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DUH�IDLUO\�VWDWHG�LQ�DOO�PDWHULDO�UHVSHFWV�LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�WKH�EDVLF�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DV�D�
ZKROH���
�
7KH�LQWURGXFWRU\�DQG�VWDWLVWLFDO�VHFWLRQV�KDYH�QRW�EHHQ�VXEMHFWHG�WR�WKH�DXGLWLQJ�SURFHGXUHV�DSSOLHG�LQ�WKH�DXGLW�RI�
WKH�EDVLF�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��DQG��DFFRUGLQJO\��ZH�GR�QRW�H[SUHVV�DQ�RSLQLRQ�RU�SURYLGH�DQ\�DVVXUDQFH�RQ�WKHP��
�
2WKHU�5HSRUWLQJ�5HTXLUHG�E\�Government Auditing Standards�
�
,Q�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�Government Auditing Standards��ZH�KDYH�DOVR�LVVXHG�RXU�UHSRUW�GDWHG�)HEUXDU\����������RQ�
RXU�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�RI� WKH�&LW\¶V� LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO�RYHU� ILQDQFLDO� UHSRUWLQJ�DQG�RQ�RXU� WHVWV�RI� LWV�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�
FHUWDLQ�SURYLVLRQV� RI� ODZV�� UHJXODWLRQV�� FRQWUDFWV� DQG�JUDQW� DJUHHPHQWV�� DQG�RWKHU�PDWWHUV��7KH�SXUSRVH�RI� WKDW�
UHSRUW�LV�WR�GHVFULEH�WKH�VFRSH�RI�RXU�WHVWLQJ�RI�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO�RYHU�ILQDQFLDO�UHSRUWLQJ�DQG�FRPSOLDQFH�DQG�WKH�
UHVXOWV�RI�WKDW�WHVWLQJ��DQG�QRW�WR�SURYLGH�DQ�RSLQLRQ�RQ�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO�RYHU�ILQDQFLDO�UHSRUWLQJ�RU�RQ�FRPSOLDQFH��
7KDW� UHSRUW� LV� DQ� LQWHJUDO� SDUW� RI� DQ� DXGLW� SHUIRUPHG� LQ� DFFRUGDQFH� ZLWK� Government Auditing Standards� LQ�
FRQVLGHULQJ�WKH�&LW\¶V�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO�RYHU�ILQDQFLDO�UHSRUWLQJ�DQG�FRPSOLDQFH��
�
�
�
:HDYHU�DQG�7LGZHOO��/�/�3�
�
)RUW�:RUWK��7H[DV
)HEUXDU\���������
�
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(000's omitted in tables) 

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) provides a narrative overview of the financial activities and changes in
the financial position of the City of Fort Worth, Texas (City), for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017 (FY2017).
The MD&A is offered here by the management of the City to the readers of its financial statements.  Readers should use
the information presented here in conjunction with additional information furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can
be found in the Introductory Section of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). 

Financial Highlights

The assets and deferred outflows of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows at September 30, 2017, by
$1,892,670,000 (net position).  For FY2017, the City reported an unrestricted net deficit of $1,868,521,000 which was an
increase in unrestricted net deficit of $327,247,000 compared to the previous fiscal year.  This increase was primarily due
to an increase in net pension liability of $1,096,517,000 and an increase in other postemployment benefits obligation of
$31,636,000. 

The City’s total net position decreased by $45,793,000 in comparison with the amount in FY2016.  This decrease can be
attributed to the increase in net pension liability that was offset, in part, by revenues generated in the enterprise funds as
well as increases in property tax revenue, sales tax revenue, and capital grants and contributions for governmental
activities. 

At September 30, 2017, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $912,675,000, an
increase of $207,170,000 in comparison with FY2016.  Approximately 52.0 percent of ending fund balance of
$474,167,000 is available for spending at the government’s discretion, as follows: $261,724,000 of committed fund
balance; $119,982,000 of assigned fund balance; and $92,461,000 of unassigned fund balance. 

The City’s total long-term liabilities increased by $1,396,073,000 in comparison with FY2016.  The key factors in this
increase occurred for Net Pension Liability of $1,096,517,000, the issuance of $226,880,000 of Special Tax Revenue
Debt, $32,605,000 of Tax Notes, $12,685,000 of Special Assessment Debt, an increase in Other Postemployment Benefits
Obligation of $31,636,000, and $20,413,000 of additional Tarrant Regional Water District loans.  During the year, long-
term liabilities were reduced by principal payments of $66,267,000 in governmental activities and $70,248,000 in
business-type activities.  Additionally, the City issued $127,645,000 of revenue bonds, and defeased or refunded
$19,800,000 for business-type activities of existing debt. 

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements.  The
reporting focus of this document is on the City as a whole and on individual major funds.  It is intended to present a more
comprehensive view of the City’s financial activities. 

The basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements; 2) fund
financial statements; and 3) notes to the financial statements.  This report also contains required supplementary
information, combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules, and other supplemental information in
addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 
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Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements include the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities.  These
statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances in a manner similar to a private-
sector business.  Both are prepared using the economic resources focus and the accrual basis of accounting; meaning that
all the current year’s revenues and expenses are included regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the City’s assets and deferred outflows of resources and
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, including capital assets and long-term obligations.  The difference between
the two is reported as net position.  Over time, the increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of
whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.  Other indicators of the City’s financial position
should be taken into consideration, such as the change in the City’s property tax base and condition of the City’s
infrastructure (i.e., roads, drainage systems, water and sewer lines, etc.), in order to more accurately assess the overall
financial condition of the City. 

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the most recent
fiscal year.  It focuses on both the gross and net costs of the government’s various activities and thus summarizes the cost
of providing specific governmental services.  This statement includes all current year revenues and expenses. 

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities divide the primary government (the City) activities into two
types: 

Governmental activities – Most of the City’s basic services are reported here, including general government, public
safety, highways and streets, culture and recreation, health and welfare, and urban development and housing.  General
property taxes, sales taxes, and franchise fees provide the majority of the financing for these activities. 

Business-Type activities – Activities for which the City charges a fee to customers to pay most or all of the costs of a
service it provides are reported here.  The City’s business-type activities include water distribution and wastewater
collection, stormwater utility, municipal airports, municipal parking, and solid waste collection and disposal. 

Discretely Presented Component Unit – These statements also report information on the activities of a discretely
presented component unit.  This entity is not considered a part of the primary government. 
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Fund Financial Statements

The City of Fort Worth, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  These statements focus on the most
significant funds and are used to report more detailed information about the City’s most significant activities.  All of the
funds of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds. 

Governmental Funds – These funds are used to account for the majority of the City’s activities, which are essentially the
same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide statements.  However, unlike the government-
wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable
resources, as well as spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year for future spending.  Such information may
be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements. 

The focus of the governmental funds financial statements is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements.  Therefore, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information
presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions.  Both the Governmental Fund
Balance Sheet and the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances provide
a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison.  The reconciliation explains the differences between the government’s
activities as reported in the government-wide statements and the information presented in the governmental funds
financial statements. 

The City maintains twenty-one individual governmental funds.  Information is presented separately in the Governmental
Fund Balance Sheet and in the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
for the General Fund, the Debt Service Fund, and the Capital Projects Fund, which are considered to be major funds.  Data
for the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. 
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Fund Financial Statements (continued)

Proprietary Funds – When the City charges customers for services it provides, the activities are generally reported in 
proprietary funds.  The City of Fort Worth maintains two different types of proprietary funds: enterprise funds and 
internal service funds. 

Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide 
financial statements.  The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water and sewer operations, stormwater utility, 
municipal airports, municipal parking, and solid waste.  These services are primarily provided to outside or non-
governmental customers. 

Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City’s various 
functions.  The City uses internal service funds to account for its equipment services, information systems, capital project 
services, group health and life insurance, and risk financing. 

Proprietary funds financial statements provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, 
only in more detail.  The proprietary funds financial statements provide separate information for the Water and Sewer and 
the Stormwater Utility Funds, which are considered to be the major proprietary funds of the City.  The nonmajor 
enterprise funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. 

Fiduciary Funds – Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
government.  Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those 
funds are not available to support the City’s own programs.  The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that 
used for proprietary funds.  The City reports one Trust Fund which accounts for the assets of the City's pension plan and 
postemployment healthcare plan.  Separate audited financial statements are available for the City’s pension plan.  The 
pension plan's statements can be obtained by contacting the Plan at 3801 Hulen Street, Suite 101, Fort Worth, Texas 
76107. 

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-
wide and fund financial statements.  The notes to the financial statements can be found directly following the fund 
financial statements and prior to the Required Supplementary Information in this report. 
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Government-Wide Financial Analysis

At September 30, 2017, total assets of the City were $7,169,837,000 and deferred outflows were $1,323,340,000 while
total liabilities were $6,531,707,000 and deferred inflows were $68,800,000, resulting in a net position of $1,892,670,000.

The City’s net investment in capital assets was $3,635,037,000.  The City uses these assets to provide services to its
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.  Although the City reports net investment in
capital assets, the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

An additional portion of the City’s net position, $126,154,000 represents resources that are subject to external restrictions
on how they may be used.  The City has an unrestricted net deficit of $1,868,521,000.

Condensed Schedule of Net Position (Deficit)

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017

Current and Other Assets $ 886,073 $ 1,131,161 $ 682,984 $ 767,883 $ 1,569,057 $ 1,899,044
Capital Assets 2,025,361 2,160,710 2,948,805 3,110,083 4,974,166 5,270,793

Total Assets 2,911,434 3,291,871 3,631,789 3,877,966 6,543,223 7,169,837

Deferred Outflows 482,429 1,140,342 82,742 182,998 565,171 1,323,340

Other Liabilities 137,672 180,388 65,073 72,306 202,745 252,694
Long-term Liabilities Outstanding 3,506,573 4,710,841 1,376,367 1,568,172 4,882,940 6,279,013

Total Liabilities 3,644,245 4,891,229 1,441,440 1,640,478 5,085,685 6,531,707

Deferred Inflows 70,515 57,494 13,731 11,306 84,246 68,800

Net Position (Deficit):
Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,302,450 1,392,113 2,052,536 2,242,924 3,354,986 3,635,037
Restricted 53,854 86,980 25,797 39,174 79,651 126,154
Unrestricted (Deficit) (1,677,201) (1,995,603) 181,027 127,082 (1,496,174) (1,868,521)

Total Net Position (Deficit) $ (320,897) $ (516,510) $ 2,259,360 $ 2,409,180 $ 1,938,463 $ 1,892,670

At September 30, 2017, the City of Fort Worth is able to report positive balances in net position for the government as a
whole and business-type activities.  Governmental activities report a deficit net position at year-end.  There was an
increase in restricted net position reported in the City’s governmental activities of $33,126,000, which resulted from the
increase in impact fees collected for future development.  The governmental activities’ unrestricted net deficit balance
increased by $318,402,000, mostly due to increases in net pension liability, other postemployment benefits obligation,
new debt issuances, and the liability for Tarrant Regional Water District. 
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Government-Wide Financial Analysis (continued) 

Condensed Schedule of Changes in Net Position (Deficit)

Governmental Activities Business -Type Activities Total

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017

Revenues:
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services $ 88,874 $ 85,983 $ 519,908 $ 530,142 $ 608,782 $ 616,125
Operating Grants and Contributions 61,189 54,497 - - 61,189 54,497
Capital Grants and Contributions 76,667 123,816 87,851 121,769 164,518 245,585

General Revenues:
General Property Taxes 426,247 452,357 - - 426,247 452,357
Sales Taxes 204,117 218,937 - - 204,117 218,937
Other Local Taxes 31,029 31,732 - - 31,029 31,732
Franchise Fees 49,031 50,078 - - 49,031 50,078
Gas Leases and Royalties 18,485 9,063 15,869 6,504 34,354 15,567
Investment Income 3,703 7,239 2,809 5,240 6,512 12,479
Other 33,410 38,160 9,451 7,406 42,861 45,566

Total revenues 992,752 1,071,862 635,888 671,061 1,628,640 1,742,923

Expenses:
General Government 160,124 152,609 - - 160,124 152,609
Public Safety 551,562 698,059 - - 551,562 698,059
Highways and Streets 154,346 157,108 - - 154,346 157,108
Culture and Recreation 128,444 174,426 - - 128,444 174,426
Health and Welfare 6,863 11,076 - - 6,863 11,076
Urban Redevelopment and Housing 68,782 76,190 - - 68,782 76,190
Interest and Service Charges 30,493 31,636 - - 30,493 31,636
Water and Sewer - - 358,053 376,755 358,053 376,755
Stormwater Utility - - 24,365 30,238 24,365 30,238
Municipal Airports - - 20,519 14,628 20,519 14,628
Municipal Parking - - 7,387 6,699 7,387 6,699
Solid Waste - - 53,089 59,292 53,089 59,292

Total expenses 1,100,614 1,301,104 463,413 487,612 1,564,027 1,788,716

Insurance Recoveries 7,477 - - - 7,477 -

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenses (100,385) (229,242) 172,475 183,449 72,090 (45,793)

Transfers 51,233 33,629 (51,233) (33,629) - -

Changes in Net Position (Deficit) (49,152) (195,613) 121,242 149,820 72,090 (45,793)
Net Position (Deficit) - Beginning of Year (271,745) (320,897) 2,138,118 2,259,360 1,866,373 1,938,463

Net Position (Deficit) - End of Year $ (320,897) $ (516,510) $ 2,259,360 $ 2,409,180 $ 1,938,463 $ 1,892,670
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Government-Wide Financial Analysis (continued) 

Overall, the governmental activities change in net deficit totaled was $195,613,000 as a result of current fiscal year
activity.  Factors that contributed to the governmental activities net deficit increase were expenses of $1,301,104,000
exceeding revenues of $1,071,862,000, net of transfers from business-type activities of $33,629,000.  Transfers from
business-type activities decreased $17,604,000 compared to the prior fiscal year.  This decrease was due to reduced
funding requirements for various capital projects. 

In addition, governmental expenses increased by $200,490,000 when compared to FY2016.  This increase was primarily
due to the effect of the increase of the net pension liability for FY2017. 

Business-type activities net position increased $149,820,000 during the current fiscal year which is $28,578,000 higher
than the previous year's increase.  The major factors that contributed to the business-type activities net position increase
were increases of $10,234,000 in charges for services and $33,918,000 in capital grants and contributions.  This was
offset by an increase in operating expenses of $24,199,000. 

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

Governmental Funds – The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows,
outflows, and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements.
In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for
spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported total fund balances of $912,675,000.
Approximately 14.8 percent or $135,449,000 constitutes the General Fund’s fund balance.  As of September 30, 2017, the
General Fund’s nonspendable fund balance includes $1,892,000 for inventories, and $1,061,000 for prepaids, deposits,
and other.  The General Fund's restricted fund balance includes $8,286,000 for park improvements, and $1,600,000 is
related to the collective bargaining agreement.  The committed fund balance includes amounts of $6,476,000 for
repayment of State loans, $4,029,000 for park improvements, and $18,504,000 for public events and facilities totaling
$29,009,000.  As of September 30, 2017, the General Fund had an unassigned fund balance of $93,601,000. 

The Nonmajor Governmental Funds' fund balance of $118,440,000 is 13.0 percent of total governmental fund balance and
includes nonspendable fund balance of $2,674,000, restricted fund balance of $70,935,000, committed fund balance of
$4,128,000, assigned fund balance of $41,843,000, and an unassigned deficit of $1,140,000.  The Debt Service Fund has a
fund balance of $52,296,000 or 5.7 percent of total governmental fund balance of which $38,018,000 is restricted fund
balance, $10,333,000 is committed fund balance, and $3,945,000 is assigned fund balance.  The Capital Projects Fund has
a fund balance of $606,490,000 or 66.5 percent of total governmental fund balance of which $412,000 is nonspendable
fund balance, $313,630,000 is restricted fund balance, $218,254,000 is committed fund balance, and $74,194,000 is
assigned fund balance. 

As shown in the following charts (on the next page) for governmental funds for FY2016 and FY2017, general property
taxes and sales taxes were the primary sources of revenue for both years, while public safety and capital outlay were the
largest expenditures by function.  The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City.  At the end of the current
fiscal year, fund balance of the General Fund was $135,449,000.  As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be
useful to compare the unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.  Unassigned fund
balance of $93,601,000, represents 15.9 percent of total General Fund expenditures.  The total fund balance of
$135,449,000 represents 22.9 percent of total General Fund expenditures.  Fund balance in the General Fund increased by
$3,528,000, over the previous fiscal year. 
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Revenues and Expenditures – Governmental Funds

Revenues by Source – Governmental Funds

Expenditures by Function - Governmental Funds
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Financial Analysis of the Proprietary Funds

The City’s Proprietary Funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial statements but
in more detail. 

Unrestricted net position for the City’s major Proprietary Funds, the Water and Sewer Fund and Stormwater Utility Fund,
were $44,728,000 and $12,564,000, respectively, at the end of the fiscal year.  Water and Sewer Fund's unrestricted net
position decreased $47,136,000 from the previous year's total was primarily due to increased emphasis on capital asset
infrastructure improvements.  Total net position in the Water and Sewer Fund increased $95,431,000.  The increase in net
position was primarily due to charges for various services provided by the Water and Sewer Fund of $424,078,000, which
exceeded operating expenses by $69,399,000 and capital contributions of $55,185,000.  Total net position in the
Stormwater Utility Fund increased by $6,809,000.  The increase in net position from operations was primarily due to
utility fee charges which exceeded operating expenses by $9,084,000.  Nonmajor business-type activities increased the
City’s net position by $47,580,000.  For nonmajor business-type activities the increase in net position was primarily due
to capital contributions received by the Municipal Airport Fund. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Differences between the original expenditure budget and the final amended budget resulted in a $24,056,000 increase in
appropriations and is briefly summarized as follows: 

 Budget carryforwards of encumbrances resulted in an increase of $127,290 for the Stockyards study and senior

citizens services.

 Appropriation increases to the original budget were made in the amount of $20,568,758.  Significant activities

which necessitated these increases included: $13,500,000 to record proceeds from the sale of the former police

headquarters at 350 West Belknap; $3,368,700 to reflect the appropriations needed for FY2017 operations for

four departments; $2,300,000 to help fund the construction of an Enhanced Neighborhood Family Aquatics

Facility in east Fort Worth via a forgivable loan with the YMCA of Metropolitan Fort Worth; and $1,388,728,

including $1,271,307 from the transfer of previously appropriated funds and $117,422 from the transfer of newly

appropriated funds to fund debt associated with the energy savings program.

The City also increased budgeted revenues and other financing sources by $3,360,000 to reflect the additional resources
received by the General Fund for funding eligible Police overtime and a transfer to address the fund deficit in the Golf
Fund.
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets – The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of September
30, 2017, amounted to $5,270,793,000 (net of accumulated depreciation/amortization).  This investment in capital assets
includes land/right of way, construction in progress, works of art, buildings, vehicles, machinery and equipment,
infrastructure, and intangibles.  The total increase in the City’s capital assets for the current fiscal year was $296,627,000
(6.0 percent).  Major capital assets events during the current fiscal year included the following:

 The acquisition of assets and development of governmental projects throughout the City added $171,133,753 to

capital assets, while governmental capital contributions were $101,315,151. 

 The acquisition of assets and development of water and sewer projects throughout the City added $119,491,444 to

capital assets, while water and sewer capital contributions were $47,528,656. 

 The acquisition of assets and development of drainage projects throughout the City added $14,025,677 to capital

assets. 

 These additions were offset by depreciation/amortization of $229,149,000 and retirements during the year. 

Capital Assets, net of Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017

Land/Right of Way $ 220,735 $ 234,985 $ 109,294 $ 201,718 $ 330,029 $ 436,703
Construction in Progress 331,668 298,738 411,634 355,514 743,302 654,252
Works of Art 16,512 24,270 - - 16,512 24,270
Buildings 261,748 268,762 82,091 101,632 343,839 370,394
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment 87,961 99,817 134,158 129,267 222,119 229,084
Infrastructure 1,079,991 1,206,136 2,211,628 2,321,952 3,291,619 3,528,088
Intangibles 26,746 28,002 - - 26,746 28,002

Total $ 2,025,361 $ 2,160,710 $ 2,948,805 $ 3,110,083 $ 4,974,166 $ 5,270,793

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note F. 
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration (continued) 

Long-term Liabilities – At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total long-term liabilities of $6,279,013,000.  Of
this amount, $694,395,000 comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the government, and $1,437,950,000
represents self-supported debt issues. 

Long-Term Liabilities Outstanding

Governmental 
Activities

Business-Type 
Activities Total

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017

General Obligation Bonds $ 499,217 $ 452,570 $ 38,428 $ 37,365 $ 537,645 $ 489,935
Revenue Bonds - - 870,315 910,685 870,315 910,685
Certificates of Obligation 221,565 201,945 4,225 2,515 225,790 204,460
Special Tax Revenue Debt - 226,880 - - - 226,880
Special Assessment Debt - 12,685 - - - 12,685
Tax Notes - 26,130 - - - 26,130
Convention Center Installment Obligation 825 - - - 825 -
HUD Installment Obligations 2,865 2,000 - - 2,865 2,000
Lone Star Local Government Corp Obligation 31,617 31,617 - - 31,617 31,617
State Obligation - City 6,941 6,476 - - 6,941 6,476
State Obligation - CCPD 2,697 2,516 - - 2,697 2,516
TRWD Obligation 153,853 171,391 - - 153,853 171,391
State Energy Conservation Loan Phase III 971 397 - - 971 397
ESPC Phase VII 16,472 15,474 - - 16,472 15,474
Capital Leases 836 1,167 - - 836 1,167
Southwest Bank Loan (LDC SW Building) 1,844 1,477 - - 1,844 1,477
Lancaster Corridor Construction Loan 10,276 16,500 - - 10,276 16,500
Trinity River Authority Oblig. - - 4,250 3,600 4,250 3,600
ESPC Phase V - - 10,463 8,955 10,463 8,955
Net Unamortized Bond Premium/Discount 68,272 69,218 68,508 69,036 136,780 138,254
Compensated Absences 118,248 119,622 10,580 14,727 128,828 134,349
Risk Management Estimated Claims Payable 34,386 33,377 - - 34,386 33,377
Arbitrage - - 3 7 3 7
Landfill Closure and Postclosure Liability - - 5,426 8,331 5,426 8,331
Pollution Remediation Liability - 5,636 7,241 5,945 7,241 11,581
Other Postemployment Benefits Obligation 494,180 521,716 74,363 78,463 568,543 600,179
Net Pension Liability 1,841,508 2,792,047 282,565 428,543 2,124,073 3,220,590

Total $ 3,506,573 $ 4,710,841 $ 1,376,367 $ 1,568,172 $ 4,882,940 $ 6,279,013
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Capital Assets and Debt Administration (continued) 

Long-term Liabilities (continued)

The City’s total long-term liabilities increased by $1,396,073,000 during FY2017 mainly due to the issuance of bonds and 
notes in excess of principal payments made during the year.  Key changes for the year include: Net Pension Liability 
increased by $1,096,517,000, the City’s Other Postemployment Benefits Obligation increased by $31,636,000, new issues 
of Special Tax Revenue Debt of $226,880,000, Tax Notes of $32,605,000, and Special Assessment Debt of $12,685,000. 
The City also added a net $17,538,000 to the loan from Tarrant Regional Water District, and the Water and Sewer Fund 
issued $127,645,000 of new issue and Refunding Revenue Bonds.  For governmental activities, the City made payments 
of principal balances for bonded debt of $46,647,000 and $19,620,000 on its General Obligation Bonds and its 
Certificates of Obligation, respectively.  For business-type activities, the City made payments of principal for revenue 
bond debt of $70,248,000, which included $63,175,000 for Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds and $4,300,000 for 
Stormwater Revenue Bonds.  The Water and Sewer Fund refunded or defeased $19,800,000 of existing revenue bonds. 

In FY2017, the outstanding ad valorem tax supported debts of the City of Fort Worth are rated “Aa3” by Moody’s 
Investors Services (Moody’s) and “AA+” by both S&P Global Rating Services (S&P) and Fitch Rating Services (Fitch). 
The water and sewer system revenue bonds are rated “Aa1” by Moody’s, “AA+” by S&P, and "AA" by Fitch.  The City's 
drainage utility system revenue bonds are not rated by Moody's, and are rated "AA+" by both S&P and Fitch.  The City's 
special tax revenue bonds are not rated by S&P, and are rated "A1" and "AA+" by Moody's and Fitch, respectively. 

The City is permitted by Article XI, Section 5, of the State of Texas Constitution to levy taxes up to 1.90 per $100 of 
assessed valuation for general governmental services including the payment of principal and interest on the general 
obligation long-term debt.  The current ratio of tax-supported debt to the assessed value of all taxable property is 1.39 
percent (Statistical Section on Table 14). 

Additional information on the City’s long-term liabilities can be found in Note G. 

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The overall economic outlook for the City remains positive.  Sales taxes have climbed steadily since the recession ended 
in late 2010.  Declining unemployment rates and continued population growth suggest these trends should continue well 
into 2018.  Existing households are likely to continue spending at current rates, while new residents will add to the City’s 
sales tax base.  Population growth and steady strides in the residential real estate market support improved property tax 
revenues in the future while the increasing volume of building permits continues to increase the overall tax base.  Demand 
for existing homes supports the rising growth in values, which also yields more property tax revenues.  Property tax 
revenues are characteristically slower to materialize than sales taxes, as homes built in 2017 are added to the tax roll in 
2018 and do not begin paying taxes until 2019.  However, this revenue growth is more certain than other sources, as the 
lagging nature of the revenue buffers property tax revenue from short-term economic trends. 

The FY2018 adopted budget reduced the City’s property tax rate to $0.8050 per $100 net taxable valuation.  The total 
appraised value of the City’s property tax roll increased $8.8 billion or 11.8 percent from the July 2016 certified roll to the 
July 2017 certified roll.  Adjusted Net Taxable Value (which is the Net Taxable Value plus the value of incomplete 
properties and properties under protest), increased $6.4 billion or 11.8 percent in the same period across all properties 
within the City.  Adjusted Net Taxable Value is the basis for the City’s property tax revenue calculation. 
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Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates (continued)

City staff analyzed many of the factors affecting property tax revenue, including anticipated population growth, historical 
change in values for residential and commercial properties, current and projected permitting data, the impact of 
foreclosures, as well as exemptions and protests.  Staff also evaluated the allocation of the levy amount, and resulting 
availability of revenue for maintenance and operations (M&O), as compared to the amount available to repay the City’s 
debt.  In previous years, the City Council abided by its commitment to building capacity for capital projects by increasing 
the portion of the City’s property tax levy to capital projects.  The City’s ability to continue to shift funding to our pay-as-
you-go capital program over the next five years is supported by the City's commitment to invest additional dollars in 
infrastructure maintenance. 

For FY2018, the City estimates a 98.5% collection rate of its property tax levy.  Based on the M&O levy rate of $0.6415 
per $100 of assessed valuation, the General Fund portion of the property tax rate is expected to yield approximately
$365.5 million in revenue for FY2018.  The debt service levy rate of $0.1635 per $100 of assessed valuation is expected 
to yield approximately $93.2 million, which will allow the repayment of all current and proposed general obligation debt. 

Revenue from the City’s one percent of the sales tax, excluding the one-half percent special use tax for the Crime Control 
and Prevention District Fund, is projected to equal $154.6 million, an increase of $14.1 million or ten percent from the 
FY2017 budget.  This revenue is dependent on the level of wholesale and retail sales.  Over the past ten years, the City's 
sales tax collection grew from $99.4 million in 2009 to the anticipated amount of $154.6 million in 2018.  This represents 
a 55.5% growth over the last ten years. 

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those with interest in the 
government’s finances.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or request for additional 
financial information should be addressed to the Chief Financial Officer, 200 Texas Street, 3rd Floor, Department of 
Financial Management Services, Fort Worth, Texas 76102. 
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Primary Government

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities Total

Discretely
Presented

Component
Unit

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES

Assets
$ 962,785 $ 139,413 $ 1,102,198 $ 48Cash, Cash Equivalents, & Investments 

Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectible:
Taxes 7,773 - 7,773 -
Grants and Other Governments 53,494 - 53,494 -
Loans 13,897 - 13,897 -
Interest 1,556 550 2,106 -
Accounts and Other 25,110 59,823 84,933 2

Internal Balances (10,065) 10,065 - -
Inventories (at Cost) 7,306 3,254 10,560 -
Prepaids, Deposits, and Other 2,116 27 2,143 579
Long-Term Loans Receivable 13,081 - 13,081 -
Restricted Assets:

Cash, Cash Equivalents, & Investments 8,525 473,030 481,555 267
Cash, Cash Equivalents, & Investments Held by Trustees 45,284 67,223 112,507 -
Grants Receivable - 13,661 13,661 -
Interest Receivable - 650 650 -

Prepaid Bond Insurance 299 187 486 -
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation:

Non-Depreciable 557,993 557,232 1,115,225 -
Depreciable 1,602,717 2,552,851 4,155,568 7,759

Total Assets 3,291,871 3,877,966 7,169,837 8,655

Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,140,342 182,998 1,323,340 -

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 4,432,213 4,060,964 8,493,177 8,655

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Liabilities

Accounts Payable 34,265 12,642 46,907 21
Escrow Accounts Payable 5,801 2,459 8,260 -
Accrued Payroll 16,348 2,399 18,747 -
Other 777 - 777 -
Unearned Revenue 50,166 - 50,166 -
Accrued Interest Payable 23,038 4,822 27,860 51
Payables from Restricted Assets:

Construction Payable 49,993 27,643 77,636 -
Customer Deposits - 18,556 18,556 13
Unearned Revenue - 3,785 3,785 -

Long-Term Liabilities:
Due Within One Year 130,510 75,262 205,772 24
Due in More Than One Year 4,580,331 1,492,910 6,073,241 3,229

Total Liabilities 4,891,229 1,640,478 6,531,707 3,338

Deferred Inflows of Resources 57,494 11,306 68,800 -

NET POSITION (DEFICIT)
Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,392,113 2,242,924 3,635,037 -
Restricted for:

Debt Service 29,259 13,146 42,405 -
Capital Projects 57,721 26,028 83,749 -
Partnership Equity - - - 5,317

Unrestricted (Deficit) (1,995,603) 127,082 (1,868,521) -

Total Net Position (Deficit) $ (516,510) $ 2,409,180 $ 1,892,670 $ 5,317

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Program Revenues

Expenses
Charges for

Services

Operating
Grants and

Contributions

Capital
Grants and

Contributions

Function/Program Activities
Primary Government:

Governmental Activities:
General Government $ 152,609 $ 25,075 $ 1,700 $ 5,355
Public Safety 698,059 12,463 12,655 835
Highways and Streets 157,108 12,952 1,028 113,153
Culture and Recreation 174,426 17,137 9,294 4,473
Health and Welfare 11,076 - 9,547 -
Urban Redevelopment and Housing 76,190 18,356 20,273 -
Interest and Service Charges 31,636 - - -

Total Governmental Activities 1,301,104 85,983 54,497 123,816

Business-Type Activities:
Water and Sewer 376,755 424,078 - 65,741
Stormwater Utility 30,238 37,016 - 3,916
Municipal Airports 14,628 6,480 - 52,112
Municipal Parking 6,699 7,863 - -
Solid Waste 59,292 54,705 - -

Total Business-Type Activities 487,612 530,142 - 121,769

Total Primary Government $ 1,788,716 $ 616,125 $ 54,497 $ 245,585

Discretely Presented Component Unit:
Terrell Homes, Ltd. $ 995 $ 518 $ - $ -

Total Discretely Presented Component Unit $ 995 $ 518 $ - $ -

     Changes in Net Position (Deficit):

General Revenues:
Taxes:

General Property Taxes
Other Local Taxes:

Sales Taxes
Hotel/Motel Taxes
Other Taxes

Franchise Fees
Gas Leases and Royalties
Investment Income
Other

Transfers

Total General Revenues and Transfers

Changes in Net Position (Deficit)
Net Position (Deficit), Beginning of Year

Net Position (Deficit), End of Year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net Position (Deficit)

Primary Government

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities Total

Discretely
Presented 

Component 
Unit

$ (120,479) $ (120,479)
(672,106) (672,106)
(29,975) (29,975)

(143,522) (143,522)
(1,529) (1,529)

(37,561) (37,561)
(31,636) (31,636)

(1,036,808) (1,036,808)

$ 113,064 113,064
10,694 10,694
43,964 43,964
1,164 1,164

(4,587) (4,587)

164,299 164,299

(1,036,808) 164,299 (872,509)

$ (477)

(477)

452,357 - 452,357 -

218,937 - 218,937 -
26,993 - 26,993 -
4,739 - 4,739 -

50,078 - 50,078 -
9,063 6,504 15,567 -
7,239 5,240 12,479 -

38,160 7,406 45,566 8
33,629 (33,629) - -

841,195 (14,479) 826,716 8

(195,613) 149,820 (45,793) (469)
(320,897) 2,259,360 1,938,463 5,786

$ (516,510) $ 2,409,180 $ 1,892,670 $ 5,317
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

General Debt Service
Capital
Projects

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds Total

ASSETS
Cash, Cash Equivalents, & Investments $ 87,923 $ 48,280 $ 655,927 $ 113,467 $ 905,597
Cash, Cash Equivalents, & Investments

Held by Trustees 30,215 3,049 9,244 48 42,556
Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectible:

Taxes 6,011 1,762 - - 7,773
Grants and Other Governments 26,926 - 7,600 18,968 53,494
Loans - - 7 13,890 13,897
Interest 40 593 413 357 1,403
Accounts and Other 13,176 - 416 10,997 24,589

Due from Other Funds 281 - - - 281
Inventories (at Cost) 1,892 - - 4,980 6,872
Prepaids, Deposits, and Other 1,061 - 412 36 1,509
Long-Term Loans Receivable - - - 13,081 13,081

Total Assets $ 167,525 $ 53,684 $ 674,019 $ 175,824 $ 1,071,052

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 9,977 $ - $ 10 $ 16,720 $ 26,707
Construction Payable 30 - 49,943 20 49,993
Escrow Accounts Payable 3,074 - 2,252 475 5,801
Accrued Payroll 13,325 - - 2,012 15,337
Other 657 - - 120 777
Due to Other Funds - - - 663 663
Advances from Other Funds - - 8,213 - 8,213
Unearned Revenue 311 - 1,458 31,932 33,701

Total Liabilities 27,374 - 61,876 51,942 141,192

Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,702 1,388 5,653 5,442 17,185

Fund Balances (Deficit):
Nonspendable 2,953 - 412 2,674 6,039
Restricted 9,886 38,018 313,630 70,935 432,469
Committed 29,009 10,333 218,254 4,128 261,724
Assigned - 3,945 74,194 41,843 119,982
Unassigned (Deficit) 93,601 - - (1,140) 92,461

Total Fund Balances 135,449 52,296 606,490 118,440 912,675

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Fund Balances $ 167,525 $ 53,684 $ 674,019 $ 175,824 $ 1,071,052

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL
FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Total fund balances--governmental funds $ 912,675

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the
funds. These assets (including internal service fund assets of $5,748) consist of:

Land/right of way $ 234,985
Construction in progress 298,738
Works of art 24,270
Buildings 488,714
Vehicles, machinery and equipment 261,238
Infrastructure 3,078,952
Intangibles 49,690
Accumulated depreciation/amortization (2,275,877)

Total capital assets 2,160,710 2,160,710

Some revenues in the governmental funds are not recognized because they are not collected within the
prescribed period after year-end. On the accrual basis, however, those revenues would be recognized,
regardless of when they are collected. 17,185

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as; equipment
services, information systems, capital project services, group health and life insurance, and risk financing to
individual funds.  A portion of the net position of the internal service funds is included in governmental
activities in the Statement of Net Position (amount is net of capital assets of $5,748 and compensated
absences of ($4,361)). 26,740

Deferred outflows of resources are not reported in the governmental funds related to:

Pension contributions after actuarial valuation measurement date 78,125
Difference in expected and actual total pension liability experience 3,019
Difference in projected and actual earnings on investments - pensions 97,727
Changes in actuarial assumptions - pensions 949,253
Deferred charges on debt refundings 12,218

Total deferred outflows of resources 1,140,342 1,140,342

Some long-term assets and liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not
reported in the funds. Those assets and liabilities (including allocated internal service fund compensated
absences of $4,361) consist of:

Prepaid bond insurance 299
Long-term compensated absences (119,622)
Pollution remediation liability (5,636)
Other postemployment benefits obligation (521,716)
Net pension liability (2,792,047)
Accrued interest payable (23,038)
Long-term debt, including premium/discount (1,238,443)

Total long-term liabilities (4,700,203) (4,700,203)

Unearned revenues are resources received in advance and should be reported as liabilities until the period of
the exchange. This liability consists of a long-term land lease entered into by a blended component unit of the
City. (16,465)

Deferred inflows of resources are not reported in the governmental funds related to:

Difference in expected and actual total pension liability experience (52,752)
Difference in projected and actual earnings on investments - pensions (4,742)

Total deferred inflows of resources (57,494) (57,494)

Net position (deficit) of governmental activities $ (516,510)

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

General Debt Service
Capital
Projects

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds Total

REVENUES:
General Property Taxes $ 345,657 $ 90,571 $ - $ 16,615 $ 452,843
Sales Taxes 148,365 - - 69,926 218,291
Other Local Taxes 4,739 - - 26,993 31,732
Franchise Fees 50,078 - - - 50,078
Charges for Services 19,349 - 5,425 15,090 39,864
Licenses and Permits 16,864 - - 17 16,881
Fines and Forfeitures 6,523 - - 10,539 17,062
Revenue from Use of Money and Property 360 109 1,103 10,860 12,432
Investment Income (Loss) (926) 3,836 2,678 1,364 6,952
Intergovernmental 556 210 11,770 50,828 63,364
Gas Leases and Royalties 1,961 - 6,323 779 9,063
Other 2,638 - 15,393 13,848 31,879
Contributions 4 - 8,571 2,940 11,515

Total Revenues 596,168 94,726 51,263 219,799 961,956

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General Government 59,937 - 8,672 34,716 103,325
Public Safety 395,236 - 3,024 67,315 465,575
Highways and Streets 33,395 - 6,481 7,270 47,146
Culture and Recreation 61,166 - 28,191 42,657 132,014
Health and Welfare - - - 10,843 10,843
Urban Redevelopment and Housing 38,584 - 13 21,496 60,093

Capital Outlay 13 - 168,757 6,597 175,367
Debt Service:

Principal Retirement 1,777 73,567 865 3,282 79,491
Interest and Debt Issuance Costs 438 30,590 2,327 3,211 36,566

Total Expenditures 590,546 104,157 218,330 197,387 1,110,420

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures 5,622 (9,431) (167,067) 22,412 (148,464)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Issuance of Long-Term Debt - - - 226,880 226,880
Issuance of Special Assessment Debt - 3,049 9,636 - 12,685
Issuance of Tax Notes - - 32,605 - 32,605
Issuance of Capital Leases - - - 575 575
Construction Loans - - - 26,637 26,637
Premium on Issuance - - 71 11,121 11,192
Proceeds from Disposal of Property 13,500 - 345 1,774 15,619
Transfers In 44,028 29,705 305,336 10,616 389,685
Transfers Out (59,622) (2,397) (1,693) (296,532) (360,244)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (2,094) 30,357 346,300 (18,929) 355,634

Net Change in Fund Balances 3,528 20,926 179,233 3,483 207,170
Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 131,921 31,370 427,257 114,957 705,505

Fund Balances, End of Year $ 135,449 $ 52,296 $ 606,490 $ 118,440 $ 912,675

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 207,170

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities, the cost
of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by
which capital outlays exceeded depreciation and other transactions that impact capital assets in the current
period.

Contributed assets $ 101,314
Capital outlay expenditures 175,367
Depreciation and amortization expense (excluding internal service fund depreciation of $553) (135,565)

Net adjustment 141,116 141,116

In the Statement of Activities, the gain on sale of capital assets is reported. In the governmental funds, the
proceeds from the disposal of assets were reported as another financing source. Thus, the change in net
position differs from the change in fund balance by the net book value of the capital assets. (8,867)

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported as
revenues in the funds. This adjustment is to recognize the net change in "unavailable" revenues. Under the
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are not recognized unless they are deemed "available" to
finance the expenditures of the current period; accrual-basis recognition is not limited by availability, so
certain revenues need to be reduced by the amounts that were unavailable at the beginning of the year and
increased by the amounts that were unavailable at the end of the year. 1,735

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, certificates of obligation) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.
Repayment of long-term debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. Also, governmental funds report the effect of
issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are
deferred and amortized in the Statement of Activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the
treatment of long-term debt and related items:

Debt issued:
Special tax revenue bonds (226,880)
Special assessment debt (12,685)
Tax notes (32,605)
Other obligations (27,212)

  Total proceeds (299,382)
Premium on debt issued (11,192)
Prepaid bond insurance issued 299
Repayments:

To bondholders 79,491
Amortization of premiums and discounts 10,246

Net adjustment (220,538) (220,538)

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of current financial resources
and therefore are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Increase in accrued interest on long-term liabilities (2,551)
Increase in net pension liability (950,539)
Increase in other postemployment benefits obligation (27,536)
Increase in compensated absences liability (913)
Increase in pollution remediation liability (5,636)

Net adjustment (987,175) (987,175)

(continued)
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Governmental funds report pension contributions as expenditures when made. However, in the Statement of
Activities, pension expense is the cost of benefits earned adjusted for member contributions, the recognition
of changes in deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions, the investment experience, and
changes in actuarial assumptions.

Deferred outflows of resources $ 660,977
Deferred inflows of resources 13,021

Net adjustment 673,998 $ 673,998

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as; equipment
services, information systems, capital project services, group health and life insurance, and risk financing to
individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of the internal service funds is reported with governmental
activities. (287)

Revenue on the Statement of Activities includes current recognition of unearned revenues related to a long-
term land lease entered into by a component unit of the City. This amount is combined with an adjustment to
increase sales tax revenue on the Statement of Activities for a liability on the Statement of Net Position for
the State Tax Agreement. 299

Governmental funds report the amount of refinance debt as a current resource and do not calculate a gain or
loss on the defeasance of the extinguished debt. This adjustment represents the amount of amortization for the
current year of the deferred outflow of refunding loss. (3,064)

Change in net position (deficit) of governmental activities $ (195,613)

(concluded)
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Business-Type Activities--
Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Activities

Water and
Sewer

Stormwater
Utility

Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds Total
Internal

Service Funds

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF
RESOURCES

Assets
Current Assets:

Cash, Cash Equivalents, & Investments $ 93,996 $ 20,055 $ 25,362 $ 139,413 $ 57,188
Interest Receivable 362 99 89 550 153
Accounts and Other Receivables, Net of Allowance for

Uncollectible 49,425 3,138 7,260 59,823 521
Due from Other Funds 66 - 316 382 -
Inventories (at Cost) 3,254 - - 3,254 434
Prepaids, Deposits, and Other - 27 - 27 607
Restricted Assets:

Cash & Cash Equivalents 40,047 4,443 10,316 54,806 -

Total Current Assets 187,150 27,762 43,343 258,255 58,903

Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted Assets:

Cash & Cash Equivalents 354,878 41,699 21,647 418,224 8,525
Cash, Cash Equivalents, & Investments Held by Trustees 28,864 - 38,359 67,223 2,728
Grants and Other Receivables 4,290 35 9,336 13,661 -
Interest Receivable 507 57 86 650 -

Total Restricted Assets 388,539 41,791 69,428 499,758 11,253

Advances to Other Funds - - 8,213 8,213 -
Prepaid Bond Insurance 187 - - 187 -

Capital Assets (at Cost):
Land/Right of Way 27,522 13,689 160,507 201,718 1,123
Buildings 67,165 8,472 84,730 160,367 5,250
Infrastructure 2,997,383 134,305 269,853 3,401,541 1,046
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment 355,083 12,990 9,143 377,216 7,483
Construction in Progress 264,058 22,287 69,169 355,514 1,954
Accumulated Depreciation (1,152,109) (33,995) (200,169) (1,386,273) (11,108)

Net Capital Assets 2,559,102 157,748 393,233 3,110,083 5,748

Total Noncurrent Assets 2,947,828 199,539 470,874 3,618,241 17,001

Total Assets 3,134,978 227,301 514,217 3,876,496 75,904

Deferred Outflows of Resources 144,116 16,867 22,015 182,998 -

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 3,279,094 $ 244,168 $ 536,232 $ 4,059,494 $ 75,904

(continued)
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Business-Type Activities--
Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Activities

Water and
Sewer

Stormwater
Utility

Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds Total
Internal

Service Funds

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND NET POSITION

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable $ 7,495 $ 486 $ 4,661 $ 12,642 $ 7,558
Escrow Accounts Payable 2,459 - - 2,459 -
Accrued Payroll 1,870 222 307 2,399 1,011

Current Portion of Long-Term Liabilities 66,805 4,939 3,518 75,262 19,584

Payables from Restricted Assets:
Construction Payable 16,992 3,848 6,803 27,643 -
Customer Deposits 17,643 - 913 18,556 -
Accrued Interest Payable 4,080 595 147 4,822 -
Unearned Revenue 1,332 - 2,453 3,785 -

Total Current Liabilities 118,676 10,090 18,802 147,568 28,153

Long-Term Liabilities:
Long-Term Liabilities Due in More Than One Year 1,224,846 164,945 103,119 1,492,910 18,154

Total Long-Term Liabilities 1,224,846 164,945 103,119 1,492,910 18,154

Total Liabilities 1,343,522 175,035 121,921 1,640,478 46,307

Deferred Inflows of Resources 6,973 825 3,508 11,306 -

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,848,629 53,008 341,287 2,242,924 5,748
Restricted for:

Debt Service 9,214 2,736 1,196 13,146 -
Capital Projects 26,028 - - 26,028 -

Unrestricted 44,728 12,564 68,320 125,612 23,849

Total Net Position $ 1,928,599 $ 68,308 $ 410,803 $ 2,407,710 $ 29,597

Adjustment to Reflect the Consolidation of Internal
Service Funds Activities Related to Enterprise Funds 1,470

Net Position of Business-Type Activities $ 2,409,180

(concluded)
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Business-Type Activities--
Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Activities

Water and
Sewer

Stormwater
Utility

Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds Total
Internal

Service Funds

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services $ 424,078 $ 37,016 $ 69,048 $ 530,142 $ 153,960
Other 1,537 1 5,868 7,406 9,487

Total Operating Revenues 425,615 37,017 74,916 537,548 163,447

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel Services 108,984 12,241 16,025 137,250 32,311
Supplies and Materials 24,120 894 964 25,978 7,737
Contractual Services 147,819 7,199 47,696 202,714 127,127
Landfill Closure and Postclosure Cost - - 2,905 2,905 -
Depreciation 73,756 7,599 11,676 93,031 553

Total Operating Expenses 354,679 27,933 79,266 461,878 167,728

Operating Income (Loss) 70,936 9,084 (4,350) 75,670 (4,281)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment Income 1,906 284 3,049 5,239 277
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Property and Equipment (4,195) (133) (10) (4,338) (471)
Interest and Service Charges (17,881) (2,172) (1,342) (21,395) -
Gas Leases and Royalties 2,183 - 4,321 6,504 -

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (17,987) (2,021) 6,018 (13,990) (194)

Income (Loss) Before Transfers
and Contributions 52,949 7,063 1,668 61,680 (4,475)

Transfers In 4,362 169 153 4,684 4,847
Transfers Out (27,621) (4,339) (6,353) (38,313) (659)
Capital Contributions 55,185 3,916 52,112 111,213 -
Capital Contributions - Impact Fees 10,556 - - 10,556 -

Changes in Net Position 95,431 6,809 47,580 149,820 (287)
Total Net Position, Beginning of Year 1,833,168 61,499 363,223 2,257,890 29,884

Total Net Position, End of Year $ 1,928,599 $ 68,308 $ 410,803 $ 2,407,710 $ 29,597

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Business-Type Activities--
Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Activities

Water and
Sewer

Stormwater
Utility

Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds Total
Internal

Service Funds

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Customers $ 428,533 $ 37,124 $ 68,601 $ 534,258 $ -
Receipts from Other Funds - - - - 154,587
Receipts from Other Operating Sources 1,537 1 5,868 7,406 9,487
Payments to Employees (67,662) (7,687) (10,659) (86,008) (31,628)
Payments to Vendors (171,068) (7,789) (48,266) (227,123) (38,320)
Payments for Benefits - - - - (94,266)

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities 191,340 21,649 15,544 228,533 (140)

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Transfers In from Other Funds 4,362 169 153 4,684 4,847
Advances from Other Funds - - (24,863) (24,863) -
Transfers Out to Other Funds (27,621) (4,339) (6,353) (38,313) (659)
Due from Other Funds (66) - (316) (382) -
Advances to Other Funds - - 5,425 5,425 -

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Noncapital
Financing Activities (23,325) (4,170) (25,954) (53,449) 4,188

Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Financing Activities:
Bond Principal Received 109,530 - - 109,530 -
Refunding Principal Received 18,115 - - 18,115 -
Bond Premium Received 9,795 - - 9,795 -
Proceeds from Sale of Property and Equipment 187 47 12 246 25
Contributions 4,580 - 55,414 59,994 -
Contributions - Impact Fees 10,556 - - 10,556 -
Acquisition and Construction of Property, Plant and

Equipment (116,250) (13,052) (50,918) (180,220) (2,013)
Principal Paid on Long-Term Debt (65,333) (4,300) (2,773) (72,406) -
Principal Paid to Escrow Agent (19,800) - - (19,800) -
Interest Paid on Long-Term Obligations (30,363) (4,825) (1,822) (37,010) -
Bond Issuance Cost Paid (1,724) (10) (2) (1,736) -

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Capital and Related

Financing Activities (80,707) (22,140) (89) (102,936) (1,988)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Receipts from Gas Leases and Royalties 2,183 - 4,321 6,504 -
Purchases of Investments (1,080) - (4,983) (6,063) -
Sales of Investments 674 - 3,147 3,821 -
Investment Income Received 1,407 215 2,989 4,611 192

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Investing Activities 3,184 215 5,474 8,873 192

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 90,492 (4,446) (5,025) 81,021 2,252
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 420,906 70,643 69,888 561,437 66,189
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 511,398 $ 66,197 $ 64,863 $ 642,458 $ 68,441

(continued)
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Business-Type Activities--
Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Activities

Water and
Sewer

Stormwater
Utility

Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds Total
Internal

Service Funds

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:

Operating Income (Loss) $ 70,936 $ 9,084 $ (4,350) $ 75,670 $ (4,281)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net

Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:

Depreciation 73,756 7,599 11,676 93,031 553
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:

Accounts and Other Receivables 4,358 135 3 4,496 (463)
Inventories 225 - - 225 (63)
Prepaids, Deposits, and Other Assets 96 (27) 6 75 1,090
Deferred Outflows of Resources (Pension) (79,644) (9,497) (12,086) (101,227) -
Accounts Payable 1,942 304 394 2,640 3,350
Escrow Accounts Payable (1,590) - - (1,590) -
Accrued Payroll and Compensation 4,120 106 108 4,334 683
Customer Deposits 1,591 - 25 1,616 -
Accrued Benefits - - - - (1,009)
Landfill Closure and Postclosure Liability - - 2,905 2,905 -
Pollution Remediation Costs (1,296) - - (1,296) -
Other Postemployment Benefits Obligation 3,201 389 510 4,100 -
Net Pension Liability 115,224 13,742 17,013 145,979 -
Deferred Inflows of Resources (Pension) (1,579) (186) (179) (1,944) -
Deferred Inflows of Resources

(Service Concession Agreement) - - (481) (481) -

Total Adjustments 120,404 12,565 19,894 152,863 4,141

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities $ 191,340 $ 21,649 $ 15,544 $ 228,533 $ (140)

The Cash and Cash Equivalents are reported in the
Statement of Net Position as follows:
Current - Cash, Cash Equivalents, & Investments $ 93,996 $ 20,055 $ 25,362 $ 139,413 $ 57,188
Current Restricted - Cash & Cash Equivalents 40,047 4,443 10,316 54,806 -
Noncurrent Restricted - Cash & Cash Equivalents 354,878 41,699 21,647 418,224 8,525
Noncurrent Restricted - Cash, Cash Equivalents, &

Investments Held by Trustees 28,864 - 38,359 67,223 2,728
Less: Gas Well Investments Held by Trustees (6,387) - (30,821) (37,208) -

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 511,398 $ 66,197 $ 64,863 $ 642,458 $ 68,441

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities:
Capitalized Interest $ 7,055 $ 2,326 $ - $ 9,381 $ -
Capital Asset Contributions from Developers 47,529 3,883 15,569 66,981 -
Capital Asset Transfers from Government - 33 - 33 -
Capital Asset Transfers from Business-Type Activities 21 - - 21 -
Capital Asset Transfers to Business-Type Activities - - (21) (21) -
Amortization of Bond Premium 8,257 350 660 9,267 -
Amortization of Bond Defeasement Loss (1,522) (29) (187) (1,738) -
Change in Fair Value of Pooled Investments (2,559) (456) (365) (3,380) (435)
Change in Fair Value on Non-Pooled Investments 438 - 2,033 2,471 -

(concluded)
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Pension and
Other Employee
Benefits Trust

Funds

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash & Cash Equivalents $ 476
Cash & Investments Held by Trustees:

Asset and Mortgage Backed Obligations 65,630
Corporate Obligations 139,246
Government Agency Obligations 128,160
International Obligations 21,955
Securities Lending Collateral 132,585
U.S. Treasuries 62,284
Short-Term Mutual Fund Investments 144,360
Corporate Stock 422,051
Alternative Investments 626,693
Commingled Funds 797,263

Total Cash & Investments Held by Trustees 2,540,227
Prepaids 22
Accrued Income 4,331
Other Receivables 4,788
Due from Broker Securities Sold 268,133

Total Current Assets 2,817,977

Capital Assets (at Cost):
Land 405
Buildings 3,472
Machinery and Equipment 292
Accumulated Depreciation (1,020)

Net Capital Assets 3,149

Total Assets 2,821,126

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accrued Liabilities 3,887
Obligations Under Securities Lending 132,586
Due to Broker Securities Purchased 340,776

Total Current Liabilities 477,249

NET POSITION
Net Position Held in Trust for:

Restricted for Pensions 2,275,049
Postemployment Healthcare Plan 68,828

Total Net Position $ 2,343,877

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Pension and
Other Employee
Benefits Trust

Funds

ADDITIONS
Interest, Dividend, and Securities Lending Income $ 28,074
Less: Investment Management Fees and Interest Expense (6,697)
Net Gain (Loss) in Fair Value of Investments 218,385
Other Income 15,140
Employer Contributions 115,859
Employee/Retiree Contributions 43,305

Total Additions 414,066

DEDUCTIONS
Benefit Payments 220,573
Refunds 3,879
Administrative Expenses 14,284

Total Deductions 238,736

CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Restricted for Pensions 173,616
Postemployment Healthcare Plan 1,714

Total Change in Net Position 175,330

NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR
Restricted for Pensions 2,101,433
Postemployment Healthcare Plan 67,114

Total Beginning Net Position 2,168,547

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR
Restricted for Pensions 2,275,049
Postemployment Healthcare Plan 68,828

Total Ending Net Position $ 2,343,877

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(000's omitted in tables)
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(000's omitted in tables)

NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the City of Fort Worth, Texas (the City) as reflected in the accompanying financial statements
for the year ended September 30, 2017, conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP) for local governmental units.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.  A summary of the
City's significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the accompanying financial statements follows. 

A.1. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

In evaluating the City's financial reporting entity, management has considered all potential component units as required by
GAAP.  Organizations are included if the City is financially accountable for them, or the nature and significance of their
relationship with the City are such that exclusion would cause the financial statements to be misleading.  Inclusion is
determined on the basis of the City’s ability to exercise significant influence.  Significant influence or accountability is
based primarily on its operational or financial relationship with the City (as distinct from a legal relationship). 

The City is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of an organization’s governing body and is able to
impose its will on that organization, or there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or
impose specific financial burdens on the City.  The City also is financially accountable if an organization is fiscally
dependent on the City and potentially provides specific financial benefits to, or imposes specific financial burdens on the
City. 

Blended Component Units

Blended component units, although legally separate entities are reported as part of the primary government because they
meet the criteria above, and are so intertwined with the City that they are, in substance, the same as the City.  In Fiscal
Year 2017 (FY2017), most of the blended component units prepared and published separate financial statements, copies
of which are available by contacting the respective parties noted in the following paragraphs.  The eight blended
component units below are reported as part of the primary government: 

Crime Control and Prevention District—The Crime Control and Prevention District (CCPD) was created in March 1995
by a vote of local residents, and renewed in 2000, 2005, 2010 and 2014 for subsequent five-years periods and expires at
the end of fiscal year 2019.  The CCPD is supported by a ½ cent sales tax which serves a role in providing the necessary
resources to effectively implement crime control strategies.  Although it is legally separate from the City, the members of
the Board of the CCPD and members of the City Council are substantially the same.  The City has financial
accountability, and a financial benefit/burden relationship exists, allowing the City to impose its will.  Therefore, the
CCPD has been blended in the City's basic financial statements as a Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund. 
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(000's omitted in tables)

NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A.1. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY (CONTINUED)

Fort Worth Housing Finance Corporation—The Fort Worth Housing Finance Corporation (FWHFC) was created by the
City in 1979 pursuant to the Texas Housing Finance Corporations Act.  The FWHFC was formed for the purpose of
financing the cost of residential development for persons of low and moderate income, including multifamily and single-
family housing.  Although it is legally separate from the City, the members of the Board of the FWHFC and members of
the City Council are substantially the same.  The City has financial accountability, and a financial benefit/burden
relationship exists, allowing the City to impose its will.  Therefore, the FWHFC has been blended in the City's basic
financial statements as a Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund.  FWHFC is the sole member of the following Limited Liability
Corporations (LLC): Decatur Angle GP, LLC; Enclave Westport GP, LLC; Race Streets Lofts GP, LLC; Reserve at
Quebec GP, LLC; Mercantile Apartments GP, LLC; The Broadmoor at Western Hills GP, LLC; Enclave Park GP, LLC
and Terrell Homes GP, LLC.  These LLC's are limited partners with 0.005% to 0.01% respective interest in the following
Texas Limited Partnerships and one Limited Liability Company: Decatur Angle Ltd., Enclave Westport, LP, Race Streets
Lofts, Ltd., Reserve at Quebec, LLC, and Terrell Homes, Ltd.  Included in the FWHFC financial statements is its
discretely presented component unit: Terrell Homes, Ltd., which is discussed under the discretely presented component
unit section.  Separate financial statements can be obtained by contacting the Fort Worth Housing Finance Corporation at
200 Texas Street, Fort Worth, Texas 76102.

Fort Worth Local Development Corporation—The Fort Worth Local Development Corporation (FWLDC) is a 501(c)(3)
organization and a Texas nonprofit corporation formed in 1987 by the City Council.  The original purpose of the FWLDC
was to administer a low-interest rate program for business development in and around the Stockyards area in accordance
with the Economic Development Administration Block Grant Program.  However, the articles of incorporation are broad
enough to allow involvement in almost any kind of city-wide economic development activities.  Although it is a legally
separate entity from the City, the members of the Board of the FWLDC and members of the City Council are substantially
the same.  The City has financial accountability, and a financial benefit/burden relationship exists, allowing the City to
impose its will.  Therefore, the FWLDC has been blended in the City's basic financial statements as a Nonmajor Special
Revenue Fund.  Included in FWLDC is its component unit: Lancaster Corridor Redevelopment, LLC.  Separate financial
statements can be obtained by contacting the Fort Worth Local Development Corporation at 1150 South Freeway, Fort
Worth, Texas 76104. 

Lancaster Corridor Redevelopment, LLC— Lancaster Corridor Redevelopment, LLC (the Company), a Texas limited
liability company, was created as a subsidiary of FWLDC pursuant to the Texas Limited Liability Company Act for the
purpose of supporting mixed-use redevelopment along the Lancaster Corridor.  The financial information of the Company
is blended into that of the FWLDC in the separate financial statements noted above; however, it has been blended into the
City's basic financial statements as a Nonmajor Capital Project Fund and reported with the Other Blended Component
Units. Separate financial statements can be obtained by contacting the Lancaster Corridor Redevelopment, LLC at 1150
South Freeway, Fort Worth, Texas 76104.  

Alliance Airport Authority, Inc.—The Alliance Airport Authority, Inc. (the Authority) was created in 1989.  It is an
industrial development corporation created to benefit the City and to, among other things, issue bonds, promote and
develop new and expanded business enterprises in the City, promote and encourage employment, and otherwise to benefit
the public in accordance with the Development Corporation Act of 1979.  Although it is a legally separate entity from the
City, the members of the Board of the Authority and members of the City Council are substantially the same.  The City
has financial accountability and a financial benefit/burden relationship exists, allowing the City to impose its will.
Therefore the Authority has been blended into the City’s basic financial statements as a Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund
(reported with the Other Blended Component Units).  Separate financial statements can be obtained by contacting the
Alliance Airport Authority, Inc. at 1150 South Freeway, Fort Worth, Texas 76104. 
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(000's omitted in tables)

NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A.1. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY (CONTINUED)

Fort Worth Sports Authority, Inc.—The Fort Worth Sports Authority, Inc. (Sports Authority) was created pursuant to the
provisions of Section 4B, Article 5190.6, Vernon’s Texas Civil Statues, which authorizes the Sports Authority to jointly
assist and act on behalf of the City and to engage in activities in furtherance of the purposes for its creation.  The Sports
Authority is organized for the purpose of aiding, assisting, and acting on behalf of the City in the performance of its
governmental functions to promote the common good and general welfare of the City and in the construction of projects
on behalf of the City.  The Sports Authority financed the purchase of the Texas Motor Speedway (Speedway) and the
infrastructure in and around that property; however, it does not operate the Speedway. Although, it is legally separate
from the City, the City Council appoints all the Board of Directors of the Sports Authority.  The City has financial
accountability, and a financial benefit/burden relationship exists, allowing the City to impose its will.  Due to the Sports
Authority benefiting and providing services almost exclusively to the City, the Sports Authority has been blended in the
City's basic financial statements as a Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund (reported with the Other Blended Component
Units).  Separate financial statements can be obtained by contacting the Fort Worth Sports Authority, Inc. at 1201
Houston Street, Fort Worth, TX 76102. 

Lone Star Local Government Corporation—The Lone Star Local Government Corporation (LSLGC) was created
pursuant to the provisions of Subchapter D, Chapter 431 of the Texas Transportation Code, and Chapter 394 of the Texas
Local Government Code.  The LSLGC is organized for the purpose of aiding, assisting, and acting on behalf of the City in
the performance of its governmental functions to promote the common good and general welfare of the City and in
undertaking and completing of projects on behalf of the City.  Although it is legally separate from the City, the members
of the Board of the LSLGC and the members of the City Council are substantially the same.  The City has financial
accountability and a financial benefit/burden relationship exists, allowing the City to impose its will. Therefore, the
LSLGC has been blended in the City's basic financial statements as a Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund (reported with the
Other Blended Component Units).  Separate financial statements can be obtained by contacting the Lone Star Local
Government Corporation at 1150 South Freeway, Fort Worth, Texas 76104. 

Fort Worth Central City Local Government Corporation—The Fort Worth Central City Local Government Corporation
(FWCCLGC) was created pursuant to the provisions of Subchapter D, Chapter 431 of the Texas Transportation Code.
The FWCCLGC is organized for the purpose of aiding, assisting and acting on behalf of the City in the implementation of
project plans for the Magnolia Green Development, including the construction of parking garages to support the
development of the area.  Although it is legally separate from the City, the members of the Board of the FWCCLGC and
the members of the City Council are substantially the same.  The City has financial accountability, and a financial
benefit/burden relationship exists, allowing the City to impose its will.  Therefore, the FWCCLGC has been blended in the
City's basic financial statements as a Nonmajor Capital Project Fund (reported with the Other Blended Component Units).
Separate financial statements can be obtained by contacting the Fort Worth Central City Local Government Corporation at
1150 South Freeway, Fort Worth, Texas 76104. 
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(000's omitted in tables)

NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A.1. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY (CONTINUED)

Discretely Presented Component Unit

The following legally separate entity is reported as a discretely presented component unit of the City in a separate column
in the government-wide financial statements.  Terrell Homes GP, LLC is the General Partner of Terrell Homes, Ltd. noted
below: 

Terrell Homes, Ltd.— Terrell Homes, Ltd. (the Partnership) is a Texas limited partnership formed on December 9, 2011,
to construct, develop and operate 54 single-family homes, known as the Terrell Homes I Apartments located on scattered
sites in Fort Worth (project).  The project is rented to low-income tenants and is operated in a manner necessary to qualify
for federal low-income housing tax credits as provided for in Internal Revenue Code Section 42.  For the calendar year
ended December 31, 2016, financial information of the Partnership is presented in a separate column in the government-
wide financial statements.  Terrell Homes, Ltd. audited financial statements can be obtained by contacting the Fort Worth
Housing Finance Corporation at 200 Texas Street, Fort Worth, Texas 76102. 

Pension and Retiree Healthcare Trust Funds

Retirement Pension Trust Fund of the City of Fort Worth—The Employees' Retirement Fund of the City of Fort Worth,
Texas (the "Retirement Fund") is comprised of two separate defined benefit plans: the City of Fort Worth employees
benefit plan (the "City Plan" or the "Plan") and the Retirement Fund employees plan (the "Staff Plan").  The Retirement
Fund and City Plan were established by City Ordinance on September 12, 1945.  The Staff Plan was established through
Administrative Rules in 2007, and both plans are governed by State statute (Vernon's Civil Statutes, Title 109, Article
6243i) effective June 15, 2007.  The assets of the City Plan are commingled for investment purposes with the assets of the
Staff Plan of the Employees’ Retirement Fund, and both plans are administered by the thirteen-member Retirement Fund
Board of Trustees (Board).  The Retirement Fund Board is solely responsible for managing the assets for the City of Fort
Worth employees plan, and defining benefits, setting contribution rates, funding contributions, and all other financial
components of the Staff Plan.  Defining benefits, setting contribution rates, funding contributions, and all other financial
components of the City Plan are administered by the Mayor and City Council.  Each plan has a separate actuarial
valuation completed annually to determine the respective funded status based on current and projected assets and
liabilities. Therefore, assets of each plan are legally separate and cannot pay benefits of the other.  Due to the insignificant
nature of the Staff Plan's assets compared to the Retirement Fund's assets, all further references to the Plan and
information provided in the Notes and Required Supplementary Information about the City Plan are strictly limited to
information about the City employees (comprised of General Employees, Police Officers, and Firefighters).  As discussed
in Note I, this fiduciary fund of the City issues separate audited financial statements which are publicly available and can
be obtained by contacting the Employees’ Retirement Fund at 3801 Hulen Street, Suite 101, Fort Worth, Texas 76107. 

Retiree Healthcare Trust Fund of the City of Fort Worth—The single-employer defined benefit retirement health care
trust was established under the legal authority of the City Charter and is administered by the City.  No separate audited
financial statements are available for this fiduciary fund of the City. 
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(000's omitted in tables)

NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A.1. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY (CONTINUED)

Related Entities

The following related entities are the more significant of those that do not meet the criteria for component units and are
not included in the City’s financial statements: Area Metropolitan Ambulance Authority, Fort Worth Zoological
Association, Fort Worth Botanical Society, Inc., Friends of the Fort Worth Public Library, certain Fort Worth library
trusts, the Business Assistance Center Foundation, Inc., Fort Worth South, Inc., and the Trinity River Vision Project. 

City officials are also responsible for appointing members to the boards of the following organizations, but the City’s
accountability for these organizations do not extend beyond making appointments. 

Event Facilities Fort Worth—Events Facilities Fort Worth (EFFW) is an independent organization, which has a scope of
public service to hold agricultural fairs and encourage agricultural pursuits within the geographic boundaries of the City.
The contract and agreement with the City of Fort Worth and EFFW are to construct as a first-class state-of-the-art facility,
the new Fort Worth Multipurpose Arena as discussed in Note M. 

Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport—Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport (D/FW Airport) was created by
contract and agreement between the City of Fort Worth and the City of Dallas for the purpose of developing and operating
an airport as a jointly governed organization between the two Cities.  The D/FW Airport is governed by a 12-member
board comprised of seven members representing the City of Dallas, four members representing the City of Fort Worth,
and on an annual basis, one non-voting member chosen from the neighboring cities of Irving, Grapevine, Euless, and
Coppell. The Board must submit an expenditure budget for each fiscal year to the City Manager of each city by July 15.
The governing body of each city must approve the budget by September 1. The City is a member of the Revenue Sharing
Agreement, as originally adopted on May 1, 2001.  Total revenue for the year ended September 30, 2017, was $6,110,299
from this agreement.  Financial statements of the Airport are not included in the City's financial statements because the
Airport is not under the sole control of the Fort Worth City Council and the City has no ongoing financial interest or
responsibility for the airport.  Separate audited financial statements, which are publicly available, can be obtained by
contacting the Airport at 2400 Aviation Drive, P.O. Box 619428, DFW Airport, Texas 75261-9428.   

Fort Worth Housing Solutions—The Fort Worth Housing Solutions (hereinafter "Housing Solutions" and formerly the
Fort Worth Housing Authority) is an independent organization, which has a scope of public service within the geographic
boundaries of the City.  Under Texas State Statutes, the responsibility for the administration and operations of the
Housing Solutions is vested solely with the Housing Solutions’ Board of Commissioners.  Housing Solutions is dependent
on Federal funds from the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) and, as a result, is not financially
dependent on the City.  Also, the City is not responsible for any deficits incurred and has no fiscal management control.
The audited financial statements for the Housing Solutions can be obtained by contacting the Department of
Administrative Services, Housing Solutions, 1201 E. 13th Street, Fort Worth, Texas 76102. 

Fort Worth Transportation Authority—The Fort Worth Transportation Authority (Transportation Authority) is an
independent organization that provides public transportation services for Tarrant County and the North Central Texas
region.  Under Texas State Statutes, the responsibility for the administration and operations of the Transportation
Authority is vested solely with the Transportation Authority’s Board of Directors which is comprised of nine members
appointed by the Fort Worth City Council and Tarrant County Commissioners Court.  The Transportation Authority is
dependent on State and Federal funds and user fees.  As a result, the City is not responsible for any deficits incurred and
has no fiscal management control.   The audited financial statement for the Transportation Authority can be obtained by
contacting: The Chief Financial Officer, 1600 E.  Lancaster Avenue, Fort Worth, Texas 76102. 
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(000's omitted in tables)

NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A.2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Government-Wide Statements

The two government-wide financial statements, the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, report
information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City.  Governmental activities, which include those activities
primarily supported by taxes or intergovernmental revenue, are reported separately from business-type activities, which
generally rely on fees and charges for support.  As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from
the government-wide financial statements.  Exceptions to this general rule are payments-in-lieu of taxes and other charges
between the government’s water and sewer and solid waste functions and various other functions of the government.
Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions
concerned. 

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the extent to which the direct expenses of a functional category are offset by
program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are identifiable with a specific program.  Program revenues include
charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a
given function.  They also include operating and capital grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function.  Taxes and other items are properly excluded from program
revenues and reported as general revenues. 

The government-wide financial statements also present the calendar year (December 31, 2016) financial information of
the City's Discretely Presented Component Unit: Terrell Homes, Ltd. 

Fund Financial Statements

The City segregates transactions related to certain functions or activities in separate funds to aid financial management
activities and to demonstrate legal compliance.  Separate statements are prescribed for governmental activities and
proprietary activities.  These statements present each major fund as a separate column on the fund financial statements,
while all nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented in a single column. 

Internal service funds of the City (which provide services primarily to other funds of the government) are presented in
summary form as part of the proprietary fund financial statements.  Financial statements of internal service funds are
allocated between the governmental and business-type activities columns when presented at the government-wide level.
The costs of these services are reflected in the appropriate functional activity (General Government, Public Safety,
Highways, and Streets, etc.). 

The City’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fund financial statements.  Since, by definition, these assets are being held
for the benefit of a third party (pension and retiree healthcare plan participants) and cannot be used to address activities or
obligations of the government, these funds are not incorporated into the government-wide statements. 

The following is a brief description of the major funds used by the City:

(1) Main operating fund (General Fund) 
(2) Any fund that comprises at least 10% of assets and deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred

inflows, revenues or expenses/expenditures of the total governmental or enterprise funds type and at
least 5% of that same corresponding item meeting the 10% requirement for all governmental and
enterprise funds are considered major funds. 

(3) Additional funds considered important by the City but not meeting the criteria of a major fund, (i.e.,
Debt Service Fund). 
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NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A.2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (CONTINUED)

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions typically are financed.  The measurement
focus of governmental funds is on the sources, uses, and balance of financial resources while modified accrual is used for
the basis of accounting.  The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

General Fund is the main operating fund of the City.  The fund is used to account for all the financial resources that are
not accounted for in other funds.  All general tax revenues and other receipts that are not restricted by law or contractual
agreement to some other fund are accounted for in this fund.  General operating expenditures, fixed charges and capital
improvement costs that are not paid through other funds are paid from the General Fund. 

The General Fund also includes the Parks and Recreation Department (PARD) Endowment Gas Lease Fund and the
General Endowment Gas Lease Fund, as both funds have no assigned or specific expenditures for the majority of their
revenues.  These funds were established in FY2008 for the purpose of aggregating specific gas well revenues that belong
to the General Fund (PARD land and any other City of Fort Worth owned land) so that gas well-related revenue would
remain intact and only investment generated revenue would be spent for specific purposes.

Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of financial resources for the payment of principal, interest and related
costs on long-term obligations paid primarily from taxes levied by the City.  The fund balance of the Debt Service Fund is
reserved to signify the amounts that are restricted exclusively for debt service expenditures. 

Capital Projects Fund accounts for the City’s purchase or construction of major capital facilities, which are not financed
by other funds. 

In addition to the major funds mentioned above, the City reports the following nonmajor governmental funds. 

Special Revenue Funds accounts for the proceeds of specific revenue sources requiring separate accounting because of
legal or regulatory provisions or administrative action.  The proceeds of specific revenue sources that have been
committed or restricted to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or capital project are accounted as
special revenue funds. 
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NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A.2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (CONTINUED)

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
The accounting objectives are determinations of net income, financial position, and cash flows.  All assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources are included in the Statement of Net Position.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary
fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of the City’s enterprise funds and internal service
funds are charges to customers for sales and services.  The Water and Sewer Fund also recognizes as operating revenue
the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system. Operating expenses for
enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating
revenues and expenses.  

Enterprise Funds 

The City reports the following major enterprise funds: 

Water and Sewer Fund accounts for the provision of regional water, wastewater and reclaimed water services to
residential, commercial, industrial, irrigation and wholesale customers.  Activities of the fund include administration,
engineering, water and wastewater treatment, billing and collection services, operations and maintenance of the system,
and funding for capital improvements to ensure system reliability, comply with regulatory requirements, meet corporate
priorities, and serve anticipated growth.  Debt is issued for large capital projects.  All costs are financed through charges
and rates based on the amount of service used, which is billed to customers and collected on a monthly basis.  Rates are
reviewed regularly and adjusted as necessary to ensure the integrity of the system. 

Stormwater Utility Fund accounts for the operation of the stormwater utility and provides funding for storm drainage
capital improvements and enhanced maintenance of the storm drainage system to protect people and property from
harmful stormwater runoffs.  The fund also accounts for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of long-term
principal and interest for the stormwater debt. 

In addition to the enterprise funds mentioned above, the City reports the following nonmajor enterprise funds. 

Other Enterprise Funds is a summary of all the nonmajor enterprise, proprietary funds.  These funds include Municipal
Airports Fund, Municipal Parking Fund, and the Solid Waste Fund.  
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NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A.2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION (CONTINUED)

Internal Service Funds

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department to other
departments within the City, on a cost-reimbursement basis.  The City has five internal service funds, which include:
Equipment Services, Information Systems, Capital Project Services, Group Health and Life Insurance, and Risk
Financing. 

Fiduciary Funds 

Included in this fund type are trust funds which account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent for
individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or other funds.  The City reports the following fiduciary funds: 

Pension and Other Employee Benefits Trust Funds for accounting measurement purposes, the Pension and Other
Employee Benefits Trust Funds are accounted for in essentially the same manner as proprietary funds.  The Pension and
Other Employee Benefits Trust Funds account for the assets of the City's retirement and postemployment healthcare
benefit plans. 

The fiduciary funds are not included in the government-wide financial statements. 

Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements  

A summary reconciliation of the difference between total fund balances as reflected on the governmental funds Balance
Sheet and total net position for governmental activities as shown on the government-wide Statement of Net Position is
presented in an accompanying schedule to the governmental funds Balance Sheet.  The assets, deferred outflows of
resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, and elements which comprise the reconciliation difference stem
from governmental funds using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting while the government-wide financial statements use the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting.  A summary reconciliation of the difference between net changes in fund balances as reflected
on the governmental funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances and change in net
position for governmental activities as shown on the government-wide Statement of Activities is presented in an
accompanying schedule to the governmental funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances.
The revenue and expenditure/expense elements which comprise the reconciliation difference stem from governmental
funds using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting while the
government-wide financial statements use the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
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NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A.3. MEASUREMENT FOCUS/BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The government-wide Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities, all proprietary funds, and the fiduciary funds
are reported and accounted for on the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  With
this measurement focus, all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources associated
with the operation of these activities are included on the Statement of Net Position.  Revenues are recorded when earned,
and expenses are recorded when liabilities are incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.  Nonexchange
transactions, in which the City either gives or receives value without directly receiving or giving equal value in exchange
include sales taxes, property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations.  On an accrual basis, revenue from sales taxes is
recognized when the underlying exchange transaction takes place.  Revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal
year for which the taxes are levied.  Revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in
which all eligibility requirements have been met.  Contributions from members are recorded when the employer makes
payroll deductions from Plan members.  Employer contributions are recognized when due.  Benefits and refunds are
recognized when due and payable by the terms of the Plan. 

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the flow of current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  This focus is on the determination of and changes in financial position.
Revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become both measurable and available to finance
expenditures of the current fiscal period.  Revenues from taxes are considered available if received within 60 days after
the fiscal year-end.  Revenue from categorical and other grants are recognized when applicable eligibility requirements,
including time requirements, are met and are considered available if received within 60 days after the fiscal year-end.
Program revenues such as fines, licenses and permits, gas leases and royalties and other charges for services are
considered to be measurable and available when the cash is received. Expenditures are recorded when the related liability
is incurred and payment is due, except for principal and interest on long-term debt and certain estimated liabilities which
are recorded only when the obligation has matured and is due and payable shortly after year-end as required by GAAP. 

A.4. PROPERTY TAXES

The City's property taxes are levied each October 1 on the assessed value as of the previous January 1 for all real and
personal property.  Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1.  Taxes are due October 1st,
and full payment can be made prior to the following February to avoid penalty and interest charges.  Taxpayers also have
the option of paying one-half of their taxes by November 30 and the second-half by June 30 to avoid penalty and interest
charges. 

Property taxes levied for 2017 have been recorded as receivables, net of allowance for refunds and uncollectible amount.
The net receivables collected during 2017 and those considered "available" at FY2017, (i.e., property taxes collected
within 60 days of year-end) have been recognized as revenues in 2017.  The remaining receivables have been reflected as
deferred inflows of resources.  In the government-wide financial statements, tax revenue is recognized in the year in
which the taxes are levied. 

The State Constitution limits the tax rate to $2.50 per $100 of assessed valuation including debt service.  However, the
City Charter further limits the tax rate to $1.90 per $100 or $19.00 per $1,000 of assessed valuation including debt
service.  The property tax rate levied in fiscal year 2017 was $0.8350 per $100 of valuation. 
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NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A.5. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, & INVESTMENTS

A.5.A. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, & INVESTMENTS

The City pools cash from all funds (excluding the Pension and Other Employee Benefits Trust Funds) to increase income
through investment activities.  Investments are carried at fair value.  Interest earnings are allocated based on cash and
investment amounts in individual funds in a manner consistent with budgetary and legal requirements. 

Unrestricted investments purchased with pooled cash are classified as cash, cash equivalents, & investments in the
accompanying Balance Sheet and Statement of Net Position.  The relationship of an individual fund to the pooled cash
and investment account is essentially that of a demand deposit account.  Individual funds can withdraw cash from the
account as needed and therefore all equity that the fund has in the pooled cash and investment account is highly liquid.
For the purposes of the accompanying Statement of Cash Flows, the City has chosen to reconcile “cash, cash equivalents,
& investments,” because all investments are regarded as cash equivalents. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use for the same purpose, it is the City’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources when they are needed. 

Fair Value — GAAP establishes a hierarchy of Levels 1, 2, and 3, which are based on valuation techniques.  All three
levels are designed for the development of a more consistent and measurable valuation.  These levels are defined as:

 Level 1: Quoted prices from an active market for identical assets or liabilities; 

 Level 2: Quoted prices from an inactive market for similar or identical assets or liabilities; and 

 Level 3: Unobservable in the market and are the least reliable.

Equity and mutual fund investments that are classified as Level 1 are valued using prices quoted in active markets for
those securities.  Level 1 debt securities are U.S. Treasuries with more than 750 transactions over the previous 30 days. 

Debt and derivative securities, and commercial paper classified as Level 2 are valued using either a bid evaluation or a
matrix pricing technique.  Bid evaluations may include market quotations, yields, maturities, call features, and ratings.
Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on the securities relationship to benchmark quoted prices.  These debt and
derivative securities have non-proprietary information that was readily available to market participants, from independent
sources, which are known to be actively involved in the market.  Cash and cash equivalents are short-term investments
valued based on cost and accrued interest which approximates fair value.  Equity securities classified as Level 2 are
derived from associated traded security values, or convertible securities valued similarly to debt securities through a bid
evaluation process. 

Debt and derivative securities, and commercial paper classified in Level 3 are valued similar to Level 2 securities but have
limited bids, limited trade information, limited trade activity, pricing from multiple sources but differences in prices above
an acceptable level or pricing provided by a single source.  Equity securities classified as Level 3 have limited trade
information.  These securities are priced off last trade price or estimated off recent trades and corporate actions. 
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NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A.5. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, & INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

A.5.B. INVESTMENTS OF THE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND (THE CITY PLAN)

Valuation of Investments—Investments are stated at fair value.  Investments that do not have quoted market prices are
priced from information received from the external manager.  This information includes audited financial statements,
quarterly valuation statements, adjustments for cash receipts, cash disbursements and securities distributions through
September 30, 2017.  Purchases and sales of investments are recorded on a trade-date basis.  Interest income is recorded
on an accrual basis.  Dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date (date usually two days prior to the record date). 

The City Plan invests in limited partnerships which are valued an estimated fair value based on the City Plan’s
proportionate share of the partnerships’ fair value as recorded by the partnerships.  The limited partnerships allocate gains,
losses, and expenses to the partners based on the ownership percentage as described in the partnership agreements. 

There are certain market risks, credit risks, foreign exchange currency risks, or events that may subject the City Plan’s
investment portfolio to economic changes occurring in certain industries, sectors, or geographies.  Net investment income
includes net appreciation (depreciation) in the fair value of investments, interest income, dividend income,  and
investment expense.  Investment expense includes custodian and management fees, securities lending expense and all
other significant investment-related costs. 

Due to/from Broker—The balance due to broker securities purchased and due from broker securities sold in FY2017
represents trades pending settlement and amounts due on foreign currency contracts. 

Foreign Currency Transactions—The City Plan is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk, primarily
forward contracts.  Forward transactions are contracts or agreements for delayed delivery of commodities, securities, or
money market instruments in which the seller agrees to make a delivery at a specified future date of a specified
commodity or instrument, at a specified price or yield.  Entering into these investments involves not only the risk of
dealing with counterparties and their ability to meet the terms of the contracts but also the risk associated with market
fluctuations. 

Gains and losses resulting from foreign exchange contracts (transactions denominated in a currency other than the City
Plan’s functional currency—U.S. dollars) are recorded by the Plan based on changes in market values and are combined
with similar transactions in the accompanying Statement of Changes in Plan Fiduciary Net Position and are included in
interest and dividend income.  The City Plan structures its foreign exchange contracts and enters into certain transactions
to substantially mitigate the Plan’s exposure to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. 

Investments and broker accounts denominated in foreign currencies outstanding at September 30, 2017, were converted to
the City Plan’s functional currency at the foreign exchange rates quoted at September 30, 2017.  These foreign exchange
gains and losses are included in a change to net gain (loss) in fair value of investments in the accompanying Statement of
Changes in Fiduciary Net Position. 

A.5.C. INVESTMENTS OF THE RETIREE HEALTHCARE TRUST FUND

Valuation of Investments—Investments are stated at fair value as of September 30, 2017, for both reporting and actuarial
purposes.  The Retiree Healthcare Trust Fund is charged with receiving employee and employer contributions, paying
medical and dental claims, and prudently investing money in the fund not immediately needed to pay claims. 
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NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A.6. INVENTORIES

In governmental funds, inventories are valued at cost using the weighted average method of valuation.  Inventories in the
proprietary funds are stated at the lower of cost (determined by using weighted average cost or first-in, first-out methods)
or fair value.  In the Equipment Services Fund (an internal service fund), inventories consist of expendable supplies and
automotive parts held for consumption and are accounted for by the consumption method. 

A.7. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, infrastructure, vehicles, machinery and equipment, works of art, intangibles,
and construction in progress, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements and in the fund financial statements for proprietary funds.  Capital assets are
recorded at original cost or estimated fair value as of the date of acquisition or donation for contributed assets.  Repairs
and maintenance are recorded as expenses.  Renewals and betterments are capitalized.  Interest has been capitalized during
the construction period for proprietary capital assets. 

The capitalization threshold below is determined by the asset class (except for water and sewer capital assets which are
considered to be one system and will be capitalized at their cost):.

a) Land is capitalized regardless of the value or cost; 
b) Buildings, infrastructure, and intangible assets must be capitalized when the useful life is at least three years

and the cost is $100,000 or more; and 
c) Vehicles, machinery and equipment must be capitalized when the useful life is at least two years and the cost

is $5,000 or more. 

Depreciation and amortization is recorded on each class of depreciable property and intangibles using the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.   Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Water and Sewer Meters and Equipment   5-20 years
Water and Sewer Infrastructure 25-75 years
Buildings (Includes Portable Structures) 30-60 years
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment   2-20 years
Runways and Taxiways 20-30 years
Infrastructure 10-40 years
Amortizable Intangible   5-10 years

The City capitalizes certain computer software, works of art, and aviation easements as intangible assets.  In accordance
with the City's capitalization policy, other intangible assets are amortized over the useful life of the related assets.  Also,
works of art do not have a useful life in accordance with GAAP.  The City's capitalized works of art are reported in the
government-wide financial statements under governmental activities.  These assets are recorded at their acquisition value
at the date of donation. 

A.8. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal
year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds,” (the current portion) or “advances to/from other funds” (the long-
term portion).  Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.” 
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NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A.9. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

City employees earn personal leave, which may either be taken or accumulated until paid upon termination or retirement.
Unused sick leave, accrued holidays, and compensated time may be accumulated to a specific maximum amount and is
paid upon termination, retirement or death for Civil Service employees.  All other employees are paid up to an established
limit for personal leave upon retirement or death.  Accumulated vacation and sick leave are accrued when incurred in the
government-wide Statement of Net Position, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements.  A liability for these
amounts is reported in governmental fund statements, only if they have matured as a result of employee resignation or
retirements in accordance with GAAP.  For accrued amounts that are paid through proprietary funds, an expense and
liability for the total future liability are recorded. 

The amount of current year compensated absences related to both governmental and proprietary funds is budgeted
annually as an expenditure or expense, as appropriate.  Compensated absences related to the governmental funds are
liquidated in the respective funds of the employees. 

A.10. RISK FINANCING

A.10.A. RISK FINANCING

The Risk Financing internal service fund accounts for the administration of risk management activities and programs in
accordance with GAAP.  These activities and programs are as follows: third party liability claims and coordination with
the Department of Law on litigation, property and casualty insurance, workers' compensation, group health and life
insurance plan, unemployment compensation insurance, and retired employees’ group death benefits for certain retirees. 

All funds of the City participate in the program and make payments to the Risk Financing internal service fund based on
estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior and current-year claims and to establish a reserve for catastrophic losses.
Since the City is primarily self-insured, settlement amounts have not exceeded coverage in any of the prior three fiscal
years.  An accrual for unpaid claims and claims incurred but not reported is reflected in the internal service funds and
government-wide financial statements as estimated claims payable.  Claims expenses and liabilities are reported when it is
probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be reasonably estimated.  The provision for claims
incurred but not reported which are probable and reasonably estimable is based on City experience since the inception of
the insurance programs.  In accordance with GAAP, the estimated claims payables are based on the estimated ultimate
cost of settling the claims.  The total estimated claims payable includes estimates of allocated loss adjustment expenses.  A
discount rate of 3% has been applied to some estimated claims payable.  The undiscounted total estimated claims payable
is $39,225,078, which includes $2,465,000 of "claims incurred but not reported" in the Retiree Healthcare Trust Fund on
the Statement of Fiduciary Net Position. 

The total discounted estimated claims payable for the Group Health and Life Insurance Fund and the Risk Financing Fund
at September 30, 2017, is $33,376,804, of which $13,700,043 represents workers' compensation case reserve losses, and is
reported as long-term liabilities in the Internal Service Funds statements.

Balance at
October 1,

2015 Additions Deletions

Balance at
September

30, 2016 Additions Deletions

Balance at
September

30, 2017

Judgments and Claims $ 37,775 $ 84,619 $ (88,008) $ 34,386 $ 78,288 $ (79,297) $ 33,377

Provisions under each type of insurance are presented on the following page: 
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NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A.10. RISK FINANCING (CONTINUED)

A.10.B. LIABILITY INSURANCE

The City largely self-funds the risk for most liability claims, lawsuits, and related expenses.  However, there are separate
commercial liability insurance policies for each of the following: contract instructors liability, aircraft and airport liability,
liquor liability, pollution legal liability, animal herd, international center, and crime insurance.  There were no significant
changes in coverage limits for liability insurance. 

A.10.C. PROPERTY AND CASUALTY INSURANCE

An “all risk” property policy is provided by multiple commercial insurance companies for losses in excess of $250,000
per occurrence for all covered perils.  The City self-insures most property losses less than $250,000.  Boiler and
machinery insurance, and crime insurance are also maintained on a commercial insurance basis.  There were no significant
changes in coverage limits for property and casualty insurance. 

A.10.D. WORKERS' COMPENSATION

The City largely self-funds the risk for workers' compensation claims.  Catastrophic loss protection for workers’
compensation is provided by a commercial insurer on a policy with a self-insured retention limit of $2,250,000 per
occurrence for Police Officers and Firefighters and $1,500,000 for any single occurrence for all other employees.
Coverage limits for workers’ compensation are the statutory limits required by the Texas Workers’ Compensation Act. 

A.10.E. GROUP HEALTH AND LIFE INSURANCE

The City maintains a group health insurance plan for active, retired employees, and their eligible dependents.  The City's
self-insured Preferred Provider Organization plan is offered to the active employees and the non-Medicare retirees.  There
are two plan options, one being a high deductible health plan (the Consumer Choice Plan)  with a Health Savings Account
– contributions to the fund are provided by both the City and participating employees and retirees; and one being, The
Health Center Plan with deductible and copays. This year the city added health centers that provide free primary care
services for those on the Health Center Plan and reduced cost for those on the Consumer Choice Plan. There are three (3)
main Health Centers and five (5) Satellite Offices through our partnership with Southwest Health Resources.

There is a fully insured plan offered to the Medicare retirees, a Medicare Advantage Preferred Provider Organization
which includes a Prescription Drug Plan.  The Medicare HMO plan was terminated effective January 1, 2015. 

Effective January 1, 2015, the City increased employee basic group life insurance and accidental death and
dismemberment insurance from $10,000 to one-time base annual salary.  Effective April 1, 2014, the specific stop-loss
insurance was increased to $1,000,000; the specific stop-loss insurance assumes the risk for claims on any individual in
excess of $1,000,000 paid during a calendar year. 

A.10.F. UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION

The City is a reimbursing agency for Unemployment Compensation.  The Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) sends
quarterly reports to a third party administrator who then forwards to the City concerning claims paid on behalf of the City
to eligible former employees.  A third party administrator reviews the claims but responds to TWC based on information
the City provides.  There were no significant changes in coverage levels for unemployment compensation. 
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NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A.11. DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position presents a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. Deferred
outflows of resources represent consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized
as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.  Deferred outflows of resources reported in the government-
wide and proprietary fund Statements of Net Position relate to debt refunding and the implementation of GASB Statement
No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions - An Amendment of GASB Statement No.27. 

The City reports $12,218,142 as a deferred outflow of resources for unamortized loss on debt refunding in the
governmental activities and $10,423,944 in the business-type activities in the Statement of Net Position.  The unamortized
loss on debt refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of the refunded debt and its reacquisition price.
The amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.  

The City recorded total deferred outflows of resources of $1,300,698,000 as of September 30, 2017 in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 68.  These deferred outflows are detailed in Note I. 

In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position presents a separate section for deferred inflows of resources.
Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  The deferred inflows of resources in the governmental
funds result from the City’s unavailable revenue which are receivables for revenue that are not considered available to
liquidate liabilities in the current period.  The City reports deferred inflows of resources in its business-type activities in
the Statement of Net Position.  These amounts represent a service concession arrangement (SCA) and differences between
expected and actual experience/earnings relating to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 68, as described below: 

In 2003, the City entered into an agreement with Allied Waste Systems (D/B/A Trinity Waste Services) to operate the
City’s Southeast Landfill.  As part of this agreement, Allied Waste Systems is compensated by third party users of the
landfill.  The City owns the land for the landfill and retains ownership (residual interest) in the land at the end of the 20-
year agreement.  In 2003, Allied Waste Systems made an initial payment of $9,600,000 to the City.  This upfront payment
is being amortized over the 20-year contract term.  As of September 30, 2017, the City recognized a deferred inflow of
resources in the amount of $2,644,947 in the Solid Waste Fund. 

The City recorded total deferred inflows of resources of $66,155,000 as of September 30, 2017, in accordance with GASB
Statement No. 68.  These deferred inflows are detailed in Note I.
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NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A.12. FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION

Net position is presented in the Statement of Net Position.  Net position represents the difference between (a) assets and
deferred outflows of resources and (b) liabilities and deferred inflows of resources.  Net investment in capital assets
consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any debt related to the
acquisition, construction, or improvements of those assets.  Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt are also
included in this component of net position.  Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on its
use either through enabling legislation adopted by the City or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors,
laws, or regulations of other governments. 

Fund balance is presented on the Balance Sheet for Governmental Funds.  The components of fund balance include the
following line items: a) nonspendable fund balance, b) restricted fund balance, c) committed fund balance, d) assigned
fund balance and e) unassigned fund balance.  For further explanation of each fund balance component, please see the
following: 

a) Nonspendable fund balance (inherently nonspendable) include the: 

 Portion of net resources that cannot be spent because of their form. 

 Portion of net resources that cannot be spent because they must be maintained intact. 

b) Restricted fund balance (externally enforceable limitations on use) include amounts subject to: 

 Limitations imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments. 

 Limitations imposed by law through constitutional provision or enabling legislation. 

c) Committed fund balance (self-imposed limitations set in place prior to the end of the period) 
     include amounts subject to: 

 Limitations imposed at the highest level of decision making that requires formal action (passage of City

Ordinance) at the same level to remove.  For the City, the City Council is the highest level of decision

making. 

d) Assigned fund balance (limitation resulting from intended use) consists of amounts were the: 

 Intended use is established by the body designated for that purpose (City Council). 

 Through Mayor and City Council ordinance, the City Manager has been delegated the authority to assign

fund balances that are constrained by specific purposes that are neither restricted nor committed. 

e) Unassigned fund balance (residual net resources) is the: 

 Total fund balance in the General Fund in excess of nonspendable, restricted, committed, and assigned fund

balance. 

 Negative unassigned fund balance is the excess of nonspendable, restricted, and committed fund balance

over total fund balance. 
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NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A.12. FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION (CONTINUED)

If there is an expenditure incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is available, the
City will consider restricted fund balance to have been spent before unrestricted fund balance.  Further, if there is an
expenditure incurred for purposes for which committed, assigned, or unassigned fund balance classifications could be
used, the City will consider committed fund balance to be spent before assigned fund balance, and consider assigned fund
balance to be spent before unassigned fund balance. 

The City’s Financial Management Policy Statements establish and document the City’s policies concerning maintaining
the fund balance and net position of the various operating funds at levels sufficient to protect the City’s creditworthiness
as well as its financial position.  The policy provides for the following: 

General Fund and Debt Service Funds

General Fund

The City will maintain a minimum unassigned fund balance in the General Fund equivalent to ten percent (10%) of
regular ongoing operating expenditures, with a goal of two months (16.67%) of regular ongoing operating expenditures.

Debt Service Fund

The City will maintain a minimum level of restricted, committed, and assigned fund balance in the Debt Service Fund
between two (16.67%) to three (25%) months of the highest projected debt service over the succeeding debt service
forecast.  Amounts used in this calculation shall not include any amounts allocated for other purposes by the City Council.

While the reserves for the General Fund and Debt Service Fund are calculated separately, the resulting individual reserve
requirements will be combined into one figure to be compared with the General Fund and Debt Service Fund's fund
balance. 

Capital Projects Fund

The City will maintain a reserve in the Capital Projects Funds that will not exceed the amount needed to fully fund the
approved projects outlined in the five-year Capital Improvement Plan. 

Special Revenue Funds

The City will maintain the following minimum restricted and assigned fund balances: 

 A minimum fund balance in Special Revenue Funds equivalent to two months (16.67%) of regular, on-

going operating expenditures (including transfers out).  This calculation shall not include non-recurring

items. 

 A minimum fund balance in Special Revenue Funds equivalent to two months (16.67%) of the amount

being paid in debt service payments for the subsequent fiscal year. 

 The applicable cumulative total of all above requirements will be the minimum reserve requirement for each

Special Revenue Fund. 
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NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A.12. FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION (CONTINUED)

Enterprise Funds

The City will maintain the following minimum reserve levels in each Enterprise Fund, consistent with State law and the
terms of ordinances pursuant to which obligations have been issued or incurred that are secured in whole or in part by
revenues held in or credited to an Enterprise Fund: 

 Water and Sewer Fund— A minimum reserve of 62 days Cash on Hand with a goal of 250 days Cash on

Hand. 

 All other Enterprise Funds: 

 A minimum level of Working Capital in Enterprise Funds equivalent to three (25%) months of

regular, on-going operating expenses (including transfers out).  This calculation shall not include non-

recurring items. 

 A minimum level of Working Capital in Enterprise Funds equivalent to three (25%) months of the

amount being paid in debt service payments for the subsequent fiscal year. 

 The applicable cumulative total of all above requirements will be the minimum reserve requirement

for each applicable Enterprise Fund. 

 In addition, no Enterprise Fund shall have a negative unrestricted net position. 

Internal Service Funds—Insurance Funds (Insurance Funds)

The City will maintain the following minimum reserve levels in all Insurance Funds: 

 A minimum level of Working Capital in Insurance Funds between two (16.67%) and three (25%) months of

regular, on-going operating expenses (including transfers out).  This calculation shall not include non-

recurring items. 

 In addition, no Insurance Fund shall have a negative unrestricted net position. 

Internal Service Funds—Non-Insurance Funds (Non-Insurance Funds)

The City will maintain the following minimum reserve levels in all Non-Insurance Funds: 

 A minimum level of Working Capital in Non-Insurance Funds equivalent to three percent (3%) of regular,

on-going operating expenses (including transfers out).  This calculation does not include non-recurring

items. 

 In addition, no Non-Insurance Fund shall have a negative unrestricted net position. 

When Reserves are not met:

If, based on analysis and forecasting, the target level of reserves is not met at fiscal year-end or is not likely to be met at
any point within a five-year time horizon, then during the annual budget process a plan to replenish the reserve levels will
be developed by collaboration among affected departments and the Department of Financial Management Services based
on the requirements outlined in this policy. 

56



CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(000's omitted in tables)

NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A.12. FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION (CONTINUED)

Excess of Reserves:

In the event reserves exceed the minimum balance requirements, at the end of each fiscal year, any excess reserves may be
used in the following ways: 

General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and Enterprise Funds

 Fund accrued liabilities, including but not limited to debt service, pension, and other post-employment

benefits as directed and approved within the long-term financial plan and the annual budget ordinance.

Priority will be given to those items that relieve budget or financial operating pressure in future periods; 

 Appropriated to lower the amounts of bonds or increase the pay-as-you-go contributions needed to fund

capital projects in the City’s Capital Improvement Plan; 

 One-time expenditures/expenses that do not increase recurring operating costs that cannot be funded through

current revenues.  Emphasis will be placed on one-time uses that reduce future operating costs; or 

 Start-up expenditures/expenses for new programs provided that such action be approved by the City Council

and is considered in the context of multi-year projections of revenue and expenditures/expenses as prepared

by the Department of Financial Management Services. 

Debt Service Fund — Use to repay any outstanding debt or obligations. 

Capital Projects Fund 

 Appropriated to lower the amounts of bonds or increase the pay-as-you-go contributions needed to fund

capital projects in the City’s Capital Improvement Plan; 

 To pay for non-routine and one-time expenditures such as land and building purchases, construction and

maintenance projects with at least a 10-year life, feasibility, design, and engineering studies related to such

projects, capital equipment, and vehicles with at least a 10-year life, and technology improvements with at

least a 5-year life. 

Internal Service Funds— Insurance and Non-Insurance Funds 

 Fund accrued liabilities, including but not limited to debt service, pension, and other post-employment

benefits as directed and approved within the long-term financial plan and the annual budget ordinance.

Priority will be given to those items that relieve budget or financial operating pressure in future periods; 

 One-time expenses that do not increase recurring operating costs that cannot be funded through current

revenues.  Emphasis will be placed on one-time uses that reduce future operating costs; or 

 Start-up expenses for new programs provided that such action is approved by the City Council and is

considered in the context of multi-year projections of revenue and expenses as prepared by the Department

of Financial Management Services.
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NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A.12. FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION (CONTINUED)

The following table provides detail regarding the fund balance categories and classifications for the governmental funds
which shows components of nonspendable fund balance, as well as the purposes for restricted, committed, and assigned
fund balance.  The unassigned fund balance (deficit) is also shown.

Fund Balance Categories and Classifications

Fund Balance General Debt Service
Capital

Projects*

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds**
Total Fund

Balance

Nonspendable 
Inventory $ 1,892 $ - $ - $ 2,638 $ 4,530
Prepaids 1,061 - 412 36 1,509

Total Nonspendable 2,953 - 412 2,674 6,039

Restricted 
Park Improvements 8,286 - - - 8,286
Debt Service - 38,018 - - 38,018
Crime Control and Prevention - - - 9,496 9,496
Environmental Management - - - 1,386 1,386
Construction of Multi-Purpose Arena - - 187,490 6,054 193,544
Red Light Enforcement Program - - - 3,796 3,796
City Television - - - 6,356 6,356
Southside Medical Dist. Development - - - 11,570 11,570
North Tarrant Parkway Development - - - 6,197 6,197
Lancaster Corridor Development - - - 10,699 10,699
Fort Worth Downtown Development - - - 6,796 6,796
Evans/Rosedale Section - - 6,346 - 6,346
Maintenance Facility Relocation - - 9,680 - 9,680
Hemphill Street Project - - 11,050 - 11,050
Fire Apparatus Replacement - - 8,346 - 8,346
Parker - Henderson Road Project - - 6,439 - 6,439
Rock Creek Sewer Project - - 5,404 - 5,404
Street Maintenance - - 5,005 - 5,005
Other 1,600 - 73,870 8,585 84,055

Total Restricted 9,886 38,018 313,630 70,935 432,469

(continued)  
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NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A.12. FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION (CONTINUED)

Fund Balance Categories and Classifications

Fund Balance General Debt Service
Capital

Projects*

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds**
Total Fund

Balance

Committed
Public Events and Facilities $ 18,504 $ - $ - $ - $ 18,504
Debt Service - 10,333 - - 10,333
Park Improvements 4,029 - - - 4,029
Sixth Patrol Division Facility - - 6,139 - 6,139
Police Vehicle Replacement - - 13,257 - 13,257
Police Facility Renovation - - 14,875 - 14,875
State Sales Tax Agreement 6,476 - - 2,516 8,992
Other - - 183,983 1,612 185,595

Total Committed 29,009 10,333 218,254 4,128 261,724

Assigned 
Culture and Tourism - - - 11,397 11,397
Aircraft Maintenance Program - - - 6,221 6,221
Urban Redevelopment and Housing - - - 10,773 10,773
Lake Worth Trail - Phase 1 - - 6,164 - 6,164
Other - 3,945 68,030 13,452 85,427

Total Assigned - 3,945 74,194 41,843 119,982

Unassigned (Deficit) 93,601 - - (1,140) 92,461

Total Fund Balance $ 135,449 $ 52,296 $ 606,490 $ 118,440 $ 912,675

(concluded)  

*The Other category and classification for the Capital Projects Fund for restricted, committed and assigned fund balance consists of various smaller
construction projects at the end of the fiscal year.
**The Other category and classification for the Nonmajor Governmental Funds for restricted, committed and assigned fund balance consists of
smaller projects and activities at the end of the fiscal year.

The City sets aside funds restricted for retiree health benefits as identified in the Collective Bargaining Agreement
between the City and the Fort Worth Professional Firefighters Association.  These funds are restricted but are not yet
deposited into a formal trust.  The amount set aside as of September 30, 2017, was $1,600,000 and is presented as
restricted for general administration purposes. 
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NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A.13. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term debt and other obligations for general government purposes are recorded in the government-wide Statement of
Net Position.  Long-term debt and other obligations financed by proprietary funds are reported as liabilities in the
appropriate funds and the business-type activities on the government-wide Statement of Net Position. 

For the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund statements, bond premiums and discounts are deferred
and amortized over the life of the bonds using the average bond balance method, which approximates the effective interest
method.  Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.  Issuance costs are expensed as
incurred apart from prepaid bond insurance which is classified as an asset and amortized on a straight-line basis over the
term of the related debt.  In addition, gains and losses on bond refundings are reported as deferred outflows/inflows of
resources and are amortized over the term of the lesser of the life of the new bonds or the life of the refunded bonds using
the straight-line method.  In governmental funds, all bond-related items are recognized in the current period. 

A.14. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the City’s management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and/or the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates, but the City believes
that the differences will be insignificant. 

A.15. TAX ABATEMENTS

As of September 30, 2017, the City of Fort Worth  provided two programs that allowed for reduction or reimbursement of
taxes that the taxpayer paid or otherwise would owe the City.  These programs include the Chapter 380 Agreement
Program and the Neighborhood Empowerment Zones.

Chapter 380 Agreement Program

This program was created under Texas Local Government Code Chapter 380 and adopted by Fort Worth City Council
resolution.  This program is grant based.  The purpose of these City grants is to reimburse private developers for the range
of expenses that may otherwise contribute to a financing gap, yielding projects financially infeasible.  A city may provide
a Chapter 380 grant in the form of a municipal sales or property tax rebate.  In addition, various amendments to state law
have permitted temporary hotel/motel tax rebates to help finance convention center-related hotel facilities.

If the recipient of a Chapter 380 Tax Abatement breaches any of the terms or conditions of the Tax Abatement Agreement
and fails to cure such breach in accordance with the Tax Abatement Agreement, the City shall have the right to terminate
the Tax Abatement Agreement.  In this event, the recipient will be required to pay the City any taxes that were abated
pursuant to the Tax Abatement Agreement prior to its termination. 

Neighborhood Empowerment Zones

This program was created under Texas Tax Code Chapter 312 and adopted by the Fort Worth City Council resolution.
This program allows for homeowners or investors of residential single family property to apply for a tax abatement.  The
applicants must document that their property resides within a Neighborhood Empowerment Zone and complies with the
requirements of the program.  Property that does not maintain conformance with the City's zoning ordinance shall not be
eligible to receive this tax abatement.  
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NOTE A: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A.15. TAX ABATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The table below represents the total tax abatements by City program for the year ended September 30, 2017:

Tax Abatement Program
Amount
Abated

Chapter 380 Agreement
Sales Tax $ 1,049
Hotel Occupancy Tax 2,979

Neighborhood Empowerment Zone
Property Tax 225

Total Tax Abatement $ 4,253

A.16. IMPLEMENTATION OF NEW GASB STATEMENTS

During the year, the City implemented GASB Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures, GASB Statement No. 80,
Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units, GASB Statement No. 82, Pension Issues.  Additional information
on the implementation of these statements are noted below:

GASB Statement No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures, requires disclosure of tax abatement information about a reporting
government's tax abatement agreements that reduce tax revenues. This Statement requires disclosure of tax abatement
information about (1) a reporting government's own tax abatement agreements and (2) those that are entered into by other
governments and that reduce the reporting 's tax revenues.  The City has no current tax abatement agreements with other
governments.  Tax abatement agreements required information for this disclosure includes the following information:

 Brief descriptive information, such as the tax being abated, the authority under which the tax abatements are provided,

eligibility criteria, the mechanism by which taxes are abated, provisions for recapturing abated taxes, and the types of

commitments made by tax abatement recipients. 

 The gross dollar amount of taxes abated during the period. 

 Commitments made by a government, other than to rebate taxes, as part of the tax abatement agreement. 

GASB Statement No. 80, Blending Requirements for Certain Component Units.  This Statement amends the blending
requirements for certain component units and will provide clarification of the financial statement presentation of
component units of all state and local governments.  The additional criterion requires blending of a component unit
incorporated as a not-for-profit corporation in which the primary government is the sole corporate member.  The
additional criterion does not apply to component units included in the financial reporting entity pursuant to the provisions
of Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units.  See Note A.1 for additional
information on the implementation of this statement. 

GASB Statement No. 82, Pension Issues.  The objective of this Statement is to address certain issues that have been raised
with respect to Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions, and No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related Assets That Are Not within the
Scope of GASB Statement 68 and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68.  This Statement
addresses issues regarding (1) the presentation of payroll-related measures in required supplementary information, (2) the
selection of assumptions and the treatment of deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for
financial reporting purposes, and (3) the classification of payments made by employers to satisfy employee (plan member)
contribution requirements. See Note I for additional information on the implementation of this statement. 
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NOTE B: CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, & INVESTMENTS

B.1. POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all operating, capital project, and special
revenue funds.  Each fund’s portion of this pool is displayed separately on the Statement of Net Position as "Cash, Cash
Equivalents, & Investments."  The cash and investments of the Employees' Retirement Fund and investments of  the
OPEB Trust are managed and accounted for separately from those of the City.  The City categorizes its fair value
measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by GAAP, see Note A.5.A. 

Pooled Portfolio

The investment policies of the City are governed by State statutes and the City Council's adopted Investment Policy and
Strategy (Policy).  Major controls stipulated in the Policy include: depository limitations; Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC) insurance or collateralization; repurchase agreements restrictions regarding primary dealers;
independent third party custody for all collateral; settlement by delivery versus payment; defined authorized investments;
and diversification guidelines.  Maximum maturity and maximum weighted average maturity (WAM) limits are also set
by the Policy. 

State statutes and the Policy authorize investment in obligations of the U.S. Government, its agencies and
instrumentalities, municipal obligations rated AA or better, repurchase agreements, A1/P1 commercial paper, AAA-rated
constant dollar public funds investment pools, Letters of Credit (LOC) issued by the Federal Home Loan Bank, and
Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) registered money market mutual funds.  The City's Policy requires that
collateral is limited to federal government securities with a market value equal to 102 percent of deposits. 

The City, as authorized by the City Council, engages in securities lending through a contract with Citibank whereby all of
the U.S. Treasury securities and agency securities are available to be lent to an authorized dealer.  All loans can be
terminated on demand by either party.  The State law indirectly addresses reinvestment of collateral through the reverse
repurchase agreement requirements.  The law requires that reinvestment of the funds received “must mature not later than
the expiration date” of the loan (Section 2256.011d of the Public Funds Investment Act).  The City receives defined
collateral of at least 102 percent of fair value.  At no time is ownership of the underlying securities transferred to the
primary dealer.  The City does not have the ability to pledge or sell collateral securities outside of borrower default.
Therefore, in accordance with GAAP, securities on loan are not presented on the City’s financial statements.  As of
September 30, 2017, the carrying and fair value of securities on loan were $395,826,551 and the fair value of collateral
held against the loaned securities was $403,720,966. 

The Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code (the PFIA) directs authorized investments of
the City.  State statutes and the Policy require all time and demand deposits to be fully FDIC insured or collateralized.  As
of September 30, 2017, the City’s demand and time deposits totaled $574,669,115.  Of the $574,668,916 bank balance,
$250,000 in each bank account was insured by FDIC deposit insurance with the remainder collateralized with pledged
securities held by an independent custodian.  As of September 30, 2017, all funds were insured or collateralized as
required under state law.

As of September 30, 2017, the City’s investment portfolios (Portfolio) (excluding bank deposits, local government
investment pools, money market mutual funds, and amounts held by Trustees) were held by the City’s custodians in the
City's name under written agreements.  The City’s custodians are Citibank (securities lending) and JP Morgan Chase. 

The City generally holds all pooled investments to maturity for investment and income, not speculation.  For the year
ended September 30, 2017, interest earned of $299,031 on investments in the Capital Projects Fund was assigned to and
reported as investment income in the Debt Service Fund for future debt service payments.  
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NOTE B: CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, & INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

B.1. POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Pooled Portfolio (continued)

Interest Rate Risk—In order to limit interest and market rate risk, the Policy sets specific maximum maturity dates and
WAM for each of the City's investment portfolios.  The City's liquid investment portfolio has investments held for one
year or less.  For the City's short-term portfolio, the WAM is two and one half (2½) years with a maximum stated maturity
of five (5) years.  The City's long-term portfolio has a WAM of seven and one half (7½) years, and a maximum stated
maturity of (10) years. 

The Policy sets guidelines for maturity ranges which are dependent on interest rate conditions.

Maturity Cash to 1 year 1 - 2 years 2 - 3 years 3 - 4 years 4+ years

Targeted Portfolio % 40.00 15.00 15.00 15.00 15.00

Actual % 32.29 28.53 15.52 12.51 11.15

As of September 30, 2017, the Portfolio included:

 no holdings with a stated maturity date beyond April 28, 2026; 

 holdings maturing beyond one year represented 67.71 percent; and 

 the WAM was 1,290 days or 3.5 years. 

The Portfolio invests in agency debentures which are based on the credit of the agency.  The Portfolio does not invest in
any agency mortgage-backed securities.  Certain debentures have embedded call options which are exercised dependent
upon the type of call creating a unique “structure” for that security.  Calls are normally scheduled on a one-time, quarterly,
or continuous call basis.  As of September 30, 2017, the Portfolio contained U.S. Government notes (debentures) with
various callable structures totaling $368,583,760.  The callable debentures included $299,445,060 in quarterly callable
notes, $17,902,560 in continuously callable notes, and $51,236,140 in step-up callable notes.  The step-up callable notes
will increase in coupon rate if not redeemed on the call date.
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NOTE B: CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, & INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

B.1. POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Credit Risk—The primary stated objective of the Policy is the safety of principal and avoidance of principal loss. State
statutes and the Policy restrict time and demand deposits to banks doing business in Texas and require FDIC insurance or
collateralization.  A 102 percent margin on collateral is required, and collateral is limited to obligations of the U.S.
Government, its agencies or instrumentalities.  Securities are priced at fair value on a daily basis as a contractual
responsibility of the bank. 

State statutes and the Policy limit repurchase agreements to those with defined termination dates executed with a Texas
bank or a primary dealer.  The Policy requires an industry standard, written master repurchase agreement, and a 102
percent margin on collateral, as well as, delivery versus payment settlement and independent safekeeping. 

The Policy restricts investments in commercial paper to dual rated, A1/P1 commercial paper.  The Policy also states
maximum maturity for commercial paper is 270 days. 

The Policy restricts investment in pools to AAA-rated local government investment pools. 

As of September 30, 2017, the Portfolio consisted of: 

 U.S. Treasury Notes and Bills represented 43.46%;

 U.S. Obligations represented 53.54%; and

 Municipal Obligations represented 3.00%

See Note B.3. for a detailed listing of investments as of September 30, 2017.

Credit risk in the securities lending program is mitigated by diversification of the borrowers through Citibank’s automated
process and the 102 percent margin required for every transaction.  As a muni-swap contract, Citibank uses only A or
better state and local governmental collateral for securities lending.  There has not been any default by a borrower or
lending agent under the City’s securities lending program since its inception.  Collateral provided under the securities
lending program is not reported as an asset of the City. 

Concentration of Credit Risk—The City recognizes over-concentration of assets by market sector or maturity as market
risk.  The Policy establishes diversification as a major objective and sets diversification limits and strategy percentage
directives which are monitored on at least a monthly basis. 

The City’s balances and investment horizon are managed in accordance with cash flow needs, prevailing market
conditions, and general economic factors.   

Custodial Credit Risk—To control custody and safekeeping risk, State statutes and the Policy require FDIC insurance or
collateral for all time and demand deposits, as well as collateral for repurchase agreements and security lending positions.
All collateral is held by an independent party approved by the City.  The custodian provides original safekeeping receipts
and full monthly reporting.  Depository agreements are executed under the terms of the Financial Institutions Resource
and Recovery Enforcement Act.

As of September 30, 2017, the Portfolio contained no certificates of deposit and no repurchase agreements.

Custody of collateral under the securities lending program utilizes an independent third party custodian in a segregated
account for all collateral.  All collateral is held in the name of the City and marked-to-market daily.  If the value falls
below 102 percent, additional collateral is provided.  The lender does not act as a borrower. 
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NOTE B: CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, & INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

B.1. POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Gas Lease Portfolio

Section 2256.0202 of the PFIA authorizes municipal funds from the management and development of mineral rights to be
invested in accordance with Texas Trust Code (Subtitle B, Title 9, Property Code).  Texas Trust Code allows any security
that a “Prudent Investor” would be willing to utilize.  City Council has adopted a separate Gas Lease Investment Policy
(GLI Policy) statement for these funds.  The GLI Policy defines authorized investments and sets the objectives of security,
liquidity, and diversification.  In addition to the authorized investments allowed under the Investment Policy and Strategy,
the GLI Policy authorizes: investments in municipal obligations rated A or better; prime banker’s acceptances; domestic
and international bond mutual funds with a Morningstar rating of at least two stars; domestic and international equity, and
preferred stock mutual funds; domestic and international stocks; real assets; real estate; complementary strategies
(currently hedge funds); and corporate and asset-backed securities rated A or better.  The market value and cost basis of
this Gas Lease Portfolio were $65,518,000 and $61,057,699, respectively. 

The GLI Policy sets maximum maturity limits for each authorized investment type.  The maximum stated maturity for
fixed income securities is 20 years.  As of September 30, 2017, no holdings have a stated maturity date beyond March 1,
2027.  The following schedule details fair values and maturities for fixed income securities and mutual funds:

Fixed Income Securities
Less Than 

1 Year 1 - 5 Years 6 - 10 Years
More Than 

10 Years Total

Government Obligations $ 1,850 $ 3,401 $ 141 $ 274 $ 5,666
Mortgage Backed Securities - 351 - - 351
Municipal Bonds 358 202 - - 560
Corporate Obligations 1,054 5,170 - - 6,224
Domestic Mutual Funds 3,565 - - - 3,565
International Mutual Funds 2,285 - - - 2,285

Total Fixed Income Securities $ 9,112 $ 9,124 $ 141 $ 274 $ 18,651
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NOTE B: CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, & INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

B.2. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, & INVESTMENTS HELD BY TRUSTEES

All cash equivalents held by Trustees are held in depositories and SEC-registered money market funds.

B.3. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, & INVESTMENTS

Below are the City's investments measured at fair value as of September 30, 2017:

Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Investments by Fair Value Level

Investments Managed by the City
Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) $ 32,854 $ - $ 32,854 $ -
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) 6,796 - 6,796 -
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC) 191,994 - 191,994 -
Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) 216,777 - 216,777 -
U.S. Treasury Notes 363,930 363,930 - -
Municipal Obligations - Short Term 25,149 - 25,149 -

Total Investments Managed by the City 837,500 363,930 473,570 -

Investments Held by Trustees for the City
Gas Lease Revenue - Fixed Income 12,801 - 12,801 -
Gas Lease Revenue - Fixed Income - Domestic and International Mutual Fund 5,850 5,850 - -
Gas Lease Revenue - Equities 2,838 2,838 - -
Gas Lease Revenue - Equities - Domestic and International Mutual Fund 26,558 26,558 - -
Gas Lease Revenue - Real Assets Funds 8,001 8,001 - -
Gas Lease Revenue - Complementary Strategies Funds 9,470 9,470 - -

Total Investments Held by Trustees for the City 65,518 52,717 12,801 -

Total Investments by Fair Value Level $ 903,018 $ 416,647 $ 486,371 $ -
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NOTE B: CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, & INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

B.3. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, & INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

The City held the following cash, cash equivalents, & investments as of September 30, 2017:

Fair Value
WAM 

by Days
Moody's 

Credit Rating

Pooled Cash, Cash Equivalents, & Investments Managed by the City
Cash $ 733,010 N/A N/A
Cash in Bank - Blended Component Units 13,243 N/A N/A
Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB) 32,854 451 Aaa
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) 6,796 3,132 Aaa
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC) 191,994 899 Aaa
Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA) 216,777 939 Aaa
U.S. Treasury Notes 363,930 797 Aaa
Municipal Obligations - Short Term 25,149 680 Aa1-Aa3

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents, & Investments Managed by the City 1,583,753

Cash, Cash Equivalents, & Investments Held by Trustees for the City
Gas Lease Revenue - Cash 4,466 N/A N/A
Gas Lease Revenue - Fixed Income 12,801 997 Note B.1.
Gas Lease Revenue - Fixed Income - Domestic and International Mutual Fund 5,850 N/A Note B.1.
Gas Lease Revenue - Equities 2,838 N/A N/A
Gas Lease Revenue - Equities - Domestic and International Mutual Fund 26,558 N/A N/A
Gas Lease Revenue - Real Assets Funds 8,001 N/A N/A
Gas Lease Revenue - Complementary Strategies Funds 9,470 N/A N/A
Cash Held by Trustee - United Healthcare 1,928 N/A N/A
Cash Held by Trustee - York 800 N/A N/A
Cash Held by Trustee - TWDB 2015B SWIRF 130 N/A N/A
Cash Held by Trustee - TWDB 2017 SWIRF 16,356 N/A N/A
Cash Held by Trustee - Rock Creek 11,576 N/A N/A
Cash Held by Trustee - CWSRF2015 5,511 N/A N/A
Cash Held by Trustee - CWSRF2017 24 N/A N/A
Cash Held by Trustee - HUD 108 Loan Fund (Evans/Rosedale/Mercado) 717 N/A N/A
Cash Held by Trustee - Southeast Landfill 5,481 N/A N/A

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents, & Investments Held by Trustees for the City 112,507

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents, & Investments - Primary Government $ 1,696,260

Cash & Cash Equivalents Managed by the Employees' Retirement Fund
Cash in Bank $ 173 N/A N/A

Investments Managed by the Employees' Retirement Fund
Investments 2,467,998 See Note B.5.

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents, & Investments - Employees' Retirement Fund $ 2,468,171

Cash & Cash Equivalents Managed by the Retiree Healthcare Trust Fund
Cash in Bank $ 303 N/A N/A

Investments Managed by the Retiree Healthcare Trust Fund
Investments 72,229 See Note B.4.

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents, & Investments - Retiree Healthcare Trust Fund $ 72,532

Cash & Cash Equivalents Managed by the Discretely Presented
Component Unit 
Cash in Bank $ 315 N/A N/A

Total Cash & Cash Equivalents - Discretely Presented Component Unit $ 315

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents, & Investments $ 4,237,278
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NOTE B: CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, & INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

B.3. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, & INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

The following is reconciliation between Note B.3. and the Basic Financial Statements:

Cash, Cash Equivalents, & Investments, per Note
Primary Government $ 1,696,260
Employees' Retirement Fund 2,468,171
Retiree Healthcare Trust Fund 72,532
Discretely Presented Component Unit 315

Total, per Note $ 4,237,278

Cash, Cash Equivalents, & Investments, per Basic Financial Statements
Statement of Net Position - Primary Government $ 1,102,198
Statement of Net Position - Primary Government Restricted 594,062
Statement of Net Position - Discretely Presented Component Unit 315
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Cash and Cash Equivalents 476
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position - Cash and Investments Held by Trustees 2,540,227

Total, per Basic Financial Statements $ 4,237,278
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NOTE B: CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, & INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

B.4. INVESTMENTS OF THE RETIREE HEALTHCARE TRUST FUND (THE OPEB TRUST)

All OPEB Trust investments are held in the Public Agencies Retirement Services (PARS) Post-Retirement Health Care
Plan Trust by its trustee, US Bank.  The Trustee is contracted to manage the portfolio in accordance with the Trust
documents as approved by the City Council.  The Trust Investment Guideline mandates a diversified portfolio in real
estate, fixed income securities, and equity securities. 

Custodial Credit Risk—As of September 30, 2017, all investments are registered in the name of the City of Fort Worth
PARS Post-Retirement Health Care Plan Trust in a master trust custodial agreement. 

Credit Risk of Debt Securities—The OPEB Trust investments as of September 30, 2017, are shown below:

Investment Type Rating Fair Value*

Fixed Income Mutual Funds:
Ishares (US Bond Market) N/A $ 40,329
Powershares Senior Loan Etf N/A 1,306
Vanguard Short-Term Investment Grade N/A 7,560

Total Fixed Income Mutual Funds 49,195

Equity Mutual Funds:
Ishares S&P 500 ETF N/A 6,626
Ishares S&P 500 Growth ETF N/A 1,880
Ishares S&P 500 Value ETF N/A 2,674
Ishares Msci Eafe ETF N/A 4,068
Ishares Russell Midcap Value ETF N/A 1,687
Ishares Russell 2000 Value Index ETF N/A 1,804
Ishares Russell 2000 Growth ETF N/A 1,792
Vanguard Emerg Mkt N/A 1,506
Vanguard Reit ETF N/A 997

Total Equity Mutual Funds N/A 23,034

Total Investments $ 72,229

*All OPEB Trust assets were valued using Level 1 inputs. 

Concentration of Credit Risk—The OPEB Trust Investment Guideline addresses concentration limits on a manager
basis.  As of September 30, 2017, the OPEB Trust’s investments were all registered in the Trust’s name. 

Interest Rate Risk—The OPEB Trust does not have a formal policy limiting investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from changing interest rates. 
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B.5. INVESTMENTS OF THE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND 

The Employees' Retirement Fund of the City of Fort Worth, Texas (the "Retirement Fund") is comprised of two separate
defined benefit plans: the City of Fort Worth employees benefit plan (the "City Plan" or the "Plan") and the Retirement
Fund employees plan (the "Staff Plan").  The Retirement Fund and City Plan were established by City Ordinance on
September 12, 1945.  The Staff Plan was established through Administrative Rules in 2007, and both plans are governed
by State statute (Vernon's Civil Statutes, Title 109, Article 6243i) effective June 15, 2007.  The assets of the City Plan are
commingled for investment purposes with the assets of the Staff Plan of the Employees’ Retirement Fund, and both plans
are administered by the thirteen-member Retirement Fund Board of Trustees (Board).  The Retirement Fund Board is
solely responsible for managing the assets for the City of Fort Worth employees plan, and defining benefits, setting
contribution rates, funding contributions, and all other financial components of the Staff Plan.  Defining benefits, setting
contribution rates, funding contributions, and all other financial components of the City Plan are administered by the
Mayor and City Council.  Each plan has a separate actuarial valuation completed annually to determine the respective
funded status based on current and projected assets and liabilities.  Therefore, assets of each plan are legally separate and
cannot pay benefits of the other.  Due to the insignificant nature of the Staff Plan's assets compared to the Retirement
Fund's assets, all further references to the Plan and information provided in the Notes and Required Supplementary
Information about the City Plan are strictly limited to information about the City employees (comprised of General
Employees, Police Officers, and Firefighters).  As discussed in Note J, this fiduciary fund of the City issues separate
audited financial statements which are publicly available and can be obtained by contacting the Employees’ Retirement
Fund at 3801 Hulen Street, Suite 101, Fort Worth, Texas 76107. 

Fair Value—The Plan categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles as described in Note A.5.A. 

Investments that are measured at fair value using the net asset value (NAV) per share (or its equivalent) as a practical
expedient are not classified in the fair value hierarchy.  Investments that use inputs that are of different levels are
categorized based on the lowest level of input used to determine the fair value of the investment. 

The Plan's Assets listed in the Investments Measured at Net Asset Value table in Note B.5. are invested with managers in
structures that the Plan receives values for shares held in the investment structure with the manager.  The liquidity of these
structures is listed below on the following pages: 

Equity Investments—This consists of two Commingled Global Equity Funds that are passive institutional investment
funds that invest in global equities diversified across all sectors focused on large to mid-cap equities.  One of the global
equity funds is based on a cap-weighted MSCI ACWI index and the second fund is based on an MSCI ACWI weighted
toward fundamental aspects of companies within the index.  There is also one Commingled Emerging Market Equity Fund
that is an institutional investment fund that invests in emerging market equities diversified across all sectors focused on
large to mid-cap equities. 
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B.5. INVESTMENTS OF THE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND  (CONTINUED)

Absolute Return Funds—This category consists of several different styles of funds, as well as different liquidity
structures.  Directional funds include investments in four funds that invest in a directional nature based on their views of
markets, at times these funds may invest without directional bias. One of these funds is currently in redemption,
representing 14% of directional funds, allowing the Plan to receive 1/4 of its investments quarterly over twelve months,
the Plan had received its first redemption as of September 30, 2017.  Equity Long/Short funds include investments in six
funds with three of these funds currently in redemption consisting of 16% of assets in this category, with 90% of that
redemption to be received in October 2017.  Equity Long/Short funds maintain some level of market exposure by
investing in U.S. or global equities both long and short with the level of exposure varying over time.  One fund of this
type, consisting of 29% of assets in this category, allows quarterly liquidity received 1/4 of assets each subsequent
quarter.   Event-driven funds include investments in eight (8) funds with three (3) of those funds currently in redemption
consisting of 2% of assets in this category.  These funds seek to gain an advantage from pricing inefficiencies that may
arise based on corporate actions or events which may change the nature of the underlying investment.  The nature of
event-driven investments often restricts the liquidity of those investments.  In this category, 17% of the assets may only be
redeemed in three (3) year intervals, while 22% may only be redeemed on an annual basis.  The remaining 59% of assets
may be redeemed either quarterly receiving 1/4 of assets each subsequent quarter.  Multi-Strategy funds include
investments in five (5) funds with all funds currently in redemption.  Multi-Strategy funds invest in multiple strategies in
order to diversify risks and reduce volatility.  All funds in this category have been redeemed from, with the largest
representing 87% of the assets will distribute 95% of assets during the upcoming fiscal year and 5% reserved for an audit
holdback.  The remaining assets are either audit holdback, or side-pocketed assets waiting for liquidation.  Relative Value
funds include investments in three (3) funds in this category with one of these funds in redemption.  Relative Value funds
seek returns by identifying mispricing of related securities or financial instruments.  The redeemed fund in this category
representing 19% of assets in this category has quarterly liquidity with a limit of 1/6 of assets being redeemed at one time;
the fund has received its first installment with the reminder to be returned over the next 15 months.  This limit makes 4%
of the assets in this category available past a one (1) year from initial redemption. 

Alternative Assets—This category consists of limited partnership structures that invest in companies or real estate which
allow for limited or no liquidity for the investor.  Private Equity partnerships consist of funds that invest in buyouts,
growth equity, venture capital, special situations, mezzanine and distressed debt.  There are 79 partnerships in this
category, and these partnerships are typically structured with life from 7-10 years and are considered illiquid.  As
investments are sold out of the partnerships assets are returned to the investors.  These funds fair value are determined
using net asset values one (1) quarter in arrears and adjusted for cash flows of the most recent quarter.  Real Estate - Core
partnerships invest in highly leased lower leverage properties that provide consistent income to the investors.  These funds
allow quarterly liquidity to the investors.  There are three (3) partnerships in this category.   Real Estate – Non-Core
partnerships invest in properties that require some development or improvements to improve the position of the property.
There are 25 partnerships in this category, and these partnerships are typically structured with life from 7-10 years and are
considered illiquid.  As properties are sold out of the partnership assets are returned to the investors.  These funds fair
value are determined using net asset values one (1) quarter in arrears and adjusted for cash flows of the most recent
quarter. 
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B.5. INVESTMENTS OF THE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND  (CONTINUED)

Below are the Plan's investments and derivative instruments measured at fair value as of September 30, 2017:

Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Investments by Fair Value Level
Short Term Securities $ 204,717 $ - $ 204,016 $ 701
Debt Securities

Collateralized Debt Obligations 51,022 - 44,904 6,118
Commercial Mortgage-Backed Securities 14,248 - 11,865 2,383
Corporates 136,519 - 136,105 414
Debt Other 100,826 98,099 2,727 -
Municipals 9,403 - 9,154 249
Non U.S. Government 19,979 - 19,979 -
U.S. Government Agencies 121,091 - 109,145 11,946
U.S. Treasuries 62,284 62,284 - -

Total Debt Securities 515,372 160,383 333,879 21,110

Equity Securities
Consumer Discretionary 36,250 36,250 - -
Consumer Staples 32,974 32,974 - -
Energy 47,021 47,021 - -
Equity Other 11,474 11,474 - -
Financials 51,430 51,427 - 3
Health Care 32,194 32,194 - -
Industrials 64,680 64,680 - -
Information Technology 46,334 46,334 - -
Materials 29,685 29,685 - -
Real Estate 37,137 37,137 - -
Telecommunication Services 3,265 3,265 - -
Utilities 2,391 2,391 - -

Total Equity Securities 394,835 394,832 - 3

Investment Derivative Instruments
Swaps 353 - 353 -
Futures 9 9 - -
Rights and Warrants 3 - - 3
FX Forwards (679) - (679) -

Total Investment Derivative Instruments (314) 9 (326) 3

Total Investments by Fair Value Level $ 1,114,610 $ 555,224 $ 537,569 $ 21,817

Investments Measured at Net Asset Value*
Equity Investments

Commingled Global Equity Fund $ 477,553
Commingled Emerging Market Equity Fund 38,300

Total Equity Investments 515,853

Absolute Return 344,359
Alternative Investments

Private Equity 271,252
Real Estate - Core 106,001
Real Estate 115,609

Total Alternative Investments 492,862

Total Investments Measured at Net Asset Value $ 1,353,074

*Investments measured at Net Asset Value have total Unfunded Commitments of $225,857,417, the Plan's investments at NAV offer redemption
frequencies ranging from daily to three (3) years on redeemable investments; with a total of $386,860,431 of alternative investments that are
ineligible for redemption and a redemption notice period of one (1) day to 90 days on eligible assets. 
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B.5. INVESTMENTS OF THE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND  (CONTINUED)

Substantially all of the Plan’s investments are held by its custodian.  The Retirement Fund Board of Directors (Board)
authorizes various external managers to manage investments within certain policies as set forth by the Board.  These
policies mandate a diversified portfolio, which includes investments, either directly or in commingled accounts, in real
estate, fixed income securities, and equity securities. 

GAAP addresses common deposit and investment risks including custodial credit risk, credit risk of debt securities,
concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk, and foreign currency risk.  Required disclosures related to these risks are
presented below: 

Custodial Credit Risk—Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of failure of the counterparty, the Plan would
not be able to recover the value of its investments.  The Plan does not have a formal policy for custodial credit risk.  As of
September 30, 2017, all investments are registered in the name of the Employees’ Retirement Fund of the City of Fort
Worth or in the name of the Plan’s custodian, established through a master trust custodial agreement, except investments
in alternative investments and commingled Funds. 

Credit Risk of Debt Securities—Credit risk of debt securities is the risk that an issuer or another counterparty to an
investment will not fulfill its obligations.  The Plan’s investment policy (the policy) requires that fixed income securities
have a weighted average of no less than investment grade, as rated by Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s (S&P).   However,
the policy does provide for high yield fixed income managers to invest in securities with S&P ratings between BB+ and
CCC.  The policy limits 25% of a manager’s portfolio to be rated CCC or lower.  Unrated securities should be limited to
no more than 20% of a manager’s portfolio.  GASB Statement No. 40 does not require disclosure of U.S. government
obligations explicitly guaranteed. 
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B.5. INVESTMENTS OF THE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND  (CONTINUED)

Credit Risk of Debt Securities—The Plan's investments as of September 30, 2017, are shown below:

Investment Type S&P Rating Fair Value

Asset & Mortgage Backed Obligations AAA $ 39,945
Asset & Mortgage Backed Obligations AA 4,161
Asset & Mortgage Backed Obligations A 5,234
Asset & Mortgage Backed Obligations BBB 2,290
Asset & Mortgage Backed Obligations BB 1,297
Asset & Mortgage Backed Obligations B 2,850
Asset & Mortgage Backed Obligations CCC 2,327
Asset & Mortgage Backed Obligations CC 51
Asset & Mortgage Backed Obligations D 312
Asset & Mortgage Backed Obligations NR 7,163

Total Asset & Mortgage Backed Obligations 65,630

Corporate Obligations AAA 8,443
Corporate Obligations AA 10,683
Corporate Obligations A 29,072
Corporate Obligations BBB 40,861
Corporate Obligations BB 24,805
Corporate Obligations B 19,312
Corporate Obligations CCC 3,660
Corporate Obligations CC 142
Corporate Obligations NR 2,268

Total Corporate Obligations 139,246

Government Agency Obligations AAA 99,251
Government Agency Obligations AA 24,490
Government Agency Obligations A 1,914
Government Agency Obligations BBB 522
Government Agency Obligations NR 1,983

Total Government Agency Obligations 128,160

International Obligations AAA 13,014
International Obligations AA 1,986
International Obligations BB 6,536
International Obligations NR 419

Total International Obligations 21,955

Securities Lending Collateral AAA 649
Securities Lending Collateral AA 35,902
Securities Lending Collateral A 84,292
Securities Lending Collateral NR 11,742

Total Securities Lending Collateral 132,585

Total Fixed Income Subject to Credit Risk 487,576

U.S. Treasuries (Not Subject to Credit Risk) 62,284
Short-Term Marketable Securities 72,131
Corporate Stock 422,051
Alternative Investments 626,693
Commingled Funds 797,263

Total Investments $ 2,467,998
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B.5. INVESTMENTS OF THE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND  (CONTINUED)

Concentration of Credit Risk—Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the Plan’s
investment in a single issuer.  The Plan’s investment policy addresses concentration limits on a manager basis.   As of
September 30, 2017, the Plan did not have any investments, where the underlying assets were registered in the Plan’s
name that totaled more than 5% of assets of the Plan. 

Interest Rate Risk—Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment.  The Plan does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a
means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from changing interest rates. 

The maturities of investments subject to interest rate risk are as follows:

Investment Type
Less Than 

1 Year 1 - 5 Years 6 - 10 Years
More Than 

10 Years
Total Fair

Value

Asset & Mortgage Backed Obligations $ 213 $ 17,560 $ 5,728 $ 42,129 $ 65,630
Corporate Obligations 11,276 60,891 48,349 18,730 139,246
Government Agency Obligations 10,957 13,766 6,122 97,315 128,160
International Obligations 5,119 13,290 2,706 840 21,955
Securities Lending Collateral 132,585 - - - 132,585
Short-term Fixed Income 72,131 - - - 72,131
U.S. Treasuries - 3,291 18,943 40,050 62,284

Total Interest Rate Risk Debt Securities $ 232,281 $ 108,798 $ 81,848 $ 199,064 $ 621,991

75



CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(000's omitted in tables)

NOTE B: CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, & INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

B.5. INVESTMENTS OF THE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND  (CONTINUED)

Foreign Currency Risk—Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment or deposit.  The Plan has no formal investment policy with regard to foreign currency risk as it is
considered an intrinsic risk associated with the investment strategy.  The Plan’s exposure to foreign currency risk at
September 30, 2017, is presented below:

Currency Debt Equity Total

Australian Dollar $ (31) $ 1,171 $ 1,140
Brazilian Real 2 1,961 1,963
British Pound Sterling 7,660 13,591 21,251
Canadian Dollar 149 8,577 8,726
Danish Krone (136) - (136)
Euro Currency Unit 50,359 57,451 107,810
Hong Kong Dollar 1 9,854 9,855
Indian Rupee 46 - 46
Japanese Yen 2,483 20,901 23,384
Mexican New Peso (3) 788 785
New Taiwan Dollar (750) 3,729 2,979
New Zealand Dollar (67) - (67)
Norwegian Krone - 1,039 1,039
Philippine Peso 952 - 952
Polish Zloty 13 959 972
Singapore Dollar 2 429 431
South African Rand 20 - 20
South Korean Won (3,192) 2,486 (706)
Swedish Krona 1 3,438 3,439
Swiss Franc 14 6,124 6,138
Thai Baht 3 745 748
Turkish Lira - 389 389

Total Securities Subject to Foreign
Currency Risk $ 57,526 $ 133,632 $ 191,158
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B.5. INVESTMENTS OF THE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND  (CONTINUED)

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

To manage the foreign currency exchange risks associated with foreign investments, the Plan enters into forward currency
contracts.  The Plan had a net foreign currency contracts with a fair value of approximately $(679,080) at September 30,
2017, which contractually obligates the Plan to deliver currencies at a specified date.  The Plan could be exposed to the
risk of loss if the counterparty is unable to meet the terms of a contract or if the value of currency changes unfavorably.
At September 30, 2017, the fair value of these contracts is included in due to/from broker. 

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Plan’s investment managers are permitted to invest in derivatives subject to guidelines established by the Board.
Derivatives are financial instruments that derive their value, usefulness, and marketability of an underlying instrument
which represents direct ownership of an asset or an obligation of an issuer.  The Plan’s derivative positions are marked to
market daily, and managers may only trade with counterparties with a credit rating of A-/A3 as defined by S&P and
Moody’s, respectively.  Substitution and risk control are the only strategies permitted; speculation is strictly prohibited.
Derivatives are carried as a receivable when the fair value is positive and as payable when the fair value is negative.  Fair
value is determined based on quoted market prices, if available, or based on differences in cash flows between the fixed
and variable rates in each contract as of the measurement date.  Gains and losses from derivatives are included in net
investment income. 

The Plan was in possession of the following types of derivatives at September 30, 2017: 

Futures Contracts—A futures contract is a standardized contract between two parties to buy or sell a specified asset of
standardized quantity and quality for a price agreed upon today with delivery and payment occurring at a specified future
date, the delivery date.  The contracts are negotiated at a futures exchange, which acts as an intermediary between the two
parties to minimize the risk of default by either party. 

Forward Contracts—A forward contract represents an agreement to buy or sell an underlying asset at a specified date in
the future at a specified price.  Payment for the transaction is delayed until the settlement or expiration date.  A forward
contract is a non-standardized contract that is tailored to each specific transaction.  Forward contracts are privately
negotiated and are intended to be held until the settlement date.  Currency forward contracts are used to control currency
exposure and facilitate the settlement of international security purchase and sale transactions.

Swap Agreements—A swap is an agreement between two or more parties to exchange a sequence of cash flows over a
period of time in the future based on an underlying asset.  No principal is exchanged at the beginning of the swap. The
cash flows the counterparties exchange are tied to a “notional” amount.  A swap agreement specifies the period over
which the periodic payments will be exchanged.  The fair value represents the gains or losses as of the prior marking-to-
market. 
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NOTE B: CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, & INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

B.5. INVESTMENTS OF THE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND  (CONTINUED)

The Investment Derivatives schedule listed below reports the fair value, changes in fair value, and notional amounts of
derivatives outstanding as of September 30, 2017, classified by type:

Changes in Fair Value Fair Value

Derivative Type Classification Amount Amount Notional

Fiduciary Funds
Investment Derivatives

Futures Contracts Investment Income $ 9 $ 9 $ 150,998
Forward Contracts Investment Income (426) (679) 99,346
Swap Agreements Investment Income 4,736 353 96,938
Rights and Warrants Investment Income 3 3 14

   Total $ 4,322 $ (314) $ 347,296

Rights and Warrants—A right is a special type of option that has a short market life, usually existing for no more than a
few weeks.  Essentially, rights originate when corporations raise money by issuing new shares of common stock.  From an
investor's perspective, a right enables a stockholder to buy shares of the new issue at a specified price, over a specified,
fairly short period.  Rights not executed by their expiration date cease to exist and become worthless.  A warrant is a long-
term option that gives the holder the right to buy a certain number of shares of stock in a certain company for a certain
period.  Like most options, warrants are found in the corporate sector of the market.  Occasionally, warrants can be used
to purchase preferred stock or even bonds, but the common stock is the leading redemption vehicle.   Warrants, like rights,
cease to exist and become worthless if they are not executed by their expiration date.

Credit Risk—The Plan is exposed to credit risk on investment derivatives that are traded over the counter and reported in
asset positions.  Derivatives exposed to credit risk include currency forward contracts, rights and warrants, and swap
agreements.  To minimize credit risk exposure, the Plan’s managers monitor the credit ratings of the counterparties.
Should there be a counterparty failure, the Plan would be exposed to the loss of the fair value of derivatives that are in the
asset positions and any collateral provided to the counterparty, net of the effect of applicable netting arrangements.
Netting arrangements provide the Plan with a right of offset in the event of bankruptcy or default by the counterparty.
Collateral provided by the counterparty reduces the Plan’s credit risk exposure. 

The following Credit Risk Analysis schedule discloses the counterparty credit ratings of the Plan’s investment derivatives
by type, as of September 30, 2017.  These amounts represent the maximum loss that would be recognized if all
counterparties fail to perform as contracted, without respect to any collateral or other security or netting arrangement.  The
schedule displays the fair value of the investments by credit rating in increasing magnitude of risk. Investments are
classified by S&P rating.  If the investment does not have an S&P rating, the Moody’s rating that corresponds to the S&P
rating is used. 

As of September 30, 2017, the Plan's credit risk to these statements is disclosed in the following table:

Derivative Type AA A BBB Not Rated
Total Fair

Value

Futures Contracts $ - $ - $ - $ 9 $ 9
Forward Contracts - (21) - (658) (679)
Swap Agreements - 5 21 327 353
Rights and Warrants - - - 3 3

Total $ - $ (16) $ 21 $ (319) $ (314)
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NOTE B: CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, & INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

B.5. INVESTMENTS OF THE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND  (CONTINUED)

Interest Rate Risk—The interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment.  Interest rate swaps are an example of an investment that has a fair value that is highly sensitive to
interest rate changes.  These investments, as of September 30, 2017, are disclosed in the following table:

Derivative Type Total Notional
Value

Total Fair
Value

Interest Rate Swaps $ 92,538 $ 344
Swaptions 4,400 9

Total $ 96,938 $ 353

Foreign Currency Risk—For those forward contracts and swap agreements that are securities issued by foreign countries
and foreign businesses there is an exposure to foreign currency risk.  Currency forward contracts represent foreign
exchange contracts that are used to control currency exposure and facilitate the settlement of international security
purchase and sale transactions. 

The net exposure column of the schedule below indicates the Plan’s net foreign currency risk related to derivatives as of
September 30, 2017:

Currency Forward
Contracts

Swap
Agreements Net Exposure

Australian Dollar $ (53) $ - $ (53)
Brazilian Real (686) - (686)
British Pound Sterling (46) 19 (27)
Canadian Dollar (43) 8 (35)
Danish Krone (195) - (195)
Euro Currency Unit 42 (16) 26
Japanese Yen 310 5 315
Indian Rupee (2) - (2)
Indonesian Rupiah 11 - 11
Mexican Peso (16) - (16)
New Taiwan Dollar 3 - 3
New Zealand Dollar (25) - (25)
South Korean Won 22 - 22
Swiss Franc (1) - (1)

Total $ (679) $ 16 $ (663)

The values shown are for the positions that the Plan holds directly.  The Plan may also have indirect exposure to
derivatives via its commingled funds and its alternative investments.  The Plan owns an interest in commingled and
alternative investment funds which in turn holds the actual positions.  Indirect exposures via these types of investments
are not shown here. 
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NOTE B: CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, & INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

B.5. INVESTMENTS OF THE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND  (CONTINUED)

SECURITIES LENDING

The Plan is authorized to contractually lend securities to borrowers in accordance with policy established by the Board.
The Plan is currently contracted with Northern Trust to establish, manage and administer a securities lending program.
Northern Trust facilitates lending the Plan’s domestic and international equity and fixed income securities in return for
collateral consisting of cash, U.S. government securities and irrevocable letters of credit issued by banks independent of
the borrower.  At a loan’s inception, the value of collateral obtained is equal to 102% for securities of United States
issuers, and 105% in the case of securities of non-United States issuers, of the market value of any securities to be loaned,
plus any accrued interest. 

Cash collateral is to be invested in government securities, bank and corporate notes, bank certificates of deposit, time
deposits, bankers’ acceptances, repurchase agreements, commercial paper, and asset-backed securities.  The contract with
Northern Trust specifies guidelines for allowable investments, maturities, and diversification.  The Plan cannot pledge or
sell collateral securities without borrower default.  The amount of collateral held exceeds the value of the assets on loan at
September 30, 2017. 

The Plan earns income from fees paid by the borrowers and interest earned from investing the cash collateral.  The
contract requires the custodian bank to purchase any loaned securities with collateral provided, however, if the collateral
is insufficient to cover the loss, the Plan is liable for the loss.  The cash collateral received on each loan was invested in
the collateral pool at Northern Trust.  Because the loans are terminable at will, their duration generally did not match the
duration of the investments made with cash collateral.  In addition, the Plan had no credit risk exposure to borrowers.  As
of September 30, 2017, the value of the collateral held was $132,585,433 and the value of securities on loan at September
30, 2017, was $129,934,537.  The Plan earned $663,545, net, on its securities lending activity for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2017. 
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NOTE C: RECEIVABLES AND INTERFUND BALANCES

C.1. RECEIVABLES

Receivables at September 30, 2017, for governmental activities of the City’s major funds and nonmajor funds and internal
service funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, consist of the following:

Receivables General Debt Service
Capital
Projects

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds
Internal

Service Funds

Total
Governmental

Activities

Taxes $ 31,636 $ 9,273 $ - $ - $ - $ 40,909
Grants and Other Governments 26,926 - 7,600 18,968 - 53,494
Levied, Unbilled Assessments - - 2,340 - - 2,340
Loans - - 7 14,505 - 14,512
Long-Term Loans - - - 13,081 - 13,081
Interest 40 593 413 357 153 1,556
Accounts and Other 40,996 - 416 11,258 1,593 54,263

Total Gross Receivables 99,598 9,866 10,776 58,169 1,746 180,155

Less Allowance for Uncollectible
Accounts:

Taxes (25,625) (7,511) - - - (33,136)
Levied, Unbilled Assessments - - (2,340) - - (2,340)
Loans - - - (615) - (615)
Accounts and Other (27,820) - - (261) (1,072) (29,153)

Total Allowance (53,445) (7,511) (2,340) (876) (1,072) (65,244)

Total Receivables, Net $ 46,153 $ 2,355 $ 8,436 $ 57,293 $ 674 $ 114,911

Receivables at September 30, 2017, for business-type activities of the City’s major enterprise funds and nonmajor
enterprise funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, consist of the following:

Receivables
Water and

Sewer
Stormwater

Utility

Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds

Total 
Business-Type

Activities

Interest $ 362 $ 99 $ 89 $ 550
Accounts and Other 50,400 3,801 7,518 61,719
Grants - Restricted 4,290 35 9,336 13,661
Interest - Restricted 507 57 86 650

Total Gross Receivables 55,559 3,992 17,029 76,580

Less Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts:  
Accounts and Other (975) (663) (258) (1,896)

Total Allowance (975) (663) (258) (1,896)

Total Receivables, Net $ 54,584 $ 3,329 $ 16,771 $ 74,684
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NOTE C: RECEIVABLES AND INTERFUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

C.1. RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Governmental funds report deferred inflows of resources, unavailable revenue, in connection with receivables for
revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period.  Governmental funds also
report a liability, unearned revenue, in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. 

At the end of the fiscal year, the various components of unavailable revenue and unearned revenue reported in the
governmental funds were as follows:

Description Unavailable Unearned

Property Taxes $ 5,989 $ -
Grants and Other Governments 11,095 4,025
Long-Term Loans - 26,832
Other 101 2,844

$ 17,185 33,701

Total Unavailable / Unearned
Revenues $ 50,886

Enterprise funds record unearned revenue in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned.  At the
end of the fiscal year, the various components of unearned revenue reported in the enterprise funds were as shown:

Description
Water and

Sewer

Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds

Total 
Business-Type

Activities

Rents $ 1,332 $ - $ 1,332
Grants - 2,453 2,453

Total Unearned Revenues $ 1,332 $ 2,453 $ 3,785

C.2. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Interfund receivable and payable balances at September 30, 2017, were as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Total

Water and Sewer Nonmajor Governmental $ 66
Nonmajor Enterprise Nonmajor Governmental 316

General Nonmajor Governmental 281

Total: $ 663

An explanation for each interfund receivable and payable is presented below:

The Water and Sewer Fund, Nonmajor Enterprise Funds, and General Fund had a receivable of $66,220, $315,550, and
$281,377, respectively, from the Nonmajor Governmental Funds for gas royalties not distributed at the end of the fiscal
year.
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NOTE C: RECEIVABLES AND INTERFUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

C.3. ADVANCES

Advances from/to other funds at September 30, 2017, were as follows:  

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Total

Nonmajor Enterprise Capital Projects $ 1,190
Nonmajor Enterprise Capital Projects 7,023

Total: $ 8,213

An explanation of significant advances from/to other funds is presented below: 

The $1,190,056 payable to the Nonmajor Enterprise Funds from the Capital Projects Fund is due from the Specially
Funded Capital Projects Fund to the Aviation Endowment Gas Lease Fund for road improvements to North Riverside
Drive/Old Denton Road.  The loan is reimbursed by incremental taxes collected in the Taxing Increment Reinvestment
Zone No. 7 district over a seven-year period and will be paid in full in FY2018.  The seven-year payback period is an
exception to the Financial Management Policy Statements regarding the interfund loan as the policy requires repayment of
the interfund loan within five years. 

The $7,022,957 payable to the Nonmajor Enterprise Funds from the Capital Projects Fund is due from the Public Safety
Training Facility Fund to the Solid Waste Fund for construction costs associated with a new Public Safety Training
Center.  The loan is reimbursed from Crime Control and Prevention District fund, and the remaining balance is payable in
a series of three payments beginning in FY2018.

C.4. TRANSFERS

Transfers made during the year were as follows:

Transfers In:

General
Debt

Service
Capital
Projects

Nonmajor
Governmental

Funds
Water

and Sewer
Stormwater

Utility

Nonmajor
Enterprise

Funds

Internal
Service
Funds Total 

Transfers Out:

General $ - $ - $ 50,292 $ 5,452 $ - $ - $ 55 $ 3,823 $ 59,622
Debt Service - - 2,395 - - - 2 - 2,397
Capital Projects 560 804 - 329 - - - - 1,693
Nonmajor Governmental

Funds 8,571 28,691 252,148 4,069 2,292 145 75 541 296,532
Water and Sewer 27,032 - 501 43 - 24 21 - 27,621
Stormwater Utility 3,016 - - 350 940 - - 33 4,339
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 4,824 - - 373 1,130 - - 26 6,353
Internal Service Funds 25 210 - - - - - 424 659

Total $ 44,028 $ 29,705 $ 305,336 $ 10,616 $ 4,362 $ 169 $ 153 $ 4,847 $ 399,216
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NOTE C: RECEIVABLES AND INTERFUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

C.4. TRANSFERS (CONTINUED)

Transfers are used to: 1) move revenues from the fund with collection authorization to the Debt Service Fund as debt
service principal and interest payments become due; 2) move restricted amounts from borrowings to the Debt Service
Fund to establish mandatory reserve accounts; and 3) move unrestricted revenues to finance various programs that the
government must account for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, including amounts provided as
subsidies or matching funds for various grant programs. 

Significant transfers included the following: 

The General Fund transferred $50,292,000 to the Capital Projects Fund for: the Capital Improvement Plan ($30,726,000);
replacement and acquisition of rolling stock ($3,452,000); and to fund current city-wide capital projects ($16,114,000).

The General Fund transferred $5,452,000 to the Nonmajor Governmental Funds, of which $1,213,000 was to the Culture
and Tourism Fund to record energy savings subsidy to ensure funding was sufficient for the WRMC Arena.  The General
Fund transferred $2,865,000 to establish the new Botanic Gardens Special Revenue Fund.  The creation of new Botanic
Gardens Special Revenue Fund will improve accountability, transparency, and allow more accurate tracking of the true
total cost of service associated with the facility.  The Golf Fund received a subsidy in the amount of $860,000 from the
General Fund to assist with the operational costs.  The Fort Worth Public Improvement Districts (PID) received $514,000
in lieu of services and assessments. 

The General Fund transferred $3,823,000 to the Internal Service Funds to fund the computer replacement administered
through the Information Systems Fund. 

The Nonmajor Governmental Funds transferred $8,571,000 to the General Fund, of which $6,059,000 was from the Crime
Control and Prevention District Fund for the Civil Service Pay Plan.  The General Fund received $1,249,000 from the
Culture and Tourism Fund for energy savings debt service. 

The Nonmajor Governmental Funds transferred $28,691,000 to the Debt Service Fund, of which $25,645,000 was for the
monthly debt service transfer from the Culture and Tourism Funds, and $3,046,000 was from the Crime Control and
Prevention District Fund to pay for 2011 Tax Notes debt service.

The Nonmajor Governmental Funds transferred $252,148,000 to the Capital Projects Fund, of which $12,435,000 was
made from the Crime Control and Prevention District Fund and $1,195,000 from the Asset Forfeiture Funds for
construction commitments relating to facility renovation and maintenance, 6th Patrol Division's new facility,
transportation maintenance, and community partnerships per the capital improvement plan.  The Culture and Tourism
Fund transferred $2,043,000 to the Culture and Tourism Capital Projects Fund for the public events capital improvement
plan.  The Culture and Tourism Capital Projects Fund also received a transfer of $218,489,000 from the Culture and
Tourism Fund for support of the Venue Project that includes the Multi-Purpose Arena (see Note M) adjacent to the Will
Rogers Memorial Center.  The Culture and Tourism Fund also transferred $3,899,000 to the Culture and Tourism DFW
Revenue Share Capital Project Fund per the capital improvement plan.  The Special Purpose Fund transferred $1,475,000
to the General Capital Projects Fund per the capital improvement plan. The Taxing Increment Reinvestment Zone #7
North Tarrant Parkway transferred $1,925,000 to the Specially Funded Projects Fund to pay for interfund loan for North
Riverside Drive and Old Denton Road from Golden Triangle projects.  

The Nonmajor Governmental Funds transferred $4,069,000 to the Nonmajor Governmental Funds, of which $2,586,000
was made from Lancaster Corridor LLC Fund, which was previously reported within Special Revenue Funds, is now
reported separately reported as Other Blended Capital Project Funds in FY2017.
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NOTE C: RECEIVABLES AND INTERFUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

C.4. TRANSFERS (CONTINUED)

The Water and Sewer Fund transferred $27,032,000 to the General Fund, which includes $20,843,000 for Street Rental
Fees and $5,560,000 for Payment in Lieu of Taxes (PILOT). 

The Stormwater Utility Fund transferred $3,016,000 to the General Fund of which $1,851,000 was for Street Rental Fees,
and $1,149,000 was for PILOT.  The Stormwater Utility Fund also transferred $470,000 to the Water and Sewer Fund for
billing services.

The Nonmajor Enterprise Funds transferred $4,824,000 to the General Fund, of which $2,566,000 was for the monthly
transfer of funds from the Solid Waste Fund for street rental and $142,000 for PILOT.  The General Fund also received
$1,394,000 from the Solid Waste Fund for program services.  The Nonmajor Enterprise Funds also transferred $1,130,000
to the Water and Sewer Fund for billing services.

It is the City's policy to record interfund reimbursements that are in excess of the underlying expenditures or expenses as
transfers. 

NOTE D: FUND EQUITY

D.1. FUND DEFICITS & UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE

Grants Fund, a nonmajor governmental fund, has a fund deficit of $573,838 and an unassigned fund balance of $575,798
as of September 30, 2017, because revenues were unavailable (collectible during the current period or soon after) to be
used to pay liabilities of the current period.  In compliance with the City’s Special Revenue Fund Reserve Policy, the City
has taken action to decrease this deficit. 

Golf Fund, a nonmajor governmental fund, has an unassigned deficit of $106,725 as of September 30, 2017, due to a
decrease in fund balance of $269,833 from the previous fiscal year.  The primary reason for the decrease is due to a delay
in reopening a municipal golf course that was under remodeling since November 2015.  In compliance with the City’s
Special Revenue Fund Reserve Policy, the deficit will be offset by revenues in future years. 

Central City Local Government Corporation (CCLGC) Fund, a blended component unit, has a fund deficit and
corresponding unassigned fund balance of $784,419 as of September 30, 2017.  The fund deficit was reduced by $225,590
during the year ended September 30, 2017, primarily due to transfers from Lancaster Corridor Redevelopment LLC for
reimbursement of expenditures, offset by CCLGC’s capital outlay associated with the development of the Lancaster
parking garage.  Management anticipates that fund statements will reflect a positive fund balance in the future once lease
income has been earned sufficient to offset the deficit. 
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NOTE E: RESTRICTED ASSETS

Restricted assets in certain funds are held for specific purposes in accordance with bond ordinances or other legal
restrictions as follows:

Water and
Sewer

Stormwater
Utility

Nonmajor
Enterprise

Internal
Service Total 

Debt Service:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 17,574 $ 3,344 $ 1,340 $ - $ 22,258
Cash and Cash Equivalents Held by Trustees 35 - - - 35
Grants and Other Receivables 56 - - - 56
Interest Receivable 44 7 3 - 54

17,709 3,351 1,343 - 22,403

Capital Improvements:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 358,324 42,798 19,433 - 420,555
Cash and Cash Equivalents Held by Trustees 21,986 - - - 21,986
Grants and Other Receivables 4,100 35 8,857 - 12,992
Interest Receivable 418 50 23 - 491

384,828 42,883 28,313 - 456,024

Customer Deposits:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 17,643 - 913 - 18,556

17,643 - 913 - 18,556

Other Restrictions:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,384 - 10,277 8,525 20,186
Cash and Cash Equivalents Held by Trustees 6,843 - 38,359 2,728 47,930
Grants and Other Receivables 134 - 479 - 613
Interest Receivable 45 - 60 - 105

8,406 - 49,175 11,253 68,834

Total $ 428,586 $ 46,234 $ 79,744 $ 11,253 $ 565,817
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NOTE F: CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for Governmental Activities for the year ended September 30, 2017, was as follows:

Beginning Balance
October 1, 2016

Additions/
Transfers In

Decreases/
Transfers Out

Ending Balance
September 30,

2017

Total Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:

Land/Right of Way $ 220,735 $ 14,635 $ (385) $ 234,985
Construction in Progress 331,668 160,039 (192,969) 298,738
Works of Art 16,512 8,781 (1,023) 24,270

Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 568,915 183,455 (194,377) 557,993

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Buildings 479,006 23,582 (13,874) 488,714
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment 279,606 33,996 (52,364) 261,238
Infrastructure 2,849,056 242,057 (12,161) 3,078,952
Intangibles 29,360 20,330 - 49,690

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated 3,637,028 319,965 (78,399) 3,878,594

Less Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization for:
217,258 13,318 (10,624) 219,952
191,645 13,071 (43,295) 161,421

1,769,065 104,388 (637) 1,872,816

Buildings
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment * 

Infrastructure
Intangibles * 2,614 19,074 - 21,688

Total Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization 2,180,582 149,851 (54,556) 2,275,877

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net 1,456,446 170,114 (23,843) 1,602,717

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 2,025,361 $ 353,569 $ (218,220) $ 2,160,710

*Additions/Transfers In and Decreases/Transfers Out include reclassification between Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment and Intangibles.
Additions/Transfers In reclassification amount of $13,733,000 is not included in the current year depreciation expense.

Capital asset activity for Business-Type Activities for the year ended September 30, 2017, was as follows:

Beginning Balance
October 1, 2016

Additions/
Transfers In

Decreases/
Transfers Out

Ending Balance
September 30,

2017

Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated:

Land/Right of Way $ 109,294 $ 92,424 $ - $ 201,718
Construction in Progress 411,634 179,093 (235,213) 355,514

Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 520,928 271,517 (235,213) 557,232

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated:
Buildings 135,169 25,198 - 160,367
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment 372,232 8,445 (3,461) 377,216
Infrastructure 3,217,652 207,064 (23,175) 3,401,541

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated 3,725,053 240,707 (26,636) 3,939,124

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings 53,078 5,657 - 58,735
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment 238,074 13,024 (3,149) 247,949
Infrastructure 1,006,024 74,350 (785) 1,079,589

Total Accumulated Depreciation 1,297,176 93,031 (3,934) 1,386,273

Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net 2,427,877 147,676 (22,702) 2,552,851

Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 2,948,805 $ 419,193 $ (257,915) $ 3,110,083
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NOTE F: CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Depreciation and amortization expense was charged as follows for the year ended September 30, 2017:

Depreciation and
Amortization

Expense

Governmental Activities
General Government $ 13,195
Public Safety 10,522
Highways and Streets 96,770
Culture and Recreation 13,507
Urban Redevelopment and Housing 2,124

Total Governmental Depreciation and
Amortization 136,118

Major Business-Type Activities
Water and Sewer 73,756
Stormwater Utility 7,599

Nonmajor Business-Type Activities
Municipal Airports 9,275
Municipal Parking 1,847
Solid Waste 554

Total Business-Type Depreciation 93,031

Total Depreciation and Amortization Expense $ 229,149

The governmental activities depreciation and amortization expense above includes $553,000 of depreciation expense from
the Internal Service Funds. 

The City capitalizes interest during the construction period in proprietary fund capital projects.  For the year ended
September 30, 2017, interest was capitalized in the Water and Sewer Fund and Stormwater Utility Fund in the amounts of
$7,054,713 and $2,325,515, respectively. 
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NOTE G: DEBT OBLIGATIONS

G.1. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS AND OTHER LIABILITIES

The following is a summary of changes in long-term obligations for the year ended September 30, 2017:

Balance at
October 1,

2016 Increases Decreases

Balance at
September 30,

2017
Due Within
One Year

Governmental Activities:
General Obligation Bonds $ 499,217 $ - $ 46,647 $ 452,570 $ 39,270
Certificates of Obligation 221,565 - 19,620 201,945 17,725
Special Tax Revenue Debt - 226,880 - 226,880 330
Special Assessment Debt - 12,685 - 12,685 -
Tax Notes - 32,605 6,475 26,130 3,710
Convention Center Installment Obligation 825 - 825 - -
HUD Installment Obligations 2,865 - 865 2,000 632
Lone Star Local Government Corp Obligation 31,617 - - 31,617 -
State Obligation - City 6,941 - 465 6,476 465
State Obligation - CCPD 2,697 - 181 2,516 181
TRWD Obligation 153,853 20,413 2,875 171,391 -
State Energy Conservation Loan Phase III 971 - 574 397 397
ESPC Phase VII 16,472 - 998 15,474 1,172
Capital Leases 836 575 244 1,167 332
Southwest Bank Loan (LDC SW Building) 1,844 - 367 1,477 378
Lancaster Corridor Construction Loan 10,276 6,224 - 16,500 330
Net Unamortized Bond Premium/Discount 68,272 11,192 10,246 69,218 -
Compensated Absences 118,248 49,096 47,722 119,622 47,705
Pollution Remediation Liability - 5,636 - 5,636 707
Risk Management Estimated Claims Payable 34,386 78,288 79,297 33,377 17,176
Other Postemployment Benefits Obligation 494,180 27,536 - 521,716 -
Net Pension Liability 1,841,508 950,539 - 2,792,047 -

Total Governmental Activities 3,506,573 1,421,669 217,401 4,710,841 130,510

Business-Type Activities:
Water and Sewer - Revenue Bonds 746,645 127,645 82,975 791,315 59,790
Water and Sewer - Trinity River Authority Oblig. 4,250 - 650 3,600 670
Water and Sewer - ESPC Phase V 10,463 - 1,508 8,955 1,544
Stormwater Utility - Revenue Bonds 123,670 - 4,300 119,370 4,460
Municipal Parking - General Obligation Bonds 34,445 - 595 33,850 1,315
Municipal Parking - Certificate of Obligation 4,225 - 1,710 2,515 1,115
Solid Waste - General Obligation Bonds 3,983 - 468 3,515 470
Net Unamortized Bond Premium/Discount 68,508 9,795 9,267 69,036 -
Compensated Absences 10,580 10,045 5,898 14,727 5,898
Landfill Closure and Postclosure Liability 5,426 2,905 - 8,331 -
Arbitrage 3 4 - 7 -
Pollution Remediation Liability 7,241 - 1,296 5,945 -
Other Postemployment Benefits Obligation 74,363 4,100 - 78,463 -
Net Pension Liability 282,565 145,978 - 428,543 -

Total Business-Type Activities 1,376,367 300,472 108,667 1,568,172 75,262

Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 4,882,940 $ 1,722,141 $ 326,068 $ 6,279,013 $ 205,772
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NOTE G: DEBT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

G.1. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS AND OTHER LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Governmental Activities long-term debt is summarized as follows:

Interest
Rate % Year of Issue

Year of
Maturity

Original
Amount

Amount
Outstanding

General Obligation Bonds:
Series 2008 4.64 2008 2018 $ 49,650 $ 2,235
Series 2009 2.5-5.0 2009 2019 85,180 8,520
Series 2010 2.0-4.0 2010 2030 20,590 13,390
Series 2011 Refunding 2.0-5.0 2011 2023 46,680 29,280
Series 2012 Refunding 2.0-5.0 2012 2032 135,485 114,205
Series 2013 Refunding 2.0-4.5 2013 2033 37,130 23,645
Series 2014 Refunding 2.2 2014 2023 35,480 23,645
Series 2015 Refunding 2.33 2015 2025 3,957 3,110
Series 2015A Refunding 3.25-5.0 2015 2035 127,725 116,080
Series 2016 Refunding 3.0-5.0 2016 2036 130,500 118,460

Total General Obligation Bonds 452,570

Certificates of Obligation:
Series 2008 4.64 2008 2018 63,150 2,845
Series 2009 3.0-4.375 2009 2029 55,585 24,665
Series 2010 2.0-4.25 2010 2031 34,685 26,965
Series 2010A 3.0-5.0 2010 2030 40,640 23,075
Series 2012 3.0-5.0 2012 2032 85,790 63,410
Series 2013A 2.0-5.0 2013 2033 46,095 35,940
Series 2013B 2.0-4.99 2013 2033 11,140 9,450
Series 2013C 3.0-5.0 2013 2034 19,270 15,595

Total Certificates of Obligation 201,945

Special Tax Revenue Debt:
Series 2017A 2.0-5.25 2017 2043 86,170 86,170
Series 2017B 1.719-4.238 2017 2047 140,710 140,710

Total Special Tax Revenue Debt 226,880

Special Assessment Debt:
Series 2017 (Rock Creek) 5.0-5.125 2017 2037 12,685 12,685

Tax Notes:
Series 2016 1.44 2017 2023 9,525 8,210
Series 2017 1.97 2017 2024 23,080 17,920

Total Tax Notes 26,130

(continued)  
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NOTE G: DEBT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

G.1. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS AND OTHER LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Governmental Activities long-term debt is summarized as follows:

Interest
Rate % Year of Issue

Year of
Maturity

Original
Amount

Amount
Outstanding

HUD Installment Obligations:
Series 2005 4.46-6.8 2005 2020 7,500 2,000

Lone Star Local Government Corp Obligation 4.75 2006 2024 31,617 31,617
State Obligation - City 0.0 2014 2031 9,307 6,476
State Obligation - CCPD 0.0 2014 2031 3,616 2,516
TRWD Obligation 0.0 2014 2031 226,000 171,391
State Energy Conservation Loan Phase III 3.0 2007 2018 5,000 397
ESPC Phase VII 2.236 2013 2026 18,443 15,474
Capital Leases 2.91-3.0 2011 2017 1,167
Southwest Bank Loan (LDC SW Building) 2.93 2014 2021 2,689 1,477
Lancaster Corridor Construction Loan 3.75-5.25 2014 2040 16,500 16,500
Net Unamortized Bond Premium/Discount N/A 69,218
Compensated Absences N/A N/A N/A N/A 119,622
Pollution Remediation Liability N/A N/A N/A N/A 5,636
Risk Management Estimated Claims Payable N/A N/A N/A N/A 33,377
Other Postemployment Benefits Obligation N/A N/A N/A N/A 521,716
Net Pension Liability N/A N/A N/A N/A 2,792,047

Total Governmental Activities Long-Term Debt $ 4,710,841

(concluded)  

The Debt Service Fund has been used to liquidate the General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of Obligation, Special Tax
Revenue Debt, Special Assessment Debt, and the Tax Notes.  The General Fund and the Special Revenue Funds have
been used to liquidate all other governmental activities’ long-term debt. 
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NOTE G: DEBT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

G.1. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS AND OTHER LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Business-Type long-term debt is summarized as follows: 

Interest
Rate % Year of Issue

Year of
Maturity

Original
Amount

Amount
Outstanding

Water and Sewer:
Revenue Bonds:

Series 2007A TWDB* 1.75-3.0 2007 2027 $ 33,560 $ 19,380
Series 2007B TWDB* 2.2-3.0 2007 2027 49,585 29,315
Series 2008 Refunding 3.88 2008 2018 44,085 2,875
Series 2009 TWDB* 0.0 2009 2030 16,265 10,475
Series 2010 Refunding 4.0-5.0 2010 2020 98,855 25,625
Series 2010A TWDB* 0.36-2.62 2010 2030 40,000 27,290
Series 2010B TWDB* 0.15-2.85 2010 2030 28,000 19,125
Series 2010C 4.0-5.25 2010 2030 45,870 33,380
Series 2011 Refunding 2.0-5.0 2011 2031 151,160 109,630
Series 2012 Refunding 2.0-5.0 2012 2025 31,155 23,910
Series 2014 Refunding 2.0-5.0 2014 2034 171,415 123,865
Series 2015 Revenue (Clean Water SRF) TWDB* 0.0-2.04 2015 2035 39,000 35,330
Series 2015A Refunding 3.125-5.0 2015 2035 126,615 118,750
Series 2015B Refunding TWDB* 0.19-2.20 2016 2030 13,000 11,495
Series 2016 Refunding 2.0-5.0 2016 2046 75,890 73,225
Series 2017 Revenue (Clean Water SRF) TWDB* 0.0-1.7 2017 2047 16,045 16,045
Series 2017A Refunding 3.125-5.0 2017 2047 111,600 111,600

Total Revenue Bonds 791,315

Trinity River Authority Obligation:
Series 2011 Refunding 2.0-4.0 2011 2022 6,795 3,600

ESPC Phase V 3.68 2010 2018 15,365 8,955

Total Water and Sewer 803,870

Stormwater Utility:
Revenue Bonds:

Series 2009 2.0-4.3 2009 2035 45,190 36,565
Series 2011 2.0-5.0 2011 2036 78,325 65,300
Series 2016 Refunding 2.0-5.0 2016 2033 17,505 17,505

Total Stormwater Utility 119,370

Municipal Parking:
General Obligation Bonds:

Series 2016 Refunding 4.0-5.0 2016 2033 34,445 33,850
Certificates of Obligation:

Series 2009 5.0-5.25 2009 2019 27,135 1,850
Series 2010A 3.0-5.0 2010 2020 1,955 665

Total Certificates of Obligation 2,515

Total Municipal Parking 36,365

Solid Waste:
General Obligation Bonds

Series 2015 Refunding 2.33 2015 2025 4,465 3,515
Net Unamortized Bond Premium/Discount N/A 69,036
Compensated Absences N/A N/A N/A N/A 14,727
Landfill Closure and Postclosure Liability N/A N/A N/A N/A 8,331
Arbitrage N/A N/A N/A N/A 7
Pollution Remediation Liability N/A N/A N/A N/A 5,945
Other Postemployment Benefits Obligation N/A N/A N/A N/A 78,463
Net Pension Liability N/A N/A N/A N/A 428,543

Total Business-Type Long-Term Debt $ 1,568,172

*Texas Water Development Board
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NOTE G: DEBT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

G.2. GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES' DEBT

Long-term liabilities consist of General Obligation Bonds and Certificates of Obligation, as well as other long-term
liabilities.  Principal and interest payments on debt obligations are either secured solely by ad valorem taxes or secured
partially by ad valorem taxes and partially by specific revenue streams.

General Obligation Bonds and Certificates of Obligation indentures require the City to levy the tax required to fund
interest and principal at maturity or at least 2 percent of the outstanding principal, whichever is greater.  At September 30,
2017, the Debt Service Fund held $29,931,318 and $18,348,976 of cash and investments to service General Obligation
Bonds/Certificates of Obligation and for Special Tax Revenue Debt, respectively, for governmental activities. 

On November 17, 2016, the City issued $9,525,000 of Tax Notes, Series 2016 to purchase fire apparatus and equipment
for a new fire station.  These bonds will mature on March 1 of each year from 2017 to 2023 in installments ranging from
$1,300,000 to $1,440,000.  Interest is payable on March 1 and September 1 of each year commencing March 2017 with
interest rates equal to 1.44 percent.  Additionally, the bonds are callable in whole or in part on or after March 1, 2020.

On June 20, 2017, the City issued $23,080,000 of Tax Notes, Series 2017 to pay for contractual obligations incurred or to
be incurred for the construction of public works and the purchase of materials, supplies, equipment, machinery, buildings,
lands and rights-of-way.  These bonds will mature beginning September 1, 2017, with subsequent annual maturity on
March 1 of each year from 2018 to 2024 in installments ranging from $2,410,000 to $5,160,000.  Interest is payable on
March 1 and September 1 of each year commencing September 2017 with interest rates equal to 1.97 percent.
Additionally, the bonds are callable in whole or in part on or after March 1, 2018. 

On July 12, 2017, the City issued $86,170,000 of tax-exempt Special Tax Revenue Debt, Series 2017A to fund the Public
Contribution required for the Fort Worth Multipurpose Arena (see Note M) and improvements to the adjacent support
facilities.  These bonds will mature on March 1 of each year from 2021 to 2043 in installments ranging from $2,140,000
to $6,170,000.  Interest is payable on March 1 and September 1 of each year commencing March 2018 with interest rates
ranging from 2.0 to 5.25 percent. 

On July 12, 2017, the City issued $140,710,000 of Special Tax Revenue Debt, Taxable Series 2017B to fund the Public
Contribution required for the Fort Worth Multipurpose Arena (see Note M) and improvements to the adjacent support
facilities.  These bonds will mature on March 1 of each year from 2018 to 2047 in installments ranging from $330,000 to
$8,215,000.  Interest is payable on March 1 and September 1 of each year commencing March 2018 with interest rates
ranging from 1.719 to 4.238 percent. 

On September 14, 2017, the City issued $12,685,000 of Special Assessment Revenue Debt, Series 2017 for Fort Worth
Public Improvement District No. 17 Major Improvement Project.  The bonds will mature on September 1 of each year
from 2021 to 2037 in installments ranging from $480,000 to $1,095,000.  Interest is payable on March 1 and September 1
of each year commencing March 1, 2018, with interest rates ranging from 5.0 to 5.13 percent.  The City deposited the
bond proceeds into Bank of Texas, NA Trust Accounts to fund the major improvements. The debts are special and limited
obligations of the City, payable solely from and secured solely by the Trust Estate, including the Pledged Revenues and
the Pledged Funds; and the Bonds and any other obligations incurred by the City under the terms the indenture shall never
be payable out of funds raised or to be raised by taxation or from any other revenues, properties or income of the City.
The bonds do not give rise to a charge against the general credit or taxing powers of the City.  The City is acting as the
property owner's agent within the district in collecting future assessments, forwarding collections to trustees, approving
bond proceed disbursements, and initiating any future foreclosures.  The aggregate principal outstanding and the balance
of the bond proceeds held by the trustee at September 30, 2017, are $12,685,000 and $11,575,959,  respectively.
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NOTE G: DEBT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

G.2. GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES' DEBT (CONTINUED)

On December 19, 2014, the Lancaster Corridor Redevelopment, LLC (LLC) entered in a construction loan agreement
with Pinnacle Bank for the development of residential and retail rental space on land owned by the LLC.  As of
September 30, 2017, $16,500,000 has been borrowed under this agreement.  The loan matures at the end of 2040 and
bears interest ranging from 3.75 percent to 5.25 percent.  The total construction loan amount is not to exceed $16,500,000
and is collateralized by a first lien Deed of Trust that includes land, building and improvements and an Absolute
Assignment of Rents and Leases, et. al. 

In FY2011, Taxing Increment Reinvestment Zone No. 9 (TIRZ #9) entered into an agreement with the Tarrant Regional
Water District (TRWD) for the work related to the Trinity River Vision project ($320,000,000).  The original amount
borrowed was $11,292,000.  The agreement stipulated that TIRZ #9 would share in the cost of the project related to the
river capped at $226,000,000.  TIRZ #9 agreed to reimburse TRWD from the incremental property taxes TIRZ #9
receives annually until the debt is repaid, or the term of TIRZ #9 expires.  During FY2017, TIRZ #9 borrowed an
additional $20,413,000 from TRWD and repaid $2,875,000, thus the ending balance is $171,391,000.  The advances from
TRWD to the City to fund the project are repayable without interest from future taxes. 

As of September 30, 2017, the following bonds were authorized but not issued:

General Obligation Bonds
Date

Authorized
Amount

Authorized
Amount
Unissued

2014 Capital Project Program 5/10/2014 $ 292,075 $ 149,075

The City is responsible for environmental cleanup of hazardous substances, such as asbestos remediation on City-owned
buildings funded by the Environmental Protection Capital Projects Fund.  The City is required to report the estimated
liability for pollution remediation activities in accordance with GAAP.  As of September 30, 2017, the City's liability was
$5,636,270 for the Environmental Protection Capital Project Fund.  The City's estimated outlays for the cleanup were
generated using the expected cash flows technique.  The amount of the estimated pollution remediation liability is based
on the assumption that there will be no significant additional cost for providing these cleanup services.  These estimates
are subject to changes as a result of price increases, changes in technology, and new laws and regulations. 

G.3. DIRECT PURCHASE NOTES

In March 2013, the City entered into an agreement with Wells Fargo to provide for the sale of short-term notes in an
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $100,000,000.  The maximum amount of Direct Purchase Notes the City may
have outstanding, at any one time, cannot exceed $100,000,000.  There were no outstanding Direct Purchase Notes at year
end. 

94



CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(000's omitted in tables)

NOTE G: DEBT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

G.4. ENTERPRISE DEBT

Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds and Stormwater Utility Revenue Bonds constitute special obligations of the City
secured solely by a lien on and pledge of the net revenues of the Water and Sewer system and the Stormwater system.
Certain Certificates of Obligation and General Obligation Bonds are recorded in the Municipal Parking Fund and Solid
Waste Fund.  These bonds have no specific claim against Municipal Parking or Solid Waste revenues.  However, debt
service requirements are provided by the Water and Sewer Fund, Stormwater Utility Fund, Municipal Parking Fund, and
Solid Waste Fund.  Accordingly, the debt is reflected in a fund obligation. 

In accordance with the revenue bond ordinances, a reserve for debt service is maintained.  At September 30, 2017,
$17,813,883 of cash and investments was available for payments of principal and interest on all Enterprise Fund debt.
The Water and Sewer Fund has substituted surety bonds in the amount of $2,784,701 that are also held in reserve to
provide for the payment of debt service obligations in the event there are insufficient amounts on deposit to make debt
service payments. 

On May 11, 2017, the City issued $16,045,000 of Water and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 to fund sanitary
sewer rehabilitation projects.  The planned project comes under the authority of Texas Water Development Board’s State
Water Implementation Revenue Fund for Texas (CWSRF) Program, which provides low-cost financial assistance for
eligible projects.  The bonds will mature on February 15 of each year from 2018 to 2047 and are payable in installments
ranging from $475,000 to $655,000.  Interest is payable on February 15 and August 15 of each year commencing in
August 2017 with interest rates ranging from 0.0 to 1.7 percent. 

On June 27, 2017, the City issued $111,600,000 of Water and Sewer System Revenue Refunding and Improvement
Bonds, Series 2017A to refund $19,800,000 of existing Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2008, and to
fund new capital projects in alignment with the Water and Sewer System’s Capital Improvement Plan.  The bonds will
mature on February 15 of each year from 2018 to 2047 in installments ranging from $775,000 to $7,710,000.  Interest is
payable on February 15 and August 15 of each year commencing August 2017 at interest rates ranging from 3.125 to 5.0
percent.  The City deposited the refunding proceeds in the Bank of Texas Escrow Fund to defease the $19,800,000
principal and $768,240 in interest.  As a result, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased, and the liability is not
reflected in the Statement of Net Position.  The advanced refunding resulted in a reduction of principal and interest
payments of $1,746,600 over the life of the bonds.  This refunding resulted in an economic gain (the difference between
the present value of the old and new debt service payments) of $1,535,886 and a book loss of $766,550. 
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NOTE G: DEBT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

G.4. ENTERPRISE DEBT (CONTINUED)

Net revenues of some of the City’s Enterprise Funds—defined as net operating income, plus investment income, plus
depreciation expense, plus compensated absences expense, plus net pension liability expense, plus OPEB liability
expense—have been pledged for repayment of long-term bonded debt incurred by these funds.  The amount pledged is
equal to the remaining outstanding debt service requirements for these bonds.  The pledge continues for the life of the
bonds. 

For the year ended September 30, 2017, net pledged revenue by fund was as follows:

Fund

2017
Net Pledged

Revenues
2017

Debt Service Purpose of Debt

Water and Sewer Fund $ 187,879 $ 92,571 Extending and improving water and sewer system
Stormwater Utility Fund 21,504 9,124 Improvements to storm drains, roadways, and erosion protection
Municipal Parking Fund 4,722 4,040 Construction of City-owned parking garage
Solid Waste Fund 6,001 555 Improvements to the eastside landfill

Total $ 220,106 $ 106,290

All future improvements to the City's Water and Sewer system are funded through the sale of Water and Sewer Revenue
Bonds, the City's Water and Sewer Operating Budget, or alternative forms of debt. 

The City has pledged storm water, municipal parking, and solid waste net revenues to repay long-term bonded debt.  The
City reports the net revenues in major and nonmajor proprietary funds. 

The City is responsible for environmental cleanup of Riverside Park funded by the Water and Sewer Fund.  The City is
required to report the estimated liability for pollution remediation activities in accordance with GAAP.  As of September
30, 2017, the City’s liability was $5,945,000 for the Water and Sewer Fund.  The City’s estimated outlays for the cleanup
were generated using the expected cash flows technique.  The amount of the estimated pollution remediation liability
assumes that there will be no major increases in the cost of providing these cleanup services. These estimates are subject
to changes as a result of price increases, changes in technology, and new laws and regulations. 
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G.5. ANNUAL REQUIREMENTS TO AMORTIZE BONDED AND CONTRACTUAL DEBT OBLIGATION

The annual requirements to amortize all bonded and contractual debt outstanding as of September 30, 2017, is disclosed
by Governmental type as shown on the following pages:

Governmental Activities:

Year Ending
September 30,

General 
Obligation Bonds

Certificates of
Obligation

Special Tax
Revenue Debt

Special Assessment
Debt

Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2018 $ 39,270 $ 19,745 $ 17,725 $ 8,048 $ 330 $ 10,996 $ - $ 617
2019 42,075 17,953 15,040 7,387 435 9,672 - 641
2020 41,820 16,065 14,810 6,767 440 9,662 - 641
2021 41,885 14,169 14,575 6,138 5,325 9,599 480 641
2022 40,220 12,292 14,780 5,491 5,480 9,445 505 616

2023-2027 157,220 37,170 67,590 18,160 30,455 44,171 2,950 2,676
2028-2032 68,350 10,081 52,670 5,862 37,230 37,387 3,810 1,857
2033-2037 21,730 1,322 4,755 153 46,225 28,394 4,940 786
2038-2042 - - - - 57,000 16,586 - -
2043-2047 - - - - 43,960 4,302 - -

$ 452,570 $ 128,797 $ 201,945 $ 58,006 $ 226,880 $ 180,214 $ 12,685 $ 8,475

Governmental Activities: (continued)

Year Ending
September 30, Tax Notes

HUD Installment
Obligations State Obligation - City State Obligation - CCPD

Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2018 $ 3,710 $ 438 $ 632 $ 109 $ 465 $ - $ 181 $ -
2019 3,785 371 666 75 465 - 181 -
2020 3,865 303 702 39 465 - 181 -
2021 3,935 233 - - 465 - 181 -
2022 4,020 163 - - 465 - 181 -

2023-2027 6,815 117 - - 2,327 - 904 -
2028-2032 - - - - 1,824 - 707 -

$ 26,130 $ 1,625 $ 2,000 $ 223 $ 6,476 $ - $ 2,516 $ -

Governmental Activities: (concluded)

Year Ending
September 30,

State Energy
Conservation Loan

Phase III ESPC Phase VII
Total Governmental

Activities

Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2018 $ 397 $ 8 $ 1,172 $ 336 $ 63,882 $ 40,297
2019 - - 1,652 306 64,299 36,405
2020 - - 1,689 269 63,972 33,746
2021 - - 1,727 231 68,573 31,011
2022 - - 1,766 192 67,417 28,199

2023-2027 - - 7,468 349 275,729 102,643
2028-2032 - - - - 164,591 55,187
2033-2037 - - - - 77,650 30,655
2038-2042 - - - - 57,000 16,586
2043-2047 - - - - 43,960 4,302

$ 397 $ 8 $ 15,474 $ 1,683 $ 947,073 $ 379,031
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G.5. ANNUAL REQUIREMENTS TO AMORTIZE BONDED AND CONTRACTUAL DEBT OBLIGATION
(CONTINUED)

The Lone Star Local Government Corporation (a blended component unit) entered into an agreement with Cabela’s to
finance a museum inside Cabela’s Fort Worth facility.  Annual payments are made from property tax increment revenues
from Taxing Increment Reinvestment Zone #10.  Lone Star Local Government Corporation is obligated for tax increment
revenues collected through 2024, with the total principal payment price not to exceed $31,617,000.  The contract is
payable solely from the incremental taxes.  Incremental taxes were projected to produce 100 percent of the debt service
requirements over the life of the contract.  This contract has been found to be taxable.  Total principal and interest
remaining on the contract are $31,617,000, payable through 2024.  The interest rate for this agreement is 4.75 percent.

The Lancaster Corridor Redevelopment, LLC (a blended component unit) entered into a construction loan agreement with
Pinnacle Bank for the development of residential and retail space on land owned by LLC.  As of September 30, 2017,
$16,500,000 has been borrowed under this agreement with interest ranging from 3.75 to 5.25 percent.  The loan will
mature February 20, 2025 and the total construction loan amount is not to exceed $16,500,000.  The loan is collateralized
by a first lien Deed of Trust and an Absolute Assignment of Rents and Leases.

The annual requirements to amortize all Major Fund Business-Type bonded and contractual debt outstanding as of
September 30, 2017, is as follows:

Major Business-Type Activities:

Year Ending
September 30,

Water and Sewer
Revenue Bonds

Water and Sewer
Trinity River Auth.

Water and Sewer
ESPC Phase V

Stormwater Utility
Revenue Bonds

Total Major
Business-Type

Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2018 $ 59,790 $ 30,871 $ 670 $ 98 $ 1,544 $ 196 $ 4,460 $ 4,678 $ 66,464 $ 35,843
2019 55,350 28,521 690 77 1,580 160 4,640 4,498 62,260 33,256
2020 53,930 26,254 720 55 1,618 122 4,855 4,283 61,123 30,714
2021 52,495 24,009 745 34 1,655 84 5,090 4,048 59,985 28,175
2022 50,980 21,840 775 12 1,695 45 5,320 3,803 58,770 25,700

2023-2027 242,105 78,367 - - 863 8 30,080 15,776 273,048 94,151
2028-2032 141,845 38,412 - - - - 36,640 9,400 178,485 47,812
2033-2037 64,460 16,510 - - - - 28,285 2,101 92,745 18,611
2038-2042 33,140 9,687 - - - - - - 33,140 9,687
2043-2047 37,220 3,297 - - - - - - 37,220 3,297

$ 791,315 $ 277,768 $ 3,600 $ 276 $ 8,955 $ 615 $ 119,370 $ 48,587 $ 923,240 $ 327,246

The annual requirements to amortize all Nonmajor Fund Business-Type bonded and contractual debt outstanding as of
September 30, 2017, is as follows:

Nonmajor Business-Type Activities:

Year Ending
September 30,

Municipal Parking
General Obligation

Bonds

Municipal Parking
Certificates of

Obligation

Solid Waste
General Obligation

Bonds
Total Nonmajor
Business-Type

Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2018 $ 1,315 $ 1,525 $ 1,115 $ 99 $ 470 $ 76 $ 2,900 $ 1,700
2019 1,380 1,457 1,170 42 460 66 3,010 1,565
2020 1,590 1,383 230 5 450 55 2,270 1,443
2021 1,675 1,302 - - 440 45 2,115 1,347
2022 9,760 5,127 - - 435 34 10,195 5,161

2023-2027 12,415 2,474 - - 1,260 44 13,675 2,518
2028-2032 5,715 231 - - - - 5,715 231

$ 33,850 $ 13,499 $ 2,515 $ 146 $ 3,515 $ 320 $ 39,880 $ 13,965
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NOTE G: DEBT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

G.6. ARBITRAGE

The City frequently issues bonds for capital construction projects.  These bonds are subject to the arbitrage regulations.
At September 30, 2017, the liability for a rebate of arbitrage was $6,580 for business-type activities.  This amount is
included in the “Long-Term Liabilities Due in More Than One Year” on the Statement of Net Position.  Currently, the
City does not have an arbitrage liability for governmental activities. 

G.7. LEASES

The City is also committed under capital leases for the acquisitions of one municipal building, and heavy equipment.
These leases are recorded as capital leases in the government-wide reporting.  Amortization of the leased assets are
included in depreciation expense in the government-wide reporting.  The leased building and heavy equipment had an
original cost totaling $1,484,000 and $575,000, respectively. 

The following is a summary of capital lease transactions of the City for the year ended September 30, 2017:

Capital Lease Obligation, October 1, 2016 $ 836
New capital leases 575
Principal Payments 244

Capital Lease Obligation, September 30, 2017 $ 1,167

Future minimum lease payments for the leases are as follows:

Year Ending
September 30,

Lease
Payments

2018 $ 390
2019 398
2020 286
2021 124
2022 78

Less: Amount Representing Interest (109)

Present Value of Minimum Leased Payments $ 1,167

The following schedule provides an analysis of the City’s investment in capital assets under the lease arrangement as of
September 30, 2017:

Building $ 1,484
Equipment 575
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (1,227)

Total Net Book Value of Leased Assets $ 832
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NOTE G: DEBT OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

G.7. LEASES (CONTINUED)

The City entered into operating lease agreements for the utilization of computers and related equipment, office space,
vehicles, and golf carts.  The lease terms range from 12 to 180 months.  The following is a schedule by years of future
minimum rental payments required under the operating leases as of September 30, 2017:

Year Ending
September 30,

2018 $ 3,044
2019 1,982
2020 1,168
2021 844
2022 578

2023 - 2027 1,463
2028 - 2032 11

Total Future Minimum
Rental Payments Required $ 9,090

The total rental expense for the year ended September 30, 2017, was $3,319,331.

G.8. DEFEASANCE OF PRIOR DEBT

In prior years, the City defeased certain outstanding General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of Obligation, and Revenue
Bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments of the
old bonds.  Accordingly, the trust accounts and the defeased bonds are not included in the City's financial statements.

At September 30, 2017, the following outstanding bonds are considered defeased:

General Obligation Bonds and Certificates of Obligation $ 114,840
Water and Sewer System Revenue Bonds 19,800

Bonds Defeased $ 134,640

G.9. DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT DEBT

On June 2, 2014, Terrell Homes, Ltd. (fiscal year ends December 31) obtained mortgage financing of $2,000,000 for
permanent financing of properties.  The mortgage bears an interest rate of 7.0 percent.  This mortgage requires monthly
payments of principal and interest of $13,306 based on a thirty-year amortization period and matures on June 2, 2029, at
which time the entire unpaid principal balance and accrued interest will become due and payable.  During 2016, interest
expense was $139,863.  As of December 31, 2016, the unpaid principal balance was $1,908,500, and there was no accrued
interest. 

In 2013, Terrell Homes, Ltd. entered into a loan agreement with the City of Fort Worth for $900,000 for the construction
and development of the 54 single-family houses (See Note A.1).  The loan has a 20-year term.  The loan bears a fixed
interest rate of 1.0 percent.  The loan will be repaid from available cash flow.  During 2016, interest expense was $9,000.
As of December 31, 2016, the outstanding principal balance was $900,000, and there was the accrued interest of $47,426. 
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NOTE H: LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSURE CARE COSTS

State and federal regulations require the City to place a final cover on its Southeast landfill site when it stops accepting
waste and performing certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for thirty years after closure.  Although
closure and postclosure care costs will be paid near or after the date that the landfill stops accepting waste, the City reports
a portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an operating expense in each period based on landfill capacity used
as of each Balance Sheet date.  The City has contracted for the operations of the landfill, but the legal liability for closure
and postclosure care costs remains with the City.  The City is required by state and federal regulations to provide financial
assurance for closure and postclosure care.  Annually, the City files a standby letter of credit with the state noting its
compliance with these requirements. 

During FY2017, the City received new engineering estimates of the landfill closure costs of $15,931,186 and postclosure
care costs of $5,077,312. These estimates increased the total landfill closure/post-closure care costs by $6,477,935 when
compared to the previous fiscal year. 

The City reported $8,331,385 as landfill closure and postclosure care liability in the Solid Waste Fund at September 30,
2017.  This represents the cumulative amount reported to date based on the use of 39.7 percent of the estimated current
permitted capacity of the landfill.  The City will recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure and postclosure care of
$12,677,113 as the remaining estimated capacity is filled.  The City expects to close the landfill in 30 years from the end
of the current fiscal year, or the year 2047.  The total closure and postclosure cost is an estimate and is subject to changes
resulting from inflation, deflation, technology changes, or changes in applicable laws and regulations. 

Furthermore, at September 30, 2017, the City reported cash and cash equivalents of $2,850,114 as restricted assets for
closure and postclosure care and has $5,481,271 in a trust instrument for these costs provided from its contractor (Allied
Waste, Inc. (Allied)).  The City expects that future closure and postclosure care costs and inflation costs will be
completely covered by the trust instrument, in accordance with the contractual agreement with Allied.  Allied will operate
and close the landfill once it has reached capacity, and maintain and monitor the landfill during the postclosure care
period. 
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NOTE I:  EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND OF THE CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS

Plan Description

The Employees' Retirement Fund of the City of Fort Worth, Texas (the "Retirement Fund") is comprised of two separate
defined benefit plans: the City of Fort Worth employees benefit plan (the "City Plan" or the "Plan") and the Retirement
Fund employees plan (the "Staff Plan").  The Retirement Fund and City Plan were established by City Ordinance on
September 12, 1945.  The Staff Plan was established through Administrative Rules in 2007, and both plans are governed
by State statute (Vernon's Civil Statutes, Title 109, Article 6243i) effective June 15, 2007.  The assets of the City Plan are
commingled for investment purposes with the assets of the Staff Plan of the Employees’ Retirement Fund, and both plans
are administered by the thirteen-member Retirement Fund Board of Trustees (Board).  The Retirement Fund Board is
solely responsible for managing the assets for the City of Fort Worth employees plan, defining benefits, setting
contribution rates, funding contributions, and all other financial components of the Staff Plan.  Defining benefits, setting
contribution rates, funding contributions, and all other financial components of the City Plan are administered by the
Mayor and City Council.  Each plan has a separate actuarial valuation completed annually to determine the respective
funded status based on current and projected assets and liabilities.  Therefore, assets of each plan are legally separate and
cannot pay benefits of the other.  Due to the insignificant nature of the Staff Plan's assets and net pension liability
compared to the Retirement Fund's assets, all further references to the Plan and information provided in the Notes and
Required Supplementary Information about the City Plan are strictly limited to information about the City employees
(comprised of General Employees, Police Officers, and Firefighters). 

The City Plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to all employees of the City, except elected officers and
non-salaried appointed members of administrative boards and commissions, part-time, temporary and contract employees,
and employees paid in part by another governmental agency.  The City Plan is established under the legal authority of the
State of Texas, and it is administered by the Board.  The authority to define or amend employer and employee
contribution rates or benefits is given to the Mayor and the Fort Worth City Council (City Council). 

The City Plan issues separate audited financial statements that are publicly available.  These statements can be obtained
by contacting the Plan at 3801 Hulen Street, Suite 101, Fort Worth, Texas 76107. 

The City has received a favorable letter of determination from the Internal Revenue Service on December 8, 2014, that its
Plan is qualified under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code.  This letter of determination is valid for five years,
through January 31, 2019. 

Effective June 15, 2007, Article 6243i of the Texas Revised Civil Statutes (Article 6243i) changed the structure of the
Board and how benefits could be changed by the plan sponsor.  Article 6243i also permitted the Board to create
administrative rules that govern the City Plan.  The administrative rules govern the administration and benefits of the City
Plan.  The Board may change the administrative operation of the City Plan without the City’s approval, while any
increases to the benefit structure must be approved by the City, following an actuarial assessment.  A reduction in benefits
must be proposed by the City, and the City must notify the Board 90 days in advance of such benefit reduction. 
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NOTE I:  EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND OF THE CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS (CONTINUED)

Plan Description (continued) 

As of January 1, 2017, the Plan’s membership consisted of the following members (numbers in the following table are not
in thousands): 

Employees covered by benefit terms: 

Pension plan membership consisted of the following: 
January 1,

2017

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 4,252
Inactive employees entitled to, but not yet receiving benefits 363

Total Inactive Members 4,615

Active members 6,414

Total 11,029

Actuarial valuations are completed on a calendar year basis, and census data was not collected as of September 30, 2016
(measurement date).  It is assumed that the population remains constant between December 31 and September 30. 

Contributions

The City contributes 19.74% of retirement-eligible wages to the Employees’ Retirement Fund for General employees and
Firefighters and 20.46% for Police Officers.  General employees and Firefighters contribute 8.25% of retirement-eligible
wages, and Police Officers contribute 8.73%. 
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NOTE I:  EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND OF THE CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS (CONTINUED)

Summary of Plan Provisions

This exhibit summarizes the major provisions of the City Plan.  It is not intended to be, nor should it be interpreted as, a
complete statement of all provisions.

Plan Year: January 1 through December 31
Fiscal Year: October 1 through September 30
Plan Status: Ongoing

Categories of Employees:
Tier I General Employees hired prior to July 1, 2011

Police Officers hired prior to January 1, 2013
Firefighters hired prior to January 10, 2015

Tier II General Employees hired on or after July 1, 2011
Police Officers hired on or after January 1, 2013
Firefighters hired on or after January 10, 2015

Categories of Benefits/Service:
Blue Earned prior to October 1, 2013 for Tier I General Employees and Police Officers

Earned prior to January 10, 2015 for Tier I Firefighters

Orange Earned on or after October 1, 2013 for Tier I General Employees and Police Officers
Earned on or after January 10, 2015 for Tier I Firefighters
All service for Tier II Employees

Normal Retirement:
Age and Service Requirements Age 65 and five years of Credited Service, or age plus years of Credited Service equal

to 80 points (“Rule of 80”). Tier II General Employees have a minimum retirement age of 55.

Police Officers are also eligible at any age with 25 years of Credited Service.

Amount 3.00% of Final Average Compensation multiplied by years of Blue Credited Service plus
2.50% of Final Average Compensation multiplied by years of Orange Credited Service

Final Average Compensation Blue: Average of member's highest three calendar years' earnings, including overtime
Orange: Average of member's highest five calendar years' earnings, excluding overtime
except for "built-in" overtime for Firefighters on 56-hour schedules

Early Retirement:
Age and Service Requirements Age 50 (Age 55 for Tier II General Employees) and five years of Credited Service

Amount 2.75% of Final Average Compensation multiplied by years of Blue Credited Service plus 
2.25% of Final Average Compensation multiplied by years of Orange Credited Service

Reduction 5/12% for each month the commencement date proceeds the member's projected Normal
Retirement date

104



CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(000's omitted in tables)

NOTE I:  EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND OF THE CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS (CONTINUED)

Disability (in the line of duty):
Age and Service Requirements None

Amount Tier I: 2.75% of Final Average Compensation multiplied by total years of Credited
Service projected to member’s Normal Retirement date

Tier II: 2.25% of Final Average Compensation multiplied by total years of Credited
Service projected to member’s Normal Retirement date

Minimum $250 per month

Disability (not in the line of duty):
Age and Service Requirements Five years of credited service

Amount 2.75% of Final Average Compensation multiplied by years of Blue Credited Service plus
2.25% of Final Average Compensation multiplied by years of Orange Credited Service

Minimum None

Vesting:
Age Requirement None

Service Requirement Five years of Credited Service

Amount Normal pension accrued, based on Credited Service at termination

Normal Retirement Age Age 65, or age plus years of Credited Service projected to Normal Retirement date equal
to 80 points

Termination Benefits:
Age and Service Requirements None

Amount A member with fewer than five years of Credited Service who withdraws from the plan is eligible
to receive a refund of contributions accumulated with 5.25% interest, compounded annually
while an active member.  A member who terminates with five or more years of Credited Service
is entitled to a Vested Pension but may receive a refund of contributions with 5.25% interest,
compounded annually while an active member, instead of the Vested Pension.

Spouse’s Pre-Retirement Death Benefit
(death in the line of duty):

Age and Service Requirements None

Amount Tier I: 75% of the Normal Retirement benefit, based on a 3.00% multiplier and with
years of Credited Service projected to the member’s Normal Retirement Date.

Tier II: 75% of the Normal Retirement benefit, based on a 2.50% multiplier and with
years of Credited Service projected to the member’s Normal Retirement Date.

Minimum $250 per month

Child Benefits Each dependent child under 18 receives $100 per month; if there is no surviving spouse,
the children share equally in the 75% survivor amount (not less than $250 per child)
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NOTE I:  EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND OF THE CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS (CONTINUED)

Spouse’s Pre-Retirement Death Benefit
(death not in the line of duty):

Age and Service Requirements Five years of Credited Service

Amount Tier I: 75% of the accrued benefit at death, calculated as 2.75% of Final Average Compensation
multiplied by years of Blue Credited Service plus 2.25% of the Final Average Compensation
multiplied by years of Orange Credited Service

Tier II:  75% of the accrued benefit at death, calculated as 2.25% of the Final Average
Compensation Base multiplied by years of Credited Service

Minimum $150 per month

Child Benefits Each dependent child under 18 receives $100 per month; if there is no surviving spouse,
the children share equally in the 75% survivor amount (not less than $150 per child)

Post-Retirement Death Benefit:
If married, pension benefits are paid in the form of a 75% joint and survivor annuity unless this
form is rejected by the participant and spouse.  For Tier II, if the member elects a joint survivor
benefit, the retirement benefit is actuarially reduced to reflect the joint and survivor coverage.

Contributions:
Member contributions 8.25% of retirement-eligible compensation for General Employees and Firefighters

8.73% of retirement-eligible compensation for Police Officers

City contributions 19.74% of retirement-eligible compensation for General Employees and Firefighters
20.46% of retirement-eligible compensation for Police Officers
The City contributes to overtime earnings for Tier I employees. Employees do not contribute to
overtime, except for Tier I Firefighters who contribute on built-in overtime only.

Overtime Contribution Account:
Only available for General Employees hired after July 1, 2011, and prior to January 1, 2013.
Member contributions made for overtime worked in that period are credited to the Overtime
Contribution Account. Upon retirement, the member is entitled to a refund of this account with
5.25% interest, compounded annually. The City will match 100% of the balance of the account.
Upon termination, the member is entitled to a refund of this account with 5.25% interest,
compounded annually.
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NOTE I:  EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND OF THE CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS (CONTINUED)

Cost-of-Living Adjustments (COLA):
Ad-Hoc COLA Program In general, pensioners and vested members who elected the Ad-Hoc COLA Program,

nonvested members as of January 1, 2008, and Tier I members who were hired after January 1,
2008, are participants in the Ad-Hoc COLA program. However, a one-time election was
available to Ad-Hoc COLA program participants to switch to a 2% guaranteed COLA. The
election window for General Employees, Police Officers and Firefighters not included in the
2010 bargaining agreement was in the fourth quarter of 2013. The election window for
remaining Firefighters was in the fourth quarter of 2014.

Participants in the program who retire prior to September 30 of the preceding year may receive
a compound COLA on Blue service benefits. The amount of the COLA is determined based on the
prior year’s valuation results. The initial COLA percentage is determined by selecting the
appropriate percentage from the following table based on the Fund’s Funding Period:

 Tier Funding Period COLA Percentage Increase               

  #1 28.1 or greater 0.0%

 #2 24.1 to 28.0 2.0%

 #3 18.1 to 24.0 3.0%

 #4 18.0 or less 4.0%

Next, the initial COLA percentage is applied to the benefits of the participants of the program to
determine the increase in the liability. Using the new liability the Funding Period is re-
calculated. If the tier of the Funding Period does not change, then the initial COLA percentage
will be the proposed percentage for the following January 1. However, if the tier does change,
then the COLA percentage is changed to the percentage shown in the new tier. Then the liability
and Funding periods are recalculated to check that the tier does not change. This process is
repeated until the proposed COLA percentage does not change the Tier of the Funding Period.

2% Guaranteed Vested members hired before January 1, 2008, who elected the 2% Guaranteed COLA, and 
also those who elected to opt out of the Ad-Hoc COLA program, receive a simple COLA of 2% of
their Base Pension Amount every January 1. All Orange service benefits of Tier I employees also
receive a 2% simple COLA.

None Tier II participants are not eligible for a COLA.

Deferred Retirement Option Program
(DROP):

Eligibility Participants eligible for Normal Retirement may elect to enroll in DROP.

DROP Enrollment A member may participate in DROP for up to 60 months. There is no minimum length of time a
member must stay in the DROP. A member who elects a DROP must stay in the DROP for at
least two years to be eligible for a retroactive cost-of-living increase at the time of actual
retirement.

Amount Enrollment in DROP freezes a member’s Credited Service and Final Average Compensation
for purposes of calculating the monthly annuity. The DROP provides a lump sum payment for the
number of months enrolled based on the monthly annuity calculated at the member’s DROP
enrollment date.

Contributions Member and employer contributions continue during the DROP period but are not
credited to the member’s DROP account.

Changes in Plan Provisions:
There have been no changes in plan provisions since the last valuation.
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NOTE I:  EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND OF THE CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS (CONTINUED)

Summary of Plan Provisions (continued) 

If a member continues to work after the normal retirement date, the member is required to make contributions to the Plan
until the date of actual retirement.  Members continue to accrue credited service until they retire. 

In September 2007, the Board voted to allow multiple payment options for members that entered the Deferred Retirement
Option Program (DROP).  Members must select from the following options upon retirement for their DROP balances: 

 A total or partial distribution of their DROP balance made directly to the member or via a rollover to a

qualified plan or IRA. 

 Annuitize a partial amount or the full amount into a monthly annuity.  Annuity payments are determined

using the actuarial assumptions for the plan at the time of the annuity selection and the member’s

demographics.  If an annuity is selected the DROP balance is no longer available to the member and the

monthly annuity is added to the member’s monthly pension benefit. 

 Leave the total balance or the remaining balance, after selecting one of the above options, with the City

Plan.  The member earns the same gains and losses as the City Plan.  When selecting this option, the

member may elect to receive monthly payments from the Plan or receive up to two lump-sum payments per

year.  All distributions made to the member are deducted from their DROP balance until the full amount

(inclusive of gains and losses from the Plan investment performance) has been distributed to the member. 

Obligation to Contribute to the Plan 

The City contributes to the City Plan an amount equal to 19.74% (20.46% for sworn Police Officers) of the retirement
eligible earnings of members.  The City Council, through its budget appropriation, has the right to contribute an additional
amount over and above the members’ contributions, in accordance with state law, plus the cost of administration of the
City Plan.  No additional contributions were made during FY2017.  Eligible employees of the City, as a condition of
employment, commencing on the effective date of their membership in the Plan, shall contribute 8.25% (8.73% for sworn
Police Officers) of their eligible earnings to the Plan until the date of their actual retirement or earlier termination of
employment.  The employer and employee contribution rates are not used when the actuary determines the  required
annual contributions to the City Plan. 

Funding Policy 

The Plan’s actuary conducts an annual valuation for each plan to determine the adequacy of the current employer
contribution rates, to describe the current financial condition of the plans, and to analyze changes in the Plan’s condition.
The significant actuarial assumptions used to compute the actuarially determined contribution requirement are the same as
those used to compute the actuarial accrued liability.  Employer contributions are recognized as additions in the period in
which employee services are performed.  The City's actuarially determined contribution, contributions, and contribution
rates are as follows: 

Year Ended
September 30,

Actuarially
Determined

Contributions

Contributions in
Relation to the

Actuarially
Determined

Contributions
Contribution

Deficiency Covered Payroll

Contributions
as a Percentage

of Covered
Payroll

2016 $ 101,340 $ 84,747 $ 16,593 $ 422,977 20.0%
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NOTE I:  EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND OF THE CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS (CONTINUED)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

The following are the significant actuarial assumptions used for the January 1, 2016, actuarial valuation:

Valuation date January 1, 2016

Actuarial cost method Entry Age 

Amortization method Level percent of payroll

Remaining amortization period 30 years as of January 1, 2016

Asset valuation method Market value of assets less unrecognized returns in each of the last five years. Unrecognized return
is equal to the difference between the actual market return and the expected return on the market
value, and is recognized over a five-year period, further adjusted, if necessary, to be within 20% of
the market value.

Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return 8.00% , including inflation, net of all expenses

Inflation rate 3.00%

Projected salary increases 3.50% - 18.00%

Cost-of-living adjustments 0.00% - 4.00%*

Payroll growth rate 3.25% per annum, used to amortize unfunded actuarial accrued liabilities

Retirement rates The retirement rates were set by the Fund’s actuary based on a study of experience for 2013-2015.
The rates for all employees are age-related.  General employees have some assumed probability of
retirement prior to eligibility for an unreduced pension, whereas the public safety employees are
assumed to wait until full benefits are payable.

Mortality Healthy mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table, with rates
set forward three years, projected generationally using Scale MP-2015. Disabled mortality rates
were based on the RP-2014 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table, projected generationally using Scale
MP-2015.

*A 2% cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) is assumed for: (1) all benefits of all members in the guaranteed COLA Program, (2) benefits accrued on or
after October 1, 2013 by General employees hired prior to July 1, 2011 and Police employees hired prior to January 1, 2013, and (3) benefits
accrued on or after January 10, 2015 by Firefighters hired prior to January 10, 2015.  For members participating in the ad-hoc COLA program,
future COLAs on benefits earned prior to October 1, 2013, for General employees and Police Officers and prior to January 10, 2015, for
Firefighters are assumed to begin in 2044, and to be 2% for five years, 3% for the next eight years, and 4% thereafter. 
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NOTE I:  EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND OF THE CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS (CONTINUED)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions (continued) 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in
which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment
expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.  These ranges are combined to produce the long-term
expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and
by adding expected inflation.  Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the
pension plan’s target asset allocation as of September 30, 2016, are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class
Target

Allocation

Long-Term
Expected Real

Rate of Return*

Domestic equity 15% 6.75%
International equity 15% 7.45%
Fixed income 18% 1.75%
Real return 10% 4.30%
Real estate 13% 4.55%
Absolute return 19% 3.75%
Private equity 9% 11.50%
Cash 1% 1.15%

Total
100%

*The expected real rate of return is net of inflation. 

Discount Rate 

The blended discount rate used to measure the total pension liability is 4.71%.  The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed City and plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rates:
19.74% from the City and 8.25% from the members for General employees and Firefighters, and 20.46% from the City
and 8.73% from the members for Police Officers.  The City is assumed to continue to contribute for Tier I employees on
total pay, including overtime.  City contributions for Tier II employees are on base pay, which excludes overtime other
than built-in overtime for Firefighters.  All members are assumed to contribute as a percentage of base pay.  Based on
these assumptions, the Retirement Fund’s fiduciary net position was not projected to be available to make all projected
future benefit payments for current plan members.  The long-term expected rate of return on Retirement Fund investments
was applied to the first 27 periods of projected benefit payments, and a 3.06% municipal bond rate was applied for all
periods thereafter, to determine the total pension liability.  The 3.06% municipal bond rate is based on an index of 20-
year, tax-exempt general obligation bonds, published weekly by the Federal Reserve. (The chosen rate is the Bond Buyer
20-Bond GO Index rate published closest to, but not later than, the measurement date of September 30, 2016.) 
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NOTE I:  EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND OF THE CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS (CONTINUED)

Net Pension Liability, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

The Net Pension Liability, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources related to pensions are
allocated to the funds based on each fund's contributions to the pension plan during the annual measurement period.
Contributions to the pension plan for employees whose salaries are paid from internal service funds are expected to be
paid primarily from resources received from the general government; therefore, the related Net Pension Liability, Pension
Expense, and related Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources for these funds are reported in the government-wide
financial statements under governmental activities and not reported in the financial statements of the individual internal
service funds. 

Pension Expense for the year ended September 30, 2017, was as follows:

Service cost $ 98,173
Interest on total pension liability (TPL) 252,240
Employee contributions (33,977)
Administrative expenses 4,522
Other 241
Expected return on assets (160,141)
Expensed portion of current year period differences between

expected and actual experience in TPL 696
Expensed portion of current year period assumption changes 170,365
Expensed portion of current year period differences between

projected and actual investment earnings (1,233)
Current year recognition of deferred inflows and outflows

established in prior years 78,399

Total pension expense $ 409,285

For the year ended September 30, 2017, the City reported the following Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred
Inflows of Resources, and Net Pension Liability related to pensions.  The following amounts have been allocated to
Governmental Activities and Business-Type Activities on the Statement of Net Position, see the table below: 

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities Total

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension contributions made after the measurement date $ 78,125 $ 11,631 $ 89,756
Differences between expected and actual experience 3,019 463 3,482
Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments 97,727 14,910 112,637
Changes in assumptions 949,253 145,570 1,094,823

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 1,128,124 $ 172,574 $ 1,300,698

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 52,752 $ 7,935 $ 60,687
Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments 4,742 726 5,468

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 57,494 $ 8,661 $ 66,155

Net Pension Liability $ 2,792,047 $ 428,543 $ 3,220,590
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NOTE I:  EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND OF THE CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS (CONTINUED)

Net Pension Liability, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
  Related to Pensions (continued) 

$89,756,000 reported as a Deferred Outflows for pension contributions made after the measurement date will be
recognized as a deduction of the net pension liability in the year ending September 30, 2018.  Other amounts reported as
Deferred Outflows/(Inflows)  of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Deferred Outflows/(Inflows) Recognized in Future Years

Year
Established

Outstanding
Balance at
October 1,

2016

Amount
Recognized
During FYE
September

30, 2017

Outstanding
Balance at
September

30, 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Fiscal Year Outflows
Investment 2016 $ 150,183 $ 37,546 $ 112,637 $ 37,546 $ 37,546 $ 37,545 $ - $ -
Assumptions 2016 303,745 60,749 242,996 60,749 60,749 60,749 60,749 -
Experience Loss 2017 - 696 3,482 696 696 696 696 698
Assumptions 2017 - 170,365 851,827 170,365 170,365 170,365 170,366 170,366

Total Outflows 453,928 269,356 1,210,942 269,356 269,356 269,355 231,811 171,064

Fiscal Year Inflows
Investment 2015 (805) (268) (537) (268) (269) - - -
Experience Gain 2015 (71,301) (17,825) (53,476) (17,825) (17,825) (17,826) - -
Experience Gain 2016 (9,014) (1,803) (7,211) (1,803) (1,803) (1,803) (1,802) -
Investment 2017 - (1,233) (4,931) (1,233) (1,233) (1,233) (1,232) -

Total Inflows (81,120) (21,129) (66,155) (21,129) (21,130) (20,862) (3,034) -

  Total $ 372,808 $ 248,227 $ 1,144,787 $ 248,227 $ 248,226 $ 248,493 $ 228,777 $ 171,064

Note: In accordance with Paragraph 71 of GASB Statement No. 68, the difference between projected and actual earnings on investments is
recognized over a closed five-year period.  Assumption changes and the difference between expected and actual total pension liability experience are
each recognized over a closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions
through the pension plan (active employees and inactive employees), determined as of the beginning of the measurement period.  For FY2017, the
period is six years (rounded). 
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NOTE I:  EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT FUND OF THE CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS (CONTINUED)

I.1. Changes in Net Pension Liability

Total Pension
Liability

Plan Fiduciary Net
Position

Net Pension
Liability

(a) (b) (a) - (b)

Balances at September 30, 2016 $ 4,127,343 $ 2,003,270 $ 2,124,073

Changes for the year:
Service Cost 98,173 - 98,173
Interest 252,240 - 252,240
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience 4,178 - 4,178
Changes of Assumptions 1,022,193 - 1,022,193
Contributions - Employer - 84,747 (84,747)
Contributions - Employee - 33,977 (33,977)
Net Investment Income - 166,306 (166,306)
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Employee Contributions (185,820) (185,820) -
Administrative Expenses - (4,522) 4,522
Other - (241) 241

Net Changes 1,190,964 94,447 1,096,517

Balances at September 30, 2017 $ 5,318,307 $ 2,097,717 $ 3,220,590

I.1.A. Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the Net Pension Liability of the City Plan, calculated using the discount rate of 4.71%, as well as
what the City Plan’s Net Pension Liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one-percentage-point
lower (3.71%) or one-percentage-point higher (5.71%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease
Current

Discount Rate 1% Increase
(3.71%) (4.71%) (5.71%)

$ 4,062,433 $ 3,220,590 $ 2,545,756

Note: The balances as of September 30, 2016, constitute measurements of the Net Pension Liability for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017. 
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NOTE J:  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

J.1. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan Descriptions

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note I, the City provides postemployment health care benefits, established
under the legal authority of the City Charter and administered by the City.  The single employer plan coverage is offered
to all employees who retire from the City in accordance with criteria listed in Note I.  However; some retirees elect not to
continue the health coverage during their retirement.  Currently, 2,941 retirees and beneficiaries meet those eligibility
requirements.  The City also provides a $5,000 lump sum death benefit single-employer plan for beneficiaries of retired
employees who retired on or after January 1, 1970.  Neither of these plans issues stand-alone financial statements. 

A retiree who is either (i) receiving, or (ii) in the process to receive City of Fort Worth retirement benefits at the time of
termination, is eligible for medical coverage through the City.  Retired employees hired prior to October 5, 1988, have
afforded to them at least one group health care plan option for which the City will pay 100% of the retiree premium
equivalent rate for coverage, but may need to contribute to obtain benefits above the City specified plan or to cover any
dependents.  Retired employees (with less than 25 years of credited service) hired on or after October 5, 1988, and before
January 1, 2009, will be required to contribute towards the cost of their group health care benefits at a cost established by
the City of Fort Worth; those with 25 years or more of credited service will be afforded the same City premium subsidy as
the retiree hired prior to October 5, 1988.  Retired employees hired on or after January 1, 2009, are not eligible for a City
of Fort Worth retiree premium subsidy but may enroll for coverage at retirement and pay the full premium for coverage
for themselves and eligible dependents. 

Retiree health care benefits cannot be accessed until the employee retires.  However, for employees who terminated on or
before September 30, 2014, and are vested in the City’s retirement plan, health care benefits may continue, until the
employee retires, by paying the full cost of coverage.  For employees who terminated on or after October 1, 2014, and are
vested in the City’s retirement plan, health care benefits are only covered if the employee retires/begins receiving
retirement benefits at the time of separation from the City (with exceptions noted above based on hire date).  For all other
employees who terminate without retirement, health care benefits continue for one month after termination.  At that time
the former employee has continuation rights to health insurance coverage under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act of 1985.  In accordance with GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, the City will perform actuarial studies each year.  The
actuarial information presented in the notes and the required supplementary section represent January 1, 2017, actuarial
valuation. 

Funding Policies

For the health care benefits and the death benefit, contractual requirements for the City are established and may be
amended by the City Council.  During FY2017, retirees' health insurance was provided with separate plan designs
depending on whether the retiree was eligible for Medicare.  The City paid for a major portion or all of the total health
insurance cost for retirees depending on the retiree’s date of employment or length of service and the retiree’s coverage
election.  The City paid 30 to 50 percent of the cost for coverage for dependents and surviving spouses eligible to
participate in the group plan.  The remainder of the premium was paid by the retirees for their dependents or by the
surviving spouse.  Expenditures for postemployment health care are recognized as claims or premiums when paid.  During
FY2017, the cost for health care benefits for retirees, dependents, and surviving spouses was $25,804,000.   For FY2017,
death benefit payments totaled $426,833. 
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NOTE J:  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

J.1. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Annual OPEB Costs

The City’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) for each plan is calculated based on the annual
required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of
GASB Statement No. 45.  The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover
normal cost each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed
thirty years.  The City’s annual OPEB cost for fiscal years ended September 30, 2015, September 30, 2016, and
September 30, 2017, and the related information for each plan, are shown below: 

Funding Policy and Annual OPEB Cost
Healthcare Death Benefit

Contribution Rates
City 33% - 100% * 100%
Plan Members 0% - 67% * N/A

9/30/2015 9/30/2016 9/30/2017 9/30/2015 9/30/2016 9/30/2017
Annual Required Contribution $ 75,983 $ 66,789 $ 67,648 $ 795 $ 907 $ 765
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 20,252 21,626 23,033 216 294 277
Adjustment to Annual Required Contribution (27,775) (29,659) (31,589) (296) (403) (380)

Annual OPEB Cost (Expense) 68,460 58,756 59,092 715 798 662
Contributions Made (32,076) (25,132) (27,633) (444) (508) (485)

Increase in Net OPEB Obligation 36,384 33,624 31,459 271 290 177
Net OPEB Obligation, Beginning of Year 491,782 528,166 561,790 6,192 6,463 6,753

Net OPEB Obligation, End of Year $ 528,166 $ 561,790 $ 593,249 $ 6,463 $ 6,753 $ 6,930

Percentage of Annual OPEB Cost Contributed %46.9 %42.8 %46.8 %62.1 %63.7 %73.3
Percentage of Annual Required Contribution

Contributed %42.2 %37.6 %40.8 %55.8 %56.0 %63.4

*The percentage paid by the City varies based on years of service. 

At September 30, 2017, the net OPEB obligation of $600,179,000 was $521,716,000 for governmental activities and
$78,463,000 for business-type activities.  The employer’s required contribution rate as a percentage of payroll for FY2017
was 15.3%. 
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NOTE J:  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

J.1. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Funded Status and Funding Progress

The funded status of the Plan as of January 1, 2017, was as follows: 

Healthcare Death Benefit

Actuarial Accrued Liability (a) $ 777,305 $ 10,603
Actuarial Value of Plan Assets (b) 70,205 -

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (a) – (b) $ 707,100 $ 10,603

Funded Ratio (b) / (a) %9.0 %-
Covered Payroll (c) $ 448,313 $ 448,313

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability as a
Percentage of Covered Payroll ([(a) – (b)] / (c)) %158 %2

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events in
the future.  Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the Plan and the required annual contributions of the
employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations, and new estimates are made
about the future.  The required schedule of funding progress presented as required supplementary information provides
multiyear trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time
relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 

Projections of benefits are based on the substantive plan (the Plan as understood by the employer and Plan members) and
include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern of sharing benefit costs between the City and the
Plan members to that point.  Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and employ methods and assumptions
that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. 

Significant methods and assumptions were as follows: 

Healthcare Death Benefit
Actuarial Valuation Date 1/1/2017 1/1/2017
Actuarial Cost Method Projected Unit Credit Projected Unit Credit
Amortization Method Open, Level Dollar Open, Level Dollar
Remaining Amortization Period 30 30
Asset Valuation Method Market Value Market Value
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 4.1% 4.1%
Healthcare Cost Trend Rate 4.5 - 8.0% N/A
Healthcare Inflation Rate 3.0% N/A

The discount rate of 4.1% is based on a weighted average of the estimated return on Plan assets of 6% and the estimated
return on the City’s general investments of 4%. 
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NOTE J:  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

J.2. DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The City offers its employees a Deferred Compensation Plan (DCP) created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code 
Section 457. The City's DCP, available to all regular full-time City employees, permits the deferral of income based 
upon guidelines published by the Internal Revenue Service. The City's DCP is administered by the Teachers Insurance 
and Annuity Association-College Retirement Equities Fund (TIAA-CREF).  The City's DCP investments include mutual 
funds whose focus is on stocks, bonds, treasury securities, money-market-type investments, or a combination of these. 
Deferred compensation investments are held by outside trustees for the exclusive benefit of eligible employees and their 
beneficiaries and are not included in these financial statements.  The deferred compensation funds are not available for 
employee distribution until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.  Employees can take loans from 
their individual accounts of up to $50,000 at a fixed interest of prime rate plus 1%.  The City has no liability for losses of 
the DCP but does have the fiduciary responsibilities of a plan sponsor. 

NOTE K: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The City has executed a long-term supply agreement with Tarrant Regional Water District (District) for all of its raw 
water needs whereby the City makes monthly payments to fund its water purchases.  The FY2017 payments to the District 
under the agreement were $74,048,426.  Future payments will be a direct result of future water usage. 

The City is subject to extensive and rapidly changing Federal and State environmental regulations governing wastewater 
discharges, solid and hazardous waste management, and site remediation and restoration activities.  The City’s policy is to 
accrue environmental and related remediation costs when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount 
can be reasonably estimated.  As discussed in Note G.2. and Note G.4., as of September 30, 2017, the City has recorded 
pollution remediation liabilities in the amounts of $5,636,000 and $5,945,000 in the Environmental Protection Capital 
Projects Fund and the Water and Sewer Fund, respectively, as required by GAAP.  No other liabilities have been 
specifically identified, and no such costs have been accrued other than those disclosed. 

The City has received Federal and State financial assistance in the form of grants and entitlements that are subject to 
review and audit by the grantor agencies.  Such audits could result in requests for reimbursement by the grantor agency 
for expenditures disallowed under terms and conditions specified in the grant agreements.  In the opinion of City 
management, such disallowances will not have a material impact on the financial statements. 

The City has outstanding construction commitments of $196,778,079 as of September 30, 2017, excluding the arena 
Commitment described below.  

Various other claims and lawsuits are pending against the City.  After consultation with legal counsel, the City had 
potential losses from pending litigation that are reasonably possible totaling $750,000 as of September 30, 2017. 

The City adopted a resolution committing an amount not to exceed $225,000,000 for the construction of the new Fort 
Worth Multi-Purpose Arena (Dickies Arena) at the intersection of Harley Avenue and Gendy Street.  The construction of 
the Dickies Arena is underway, and the City has expended $27,108,020 during FY2017 leaving $197,891,980 committed 
as of September 30, 2017.  See Note M for additional information on this project. 
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NOTE L: SEGMENT FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Segment financial information for the City’s Municipal Parking Fund and Solid Waste Fund are presented below:

Municipal
Parking Fund

Solid 
Waste Fund

Condensed Statement of Net Position
Assets

Current Assets $ 2,634 $ 27,093
Other Assets 1,584 16,453
Advances to Other Funds - 7,023
Capital Assets 46,167 17,233

Deferred Outflows of Resources 3,988 14,309

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of
Resources 54,373 82,111

Liabilities
Other Current Liabilities 2,930 6,559
Other Noncurrent Liabilities 43,865 48,362

Total Liabilities 46,795 54,921

Deferred Inflows of Resources 77 3,241
Net Position

Net Investment in Capital Assets 4,510 13,450
Restricted 700 496
Unrestricted 2,291 10,003

Total Net Position $ 7,501 $ 23,949

Condensed Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Operating Revenues $ 7,888 $ 60,487
Depreciation Expense 1,847 554
Other Operating Expenses 3,597 58,629

Operating Income (Loss) 2,444 1,304

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Investment Income 18 164
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Property and

Equipment - (21)
Interest and Service Charges (1,255) (87)
Gas Leases and Royalties - 76

Transfers In - 23
Transfers Out (124) (6,042)

Change in Net Position 1,083 (4,583)
Beginning Net Position 6,418 28,532

Ending Net Position $ 7,501 $ 23,949

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows
Net Cash Provided (Used) by:

Operating Activities 4,824 8,856
Noncapital Financing Activities (124) (2,519)
Capital and Related Financing Activities (4,437) (1,652)
Investing Activities 33 195

Net Increase (Decrease) 296 4,880
Beginning Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,883 31,961

Ending Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4,179 $ 36,841
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NOTE M:  FORT WORTH MULTI-PURPOSE ARENA

The new Fort Worth Multi-Purpose Arena (Dickies Arena) being constructed near the City's Will Rogers complex will be
a state-of-the-art venue for concerts, sports, family entertainment and the Stock Show Rodeo.  The Dickies Arena is the
result of a pioneering partnership between the City of Fort Worth and the private sector, led by Event Facilities Fort
Worth, a non-profit 501(c)(3).  The expected completion date is in 2019.  Upon completion, this facility is anticipated to
be donated to the City of Fort Worth.  The construction cost of $163,151,858 has been completed at the end of FY2017,
of which the City contributed $27,108,020.  As the City does not own the facility during construction, the City's
contributions are expensed as incurred.  See Note K for additional information. 

NOTE N:  SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On November 28, 2017, the City issued $63,000,000 of Water and Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2017B. Bond
proceeds will be used to provide the second phase of the two-part subsidized financing for implementation of the multi-
phase Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI) Project along with an automated leak detection system. The planned
project comes under the authority of Texas Water Development Board's State Water Implementation Revenue Fund for
Texas (SWIRFT) Program, which provides low-cost financial assistance for eligible projects. 

On December 5, 2017, the City authorized a 20-year callable commercial paper (CP) program with J.P. Morgan in an
aggregate outstanding principal amount not to exceed $150,000,000 at any one time to provide appropriation authority for
capital projects identified within the Water and Sewer Capital Improvement Program.  The City has several options under
this program: a) to call the commercial paper when it reaches the original call date; b) to replace the CP with new CP
notes similarly structured; c) to issue long-term debt; or d) to allow the paper to continue to the maturity date and pay the
maturing CP by one of the previously identified methods.  The callable commercial paper program replaces the current
Direct Purchase Notes program (see Note G.3) that was terminated on January 12, 2018.

On January 23, 2018, the Fort Worth Local Development Corporation's Board of Directors approved a resolution for the
sale of a building located at 250 Lancaster Avenue in the amount of no less than $25,250,000.  Lancaster Corridor
Redevelopment, LLC, who owns the building, has entered into a contract to sell the building with an anticipated closing
date in March 2018. 

NOTE O:  NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In June 2015, GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other
than Pensions.  This Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by
Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as amended, a No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent
Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans, for OPEB.  The purpose of this Statement is to improve accounting and
financial reporting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions.  Information
provided by state and local government employers about financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities will
also be improved.  This Statement is effective for the City's financial periods beginning October 1, 2017. 

In March 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements.  The objective of this statement is
to improve accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable split-interest agreements by providing recognition and
measurement guidance for situations in which a government is a beneficiary of the agreement.  This Statement requires
that a government that receives resources pursuant to an irrevocable split-interest agreement recognize assets, liabilities,
and deferred inflow of resources at the inception of the agreement.  Furthermore, this Statement requires that a
government recognize assets representing its beneficial interests in irrevocable split-interest agreements that are
administered by a third party if the government controls the present service capacity of the beneficial interests.  This
Statement requires that a government recognize revenue when the resources become applicable to the reporting period.
This Statement is effective for the City's financial periods beginning October 1, 2017. 
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NOTE O: NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

In November 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations.  This Statement addresses
accounting and financial reporting for certain asset retirement obligations (AROs).  An ARO is a legally enforceable
liability associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset.  A government that has legal obligations to perform
future asset retirement activities related to its tangible capital assets should recognize a liability based on the guidance
within this Statement.  This Statement also establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern of recognition of a
liability and a corresponding deferred outflow of resources for AROs.  This Statement also requires the following: 

 That recognition occurs when the liability is both incurred and reasonably estimable; 

 The measurement of an ARO to be based on the best estimate of the current value of outlays expected to be

incurred; 

 The current value of a government's AROs should be adjusted for the effects of general inflation or deflation

at least annually; and 

 Disclosure of information about the nature of a government's AROs, the methods and assumptions used for

the estimates of the liabilities, and the estimated remaining useful life of the associated tangible capital

assets. 

This Statement is effective for the City's financial periods beginning October 1, 2018. 

In January 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities.  The objective of this Statement is to improve
guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those
activities should be reported.  This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local
governments.  The focus of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary
activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists.  Separate criteria are included to identify the
fiduciary component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities.  This Statement
describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: (1) pension (and other employee benefit) trust funds,
(2) investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust funds, and (4) custodial funds.  Custodial funds should report
fiduciary activities that are not held in a trust or equivalent arrangement that meets specific criteria.  This Statement also
provides for recognition of a liability to the beneficiaries in a fiduciary fund when an event has occurred that compels the
government to disburse fiduciary resources.  This Statement is effective for the City's financial periods beginning October
1, 2019. 

In March 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017.  The objective of this Statement is to address practice
issues that have been identified during implementation of certain GASB Statements.  The requirements of this Statement
will enhance consistency in the application of accounting and financial reporting requirements.  This Statement addresses
various miscellaneous accounting issues related to blending component units, goodwill, fair value measurement, and
postemployment benefits. 

Specifically, this Statement addresses the following topics as it relates to the City: 

 Blending Component Units - A primary government that has a business-type activity that presents its

activities in a single column on financial statements may present a component unit as blended if it meets the

blending criterion described in paragraph 53 of GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity.

 Goodwill - In an acquisition that occurs before the effective date of GASB Statement No. 69, Government

Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations, acquiring government should apply Statement No.

69 to account for the difference when the consideration provided exceeds the net position acquired. This

means the difference should report as “deferred outflow of resources” instead of “negative goodwill.” 
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NOTE O: NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (CONTINUED)

 Fair Value Measurement and Application - This Statement requires a real estate held by an insurance

entity to be classified as an “investment” if it meets the definition of an investment supplied in Statement

No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application; otherwise, it should classify as a “capital asset.”

Furthermore, money-market investments and participating interest-earning investment contracts may be

measured at amortized cost if they have a remaining maturity of one year or less at the time of purchase.

 Postemployment Benefits - This Statement clarifies and addresses modifications to GASB Statement Nos.

72, 74, 75, 78, and 82 for post-employment benefits.  The timing of the measurement of pension and other

post-employment benefit (OPEB) liabilities and expenditures are recognized in financial statements

prepared using the current financial resources measurement focus.  Additionally, it is simplifying certain

parts of the OPEB alternative measurement method as well as identified on-behalf payments for pensions

within employer financial statements. 

This Statement is effective for the City's financial periods beginning October 1, 2017.

In May 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues.  The objective of this Statement is to
improve consistency in accounting and financial reporting for in-substance defeasance of debt by providing guidance for
transactions in which cash and other monetary assets acquired with only existing resources-resources other than the
proceeds of refunding debt-are placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing debt.  This Statement
also improves accounting and financial reporting for prepaid insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes to financial
statements for debt that is defeased in substance.  This Statement is effective for the City's financial periods beginning
October 1, 2017.

In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases.  The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information
needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments.  This
Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets
and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or
outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract.  It establishes a single model for lease accounting
based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset.  Under this
Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is
required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and
consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities.  This Statement is effective for the City's financial
periods beginning October 1, 2020.

The City has not finalized its determination of the effect that the implementation of these new accounting standards will
have on the City’s financial statements or disclosures, as of the date of this report. 
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)
(Unaudited)

Budgeted Amounts
Budgetary

Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive 

Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
Revenues:

General Property Taxes $ 343,677 $ 343,677 $ 345,657 $ 1,980
Sales Taxes 140,468 141,018 148,365 7,347
Other Local Taxes 55,121 55,121 54,817 (304)
Charges for Services 34,975 32,293 28,528 (3,765)
Licenses and Permits 13,812 13,812 16,864 3,052
Fines and Forfeitures 7,805 7,805 6,523 (1,282)
Revenue from Use of Money and Property 724 724 364 (360)
Intergovernmental 609 657 709 52
Other 1,644 1,650 2,058 408

Total Revenues 598,835 596,757 603,885 7,128

Other Financing Sources:
Proceeds from Disposal of Property - 13,500 13,500 -
Transfers In - Other Funds 40,169 45,736 45,015 (721)

Total Other Financing Sources 40,169 59,236 58,515 (721)

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 639,004 655,993 662,400 6,407

Expenditures:
Departmental:

City Attorney's Office 6,327 6,428 6,416 12
City Auditor's Office 1,804 1,804 1,686 118
City Manager's Office 7,933 8,499 8,293 206
City Secretary's Office 1,322 1,790 1,572 218
Code Compliance 19,984 19,984 19,264 720
Financial Management Services 11,122 11,422 11,316 106
Fire 138,966 142,146 141,543 603
Housing and Economic Development 17,975 16,231 15,867 364
Human Resources 4,376 4,688 4,541 147
Library 19,125 20,093 20,093 -
Municipal Court 17,268 17,697 17,697 -
Neighborhood Services 8,976 9,115 9,099 16
Non-Departmental 50,816 44,064 43,972 92
Park and Recreation 43,847 44,132 43,962 170
Performance and Budget 5,662 6,155 4,977 1,178
Planning and Development 13,530 14,039 13,611 428
Police 226,301 235,199 235,199 -
Property Management 10,916 26,196 26,032 164
Transportation and Public Works 32,754 33,378 33,378 -

Total Expenditures 639,004 663,060 658,518 4,542

Contribution to / (Use of) Fund Balance $ - $ (7,067) $ 3,882 $ 10,949

Explanation of Differences Between Budgetary Contribution to / (Use of) Fund Balance and GAAP Net Change in Fund Balance

Contribution to / (Use of) Fund Balance (Budgetary Basis) $ 3,882
Differences - Budgetary to GAAP

Current year non-budgeted transfers treated as revenues for financial reporting purposes
but not as budgetary inflows. 4,499

Current year non-budgeted transfers treated as expenditures for financial reporting purposes
but not as budgetary outflows. (800)

Current year non-budgeted revenues treated as revenues for financial reporting purposes
(due to perspective difference) but not as budgetary inflows. (3,464)

Current year non-budgeted expenditures treated as expenditures for financial reporting purposes
(due to perspective difference) but not as budgetary outflows. (589)

Net Change in Fund Balance (GAAP Basis) $ 3,528

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(000's omitted in tables)

ADOPTED BUDGET

The City's framework for financial decision making is a comprehensive set of Financial Management Policy Statements.
As required by the City's Charter, the City adopts an annual balanced budget for most funds (as more fully described
below) which the legal level of control is at the departmental/fund level.  Departments may not exceed their
appropriations within any specific fund. 

The City adopts annual budgets for most governmental funds, including the General Fund, the Debt Service Fund, the
Crime Control and Prevention District Fund (CCPD), the Culture and Tourism Fund, the Environmental Management
Fund, the Other Special Revenue Fund, the Public Improvement Districts Fund, the Golf Fund, and the Botanic Gardens
Fund using the modified accrual basis of accounting except for certain revenues, expenditures, other financing sources,
administrative costs, indirect costs, and transfers.  Therefore, a reconciliation is presented on the Budgetary Comparisons
Schedules to reconcile the Budgetary Basis Contribution to/Use of Fund Balance to the GAAP Basis Net Change in Fund
Balance.  Specific information on the budget for each of these funds is included as supplementary information in the
Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules section. 

All governmental funds have annual adopted budgets. Multi-year project length budgets are adopted for the City's
governmental Capital Projects Fund and the Grants Fund in accordance with the City's Capital Project Improvement
Program and are not presented within this document.  Other multi-year budgets have been established for the Special
Projects Fund, the Taxing Increment Reinvestment Zones Funds, Fort Worth Housing Finance Corporation, Fort Worth
Local Development Corporation, Fort Worth Sports Authority, Lone Star Local Development Corporation, Central City
Local Government Corporation, Lancaster Corridor LLC, and Alliance Airport Authority.  Budgets for the Grants Fund
are established pursuant to the terms of the related Federal, State, and local grant awards and are therefore considered a
legally adopted budget once the specific appropriation is approved. 

Prior to action taken by City Council, the CCPD Board of Directors (Board) must approve the original budget for this
fund.  Also, the Board, as well as the City Council, must approve any supplement or transfer of appropriation balances or
portions thereof from one department to another for this fund. 

The City also adopts an annual budget for most of the proprietary funds, including enterprise funds and internal service
funds.  Internal service funds are maintained to account for services provided primarily to departments within the City.
Budgets for proprietary funds are prepared on the full accrual basis of accounting with the following exceptions: 

 Changes in the fair value of investments are not treated as adjustments to revenue in the annual operating

budget; 

 Debt service and capital lease principal payments are treated as expenses in the annual operating budget; 

 Depreciation expense is not recognized in the annual operating budget; and 

 Capital purchases are recognized as expense in the annual operating budgets. 

At the close of each fiscal year the appropriated balance for annually adopted budgets lapse. 
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(000's omitted in tables)

BUDGETARY CONTROL

Budgetary controls begin with the City Charter requirements that the City adopt an annual balanced budget for
appropriated funds by formal action. Each department is responsible for administering their respective programs and
operations within the financial constraints described by the adopted budget. The City's Department of Financial
Management Services provides regular reporting to the Mayor and City Council on the status of actual expenditures,
expenses, and revenues compared to the adopted budget. 

The City's budget ordinance is deemed balanced when the sum of estimated revenues and appropriated fund balance/net
position is equal to expenditure/expense appropriations and contributions to fund balance/net position. Operating revenues
and other financing sources must fully cover operating expenditures/expenses, including debt service and other financing
uses. Operating expenditures/expenses to balance the annual budget shall include that year's contribution to capital funds
required to maintain existing assets. Furthermore, operating expenditures/expenses shall include the portion of funds
required to maintain the viability of internal service funds or the purposes in which they were created. Finally, minimum
reserve levels as outlined in the Financial Management Policy Statements must be maintained unless reserves are being
used in accordance with the purposes permitted by the City's policy. 

The overall budget appropriation may be increased via a supplemental appropriation ordinance that allocates funds that
are certified as being in excess of those included in the budget and as being otherwise unencumbered. These amendments
shall be considered and adopted by the City Council at formal business meetings, except for specific adjustments when
limited authority has been delegated to the City Manager as prescribed within the adopted budget ordinance. 

The City Manager may transfer part or all of any unencumbered appropriation balance among programs within a
department, division, or section upon compliance with such conditions as the City Council has established. Upon request
of the City Manager, the City Council may by ordinance transfer part or all of any unencumbered appropriation balance
from one department to another. No such transfers shall be made of revenues or earnings of any non-tax supported public
entity to any other purpose. 

For the General Fund, supplemental appropriations of $24,056,000 were approved by the City Council.  The reported
budgetary data includes amendments made during the year.  At the close of each fiscal year, any appropriated balance in
the General Fund lapses to fund balance.  Multi-year project length budget appropriations are automatically carried over
into the next fiscal year. 

BUDGET PROCESS

The City adheres to the following procedures for establishing the operating budget: 

On or before August 15 of each year, the City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed budget for the fiscal year
beginning the following October 1.  The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing
them.  Public hearing is conducted.  The budget is legally enacted by the City Council through the passage of
appropriations and the tax levying ordinances prior to September 30 and is published under a separate cover. 
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE RETIREMENT FUND 
– LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Year Ended
 September 30,

Actuarially
Determined

Contributions*

Contributions in
Relation to the

Actuarially
Determined

Contributions

Contribution
Deficiency 

(Excess)
Covered

Payroll**

Contributions
as a Percentage

of Covered
Payroll

2008 (Historical information prior to implementation of GASB 67/68 is not required)
2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014 $ 82,938 $ 78,165 $ 4,773 $ 390,128 20.0%
2015 93,563 80,821 12,742 403,772 20.0%
2016 101,340 84,747 16,593 422,977 20.0%
2017 112,185 89,408 22,777 448,313 19.9%

*The Actuarially Determined Contribution is equal to the total calculated contribution rate in the prior actuarial valuation, minus the portion
expected to be covered by employee contributions, multiplied by the covered  payroll.  City and Member rates are established by ordinance. 
**Covered payroll is the actual payroll on which contributions are based. 
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY 
– LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

2016 2015 2014 2013* 2012* 2011*

Total Pension Liability
Service Cost $ 98,173 $ 85,593 $ 92,189
Interest 252,240 246,293 234,701
Charge of Benefit Terms - (1,828) 110,188
Differences Between Expected and

Actual Experience 4,178 (10,817) (106,951)
Change of Assumptions 1,022,193 364,494
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of

Employee Contributions (185,820) (167,066) (161,159)

Net Change in Total Pension Liability 1,190,964 516,669 168,968

Total Pension Liability - Beginning 4,127,343 3,610,674 3,441,706

Total Pension Liability - Ending (a) $ 5,318,307 $ 4,127,343 $ 3,610,674

Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Contributions - Employer $ 84,747 $ 80,820 $ 78,165
Contributions - Employee 33,977 32,542 31,929
Net Investment Income 166,306 (20,635) 159,994
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of

Employee Contributions (185,820) (167,066) (161,159)
Administrative Expense (4,522) (3,823) (3,739)
Other (241) (143) (130)

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 94,447 (78,305) 105,060

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 2,003,270 2,081,575 1,976,515

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b) $ 2,097,717 $ 2,003,270 $ 2,081,575

Net Pension Liability - Ending (a) - (b) $ 3,220,590 $ 2,124,073 $ 1,529,099

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a % of the
Total Pension Liability 39.44% 48.54% 57.65%

Covered Payroll $ 422,977 $ 403,772 $ 390,128

Net Pension Liability as a % of
Covered Payroll 761.41% 526.06% 391.95%

*Historical information prior to implementation of GASB 67/68 is not required. 

Notes to Schedule: 
Benefits changes: 
FY2014 - The benefits for Municipal Employees hired before July 1, 2011, and Police Officers hired before January 1, 2013 (Groups I and III) were
bifurcated effective October 1, 2013.  Prospectively, the benefit multiplier changed from 3.00% to 2.50% for standard pension benefits and from
2.75% to 2.25% for early retirement, non-duty death, and non-duty disability benefits.  The compensation base was extended from the highest three
years to the highest five years, and overtime earnings are now excluded.  Benefits earned on or after October 1, 2013, are subject to an annual 2.00%
simple COLA, rather than an ad-hoc COLA. 
FY2015 - The benefits for Firefighters hired before January 10, 2015 (Group II) were bifurcated effective January 10, 2015.  Prospectively, the
benefit multiplier changed from 3.00% to 2.50% for standard pension benefits and from 2.75% to 2.25% for early retirement, non-duty death and
non-duty disability benefits.  The compensation base was extended from the highest three years to the highest five years, and overtime earnings are
now excluded (except built-in overtime, assumed to be 6.50% of base pay).  Benefits earned on or after January 10, 2015, are subject to an annual
2.00% simple COLA, rather than an ad-hoc COLA. 
Change of assumptions: The blended interest rates for FY2014 and FY2015 were 6.98% and 6.25% respectively.  The rate for FY2016 is 4.71%.
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY 
– LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Notes to Schedule: (continued) 
FY2016 - A comprehensive Actuarial Experience Review, covering the period January 1, 2013, through December 31, 2015, was completed in
March 2016.  As a result of that study, the following assumption changes were approved by the Retirement Board: 

 The mortality assumption for active and inactive vested participants was changed from the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality

Table, set forward one year to the RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table. 

 The post-retirement mortality assumption for healthy annuitants was changed from the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table,

set forward one year to the RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table, set forward three years.

 Coordinating with the mortality assumption for healthy lives, the mortality assumption for disabled retirees was changed from the

RP-2000 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table, reduced by 20% for males and loaded by 50% for females to the RP-2014 Disabled

Retiree Mortality Table.

 The generational projection scale was changed from Scale AA to the MP-2015 improvement scale.

 The assumption for deaths in the line of duty for Police Officers was reduced from 25% to 10% of all active deaths.

 The investment return assumption was lowered from 8.00% to 7.75%.

 An administrative expense assumption of $3,000,000 was introduced.

 The inflation assumption was lowered from 3.00% to 2.75%.

 The payroll growth rate assumption (used for determining the amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability) was lowered

from 3.25% to 3.00%.

 While maintaining the existing service-based tables, the salary scale was adjusted to better match observed experience.  The inflation

component was lowered from 3.50% per year for all to 3.00% per year for General Employees and Firefighters and lowered to

2.75% per year for Police Officers.

 The retirement rates for General Employees who retire early with reduced benefits were adjusted to match observed experience.

 The unreduced retirement rates were restructured to be based on eligibility for Normal Retirement for all groups and the assumed

retirement rates for non-DROP participants were updated.

 A retirement assumption for DROP participants was introduced to reflect that all DROP participants will enter at first eligibility and

retire at the end of the assumed DROP period.

 The DROP utilization assumption was lowered from 90% to 85% for Police Officers.

 The current disability rates were lowered by 50%.

 The gender-distinct five-year select-and-ultimate turnover tables were modified for General Employees with increased rates for non-

vested and vested males only.  The service-based withdrawal rates for Police Officers and Firefighters were lowered to reflect

observed experience.

 The assumed marriage percentage assumption was lowered from 90% to 80% for males and to 60% for females.

 The spousal age difference was changed from assuming females are three years younger than males to the spouse being four years

younger for male participants and the same age for female participants.

 The overtime and other payloads (applied to Blue benefits only) were lowered for Police Officers from 8.00% to 7.00% and from

18.00% to 16.75% for Firefighters.

 The load on final average salary for General Employees was eliminated. The load for Police Officers was lowered from 2.75% to

2.00% while the load for Firefighters was increased from 4.00% to 5.00%.

 The sick leave service conversion load for General Employees and Firefighters was increased from 3.25% to 3.75% and 1.50% to

2.50%, respectively.
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Valuation Date

Actuarial
Value of Assets

(AVA)

Actuarial
Accrued

Liability (AAL)

Unfunded
Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(UAAL) Funded Ratio

Annual
Covered
Payroll

UAAL
as % of
Covered
Payroll

(a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
Healthcare

1/1/2012 $ 16,000 $ 942,238 $ 926,238 2% $ 383,802 241%
1/1/2013 24,328 993,541 969,213 2% 376,317 258%
1/1/2014 38,977 932,667 893,690 4% 390,128 229%
1/1/2015 55,626 821,619 765,993 7% 403,772 190%
1/1/2016 66,039 740,143 674,104 9% 422,977 159%
1/1/2017 70,205 777,305 707,100 9% 448,313 158%

Death Benefit
1/1/2012 $ - $ 11,589 $ 11,589 0% $ 383,802 3%
1/1/2013 - 10,921 10,921 0% 376,317 3%
1/1/2014 - 10,252 10,252 0% 390,128 3%
1/1/2015 - 8,743 8,743 0% 403,772 2%
1/1/2016 - 10,054 10,054 0% 422,977 2%
1/1/2017 - 10,603 10,603 0% 448,313 2%

CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Year Ended
Annual Required

Contributions
Percentage

Contributed
Net OPEB
Obligation

Healthcare
9/30/2012 $ 105,502 27.9% $ 394,908
9/30/2013 98,334 36.0% 450,860
9/30/2014 88,405 45.9% 491,782
9/30/2015 75,983 42.2% 528,166
9/30/2016 66,789 37.6% 561,790
9/30/2017 67,648 40.8% 593,249

Death Benefit
9/30/2012 $ 1,435 15.7% $ 5,453
9/30/2013 943 39.2% 5,956
9/30/2014 916 66.4% 6,192
9/30/2015 795 55.8% 6,463
9/30/2016 907 56.0% 6,753
9/30/2017 765 63.4% 6,930

129



 

 

 

 

130



COM
BINING AND INDIVIDUAL 

FUND FINANCIAL STATEM
ENTS 

AND SCHEDULES

COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL
FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND SCHEDULES



Debt Service Fund

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the accumulation of financial resources for the payment of principal, interest and
related costs on long-term obligations paid primarily from taxes levied by the City.  The fund balance of the Debt Service
Fund is reserved to signify the amounts that are restricted exclusively for debt service expenditures.  It comprises four
funds:  General Debt Service Fund,  Culture and Tourism Debt Service Fund, Venue Debt Service Fund, and Rock Creek
PID Debt Service Fund.  In addition, long-term obligations that are paid with special assessments or fund revenues are
included in this fund.
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
DEBT SERVICE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Budgeted Amounts
Budgetary

Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive 

Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
Revenues:

General Property Taxes $ 90,207 $ 90,207 $ 90,571 $ 364
Revenue from Use of Money and Property 2,846 2,846 4,155 1,309
Intergovernmental - 210 210 -

Total Revenues 93,053 93,263 94,936 1,673

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers In - Other Funds 11,109 29,364 29,494 130

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 104,162 122,627 124,430 1,803

Expenditures:
Departmental:

Financial Management Services 97,482 104,808 104,157 651

Contribution to / (Use of) Fund Balance $ 6,680 $ 17,819 $ 20,273 $ 2,454

Explanation of Differences Between Contribution to / (Use of) Fund Balance and GAAP Net Change in Fund Balance

Contribution to / (Use of) Fund Balance $ 20,273

Differences - Budgetary to GAAP:

Current year non-budgeted other financing sources treated as other financing sources
for financial reporting purposes but not as budgetary inflows. 3,260

Current year non-budgeted expenditures treated as expenditures for financial reporting purposes
but not as budgetary outflows. (2,397)

Current year non-budgeted revenues treated as revenues for financial reporting purposes
(due to perspective difference) but not as budgetary inflows. (210)

Net Change in Fund Balance (GAAP Basis) $ 20,926
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Special Revenue Funds

The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds from specific revenue sources (other than expendable
trusts, major capital projects, or proprietary funds) that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. 

Crime Control and Prevention District Fund is used to finance the cost in providing the necessary resources to effectively
implement crime reduction strategies pertaining to enhanced enforcement, neighborhood crime prevention, partner
programs, recruitment and training, and department equipment, technology, and infrastructure within the City of Fort
Worth, as approved by citizens. 

Environmental Management Fund is used to accumulate revenue to pay for any environmental program or service as such
services are required by state or federal mandates. 

Fort Worth Housing Finance Corporation Fund is used to finance the cost of residential ownership and development of
single-family dwellings for persons of low and moderate income.  

Fort Worth Local Development Corporation Fund is used to administer a low-interest rate program for business
development in and around the stockyards area as well as other City-wide economic development activities.  In 2017, the
Lancaster Corridor LLC Fund is moved to Other Blended Capital Project Funds section 

HUD 108 Loan Fund is used to record various Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Section 108 loans received from
HUD to develop economically depressed areas within the City. 

Special Projects Fund is used to account for many small projects, which are varied in purpose.  Financing for this Fund is
provided by contributions from various organizations and individuals and is restricted to such projects. 

Culture and Tourism Fund is used to account for taxes received from hotel and motel occupancy to promote tourism. 

Grants Fund is used to account for grant resources received from various local, state and federal agencies and
organizations.  The use of these resources is restricted to a particular function of the City by each grantor. 

Other Blended Component Units Fund is used to combine Fort Worth Sports Authority (used to purchase the Texas Motor
Speedway and spur economic growth), Lone Star Local Development Corporation (used for the construction of a
museum, exhibition space, and certain public infrastructure in the vicinity of Cabela’s retail facility),  and Alliance
Airport Authority, Inc. (which was created for the promotion and development of new and expanded business enterprises
at Alliance Airport and to promote and encourage employment and public welfare).  Central City Local Government
Corporation is moved to the Other Blended Capital Project Funds in 2017. 

Other Special Revenue Fund is used to report the financial activity of minor funds whose proceeds of specific revenue
sources require separate accounting because of legal or regulatory provisions or administrative action. 
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Special Revenue Funds

(continued)

Public Improvement Districts (PIDs) were created by resolution of the City Council pursuant to Chapter 372 of the Local
Government Code.  PIDs provide a development tool that allocates costs according to the benefits received.  In time of
declining city revenues, a PID can provide a means to fund supplemental services and improvements to meet community
needs which could not otherwise be constructed or provided and be paid by those who most benefit from them. 

Taxing Increment Reinvestment Zones (TIRZs) are special zones created by City Council under the Texas Tax Code
Chapter 311 (Tax Increment Financing Act).  A TIRZ is used to finance public improvements within a defined area.
These improvements are intended to promote development or redevelopment in the defined area and surrounding areas.
Taxes attributable to new improvements (tax increments) are set aside in a special revenue fund to finance public
improvements within the boundaries of the zone. 

Golf Fund is used to account for the operation of four City golf courses.  The Fund’s operations are financed by course
fees, golf equipment rentals and merchandise and concession sales to the public and an annual subsidy from the General
Fund. 

Botanic Gardens Fund is  responsible for maintaining the oldest botanic garden in Texas and preserving art and culture.
The Gardens is moved to a separate fund from the Special Revenue Fund in March 2017.

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Capital Project Funds

Lancaster Corridor LLC Fund is organized to support mixed-use redevelopment along the Lancaster Corridor.  The fund
was reported with the Fort Worth Local Development Corporation in FY2016, and is moved to Other Blended Component
Units, Capital Projects in FY2017.

Central City Local Government Corporation is organized for the purpose of aiding, assisting, and acting on behalf of the
City in the implementation of project plans for the Magnolia Green Development, including construction of a parking
garage to support development.  This is moved to Other Blended Component Units, Capital Projects in FY2017. 
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Special Revenue Funds

Crime
Control and
Prevention

District
Environmental
Management

Fort Worth
Housing
Finance

Corporation

Fort Worth
Local

Development
Corporation

HUD 108
Loan

Special
Projects

Culture
and

Tourism

ASSETS
Cash, Cash Equivalents, & Investments $ 2,809 $ 1,231 $ 10,723 $ 746 $ - $ 18,495 $ 19,143
Cash, Cash Equivalents, & Investments

Held by Trustees - - - - - 48 -
Receivables, Net of Allowance

for Uncollectible:
Grants and Other Governments 12,071 - - - - - -
Loans - - - - - - -
Interest 70 15 61 - - 41 50
Accounts and Other 830 359 2,540 582 - 291 4,508

Inventories (at Cost) - - 4,695 187 - - -
Prepaids, Deposits, and Other - - 12 13 - - -
Long-Term Loans Receivable - - - - - - -

Total Assets $ 15,780 $ 1,605 $ 18,031 $ 1,528 $ - $ 18,875 $ 23,701

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES, AND 
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)

Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 942 $ 104 $ 2,807 $ 116 $ - $ 188 $ 4,352
Construction Payable - - 3 - - 16 -
Escrow Accounts Payable - - 1 - - 396 -
Accrued Payroll 1,131 68 - - - 35 270
Other - - - - - - 7
Due to Other Funds - - - - - 663 -
Unearned Revenue - - - - - - 1,621

Total Liabilities 2,073 172 2,811 116 - 1,298 6,250

Deferred Inflows of Resources - - 1,895 153 - - -

Fund Balances (Deficit):
Nonspendable - - 2,552 13 - - -
Restricted 9,496 1,386 - - - 8,977 6,054
Committed 2,516 - - - - 440 -
Assigned 1,695 47 10,773 1,246 - 8,160 11,397
Unassigned (Deficit) - - - - - - -

Total Fund Balances (Deficit) 13,707 1,433 13,325 1,259 - 17,577 17,451

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balances (Deficit) $ 15,780 $ 1,605 $ 18,031   $ 1,528 $ - $ 18,875 $ 23,701
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Special Revenue Funds
Capital

Project Funds

Grants

Other
Blended

Component
Units

Other
Special

Revenue

Public
Improvement

Districts

Taxing
Increment

Reinvestment
Zones Golf

Botanic
Gardens

Special
Revenue

Funds
Subtotal

Other
Blended

Component
Units

Total
Nonmajor

Governmental
Funds

$ 378 $ 905 $ 13,247 $ 2,635 $ 41,539 $ 92 $ 655 $ 112,598 $ 869 $ 113,467

- - - - - - - 48 - 48

6,890 - - 7 - - - 18,968 - 18,968
13,890 - - - - - - 13,890 - 13,890

- - 16 7 97 - - 357 - 357
3 96 1,767 - - - 18 10,994 3 10,997
- - - - - 98 - 4,980 - 4,980
2 - - - - 9 - 36 - 36

13,081 - - - - - - 13,081 - 13,081

$ 34,244 $ 1,001 $ 15,030 $ 2,649 $ 41,636 $ 199 $ 673 $ 174,952 $ 872 $ 175,824

$ 1,612 $ - $ 4,881 $ 663 $ 410 $ 119 $ 90 $ 16,284 $ 436 $ 16,720
1 - - - - - - 20 - 20

77 - 1 - - - - 475 - 475
327 - 7 - - 80 94 2,012 - 2,012

7 - 84 - - - - 98 22 120
- - - - - - - 663 - 663

29,400 25 15 - - - - 31,061 871 31,932

31,424 25 4,988 663 410 199 184 50,613 1,329 51,942

3,394 - - - - - - 5,442 - 5,442

2 - - - - 107 - 2,674 - 2,674
- - 3,796 - 41,226 - - 70,935 - 70,935
- - - 1,172 - - - 4,128 - 4,128
- 976 6,246 814 - - 489 41,843 - 41,843

(576) - - - - (107) - (683) (457) (1,140)

(574) 976 10,042 1,986 41,226 - 489 118,897 (457) 118,440

$ 34,244 $ 1,001 $ 15,030 $ 2,649 $ 41,636 $ 199 $ 673 $ 174,952 $ 872 $ 175,824

138



CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Special Revenue Funds

Crime
Control and
Prevention

District
Environmental
Management

Fort Worth
Housing
Finance

Corporation

Fort Worth
Local

Development
Corporation

HUD 108
Loan

Special
Projects

Culture
and

Tourism

REVENUES:
General Property Taxes $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Sales Taxes 69,926 - - - - - -
Other Local Taxes - - - - - - 26,993
Charges for Services - 4,261 - - - 1,454 4,407
Licenses and Permits - - - - - - 17
Fines and Forfeitures - - - - - 655 -
Revenue from Use of Money and Property - - - 860 - 155 7,073
Investment Income (Loss) 302 30 184 12 - 257 (32)
Intergovernmental 5,020 - - - - 939 8,053
Gas Leases and Royalties - - 59 100 - - -
Other 453 17 929 - - 1,658 2,581
Contributions - - - - - 1,304 343

Total Revenues 75,701 4,308 1,172 972 - 6,422 49,435

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General Government - - - - - 1,078 -
Public Safety 56,798 3,806 - - - 725 -
Highways and Streets - - - - - - -
Culture and Recreation 1,264 - - - - 2,824 29,930
Health and Welfare - - - - - - -
Urban Redevelopment and Housing 410 - 594 1,898 - 8 -

Capital Outlay - - - - - 1,023 -
Debt Service:

Principal Retirement - - - 367 - - -
Interest and Debt Issuance Costs - - - 50 - - 1,656

Total Expenditures 58,472 3,806 594 2,315 - 5,658 31,586

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 17,229 502 578 (1,343) - 764 17,849

OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES):
Issuance of Long-Term Debt - - - - - - 226,880
Issuance of Capital Leases - - - - - - -
Construction Loans - - - - - - -
Premium on Issuance - - - - - - 11,121
Proceeds from Disposal of Property 77 - 2 - - 274 8
Transfers In - 373 - 2,586 - 185 1,213
Transfers Out (15,969) (7,265) - (211) (1,204) (8,992) (251,332)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (15,892) (6,892) 2 2,375 (1,204) (8,533) (12,110)

Net Change in Fund Balances (Deficit) 1,337 (6,390) 580 1,032 (1,204) (7,769) 5,739
Fund Balances (Deficit), Beginning of Year 12,370 7,823 12,745 227 1,204 25,346 11,712

Fund Balances (Deficit), End of Year $ 13,707 $ 1,433 $ 13,325 $ 1,259 $ - $ 17,577 $ 17,451
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Special Revenue Funds
Capital

Project Funds

Grants

Other
Blended

Component
Units

Other
Special

Revenue

Public
Improvement

Districts

Taxing
Increment

Reinvestment
Zones Golf

Botanic
Gardens

Special
Revenue

Funds
Subtotal

Other
Blended

Component
Units

Total
Nonmajor

Governmental
Funds

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ 16,615 $ - $ - $ 16,615 $ - $ 16,615
- - - - - - - 69,926 - 69,926
- - - - - - - 26,993 - 26,993
- - 2 772 - 3,526 668 15,090 - 15,090
- - - - - - - 17 - 17
- - 9,884 - - - - 10,539 - 10,539

1,153 - 979 - - - 173 10,393 467 10,860
156 - 21 42 406 (10) (4) 1,364 - 1,364

27,506 93 - - 9,217 - - 50,828 - 50,828
- 615 - - - - - 774 5 779
- - 2,402 5,790 - 15 3 13,848 - 13,848

241 - - - - - 157 2,045 895 2,940

29,056 708 13,288 6,604 26,238 3,531 997 218,432 1,367 219,799

1,237 - 5,413 6,357 20,631 - - 34,716 - 34,716
5,986 - - - - - - 67,315 - 67,315

779 - 6,491 - - - - 7,270 - 7,270
440 - - - - 4,822 3,377 42,657 - 42,657

10,843 - - - - - - 10,843 - 10,843
11,227 79 - - 6,444 - - 20,660 836 21,496

438 - - 118 - 575 - 2,154 4,443 6,597

- - - - 2,875 40 - 3,282 - 3,282
- 913 - - - 6 - 2,625 586 3,211

30,950 992 11,904 6,475 29,950 5,443 3,377 191,522 5,865 197,387

(1,894) (284) 1,384 129 (3,712) (1,912) (2,380) 26,910 (4,498) 22,412

- - - - - - - 226,880 - 226,880
- - - - - 575 - 575 - 575
- - - - 20,413 - - 20,413 6,224 26,637

- - - - - - - 11,121 - 11,121
- - - - - - - 361 1,413 1,774

761 912 400 - 153 1,081 2,952 10,616 - 10,616
(1,639) (400) (3,255) (125) (3,458) (13) (83) (293,946) (2,586) (296,532)

(878) 512 (2,855) (125) 17,108 1,643 2,869 (23,980) 5,051 (18,929)

(2,772) 228 (1,471) 4 13,396 (269) 489 2,930 553 3,483
2,198 748 11,513 1,982 27,830 269 - 115,967 (1,010) 114,957

$ (574) $ 976 $ 10,042 $ 1,986 $ 41,226 $ - $ 489 $ 118,897 $ (457) $ 118,440
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - OTHER BLENDED COMPONENT UNITS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Other Blended CU*
Special Revenue Funds

Other Blended CU*
Capital Project Funds

Fort
Worth
Sports

Authority

Lone Star
Local

Development
Corporation

Alliance
Airport

Authority Total

Lancaster
Corridor

LLC Fund

Central City
Local

Government
Corporation Total

ASSETS

Cash, Cash Equivalents, & Investments $ 775 $ - $ 130 $ 905 $ 811 $ 58 $ 869
Receivables, Net of Allowance

for Uncollectible
Accounts and Other 89 - 7 96 3 - 3

Total Assets $ 864 $ - $ 137 $ 1,001 $ 814 $ 58 $ 872

LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT)

Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 434 $ 2 $ 436
Other - - - - 22 - 22
Unearned Revenue 25 - - 25 31 840 871

Total Liabilities 25 - - 25 487 842 1,329

Fund Balances (Deficit):
Assigned 839 - 137 976 - - -
Unassigned (Deficit) - - - - 327 (784) (457)

Total Fund Balances (Deficit) 839 - 137 976 327 (784) (457)

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances (Deficit) $ 864 $ - $ 137 $ 1,001 $ 814 $ 58 $ 872

* - Component Units
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - OTHER BLENDED COMPONENT UNITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Other Blended CU*
Special Revenue Funds

Other Blended CU*
Capital Project Funds

Fort
Worth
Sports

Authority

Lone Star
Local

Development
Corporation

Alliance
Airport

Authority Total

Lancaster
Corridor

LLC Fund

Central City
Local

Government
Corporation Total

REVENUES:
Revenue from Use of Money and Property $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 454 $ 13 $ 467
Intergovernmental 93 - - 93 - - -
Gas Leases and Royalties 586 - 29 615 - 5 5
Contributions - - - - - 895 895

Total Revenues 679 - 29 708 454 913 1,367

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

Urban Redevelopment and Housing 67 - 12 79 758 78 836
Capital Outlay - - - - 3,834 609 4,443
Debt Service:

Interest and Debt Issuance Costs - 913 - 913 586 - 586

Total Expenditures 67 913 12 992 5,178 687 5,865

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 612 (913) 17 (284) (4,724) 226 (4,498)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Construction Loans - - - - 6,224 - 6,224
Proceeds from Disposal of Property - - - - 1,413 - 1,413
Transfers In - 912 - 912 - - -
Transfers Out - - (400) (400) (2,586) - (2,586)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - 912 (400) 512 5,051 - 5,051

Net Change in Fund Balances (Deficit) 612 (1) (383) 228 327 226 553
Fund Balances (Deficit), Beginning of Year 227 1 520 748 - (1,010) (1,010)

Fund Balances (Deficit), End of Year $ 839 $ - $ 137 $ 976 $ 327 $ (784) $ (457)

* - Component Units
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
CRIME CONTROL AND PREVENTION DISTRICT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Budgeted Amounts
Budgetary

Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive 

Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
Revenues:

Sales Taxes $ 67,395 $ 67,395 $ 69,926 $ 2,531
Revenue from Use of Money and Property 94 94 328 234
Intergovernmental 5,020 5,020 5,020 -
Other 60 60 453 393

Total Revenues 72,569 72,569 75,727 3,158

Other Financing Sources:
Proceeds from Disposal of Property 145 145 77 (68)

Total Other Financing Sources 145 145 77 (68)

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 72,714 72,714 75,804 3,090

Expenditures:
Departmental:

Neighborhood Services 788 579 410 169
Park and Recreation 1,055 1,264 1,264 -
Police 73,041 73,041 72,757 284

Total Expenditures 74,884 74,884 74,431 453

Contribution to / (Use of) Fund Balance $ (2,170) $ (2,170) $ 1,373 $ 3,543

Explanation of Differences Between Contribution to / (Use of) Fund Balance and GAAP Net Change in Fund Balance

Contribution to / (Use of) Fund Balance (Budgetary Basis) $ 1,373

Differences - Budgetary to GAAP:

Current year non-budgeted revenues treated as revenues for financial reporting purposes
(due to perspective difference) but not as budgetary inflows. (27)

Current year non-budgeted expenditures treated as expenditures for financial reporting purposes
(due to perspective difference) but not as budgetary inflows. (9)

Net Change in Fund Balance (GAAP Basis) $ 1,337
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Budgeted Amounts
Budgetary

Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive 

Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
Revenues:

Charges for Services $ 4,729 $ 4,356 $ 4,261 $ (95)
Revenue from Use of Money and Property 72 72 74 2
Other 13 13 17 4

Total Revenues 4,814 4,441 4,352 (89)

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers In - Other Funds - 373 373 -

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 4,814 4,814 4,725 (89)

Expenditures:
Departmental:

Code Compliance 7,364 7,364 7,248 116

Contribution to / (Use of) Fund Balance $ (2,550) $ (2,550) $ (2,523) $ 27

Explanation of Differences Between Budgetary Contribution to / (Use of) Fund Balance and GAAP Net Change in Fund Balance

Contribution to / (Use of) Fund Balance (Budgetary Basis) $ (2,523)

Differences - Budgetary to GAAP:

Current year non-budgeted expenditures treated as expenditures for financial reporting purposes
but not as budgetary outflows. (3,823)

Current year non-budgeted revenues treated as revenues for financial reporting purposes
(due to perspective difference) but not as budgetary inflows. (44)

Net Change in Fund Balance (GAAP Basis) $ (6,390)
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
CULTURE AND TOURISM FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Budgeted Amounts
Budgetary

Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive 

Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
Revenues:

Other Local Taxes $ 27,583 $ 27,583 $ 26,993 $ (590)
Charges for Services 3,368 3,417 4,407 990
Licenses and Permits 20 20 17 (3)
Revenue from Use of Money and Property 6,247 6,247 7,609 1,362
Intergovernmental 5,500 5,791 8,053 2,262
Other 1,943 1,975 2,579 604

Total Revenues 44,661 45,033 49,658 4,625

Other Financing Sources:
Proceeds from Disposal of Property - - 8 8
Transfers In - Other Funds 1,204 1,204 1,213 9
Issuance of Refunding Bonds/Premium - 238,001 238,001 -

Total Other Financing Sources 1,204 239,205 239,222 17

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 45,865 284,238 288,880 4,642

Expenditures:
Departmental:

Public Events and Facilities 45,865 284,283 282,909 1,374

Contribution to / (Use of) Fund Balance $ - $ (45) $ 5,971 $ 6,016

Explanation of Differences Between Contribution to / (Use of) Fund Balance and GAAP Net Change in Fund Balance

Contribution to / (Use of) Fund Balance (Budgetary Basis) $ 5,971

Differences - Budgetary to GAAP:

Current year non-budgeted revenues treated as revenues for financial reporting purposes
(due to perspective difference) but not as budgetary inflows. (223)

Current year non-budgeted expenditures treated as expenditures for financial reporting purposes
(due to perspective difference) but not as budgetary outflows. (9)

Net Change in Fund Balance (GAAP Basis) $ 5,739
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
OTHER SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Budgeted Amounts
Budgetary

Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive 

Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
Revenues:

Charges for Services $ 3 $ 3 $ 2 $ (1)
Fines and Forfeitures 8,784 9,201 9,884 683
Revenue from Use of Money and Property 554 554 979 425
Other 2,637 4,437 2,472 (1,965)

Total Revenues 11,978 14,195 13,337 (858)

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers In - Other Funds - - 400 400

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 11,978 14,195 13,737 (458)

Expenditures:
Departmental:

Property Management 6,197 7,997 5,413 2,584
Transportation and Public Works 9,204 9,746 9,746 -

Total Expenditures 15,401 17,743 15,159 2,584

Contribution to / (Use of) Fund Balance $ (3,423) $ (3,548) $ (1,422) $ 2,126

Explanation of Differences Between Contribution to / (Use of) Fund Balance and GAAP Net Change in Fund Balance

Contribution to / (Use of) Fund Balance (Budgetary Basis) $ (1,422)

Differences - Budgetary to GAAP:

Current year non-budgeted revenues treated as revenues for financial reporting purposes
(due to perspective difference) but not as budgetary inflows. (49)

Net Change in Fund Balance (GAAP Basis) $ (1,471)
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
PUBLIC IMPROVEMENT DISTRICTS FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Budgeted Amounts
Budgetary

Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive 

Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues:
Revenues:

Charges for Services $ 772 $ 772 $ 772 $ -
Revenue from Use of Money and Property - - 42 42
Other 5,925 5,925 5,790 (135)

Total Revenues 6,697 6,697 6,604 (93)

Expenditures:
Departmental:

Performance and Budget 7,265 7,271 6,600 671

Contribution to / (Use of) Fund Balance $ (568) $ (574) $ 4 $ 578
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
GOLF FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Budgeted Amounts
Budgetary

Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive 

Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
Revenues:

Charges for Services $ 4,661 $ 4,661 $ 3,526 $ (1,135)
Other 10 10 11 1

Total Revenues 4,671 4,671 3,537 (1,134)

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers In - Other Funds 615 1,165 1,081 (84)

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources 5,286 5,836 4,618 (1,218)

Expenditures:
Departmental:

Park and Recreation 5,286 5,836 4,880 956

Contribution to / (Use of) Fund Balance $ - $ - $ (262) $ (262)

Explanation of Differences Between Contribution to / (Use of) Fund Balance and GAAP Net Change in Fund Balance

Contribution to / (Use of) Fund Balance (Budgetary Basis) $ (262)

Differences - Budgetary to GAAP:

Current year non-budgeted other financing sources treated as other financing sources
for financial reporting purposes but not as budgetary inflows. 575

Current year non-budgeted expenditures treated as expenditures for financial reporting purposes
but not as budgetary outflows. (575)

Current year non-budgeted revenues treated as revenues for financial reporting purposes
(due to perspective difference) but not as budgetary inflows. (7)

Net Change in Fund Balance (GAAP Basis) $ (269)
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
BOTANIC GARDENS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Budgeted Amounts
Budgetary

Basis

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive 

Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues and Other Financing Sources:
Revenues:

Charges for Services $ - $ 552 $ 841 $ 289
Revenue from Use of Money and Property - - 157 157
Other - - 3 3

Total Revenues - 552 1,001 449

Other Financing Sources:
Transfers In - Other Funds - 2,908 2,952 44

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources - 3,460 3,953 493

Expenditures:
Departmental:

Park and Recreation - 3,460 3,460 -

Contribution to / (Use of) Fund Balance $ - $ - $ 493 $ 493

Explanation of Differences Between Contribution to / (Use) of Fund Balance and GAAP Net Change in Fund Balance

Contribution to / (Use of) Fund Balance (Budgetary Basis) $ 493

Differences - Budgetary to GAAP:

Current year non-budgeted revenues treated as revenues for financial reporting purposes
(due to perspective difference) but not as budgetary inflows. (4)

Net Change in Fund Balance (GAAP Basis) $ 489
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Nonmajor Enterprise Funds

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds are used to account for the acquisition, operation, and maintenance of governmental facilities
and services, which are entirely or predominantly self-supported by user charges.  The operations of Proprietary Funds are
accounted for in such manner as to show a profit or loss similar to comparable private enterprises. 

Municipal Airports Fund

The Municipal Airports Fund is used to account for the Meacham, Spinks (South Fort Worth) and Alliance (North Fort
Worth) Airport operations.  Revenues are derived principally from the hangar and terminal building rental, landing fees,
and fuel surcharges. 

Municipal Parking Fund

The Municipal Parking Fund is used to account for the operation of the Will Rogers Memorial Center parking system, the
Taylor Street garage, the Convention Center garage, the Houston Street garage, the Western Heritage garage, and several
surface lots located in the downtown area, as well as parking meters and parking compliance personnel.  The Fund’s
operations are financed by parking activities and office space rentals. 

Solid Waste Fund

The Solid Waste Fund is used to account for solid waste services provided to the residents of the City.  The Fund’s
operations are financed by trash collection utility fees and cart rentals. 
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Municipal
Airports

Municipal
Parking

Solid
Waste Total

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Assets
Current Assets:

Cash, Cash Equivalents, & Investments $ 3,733 $ 2,428 $ 19,201 $ 25,362
Interest Receivable - 16 73 89
Accounts and Other Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectible 608 21 6,631 7,260
Due from Other Funds 316 - - 316
Restricted Assets:  

Cash & Cash Equivalents 8,959 169 1,188 10,316

Total Current Assets 13,616 2,634 27,093 43,343

Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted Assets:  

Cash & Cash Equivalents 9,094 1,582 10,971 21,647
Cash, Cash Equivalents, & Investments Held by Trustees 32,878 - 5,481 38,359
Grants Receivable 9,336 - - 9,336
Interest Receivable 83 2 1 86

Total Restricted Assets 51,391 1,584 16,453 69,428

Advances to Other Funds 1,190 - 7,023 8,213
  
Capital Assets (at Cost):  

Land/Right of Way 153,251 1,561 5,695 160,507
Buildings 32,662 49,291 2,777 84,730
Infrastructure 244,274 8,134 17,445 269,853
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment 4,110 1,071 3,962 9,143
Construction in Progress 68,108 8 1,053 69,169
Accumulated Depreciation (172,572) (13,898) (13,699) (200,169)

Net Capital Assets 329,833 46,167 17,233 393,233

Total Noncurrent Assets 382,414 47,751 40,709 470,874

Total Assets 396,030 50,385 67,802 514,217

Deferred Outflows of Resources 3,718 3,988 14,309 22,015

Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources $ 399,748 $ 54,373 $ 82,111 $ 536,232

(continued)
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Municipal
Airports

Municipal
Parking

Solid
Waste Total

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES,
AND NET POSITION

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable $ 195 $ 276 $ 4,190 $ 4,661
Accrued Payroll 53 24 230 307

Current Portion of Long-Term Liabilities 106 2,461 951 3,518

Payables from Restricted Assets:
Construction Payable 6,506 29 268 6,803
Customer Deposits - - 913 913
Accrued Interest Payable - 140 7 147
Unearned Revenue 2,453 - - 2,453

Total Current Liabilities 9,313 2,930 6,559 18,802

Long-Term Liabilities:
Long-Term Liabilities Due in More Than One Year 10,892 43,865 48,362 103,119

Total Long-Term Liabilities 10,892 43,865 48,362 103,119

Total Liabilities 20,205 46,795 54,921 121,921

Deferred Inflows of Resources 190 77 3,241 3,508

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 323,327 4,510 13,450 341,287
Restricted for:

Debt Service - 700 496 1,196
Unrestricted 56,026 2,291 10,003 68,320

Total Net Position $ 379,353 $ 7,501 $ 23,949 $ 410,803

(concluded)
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Municipal
Airports

Municipal
Parking

Solid
Waste Total

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services $ 6,480 $ 7,863 $ 54,705 $ 69,048
Other 61 25 5,782 5,868

Total Operating Revenues 6,541 7,888 60,487 74,916

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel Services 2,882 1,080 12,063 16,025
Supplies and Materials 131 96 737 964
Contractual Services 2,351 2,421 42,924 47,696
Landfill Closure and Postclosure Cost - - 2,905 2,905
Depreciation 9,275 1,847 554 11,676

Total Operating Expenses 14,639 5,444 59,183 79,266

Operating Income (Loss) (8,098) 2,444 1,304 (4,350)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment Income 2,867 18 164 3,049
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Property and Equipment 11 - (21) (10)
Interest and Service Charges - (1,255) (87) (1,342)
Gas Leases and Royalties 4,245 - 76 4,321

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 7,123 (1,237) 132 6,018

Income (Loss) Before Transfers
and Contributions (975) 1,207 1,436 1,668

Transfers In 130 - 23 153
Transfers Out (187) (124) (6,042) (6,353)
Capital Contributions 52,112 - - 52,112

Changes in Net Position 51,080 1,083 (4,583) 47,580
Total Net Position, Beginning of Year 328,273 6,418 28,532 363,223

Total Net Position, End of Year $ 379,353 $ 7,501 $ 23,949 $ 410,803
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Municipal
Airports

Municipal
Parking

Solid
Waste Total

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Customers $ 6,239 $ 7,894 $ 54,468 $ 68,601
Receipts from Other Operating Sources 61 25 5,782 5,868
Payments to Employees (1,938) (660) (8,061) (10,659)
Payments to Vendors (2,498) (2,435) (43,333) (48,266)

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities 1,864 4,824 8,856 15,544

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Transfers In from Other Funds 130 - 23 153
Advances from Other Funds (24,863) - - (24,863)
Transfers Out to Other Funds (187) (124) (6,042) (6,353)
Due from Other Funds (316) - - (316)
Advances to Other Funds 1,925 - 3,500 5,425

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Noncapital Financing Activities (23,311) (124) (2,519) (25,954)

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Proceeds from Sale of Property and Equipment 11 - 1 12
Contributions 55,414 - - 55,414
Acquisition and Construction of Property, Plant and Equipment (49,425) (396) (1,097) (50,918)
Principal Paid on Long-Term Debt - (2,305) (468) (2,773)
Interest Paid on Long-Term Obligations - (1,734) (88) (1,822)
Bond Issuance Cost Paid - (2) - (2)

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Capital and Related Financing Activities 6,000 (4,437) (1,652) (89)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Receipts from Gas Leases and Royalties 4,245 - 76 4,321
Purchases of Investments (4,983) - - (4,983)
Sales of Investments 3,147 - - 3,147
Investment Income Received 2,837 33 119 2,989

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Investing Activities 5,246 33 195 5,474

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (10,201) 296 4,880 (5,025)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 34,044 3,883 31,961 69,888
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 23,843 $ 4,179 $ 36,841 $ 64,863

(continued)
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Municipal
Airports

Municipal
Parking

Solid
Waste Total

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:

Operating Income (Loss) $ (8,098) $ 2,444 $ 1,304 $ (4,350)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:
Depreciation 9,275 1,847 554 11,676
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:

Accounts and Other Receivables (247) 31 219 3
Prepaids, Deposits, and Other Assets 6 - - 6
Deferred Outflows of Resources (Pension) (2,160) (834) (9,092) (12,086)
Accounts Payable (16) 82 328 394
Accrued Payroll and Compensation (41) 20 129 108
Customer Deposits - - 25 25
Landfill Closure and Postclosure Liability - - 2,905 2,905
Other Postemployment Benefits Obligation 96 34 380 510
Net Pension Liability 3,092 1,218 12,703 17,013
Deferred Inflows of Resources (Pension) (43) (18) (118) (179)
Deferred Inflows of Resources (Service Concession Agreement) - - (481) (481)

Total Adjustments 9,962 2,380 7,552 19,894

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities $ 1,864 $ 4,824 $ 8,856 $ 15,544

The Cash and Cash Equivalents are reported in the
Statement of Net Position as follows:
Current - Cash, Cash Equivalents, & Investments $ 3,733 $ 2,428 $ 19,201 $ 25,362
Current Restricted - Cash & Cash Equivalents 8,959 169 1,188 10,316
Noncurrent Restricted - Cash & Cash Equivalents 9,094 1,582 10,971 21,647
Noncurrent Restricted - Cash, Cash Equivalents, &

Investments Held by Trustees 32,878 - 5,481 38,359
Less: Gas Well Investments Held by Trustees (30,821) - - (30,821)

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 23,843 $ 4,179 $ 36,841 $ 64,863

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities:
Capital Asset Contributions from Developers $ 15,569 $ - $ - $ 15,569
Capital Asset Transfers to Business-Type Activities - - (21) (21)
Amortization of Bond Premium - 660 - 660
Amortization of Bond Defeasement Loss - (187) - (187)
Change in Fair Value of Pooled Investments (149) (28) (188) (365)
Change in Fair Value on Non-Pooled Investments 2,033 - - 2,033

(concluded)

156



 

 

 

 

157



Internal Service Funds

Internal Service Funds have been established to account for the financing of goods and services provided by one
department to other City departments. 

Equipment Services Fund

The Equipment Services Fund is used to account for the maintenance, repair and rental operations of most City vehicles. 

Information Systems Fund

The Information Systems Fund is used to account for the management of all City's audio, visual, and computer related
equipment services, including application development, implementation of software systems, information technology
project management, database and geographic information systems support, and desktop, software, and hardware support. 

Capital Project Services Fund

The Capital Project Services Fund (formerly the Engineering Services Fund) is used to account for general engineering
services provided to various City departments. 

Group Health and Life Insurance

The Group Health and Life Insurance Fund accounts for medical benefits for City employees, and their eligible spouses
and/or dependents. 

Risk Financing

The fund includes administration of the City's commercial insurance program, self-insured programs, claims litigation
management, and subrogation.  This is to protect City resources and to minimize the financial impact when  losses do
occur.  Workers' Compensation is self-funded by the City.  Claims are handled by a third-party administrator or
contractor.  The City is a reimbursing agency for unemployment compensation.  The Texas Workforce Commission
(TWC) sends quarterly reports to the City concerning claims paid on behalf of the City to eligible former employees. 
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Equipment
Services

Information
Systems

Capital
Project
Services

Group Health
and Life

Insurance
Risk

Financing Total

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash, Cash Equivalents, & Investments $ 4,894 $ 5,683 $ 2,419 $ 19,653 $ 24,539 $ 57,188
Interest Receivable 15 27 6 47 58 153
Accounts and Other Receivables, Net of

Allowance for Uncollectible - 18 - - 503 521
Inventories (at Cost) 349 85 - - - 434
Prepaids, Deposits, and Other - 607 - - - 607

Total Current Assets 5,258 6,420 2,425 19,700 25,100 58,903

Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted Assets:

Cash & Cash Equivalents 1,445 2,721 - - 4,359 8,525
Cash, Cash Equivalents, & Investments Held

by Trustees - - - 1,928 800 2,728

Total Restricted Assets 1,445 2,721 - 1,928 5,159 11,253

Capital Assets (at Cost):
Land/Right of Way 1,119 - 4 - - 1,123
Buildings 4,656 594 - - - 5,250
Infrastructure 948 7 91 - - 1,046
Vehicles, Machinery and Equipment 2,145 3,533 1,805 - - 7,483
Construction in Progress 83 1,871 - - - 1,954
Accumulated Depreciation (6,507) (2,740) (1,861) - - (11,108)

Net Capital Assets 2,444 3,265 39 - - 5,748

Total Noncurrent Assets 3,889 5,986 39 1,928 5,159 17,001

Total Assets 9,147 12,406 2,464 21,628 30,259 75,904

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 2,112 851 77 3,873 645 7,558
Accrued Payroll 232 458 249 26 46 1,011

Current Portion of Long-Term Liabilities 588 1,044 547 8,079 9,326 19,584

Total Current Liabilities 2,932 2,353 873 11,978 10,017 28,153

Long-Term Liabilities:
Long-Term Liabilities Due in More Than One

Year 476 967 306 84 16,321 18,154

Total Long-Term Liabilities 476 967 306 84 16,321 18,154

Total Liabilities 3,408 3,320 1,179 12,062 26,338 46,307

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 2,444 3,265 39 - - 5,748
Unrestricted 3,295 5,821 1,246 9,566 3,921 23,849

Total Net Position $ 5,739 $ 9,086 $ 1,285 $ 9,566 $ 3,921 $ 29,597
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Equipment
Services

Information
Systems

Capital
Project
Services

Group Health
and Life

Insurance
Risk

Financing Total

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services $ 27,544 $ 30,604 $ 8,234 $ 78,220 $ 9,358 $ 153,960
Other 21 1,514 19 80 7,853 9,487

Total Operating Revenues 27,565 32,118 8,253 78,300 17,211 163,447

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel Services 8,553 13,839 6,382 1,897 1,640 32,311
Supplies and Materials 5,945 1,599 153 20 20 7,737
Contractual Services 11,168 18,253 1,177 81,650 14,879 127,127
Depreciation 185 302 66 - - 553

Total Operating Expenses 25,851 33,993 7,778 83,567 16,539 167,728

Operating Income (Loss) 1,714 (1,875) 475 (5,267) 672 (4,281)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment Income 21 86 10 57 103 277
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Property and Equipment 4 (493) 16 - 2 (471)

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 25 (407) 26 57 105 (194)

Income (Loss) Before Transfers 1,739 (2,282) 501 (5,210) 777 (4,475)

Transfers In - 4,847 - - - 4,847
Transfers Out (384) (222) (26) (9) (18) (659)

Changes in Net Position 1,355 2,343 475 (5,219) 759 (287)
Total Net Position, Beginning of Year 4,384 6,743 810 14,785 3,162 29,884

Total Net Position, End of Year $ 5,739 $ 9,086 $ 1,285 $ 9,566 $ 3,921 $ 29,597
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Equipment
Services

Information
Systems

Capital
Project
Services

Group Health
and Life

Insurance
Risk

Financing Total

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Other Funds $ 27,544 $ 31,724 $ 8,234 $ 78,220 $ 8,865 $ 154,587
Receipts from Other Operating Sources 21 1,514 19 80 7,853 9,487
Payments to Employees (8,366) (13,534) (6,261) (1,830) (1,637) (31,628)
Payments to Vendors (16,898) (20,096) (1,286) (20) (20) (38,320)
Payments for Benefits - - - (78,805) (15,461) (94,266)

Net Cash Provided by (Used for)

Operating Activities 2,301 (392) 706 (2,355) (400) (140)

Cash Flows from Noncapital
Financing Activities:
Transfers In from Other Funds - 4,847 - - - 4,847
Transfers Out to Other Funds (384) (222) (26) (9) (18) (659)

Net Cash Provided by (Used for)
Noncapital Financing Activities (384) 4,625 (26) (9) (18) 4,188

Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Financing Activities:
Proceeds from Sale of Property and Equipment 4 3 16 - 2 25
Acquisition and Construction of Property, Plant

and Equipment (107) (1,906) - - - (2,013)

Net Cash Provided by (Used for)

Capital Related Financing Activities (103) (1,903) 16 - 2 (1,988)

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Investment Income Received 13 70 4 34 71 192

Net Cash Provided by (Used for)

Investing Activities 13 70 4 34 71 192

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and
Cash Equivalents 1,827 2,400 700 (2,330) (345) 2,252

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 4,512 6,004 1,719 23,911 30,043 66,189

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year $ 6,339 $ 8,404 $ 2,419 $ 21,581 $ 29,698 $ 68,441
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Equipment
Services

Information
Systems

Capital
Project
Services

Group Health
and Life

Insurance
Risk

Financing Total

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) 
Operating Activities:

Operating Income (Loss) $ 1,714 $ (1,875) $ 475 $ (5,267) $ 672 $ (4,281)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income

(Loss) to Net Cash Provided by (Used for) 

Operating Activities:

Depreciation 185 302 66 - - 553
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:

Accounts and Other Receivables - 30 - - (493) (463)
Inventories (65) 2 - - - (63)
Prepaids, Deposits, and Other Assets - 1,090 - - - 1,090
Accounts Payable 280 (246) 44 2,948 324 3,350
Accrued Payroll and Compensation 187 305 121 67 3 683
Accrued Benefits - - - (103) (906) (1,009)

Total Adjustments 587 1,483 231 2,912 (1,072) 4,141

Net Cash Provided by (Used for)

Operating Activities $ 2,301 $ (392) $ 706 $ (2,355) $ (400) $ (140)

The Cash and Cash Equivalents are reported in
the Statement of Net Position as follows:
Current - Cash, Cash Equivalents, &

Investments $ 4,894 $ 5,683 $ 2,419 $ 19,653 $ 24,539 $ 57,188
Noncurrent Restricted - Cash &

Cash Equivalents 1,445 2,721 - - 4,359 8,525
Noncurrent Restricted - Cash, Cash Equivalents,

& Investments Held by Trustees - - - 1,928 800 2,728

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 6,339 $ 8,404 $ 2,419 $ 21,581 $ 29,698 $ 68,441

Noncash Investing, Capital, and
Financing Activities:
Change in Fair Value of Pooled Investments $ (43) $ (58) $ (16) $ (150) $ (168) $ (435)

162



 

 

 

 

163



Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held by the City as a trustee or agent.  Fiduciary Funds account for
assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or
other funds.  The City reports the following fiduciary funds: 

Retirement Pension Trust Fund 

For accounting measurement purposes, the Retirement Pension Trust Fund is accounted for in essentially the same manner
as proprietary funds.  The Retirement Pension Trust Fund accounts for the assets of the City's employees and employees
of the Employees’ Retirement Fund and issues separately audited financial statements.  Those statements can be obtained
by contacting the Employee’s Retirement Plan of the City of Fort Worth, 3801 Hulen St., Suite 101, Fort Worth, Texas,
76107. 

Retiree Healthcare Trust Fund 

For accounting measurement purposes, the Retiree Healthcare Trust Fund is accounted for in essentially the same manner
as proprietary funds.  The Retiree Healthcare Trust Fund accounts for the assets of the City's postemployment healthcare
benefit. 

164



CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
PENSION AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Retirement
Pension

Trust Fund

Retiree
Healthcare 
Trust Fund Total

ASSETS
Current Assets:  

Cash & Cash Equivalents $ 173 $ 303 $ 476
Cash & Investments Held by Trustees:

Assets and Mortgage Backed Obligations 65,630 - 65,630
Corporate Obligations 139,246 - 139,246
Government Agency Obligations 128,160 - 128,160
International Obligations 21,955 - 21,955
Securities Lending Collateral 132,585 - 132,585
U.S. Treasuries 62,284 - 62,284
Short-Term Mutual Fund Investments 72,131 72,229 144,360
Corporate Stock 422,051 - 422,051
Alternative Investments 626,693 - 626,693
Commingled Funds 797,263 - 797,263

Total Cash & Investments Held by Trustees 2,467,998 72,229 2,540,227
Prepaids 22 - 22
Accrued Income 4,329 2 4,331
Other Receivables 4,788 - 4,788
Due from Broker Securities Sold 268,133 - 268,133

Total Current Assets 2,745,443 72,534 2,817,977

Capital Assets (at Cost):  
Land 405 - 405
Buildings 3,472 - 3,472
Machinery and Equipment 292 - 292
Accumulated Depreciation (1,020) - (1,020)

Net Capital Assets 3,149 - 3,149

Total Assets 2,748,592 72,534 2,821,126

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:  

Accrued Liabilities 181 3,706 3,887
Obligations Under Securities Lending 132,586 - 132,586
Due to Broker Securities Purchased 340,776 - 340,776

Total Current Liabilities 473,543 3,706 477,249

NET POSITION
Net Position Held in Trust for Pension and Other Employee Benefits:  

Restricted for Pensions 2,275,049 - 2,275,049
Postemployment Healthcare Plan - 68,828 68,828

Total Net Position $ 2,275,049 $ 68,828 $ 2,343,877
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
PENSION AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS TRUST FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Retirement
Pension

Trust Fund

Retiree
Healthcare 
Trust Fund Total

ADDITIONS
Interest, Dividend, and Securities Lending Income $ 25,035 $ 3,039 $ 28,074
Less: Investment Management Fees and Interest Expense (6,476) (221) (6,697)
Net Gain (Loss) in Fair Value of Investments 217,715 670 218,385
Other Income 15,140 - 15,140
Employer Contributions 89,645 26,214 115,859
Employee/Retiree Contributions 36,087 7,218 43,305

Total Additions 377,146 36,920 414,066

DEDUCTIONS
Benefit Payments 194,769 25,804 220,573
Refunds 3,879 - 3,879
Administrative Expenses 4,882 9,402 14,284

Total Deductions 203,530 35,206 238,736

Change in Net Position 173,616 1,714 175,330
Net Position, Beginning of Year 2,101,433 67,114 2,168,547

Net Position, End of Year $ 2,275,049 $ 68,828 $ 2,343,877
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Water and
Sewer

Stormwater
Utility

Municipal
Airports

Municipal
Parking Solid Waste

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for Services $ 424,078 $ 37,016 $ 6,480 $ 7,863 $ 54,705
Other 1,537 1 61 25 5,301

Total Operating Revenues 425,615 37,017 6,541 7,888 60,006

OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel Services 67,799 7,704 1,942 667 8,084
Supplies and Materials 24,024 894 131 96 737
Contractual Services 147,819 7,199 2,351 2,421 42,924

Total Operating Expenses 239,642 15,797 4,424 3,184 51,745

Operating Income (Loss) 185,973 21,220 2,117 4,704 8,261

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment Income 3,649 609 966 39 216
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Property and Equipment 188 73 11 - 1
Interest and Service Charges (32,086) (7,283) - (1,737) (87)
Gas Leases and Royalties 2,183 - 4,245 - 76

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (26,066) (6,601) 5,222 (1,698) 206

Income (Loss) Before Transfers and Contributions 159,907 14,619 7,339 3,006 8,467

Transfers In 4,362 169 130 - 23
Transfers Out (27,621) (4,339) (187) (124) (6,042)
Capital Contributions 7,635 - 36,543 - -
Capital Contributions - Impact Fees 10,556 - - - -

Changes in Net Position $ 154,839 $ 10,449 $ 43,825 $ 2,882 $ 2,448

Reconciliation of Changes in Noncurrent Non-Cash
Revenues and Expenses:

OPERATING REVENUES:
Other $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 481

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel Services

Compensated Absences (3,982) (89) 44 (12) (107)
Net Pension Liability (34,001) (4,059) (889) (366) (3,492)
OPEB Liability (3,202) (389) (95) (35) (380)

Total Changes in Personnel Services (41,185) (4,537) (940) (413) (3,979)
Supplies and Materials (96) - - - -
Landfill Closure and Postclosure Costs - - - - (2,905)
Depreciation (73,756) (7,599) (9,275) (1,847) (554)

Total Changes in Operating Expenses (115,037) (12,136) (10,215) (2,260) (6,957)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment Income (Loss) (1,743) (325) 1,901 (21) (52)
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Property and Equipment (4,383) (206) - - (22)
Interest and Service Charges 14,205 5,111 - 482 -
Capital Contributions 47,550 3,916 15,569 - -

Total Changes In Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 55,629 8,496 17,470 461 (74)

(59,408) (3,640) 7,255 (1,799) (7,031)

154,839 10,449 43,825 2,882 2,448

Total Non-Cash Adjustments

Changes in Net Position per Schedule

Changes in Net Position on Fund Financial Statements $ 95,431 $ 6,809 $ 51,080 $ 1,083 $ (4,583)
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STATISTICAL SECTION
(Unaudited)

The City of Fort Worth comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context for
understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary
information say about the City's overall financial health.

Tables

Financial Trends These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City's
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

1-4

Revenue Capacity These schedules present information to help the reader assess the City's most significant
local revenue source, the property tax.

5-12

Debt Capacity These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City's
current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt in the future.

13-18

Demographic &
Economic Information

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand
the environment within which the City's financial activities take place.

19-28

Operating Information These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how
the information in the City's financial report relates to the services the City provides and the
activities it performs.

29-31

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these tables is derived from the comprehensive annual financial
reports for the relevant year.
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
NET POSITION BY COMPONENT
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (Unaudited)
(accrual basis of accounting)
(in 000's)

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Governmental Activities:
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 986,163 $ 979,581 $ 943,984 $ 1,015,491 $ 1,005,900
Restricted for Debt Service 15,974 15,613 16,437 5,478 9,047
Restricted for Capital Projects - - 8,393 12,818 17,350
Unrestricted (Deficit) (a) 28,762 19,795 32,197 (32,846) (53,101)

Total Governmental Activities Net Position (Deficit) $ 1,030,899 $ 1,014,989 $ 1,001,011 $ 1,000,941 $ 979,196

Business-Type Activities:
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 1,459,733 $ 1,560,269 $ 1,594,876 $ 1,569,470 $ 1,715,508
Restricted for Debt Service 35,859 41,532 37,739 42,407 29,919
Restricted for Capital Projects - - 67,661 47,464 39,715
Unrestricted (Deficit) 258,686 232,086 224,958 327,535 261,406

Total Business-Type Activities Net Position $ 1,754,278 $ 1,833,887 $ 1,925,234 $ 1,986,876 $ 2,046,548

Primary Government:
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 2,445,896 $ 2,539,850 $ 2,538,860 $ 2,584,961 $ 2,721,408
Restricted for Debt Service 51,833 57,145 54,176 47,885 38,966
Restricted for Capital Projects - - 76,054 60,282 57,065
Unrestricted (Deficit) 287,448 251,881 257,155 294,689 208,305

Total Primary Government Net Position $ 2,785,177 $ 2,848,876 $ 2,926,245 $ 2,987,817 $ 3,025,744

Source: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the respective years.

(a) For FY2015, decrease due to GASB 68 Implementation.
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TABLE 1

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

$ 1,053,547 $ 1,092,890 $ 1,228,012 $ 1,302,450 $ 1,392,113
1,660 2,616 6,585 10,977 29,259

23,512 33,367 45,773 42,877 57,721
(128,038) (214,634) (1,552,115) (1,677,201) (1,995,603)

$ 950,681 $ 914,239 $ (271,745) $ (320,897) $ (516,510)

$ 1,850,152 $ 1,864,396 $ 1,990,723 $ 2,052,536 $ 2,242,924
34,513 27,641 3,852 10,576 13,146
35,852 33,276 26,070 15,221 26,028

216,989 290,454 117,473 181,027 127,082

$ 2,137,506 $ 2,215,767 $ 2,138,118 $ 2,259,360 $ 2,409,180

$ 2,903,699 $ 2,957,286 $ 3,218,735 $ 3,354,986 $ 3,635,037
36,173 30,257 10,437 21,553 42,405
59,364 66,643 71,843 58,098 83,749
88,951 75,820 (1,434,642) (1,496,174) (1,868,521)

$ 3,088,187 $ 3,130,006 $ 1,866,373 $ 1,938,463 $ 1,892,670
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (Unaudited)
(accrual basis of accounting)
(in 000's)

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Expenses
Governmental Activities:

General Government $ 161,180 $ 111,114 $ 112,638 $ 118,104 $ 108,632

Public Safety 359,813 379,865 391,755 407,601 422,626

Highways and Streets - - - - -

Culture and Recreation 51,145 55,110 55,022 57,815 60,089

Health and Welfare 11,077 1,292 - - -

Urban Redevelopment and Housing - - - - -

Transportation and Public Works 100,276 117,540 108,481 128,611 133,691

Public Library 18,633 20,200 20,531 22,348 22,102

Public Events and Facilities 27,453 32,204 28,020 32,844 33,152

Planning and Development 11,751 14,654 12,520 13,534 13,156

Housing and Economic Development 14,733 27,558 37,944 35,699 24,382

Interest and Service Charges 20,689 26,910 29,220 31,472 31,130

Total Governmental Activities 776,750 786,447 796,131 848,028 848,960

Business-Type Activities:
Water and Sewer 240,960 260,544 269,723 288,452 306,476

Stormwater Utility 11,339 14,265 19,961 18,972 20,773

Municipal Airports 12,480 12,238 12,656 13,356 14,912

Municipal Parking 586 2,067 3,552 5,851 6,580

Solid Waste 41,478 44,296 39,241 44,247 46,415

Municipal Golf (a) 6,174 6,126 5,949 5,864 7,723

Total Business-Type Activities 313,017 339,536 351,082 376,742 402,879

Total Primary Government Expenses $ 1,089,767 $ 1,125,983 $ 1,147,213 $ 1,224,770 $ 1,251,839

Program Revenues
Governmental Activities:

Charges for Services:
General Government $ 17,549 $ 19,213 $ 16,903 $ 14,701 $ 5,436

Public Safety 21,374 22,506 18,306 19,925 22,722

Highways and Streets - - - - -

Culture and Recreation 1,392 1,826 1,988 2,750 3,165

Health and Welfare 3,300 312 - - -

Urban Redevelopment and Housing - - - - -

Transportation and Public Works 4,415 4,381 6,469 10,627 14,738

Public Library 724 668 601 666 670

Public Events and Facilities 6,861 8,515 8,838 9,749 8,822

Planning and Development 11,659 10,262 10,776 11,673 10,336

Housing and Economic Development 1,608 2,334 1,979 3,028 2,683

Operating Grants and Contributions 34,014 35,532 56,798 56,825 47,644

Capital Grants and Contributions 63,088 40,063 35,987 54,686 55,075

Total Governmental Activities 165,984 145,612 158,645 184,630 171,291

Business-Type Activities:
Charges for Services:

Water and Sewer 298,118 303,111 304,831 348,650 345,373

Stormwater Utility 17,753 20,803 26,530 29,397 32,615

Municipal Airports 3,157 3,406 3,987 4,800 4,755

Municipal Parking 4,099 4,533 6,394 7,635 7,725

Solid Waste 44,095 45,465 46,710 48,314 48,502

Municipal Golf (a) 5,169 5,072 4,374 4,260 4,388

Capital Grants and Contributions 44,127 54,827 31,186 18,846 27,578

Total Business-Type Activities 416,518 437,217 424,012 461,902 470,936

Total Primary Government Program Revenues $ 582,502 $ 582,829 $ 582,657 $ 646,532 $ 642,227
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TABLE 2

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

$ 114,575 $ 173,634 $ 202,450 $ 160,124 $ 152,609

431,362 424,289 529,188 551,562 698,059

- - 131,535 154,346 157,108

62,626 62,167 129,115 128,444 174,426

- - 3,548 6,863 11,076

- - 36,544 68,782 76,190

129,820 147,429 - - -

21,736 20,842 - - -

35,545 32,876 - - -

14,145 12,382 - - -

20,388 18,402 - - -

34,366 31,522 26,448 30,493 31,636

864,563 923,543 1,058,828 1,100,614 1,301,104

302,447 317,526 340,113 358,053 376,755

22,531 23,745 28,198 24,365 30,238

18,768 23,089 14,194 20,519 14,628

6,621 6,649 7,602 7,387 6,699

48,903 48,420 52,586 53,089 59,292

5,614 5,396 - - -

404,884 424,825 442,693 463,413 487,612

$ 1,269,447 $ 1,348,368 $ 1,501,521 $ 1,564,027 $ 1,788,716

$ 5,933 $ 6,575 $ 19,229 $ 22,900 $ 25,075

25,339 23,023 9,984 13,110 12,463

- - 13,884 12,549 12,952

2,990 4,021 20,266 19,491 17,137

- - - - -

- - 13,344 20,824 18,356

14,984 14,683 - - -

629 608 - - -

10,814 11,421 - - -

11,497 11,308 - - -

4,845 1,998 - - -

45,173 43,700 37,810 61,189 54,497

52,682 69,149 62,794 76,667 123,816

174,886 186,486 177,311 226,730 264,296

352,005 361,853 389,188 415,125 424,078

34,973 35,409 36,185 36,887 37,016

4,662 5,074 5,437 6,078 6,480

7,105 7,082 7,310 7,815 7,863

50,344 50,338 52,373 54,003 54,705

3,859 3,621 - - -

35,910 42,682 88,617 87,851 121,769

488,858 506,059 579,110 607,759 651,911

$ 663,744 $ 692,545 $ 756,421 $ 834,489 $ 916,207

(continued)
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (Unaudited)
(accrual basis of accounting)
(in 000's)

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Net (Expense) and Revenue
Governmental Activities $ (610,766) $ (640,835) $ (637,486) $ (663,398) $ (677,669)

Business-Type Activities 103,501 97,681 72,930 85,160 68,057

Total Primary Government Net Expense $ (507,265) $ (543,154) $ (564,556) $ (578,238) $ (609,612)

General Revenues and Changes in Net Position (Deficit)
Governmental Activities:

Taxes:
General Property Taxes $ 317,517 $ 344,172 $ 354,815 $ 341,820 $ 351,277

Other Local Taxes 183,833 173,559 174,092 179,802 188,884

Franchise Fees 36,749 34,717 35,148 45,178 47,190

Gas Leases and Royalties 28,684 13,866 13,963 23,506 15,758

Investment Income 18,615 15,746 11,572 8,601 7,795

Other 6,896 14,465 14,688 13,744 16,593

Transfers 19,340 27,957 18,867 47,169 28,427

Insurance Recoveries - - - - -

Special Items - - - - -

Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Capital Assets 401 430 352 3,508 -

Assessments 30 13 11 - -

Total Governmental Activities 612,065 624,925 623,508 663,328 655,924

Business-Type Activities:
Gas Leases and Royalties 21,424 5,540 23,708 11,298 7,440

Investment Income 18,647 9,605 7,687 5,283 6,666

Other 7,857 4,202 5,889 7,070 5,936

Transfers (19,340) (27,957) (18,867) (47,169) (28,427)

Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Capital Assets (13,803) (237) - - -

Total Business-Type Activities 14,785 (8,847) 18,417 (23,518) (8,385)

Total Primary Government $ 626,850 $ 616,078 $ 641,925 $ 639,810 $ 647,539

Changes in Net Position (Deficit)
Governmental Activities $ 1,299 $ (15,910) $ (13,978) $ (70) $ (21,745)

Business-Type Activities 118,286 88,834 91,347 61,642 59,672

Total Primary Government $ 119,585 $ 72,924 $ 77,369 $ 61,572 $ 37,927

Implementation of New Accounting Standard and
Change in Accounting $ - $ (9,225) $ - $ - $ -

Source: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the respective years.

Expenditure and Revenue Functions for Governmental Activities were realigned in Fiscal Year 2015.

(a) The Municipal Golf Fund was transferred to Governmental Activities in Fiscal Year 2015.
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TABLE 2

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

$ (689,677) $ (737,057) $ (881,517) $ (873,884) $ (1,036,808)

83,974 81,234 136,417 144,346 164,299

$ (605,703) $ (655,823) $ (745,100) $ (729,538) $ (872,509)

$ 361,568 $ 389,118 $ 413,687 $ 426,247 $ 452,357

203,417 217,799 226,028 235,146 250,669

49,489 51,205 53,129 49,031 50,078

10,834 16,500 15,717 18,485 9,063

3,149 8,622 6,025 3,703 7,239

16,069 20,582 37,594 33,410 38,160

29,282 21,913 55,535 51,233 33,629

- - - 7,477 -

- - 31,490 - -

1,316 - - - -

- - - - -

675,124 725,739 839,205 824,732 841,195

12,377 12,989 8,372 15,869 6,504

1,661 6,077 3,475 2,809 5,240

22,228 5,861 6,087 9,451 7,406

(29,282) (21,913) (55,535) (51,233) (33,629)

- - - - -

6,984 3,014 (37,601) (23,104) (14,479)

$ 682,108 $ 728,753 $ 801,604 $ 801,628 $ 826,716

$ (14,553) $ (11,318) $ (42,312) $ (49,152) $ (195,613)

90,958 84,248 98,816 121,242 149,820

$ 76,405 $ 72,930 $ 56,504 $ 72,090 $ (45,793)

$ (13,962) $ (31,111) $ (1,320,137) $ - $ -

(concluded)
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
FUND BALANCES, GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (Unaudited)
(modified accrual basis of accounting)
(in 000's)

2008 2009 2010 2011* 2012

General Fund
Reserved $ 16,384 $ 15,885 $ 23,114 $ - $ -
Unreserved 106,271 127,656 139,779 - -
Nonspendable - - - 10,194 10,910
Restricted - - - 646 2,735
Committed - - - 54,183 60,231
Assigned - - - 45,447 38,789
Unassigned - - - 53,137 55,760

Total General Fund 122,655 143,541 162,893 163,607 168,425

All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved 37,620 44,371 51,485 - -
Unreserved, designated for authorized expenditures 252,744 443,043 422,310 - -
Unreserved, undesignated special revenue funds 16,695 33,296 17,156 - -
Nonspendable, reported in:

Capital Projects - - - 12,422 314
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - - - 11,119 2,854

Restricted, reported in:
Debt Service - - - 10,599 16,890
Capital Projects - - - 189,432 336,582
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - - - 44,663 45,153

Committed, reported in:
Debt Service - - - 6,393 6,106
Capital Projects - - - 127,787 126,653
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - - - 19,974 20,674

Assigned, reported in:
Debt Service - - - 478 92
Capital Projects - - - 36,163 36,107
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - - - 51,999 48,497

Unassigned (Deficit), reported in:
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - - - (465) -

Total All Other Governmental Funds 307,059 520,710 490,951 510,564 639,922

Total All Governmental Funds $ 429,714 $ 664,251 $ 653,844 $ 674,171 $ 808,347

Source: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the respective years. 

* In Fiscal Year 2011, the City implemented GASB 54. The amounts prior to 2011 above have not been restated for the implementation of GASB
54.
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TABLE 3

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

$ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
- - - - -

11,723 5,180 5,427 27,823 2,953
9,047 3,045 12,153 12,738 9,886

74,177 11,768 22,508 22,924 29,009
8,005 8,755 193 - -

58,383 57,294 84,280 68,436 93,601

161,335 86,042 124,561 131,921 135,449

- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -

802 752 601 531 412
1,671 2,930 3,891 5,294 2,674

9,701 8,263 17,497 22,680 38,018
323,970 211,029 160,074 235,075 313,630
59,590 90,328 95,981 74,775 70,935

7,694 11,436 7,993 8,583 10,333
130,655 126,850 149,945 129,279 218,254
34,609 30,240 4,372 6,458 4,128

24 107 199 107 3,945
36,781 35,414 44,104 62,372 74,194
41,060 43,919 33,932 30,224 41,843

(3,795) (1,620) (785) (1,794) (1,140)

642,762 559,648 517,804 573,584 777,226

$ 804,097 $ 645,690 $ 642,365 $ 705,505 $ 912,675
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (Unaudited)
(modified accrual basis of accounting)
(in 000's)

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

REVENUES:
General Property Taxes $ 317,920 $ 343,973 $ 353,606 $ 343,954 $ 351,540
Other Local Taxes 183,833 173,559 174,092 179,802 188,884
Franchise Fees - - - 45,178 47,190
Charges for Services 22,323 20,494 13,313 14,390 15,975
Licenses and Permits 52,475 49,870 52,429 18,447 12,011
Fines and Forfeitures 15,513 18,738 19,652 24,705 25,598
Revenue from Use of Money and Property 14,319 15,821 15,612 15,577 14,988
Investment Income 18,449 15,364 11,385 8,502 7,695
Intergovernmental 32,204 46,691 65,753 70,276 53,354
Gas Leases and Royalties 28,658 13,866 13,963 23,506 15,758
Other 6,815 12,592 14,610 13,696 16,554
Contributions 12,213 12,263 12,594 12,154 12,633
Assessments 30 13 11 - -

Total Revenues 704,752 723,244 747,020 770,187 762,180

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

General Government 105,942 103,235 105,557 109,265 99,112
Public Safety 308,374 320,527 331,529 348,165 368,224
Highways and Streets - - - - -
Culture and Recreation 41,507 46,195 46,115 48,544 51,036
Health and Welfare 10,706 1,199 - - -
Urban Redevelopment and Housing - - - - -
Transportation and Public Works 35,420 46,083 36,414 46,853 53,822
Public Library 17,626 17,151 17,593 19,355 19,209
Public Events and Facilities 22,806 26,116 22,033 26,692 28,058
Planning and Development 11,768 12,926 10,871 12,074 11,865
Housing and Economic Development 14,461 26,282 36,445 34,073 23,158

Capital Outlay 103,778 114,595 129,407 137,100 107,625
Debt Service:

Principal Retirement 38,368 46,160 46,397 47,351 53,925
Interest and Debt Issuance Costs 24,542 25,301 29,169 31,451 30,277

Total Expenditures 735,298 785,770 811,530 860,923 846,311

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over
(Under) Expenditures (30,546) (62,526) (64,510) (90,736) (84,131)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Issuance of Long-Term Debt - 253,565 34,685 101,665 170,970
Issuance of Special Assessment Debt - - - - -
Issuance of Tax Notes - - - - -
Issuance of Capital Leases 26,241 9,066 - 4,419 -
Construction Loans - - - - -
Premium on Issuance - 9,792 - 12,554 32,956
Proceeds from Disposal of Property 336 1,049 386 4,444 286
Issuance of Refunding Bonds - - - 46,680 50,305
Payment to Bond Escrow Agent - - - (54,299) (60,437)
Refunded Bonds Redeemed - - - (9,146) -
Insurance Recoveries - - - - -
Transfers In 117,591 87,407 86,864 161,129 470,463
Transfers Out (98,425) (63,816) (67,832) (156,383) (446,236)

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 45,743 297,063 54,103 111,063 218,307

Net Change in Fund Balances $ 15,197 $ 234,537 $ (10,407) $ 20,327 $ 134,176

Debt Service as a Percentage of Noncapital
Expenditures %9.96 %10.64 %11.10 %10.80 %11.38

Source: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the respective years.

Expenditure and Revenue Functions for Governmental Activities were realigned in Fiscal Year 2015. 
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TABLE 4

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

$ 357,673 $ 389,490 $ 414,419 $ 424,458 $ 452,843
203,417 217,153 225,382 234,500 250,023
49,489 51,205 53,129 49,031 50,078
16,693 18,284 22,306 37,588 39,864
12,179 12,771 12,750 15,325 16,881
28,246 26,968 25,325 18,056 17,062
19,915 15,614 16,326 15,715 12,432
3,129 8,200 5,131 3,601 6,952

59,111 79,239 61,403 72,493 63,364
10,834 16,500 15,717 18,485 9,063
16,069 22,315 30,407 33,138 31,879
17,208 9,840 12,177 13,928 11,515

- - - - -

793,963 867,579 894,472 936,318 961,956

106,907 163,945 177,549 124,281 103,325
381,513 389,058 393,715 443,730 465,575

- - 40,750 56,759 47,146
53,883 54,711 100,930 102,239 132,014

- - 3,109 6,716 10,843
- - 31,125 51,470 60,093

47,598 71,106 - - -
18,991 18,763 - - -
30,528 28,324 - - -
12,875 11,656 - - -
19,259 17,536 - - -

170,502 206,450 178,970 184,317 175,367

75,611 88,923 70,939 70,484 79,491
37,517 35,044 31,121 32,265 36,566

955,184 1,085,516 1,028,208 1,072,261 1,110,420

(161,221) (217,937) (133,736) (135,943) (148,464)

68,570 19,270 40,000 103,000 226,880
- - - - 12,685
- - - - 32,605
- 344 - - 575

18,443 46,865 37,356 40,373 26,637
5,150 364 18,668 21,131 11,192
9,090 1,340 2,394 533 15,619

25,795 - 127,162 27,500 -
(27,286) - (154,840) (47,650) -

- - - - -
- - - 7,477 -

109,939 143,754 162,071 162,483 389,685
(52,730) (181,450) (102,400) (115,764) (360,244)

156,971 30,487 130,411 199,083 355,634

$ (4,250) $ (187,450) $ (3,325) $ 63,140 $ 207,170

%14.41 %14.16 %12.00 %11.47 %12.41
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS TABLE 5
ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE
OF TAXABLE PROPERTY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (Unaudited)
(in 000's)

Net Assessed Valuation(a) Total Direct

Fiscal Year Real(b) Personal(c) Total Taxable Tax Rate(d)

2008 $ 29,566,579 $ 8,065,831 $ 37,632,410 0.8550

2009 32,915,645 7,954,958 40,870,603 0.8550

2010 33,504,557 8,346,458 41,851,015 0.8550

2011 32,195,274 8,826,794 41,022,068 0.8550

2012 33,932,556 8,053,487 41,986,043 0.8550

2013 35,892,406 7,805,257 43,697,663 0.8550

2014 34,792,449 7,628,240 42,420,689 0.8550

2015 37,644,135 8,286,957 45,931,092 0.8550

2016 40,839,940 8,819,802 49,659,742 0.8550

2017 41,193,832 8,511,146 49,704,978 0.8350

Source: Tarrant County Appraisal District, Denton County Appraisal District, Parker County Appraisal District and Wise County Appraisal District.

(a) The Assessed Value is 100%. Valuation shown for 2008 to 2017 are from Tarrant, Denton, Parker and Wise County.

(b) Real properties include: residential, commercial and industrial.

(c) Includes personal properties such as; billboards, oil, gas, minerals, utilities, aircraft/mobile home

(d) Tax rate per $100 of valuation.

 Although the City of Fort Worth extends into Johnson County, the City limits within this jurisdiction do not include any taxable property.
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS TABLE 6
PROPERTY TAX RATES - ALL DIRECT AND
OVERLAPPING TAX RATES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (Unaudited)
(Per $100 of Assessed Value)

City Direct Rates(a) Overlapping Rates(a)

Fiscal Year
Ended Sept. 30

Operating
General Rates

General
Obligation

Debt Service Total
Fort Worth

ISD
Tarrant
County

Tarrant
County Hospital

District

Tarrant
County College

District

2008 $ 0.7209 $ 0.1341 $ 0.8550 $ 1.1900 $ 0.2665 $ 0.2300 $ 0.1390

2009 0.7109 0.1441 0.8550 1.2570 0.2640 0.2279 0.1380

2010 0.7109 0.1441 0.8550 1.3220 0.2640 0.2279 0.1376

2011 0.7109 0.1441 0.8550 1.3220 0.2640 0.2279 0.1490

2012 0.7009 0.1541 0.8550 1.3220 0.2640 0.2279 0.1490

2013 0.6859 0.1691 0.8550 1.3220 0.2640 0.2279 0.1490

2014 0.6759 0.1791 0.8550 1.3220 0.2640 0.2279 0.1495

2015 0.6759 0.1791 0.8550 1.3220 0.2640 0.2279 0.1495

2016 0.6759 0.1791 0.8550 1.3520 0.2640 0.2279 0.1495

2017 0.6615 0.1735 0.8350 1.3520 0.2540 0.2279 0.1447

(a) Source - Tarrant County Appraisal District.
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS TABLE 7
PROPERTY TAXES LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (Unaudited)
(in 000's)

Taxes Levied
Collected Within the

Fiscal Year of the Levy Collections in Total Collections to Date

Fiscal Year for the Fiscal Year
Current Tax
Collections Percentage of Levy

Subsequent
Years

Total Tax
Collections Percentage of Levy

2008 $ 320,668 $ 315,147 98.28% $ 4,107 $ 319,254 99.56%

2009 350,946 343,530 97.89% 5,049 348,579 99.33%

2010 362,551 354,605 97.81% 3,842 358,447 98.87%

2011 350,050 343,622 98.16% 4,217 347,839 99.37%

2012 358,954 352,784 98.28% 4,138 356,922 99.43%

2013 366,361 359,890 98.23% 3,078 362,968 99.07%

2014 377,584 370,904 98.23% 2,784 373,688 98.97%

2015 402,370 393,691 97.84% 3,300 396,991 98.66%

2016 424,203 416,304 98.14% 1,665 417,969 98.53%

2017 453,954 444,015 97.81% - 444,015 97.81%

Source: Tarrant County Tax Office
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS TABLE 8
PROPERTY TAX RATE TREND
LAST TWENTY FISCAL YEARS (Unaudited)

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

$ 0.9200 $ 0.8975 $ 0.8850 $ 0.8750 $ 0.8650 $ 0.8650 $ 0.8650 $ 0.8650 $ 0.8650 $ 0.8600

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

$ 0.8550 $ 0.8550 $ 0.8550 $ 0.8550 $ 0.8550 $ 0.8550 $ 0.8550 $ 0.8550 $ 0.8550 $ 0.8350

Source: Budget and Research Division, FMS, City of Fort Worth
Tax rate per $100 of Assessed Value

*Y-Axis adjusted for reader clarity
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS TABLE 9
APPRAISED VALUE BY TYPE (Unaudited)
(Inflation Adjusted)

Appraisal Year 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
TAD Value By Type

Real Estate Residential $ 26,088,463,777 $ 27,838,438,625 $ 28,893,726,041 $ 32,960,279,993 $ 36,684,054,659
Real Estate Commercial 21,136,215,188 22,125,666,464 23,127,040,927 26,237,285,606 30,561,203,577
Real Estate Industrial 661,971,949 685,102,871 688,895,285 764,749,581 716,000,835
Personal Property Commercial 8,499,074,603 9,012,689,484 9,174,950,221 10,274,347,397 10,485,835,883
Personal Property Industrial 2,073,079,041 2,204,318,829 2,372,534,332 2,330,591,133 2,381,273,287
Mineral Lease Properties 717,615,030 780,730,910 842,034,470 280,114,160 270,687,240
Agricultural Properties 519,392,178 496,920,328 16,132,705 13,590,832 6,042,630

Total TAD Value $ 59,695,811,766 $ 63,143,867,511 $ 65,115,313,981 $ 72,860,958,702 $ 81,105,098,111

Total CFW Value $ 61,219,914,707 $ 64,934,531,075 $ 67,008,399,264 $ 74,906,924,377 $ 83,712,155,148
% of CFW Value %97.5 %97.2 %97.2 %97.3 %96.9

Source: Tarrant Appraisal District Certified Tax Report.

Values reported are for Tarrant County only.

(a) Apartment complexes (multi-family) are included in the commercial category.
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
PROPERTY TAX REVENUE
LAST TWENTY FISCAL YEARS (Unaudited)

Fiscal Year 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Value (000s) $ 140,833 $ 147,760 $ 157,430 $ 172,908 $ 191,563 $ 208,112 $ 222,111 $ 235,643 $ 259,483 $ 289,177
Percent Change %4.92 %6.54 %9.83 %10.79 %8.64 %6.73 %6.09 %10.12 %11.44

Source: Financial Reporting Division, FMS, City of Fort Worth
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TABLE 10

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

$ 317,290 $ 343,973 $ 353,606 $ 343,954 $ 351,540 $ 357,673 $ 389,490 $ 414,419 $ 424,458 $ 452,843
%9.72 %8.41 %2.80 %(2.73) %2.21 %1.74 %8.90 %6.40 %2.42 %6.69
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
PROPERTY TAX REVENUE (Per Capita)
LAST TWENTY FISCAL YEARS (Unaudited)

Fiscal Year 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Value (000s) (a) $ 140,833 $ 147,760 $ 157,430 $ 172,908 $ 191,563 $ 208,112 $ 222,111 $ 235,643 $ 259,483 $ 289,177
Population (b) 494,150 504,850 534,694 540,950 557,750 579,250 597,150 624,850 664,100 686,850
Value Per Capita $ 285 $ 293 $ 294 $ 320 $ 343 $ 359 $ 372 $ 377 $ 391 $ 421
Percent Change %2.81 %0.34 %8.84 %7.19 %4.66 %3.62 %1.34 %3.71 %7.67

(a) Source: Financial Reporting Division, FMS, City of Fort Worth

(b) Source: See Table 19 - Demographic and Economic Statistics
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TABLE 11

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

$ 317,290 $ 343,973 $ 353,606 $ 343,954 $ 351,540 $ 357,673 $ 389,490 $ 414,419 $ 424,458 $ 452,843
702,850 720,250 741,206 748,450 757,810 767,560 781,100 792,720 833,319 874,532

$ 451 $ 478 $ 477 $ 460 $ 464 $ 466 $ 499 $ 523 $ 509 $ 518
%7.13 %5.99 %(0.21) %(3.56) %0.87 %0.43 %7.08 %4.81 %(2.68) %1.77
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS TABLE 12
PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO (Unaudited)
(in 000's)

2017(a) 2008(b)

Name of Taxpayer Nature of Property

2016
Taxable
Assessed

Valuation Rank

Percentage
of Total
Taxable
Assessed

Valuation

2007
Taxable
Assessed

Valuation Rank

Percentage
of Total
Taxable
Assessed

Valuation

Alcon Laboratories, Inc Pharmaceuticals $ 387,455 1 %0.78 $ 170,850 6 %0.45
Oncor Electric Delivery/TXU Electric Electric Utility 374,437 2 %0.75 415,952 1 1.11
Bell Helicopter Textron Inc Aircraft Manufacturing 367,368 3 %0.74 243,408 3 0.65
DDR/DTC City Investments, LP Real Estate 253,612 4 %0.51
AMR Corp/American Airlines, Inc. Airline 233,238 5 %0.47 217,670 5 %0.58
A T and T Mobility LLC Wireless voice/data comm 172,493 6 %0.35
Behringer Harvard Burnett Plz Commercial Real Estate 147,757 7 %0.30 159,505 8 %0.42
F7 SSSM LLC Real Estate 144,858 8 %0.29
Carlyle/Cypress West 7th II LP Special Trade Contractors 135,660 9 %0.27
Union Pacific RR Co Premier Railroad Franchise 135,520 10 %0.27
Southwestern Bell Telephone Utility 224,810 4 %0.60
XTO Energy Oil/Gas Producer 168,170 7 %0.45
KAN AM Riverfront Campus LP Corporate Campus 271,365 2 %0.72
Chesapeake Operating Natural Gas Producer 123,267 10 %0.33
Crescent Real Estate Developer 141,283 9 %0.38

$ 2,352,398 %4.73 $ 2,136,280 %5.69

(a) Source: Tarrant Appraisal District Supplemental Certification Report

(b) Source: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the respective year
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
RATIO OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (Unaudited)
(in 000's)

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Governmental:
General Obligation Bonds(c) $ 295,925 $ 406,006 $ 380,125 $ 371,760 $ 458,800
Certificates of Obligation(c) 60,230 166,215 188,655 202,880 247,600
Special Tax Revenue Debt - - - - -
Special Assessment Debt - - - - -
Tax Notes - - - - -
Installment Obligation 6,130 5,585 5,010 4,405 3,770
Equipment Notes Payable 26,600 22,634 18,852 58,005 54,450
HUD Installment Obligation 8,808 8,147 7,465 6,761 6,034
Service Center Obligation 21,450 20,995 20,520 20,030 19,515
Helicopter Installment Obligation 105 - - - -
Fort Worth Housing Corp Obligation 9,395 9,322 9,244 9,161 9,073
Fort Worth Housing Fannie Mae Loan 1,000 - - - -
Fort Worth Sports Authority 15,903 15,903 15,442 15,337 8,476
Lone Star Local Govt Corp Obligation 31,617 31,617 31,617 31,617 31,617
Central City Local Govt Corp Obligation 2,596 2,219 1,809 1,376 872
State Obligations - - - - -
TRWD Obligation - - - - -
State Energy Conservation Loan Phase I & II 4,433 3,730 3,216 2,580 1,925
State Energy Conservation Loan Phase III 5,000 4,397 4,080 3,598 3,102
ESPC Phase IV - 9,066 8,795 8,352 7,820
ESPC Phase VII - - - - -
Wells Fargo Loan 269 245 196 144 78
Beechwood Bridge Obligation 1,287 1,127 724 333 -
Capital Leases - - - 4,319 4,096
Southwest Bank Loan (LDC SW Building) - - - - -
Lancaster Corridor Construction Loan - - - - -

Business-type:
General Obligation Bonds(c) 140 65 - - -
Revenue Bonds 757,885 710,675 745,155 855,310 884,010
Certificates of Obligation(c) 30,905 57,240 54,195 57,560 56,035
Municipal Golf Capital Lease 132 69 5 - -
Equipment Notes Payable 5,730 4,545 3,319 2,049 750
Trinity River Authority 8,490 8,065 7,620 7,150 6,656
ESPC Phase V - - 15,365 15,365 15,365

Total Primary Government $ 1,294,030 $ 1,487,867 $ 1,521,409 $ 1,678,092 $ 1,820,044

Personal Income(a) $ 13,311,276 $ 13,640,815 $ 17,334,565 $ 20,399,090 $ 18,827,032
Debt as a Percentage of Personal Income %10 %11 %9 %8 %10

Population(b) 703 720 736 748 758
Debt Per Capita $ 1,841 $ 2,066 $ 2,067 $ 2,249 $ 2,313

(a) Personal Income calculated using the population and the per capita personal income (source: U. S. Bureau of Census 2010 and estimates)

(b) Years prior to 2016: North Central Texas Council of Governments (NCTCOG).  Beginning in year 2016: U.S. Bureau of Census 2010 and
estimates.

(c)  For Fiscal Years 2006 to 2014 General Obligation Bonds and Certificates of Obligation amounts were adjusted for unamortized premium.

Source: Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the respective years and other sources listed above.
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TABLE 13

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

$ 463,488 $ 440,617 $ 452,412 $ 499,217 $ 452,570
302,985 299,441 242,290 221,565 201,945

- - - - 226,880
- - - - 12,685
- - - - 26,130

3,080 2,370 1,620 825 -
46,860 39,145 - - -
5,282 4,504 3,699 2,865 2,000

18,980 - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -
- - - - -

8,386 6,868 2,495 - -
31,617 31,617 31,617 31,617 31,617

347 - - - -
- 10,931 10,285 9,638 8,992
- 91,998 124,349 153,853 171,391

1,249 553 - - -
2,590 2,064 1,528 971 397

- - - - -
18,443 18,064 17,426 16,472 15,474

- - - - -
- - - - -

3,816 1,482 1,122 836 1,167
- 2,545 2,200 1,844 1,477
- - 1,774 10,276 16,500

- - - 38,428 37,365
858,985 950,107 882,395 870,315 910,685
55,238 53,092 48,428 4,225 2,515

- - - - -
- - - - -

6,100 5,500 4,885 4,250 3,600
14,691 13,355 11,938 10,463 8,955

$ 1,842,137 $ 1,974,253 $ 1,840,463 $ 1,877,660 $ 2,132,345

$ 18,934,769 $ 19,128,358 $ 19,600,795 $ 20,604,646 $ 22,772,813
%10 %10 %9 %9 %9

768 781 793 833 875
$ 2,399 $ 2,528 $ 2,321 $ 2,254 $ 2,437
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS TABLE 14
PERCENT OF TOTAL GENERAL DEBT OUTSTANDING
TO ASSESSED VALUE AND TOTAL GENERAL DEBT
OUTSTANDING PER CAPITA
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (Unaudited)
(in 000's)

General Bonded Debt
Outstanding Percent

Fiscal
Year

General
Obligation

Bonds(a)

Certification of
Obligation(a)

Resources
Restricted for
Debt Service

Total Net
Bonded Debt

Assessed
Value(b)

Outstanding
General Debt
to Assessed

Value
Estimated

Population(c)

Outstanding
General Debt

Per Capita

2008 $ 295,925 $ 60,230 $ - $ 356,155 $ 37,632,410 %0.95 687 $ 0.518
2009 406,006 166,215 - 572,221 40,870,603 %1.40 702 0.815
2010 380,125 188,655 - 568,780 41,851,015 %1.36 741 0.768
2011 371,760 202,880 - 574,640 41,022,067 %1.40 748 0.768
2012 458,800 247,600 - 706,400 41,986,043 %1.68 758 0.932
2013 463,488 302,985 - 766,473 43,697,663 %1.75 768 0.998
2014 440,617 299,441 - 740,058 42,420,689 %1.74 781 0.948
2015 452,412 290,718 830 742,300 45,931,092 %1.62 793 0.936
2016 537,645 225,790 1,245 762,190 49,659,742 %1.53 833 0.915
2017 489,935 204,460 1,196 693,199 49,704,978 %1.39 875 0.793

(a) Includes Business-Type Activities debt

(b) Assessed value is 100%

(c) Source: Years prior to 2016: North Central Texas Council of Governments (NCTCOG).  Beginning in year 2016: U.S. Bureau of Census 2010
and estimates.
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2017 (Unaudited)
(in Millions)

2008* 2009* 2010* 2011 2012

Total Assessed Valuation $ 37,471 $ 38,357 $ 39,725 $ 39,836 $ 41,986

Overall Debt Limitation - 10% of Assessed Valuation 3,984 4,199

Net Debt Subject to Limitation 575 706

Legal Debt Margin Within 10% Limitation 3,409 3,493

Legal Debt Margin as a Percentage of the Debt Limit %86 %83

Notes:

*Government Code Sec. 1331.051 of the State of Texas Constitution and Statutes limits cities with a population of seven hundred fifty thousand or
more to incur a total bonded indebtedness by the issuance of tax-supported bonds in an amount not exceeding ten (10%) percent of the total
appraised value of property listed on the most recent appraisal roll for the City.  Prior to FY2011, per Article 835p of the State of Texas Civil
Statutes, the limit was based upon a population of six hundred thousand according to the last federal census.  According to the 2000 Federal Census,
the City of Fort Worth had a population of over 516 thousand; therefore the 10% limitation does not apply to 2010 and before. According to the 2010
Federal Census, the City of Fort Worth had a population of over 758 thousand; therefore, the 10% limitation does apply after 2010.

Assessed Value is the appraised value of property net of exemptions, deferrals, incomplete and protested properties.

Net Debt Subject to Limitation includes governmental activities tax supported general obligation bonds and certificates of obligations.

CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
CITY TAX RATE DISTRIBUTION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (Unaudited)
(Per $100 of Assessed Value)

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

General Fund $ 0.721 $ 0.711 $ 0.711 $ 0.711 $ 0.701

Debt Service Fund 0.134 0.144 0.144 0.144 0.154

Total City Tax Rate $ 0.855 $ 0.855 $ 0.855 $ 0.855 $ 0.855

Source: Tarrant Appraisal District

199



TABLE 15

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

$ 43,698 $ 42,421 $ 45,931 $ 49,660 $ 49,705

4,370 4,242 4,593 4,966 4,971

727 695 695 721 908

3,643 $ 3,547 $ 3,898 $ 4,245 $ 4,063

%83 %84 %85 %85 %82

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

$ 0.686 $ 0.676 $ 0.676 $ 0.676 $ 0.662

0.169 0.179 0.179 0.179 0.173

$ 0.855 $ 0.855 $ 0.855 $ 0.855 $ 0.835
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS TABLE 16
TAX RATE ALLOCATION
LAST TWENTY FISCAL YEARS (Unaudited)

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Debt Service Tax Rate $ 0.3131 $ 0.2899 $ 0.2576 $ 0.2438 $ 0.2183 $ 0.1943 $ 0.1851 $ 0.1704 $ 0.1543 $ 0.1341
Operating Tax Rate $ 0.6069 $ 0.6076 $ 0.6274 $ 0.6312 $ 0.6467 $ 0.6707 $ 0.6799 $ 0.6946 $ 0.7107 $ 0.7259

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Debt Service Tax Rate $ 0.1341 $ 0.1441 $ 0.1441 $ 0.1441 $ 0.1541 $ 0.1691 $ 0.1791 $ 0.1791 $ 0.1791 $ 0.1735
Operating Tax Rate $ 0.7209 $ 0.7109 $ 0.7109 $ 0.7109 $ 0.7009 $ 0.6859 $ 0.6759 $ 0.6759 $ 0.6759 $ 0.6615

Source: Budget and Research Division, FMS, City of Fort Worth

201



CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS TABLE 17
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES DEBT(Unaudited)
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2017
(in 000's)

Governmental Unit
Debt

Outstanding

Estimated
Percentage

Applicable(a)

Estimated
Share of

Overlapping
Debt

Aledo ISD $ 176,257 0.57% $ 1,005
Arlington Independent School District 841,237 0.05% 421
Azle Independent School District 85,390 2.64% 2,254
Birdville Independent School District 266,625 5.68% 15,144
Burleson Independent School District 334,261 16.47% 55,053
Castleberry Independent School District 43,280 49.12% 21,259
Crowley Independent School District 395,614 76.00% 300,667
Denton County 645,305 2.19% 14,132
Eagle Mountain-Saginaw Independent School District 548,843 67.68% 371,457
Everman Independent School District 87,875 69.01% 60,643
Fort Worth Independent School District 862,315 89.62% 772,807
Hurst-Euless-Bedford Independent School District 412,120 28.96% 119,350
Keller Independent School District 706,961 50.24% 355,177
Kennedale Independent School District 36,595 0.93% 340
Lake Worth Independent School District 68,005 55.07% 37,450
Mansfield Independent School District 779,480 0.01% 78
Northwest Independent School District 803,407 43.51% 349,562
Parker County 125,055 0.18% 225
Parker County JCD 5,035 0.18% 9
Tarrant County 321,795 38.19% 122,894
Tarrant County Hospital District 20,835 38.19% 7,957
White Settlement Independent School District 159,469 52.69% 84,024

Subtotal, overlapping debt 2,691,908

City of Fort Worth Net Direct Debt 1,169,225 %100.00 1,169,225

Total direct and overlapping debt $ 3,861,133

All debt figures of the overlapping subdivisions reflect the gross bonded debt of each entity, with the exception of the City of Fort Worth. Net direct
debt includes all long-term debt instruments of the governmental activities, which currently includes General Obligation Bonds, Certificates of
Obligation,  Notes, Loans, and Capital Leases.

(a) The estimated percentage is based on a formula using assessed values of the property.

Source: Municipal Advisory Council of Texas
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS TABLE 18
PLEDGED-REVENUE COVERAGE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (Unaudited)
(in 000's)

Revenues Debt Service Requirements(a)

Fiscal Year
Total

Revenues(b)

Less: Operating
Expense(c) Net Revenue Principal Interest

Annual
Requirement

Bond
Coverage(d)

Water and Sewer(e)

2008 $ 313,388 $ 170,069 $ 143,319 $ 46,198 $ 34,353 $ 80,551 1.78
2009 310,122 183,311 126,811 51,831 32,018 83,849 1.51
2010 321,366 189,329 132,037 51,025 28,592 79,617 1.66
2011 351,712 196,478 155,234 57,195 30,702 87,897 1.77
2012 349,112 217,978 131,134 62,210 33,592 95,802 1.37
2013 353,223 211,493 141,730 59,725 31,162 90,887 1.56
2014 364,660 226,719 137,941 61,800 29,551 91,351 1.51
2015 391,225 253,114 138,111 65,055 30,201 95,256 1.45
2016 419,469 252,368 167,101 61,635 28,852 90,487 1.85
2017 427,521 239,642 187,879 63,175 29,396 92,571 2.03

Municipal Parking(f)

2008 5,404 445 4,959 - 1,150 1,150 4.31
2009 5,133 1,423 3,710 100 1,895 1,995 1.86
2010 6,543 2,189 4,354 300 2,651 2,951 1.48
2011 7,800 2,448 5,352 640 2,704 3,344 1.60
2012 7,808 2,775 5,033 955 2,667 3,622 1.39
2013 7,117 2,891 4,226 1,005 2,620 3,625 1.17
2014 7,127 2,703 4,424 1,495 2,561 4,056 1.09
2015 7,345 3,140 4,205 1,565 2,490 4,055 1.04
2016 7,856 3,176 4,680 1,640 1,328 2,968 1.58
2017 7,906 3,184 4,722 2,305 1,735 4,040 1.17

Solid Waste(g)

2008 52,243 40,343 11,900 1,145 535 1,680 7.08
2009 49,442 42,976 6,466 1,625 484 2,109 3.07
2010 52,787 37,966 14,821 1,661 491 2,152 6.89
2011 55,418 42,945 12,473 1,704 333 2,037 6.12
2012 54,449 45,023 9,426 1,734 285 2,019 4.67
2013 56,325 47,669 8,656 1,185 235 1,420 6.10
2014 55,819 47,128 8,691 435 207 642 13.54
2015 58,622 51,689 6,933 435 152 587 11.81
2016 59,447 52,283 7,164 480 98 578 12.39
2017 60,651 54,650 6,001 468 87 555 10.81

Stormwater(h)

2008 18,968 10,024 8,944 310 907 1,217 7.35
2009 21,675 12,711 8,964 520 1,158 1,678 5.34
2010 27,786 17,737 10,049 1,445 2,752 4,197 2.39
2011 30,340 16,522 13,818 1,515 2,858 4,373 3.16
2012 34,130 17,929 16,201 3,860 5,426 9,286 1.74
2013 35,208 17,446 17,762 3,715 5,663 9,378 1.89
2014 36,439 17,141 19,298 3,825 5,522 9,347 2.06
2015 36,799 20,706 16,093 3,960 5,380 9,340 1.72
2016 37,283 14,377 22,906 4,130 4,847 8,977 2.55
2017 37,301 15,797 21,504 4,300 4,824 9,124 2.36

(a) Principal and Interest does not include general obligation bonds reported in enterprise funds.

(b) Exclusive of other expenses and contributions, gas lease revenue, and includes interest income.

(c) For Water and Sewer and Stormwater operating expense are cash based.  All other funds operating expense are exclusive of depreciation
charges.

(d) Bond Coverage is computed by dividing Net Revenue by Annual Requirements.

(e) Secured by revenues of the City's Water and Sewer System.

(f) Secured by revenues of the City's Will Rogers Memorial Center Parking Facilities.

(g) Secured by revenues of the City's Solid Waste Services Program.

(h) Secured by revenue collected to maintain the stormwater system.
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS TABLE 19
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (Unaudited)

Fiscal Year Population(a) Personal Income
Per Capita

Personal Income Median Age Unemployment(b)

Unemployment
Rate(b)

2008 702,850 $ 13,311,276,150 $ 18,939 (c) 31.2 (c) 17,154 5.3%

2009 720,250 13,640,814,750 18,939 (c) 31.2 (c) 26,982 8.1%

2010 741,206 18,414,521,864 24,844 (d) 31.1 (d) 28,044 8.3%

2011 748,450 18,594,491,800 24,844 (d) 31.1 (d) 29,813 8.7%

2012 757,810 18,827,031,640 24,844 (d) 31.1 (d) 22,632 6.4%

2013 767,560 17,998,514,440 23,449 (e) 31.9 (e) 22,566 6.1%

2014 781,100 19,128,357,900 24,489 (f) 31.5 (f) 18,699 5.0%

2015 792,720 19,600,794,720 24,726 (g) 31.8 (h) 15,594 4.0%

2016 833,319 20,604,645,594 24,726 (g) 31.9 (h) 16,600 4.1%

2017 874,532 22,772,813,280 26,040 (h) 32.0 (h) 12,823 3.1%

(a) Source: Years prior to 2016: North Central Texas Council of Governments (NCTCOG).  Beginning in year 2016: U.S. Bureau of Census 2010
and estimates.

(b) Source: BLS Local Area Unemployment Statistics.

(c) Source: U.S. Census Bureau 2000

(d) Source: U.S. Census Bureau 2010

(e) Source: U.S. Census Bureau 2012

(f) Source: U.S. Census Bureau 2013 Estimate

(g) Source: U.S. Census Bureau 2014 Estimate

(h) Source: U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey 
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS TABLE 20
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
FORT WORTH METROPOLITAN AREA
CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO (Unaudited)
(in 000's)

2017 2008

Name of Employers Employees Rank

Percentage of
Total

Employment(a) Employees(b) Rank

Percentage of
Total

Employment(c)

AMR Corp. /American Airlines 25.0 1 %6.30 5.3 5 %1.01

Lockheed Martin Tactical Aircraft Systems 13.7 2 %3.45 13.9 1 %2.64

Fort Worth Independent School District 12.0 3 %3.03 - -

NAS Fort Worth Joint Reserve Base 10.0 4 %2.52 5.4 4 %1.02

JPS Health Network/John Peter Smith Hospital 6.5 5 %1.64 3.8 8 %0.72

City of Fort Worth 6.2 6 %1.56 7.2 2 %1.37

Cook Children's Health Care System 6.0 7 %1.51 3.9 7 %0.74

Tarrant County College 6.0 8 %1.51 - -

Alcon Laboratories Inc. 5.4 9 %1.36 - -

Bell Helicopter-Textron, Inc. 4.9 10 %1.24 5.4 3 %1.02

Radio Shack - - %- 5.1 6 %0.97
Harris Methodist Hospital 3.5 9 %0.66
Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railway 3.1 10 %0.59

95.7 %24.12 56.6 %10.74

(a) Estimated total employment of 396,676 for 2017 per U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics

(b) Source: City of Fort Worth, Texas CAFR For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2008

(c) Estimated total employment of 527,248 for 2008 per North Central Texas Council of Governments
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
POPULATION GROWTH
LAST TWENTY FISCAL YEARS (Unaudited)

Fiscal Year 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Population 494,150 504,850 534,694 540,950 557,750 579,250 597,150 624,850 664,100 686,850
Percent Change %2.17 %5.91 %1.17 %3.11 %3.85 %3.09 %4.64 %6.28 %3.43

Source: Years prior to 2016: North Central Texas Council of Governments (NCTCOG).  Beginning in year 2016: U.S. Bureau of Census 2010 and
estimates.
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TABLE 21

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

702,850 720,250 741,206 748,450 757,810 767,560 781,100 792,720 833,319 874,532
%2.33 %2.48 %2.91 %0.98 %1.25 %1.29 %1.76 %1.49 %5.12 %4.95
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
TOTAL APPRAISED VALUE
LAST TWENTY FISCAL YEARS (Unaudited)

Appraisal Year 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Value (Billions) $ 24.2 $ 26.2 $ 28.8 $ 33.4 $ 35.2 $ 37.0 $ 40.5 $ 42.3 $ 47.8 $ 52.2
Percent Change %8.26 %9.92 %15.97 %5.39 %5.11 %9.46 %4.44 %13.00 %9.21

Source: Tarrant, Denton, Wise, Parker Appraisal District Certified Tax Report.

Although the City of Fort Worth extends into Johnson County, the City limits within this jurisdiction do not include any taxable property.
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TABLE 22

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

$ 55.4 $ 57.5 $ 56.0 $ 58.0 $ 59.8 $ 61.2 $ 64.9 $ 67.0 $ 74.9 $ 83.7
%6.13 %3.79 %(2.61) %3.57 %3.10 %2.34 %6.05 %3.24 %11.79 %11.75
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
APPRAISED VALUE PER CAPITA
LAST TWENTY FISCAL YEARS (Unaudited)

Appraisal Year 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Value (Billions) $ 24.2 $ 26.2 $ 28.8 $ 33.4 $ 35.2 $ 37.0 $ 40.5 $ 42.3 $ 47.8 $ 52.2
Population 494,150 504,850 534,694 540,950 557,750 579,250 597,150 624,850 664,100 686,850
Value Per Capita $ 49,067 $ 51,827 $ 53,902 $ 61,667 $ 63,171 $ 63,884 $ 67,815 $ 67,737 $ 71,999 $ 75,929
Percent Change %5.62 %4.00 %14.41 %2.44 %1.13 %6.15 %(0.12) %6.29 %5.46

Source: Tarrant, Denton, Wise, Parker Appraisal District Certified Tax Report.

Although the City of Fort Worth extends into Johnson County, the City limits within this jurisdiction do not include any taxable property.

Population prior to 2016 source is NCTCOG.  Population beginning 2016 source is U.S. Bureau of Census 2010 and estimates.
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TABLE 23

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

$ 55.4 $ 57.5 $ 56.0 $ 58.0 $ 59.8 $ 61.2 $ 64.9 $ 67.0 $ 74.9 $ 83.7
702,850 720,250 741,206 748,450 757,810 767,560 781,100 792,720 833,319 874,532

$ 78,869 $ 79,766 $ 75,528 $ 77,558 $ 78,954 $ 79,759 $ 83,143 $ 84,530 $ 89,882 $ 95,722
%3.87 %1.14 %(5.31) %2.69 %1.80 %1.02 %4.24 %1.67 %6.33 %6.50
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
APPRAISED VALUE PER CAPITA (Inflation Adjusted)
LAST TWENTY FISCAL YEARS (Unaudited)

Appraisal Year 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Value $ 24,246 $ 26,165 $ 28,821 $ 33,359 $ 35,234 $ 37,005 $ 40,496 $ 42,325 $ 47,815 $ 52,152
Adj Value (Billions) $ 35.4 $ 37.4 $ 39.8 $ 44.9 $ 46.6 $ 47.9 $ 51.0 $ 51.6 $ 56.5 $ 59.9
Population 494,150 504,850 534,694 540,950 557,750 579,250 597,150 624,850 664,100 686,850
Value Per Capita $ 71,653 $ 74,048 $ 74,508 $ 82,930 $ 83,584 $ 82,644 $ 85,453 $ 82,557 $ 85,010 $ 87,168
Percent Change %3.34 %0.62 %11.30 %0.79 %(1.12) %3.40 %(3.39) %2.97 %2.54

Source: Tarrant, Denton, Wise, Parker Appraisal District Certified Tax Report.

Population prior to 2016 source is NCTCOG.  Population beginning 2016 source is U.S. Bureau of Census 2010 and estimates.

Appraisal values adjusted for inflation based on CPI data available at http://www.usinflationcalculator.com

Although the City of Fort Worth extends into Johnson County, the City limits within this jurisdiction does not include any taxable property.
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TABLE 24

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

$ 55,433 $ 57,452 $ 55,982 $ 58,049 $ 59,832 $ 61,220 $ 64,935 $ 67,008 $ 74,907 $ 83,712
$ 61.3 $ 63.7 $ 61.1 $ 61.4 $ 62.0 $ 62.6 $ 64.9 $ 65.9 $ 74.9 $ 83.7

702,850 720,250 741,206 748,450 757,810 767,560 781,100 792,720 833,319 874,532
$ 87,195 $ 88,502 $ 82,447 $ 82,073 $ 81,856 $ 81,496 $ 83,143 $ 83,175 $ 89,882 $ 95,722

%0.03 %1.50 %(6.84) %(0.45) %(0.26) %(0.44) %2.02 %0.04 %8.06 %6.50
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS TABLE 25
MEDIAN FAMILY AND PER CAPITA INCOME (Unaudited)
(Unadjusted for Inflation)

Year 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Median Family Income $ 53,073 $ 57,220 $ 54,404 $ 55,727 $ 53,900 $ 60,489 $ 61,651 $ 61,433 $ 61,728 $ 63,585
Percent Change %7.81 %(4.92) %2.43 %(3.28) %12.22 %1.92 %(0.35) %0.48 %3.01

Fort Worth Per Capita Income (Unadjusted for Inflation)
Year 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Per Capita Income $ 22,708 $ 23,208 $ 23,399 $ 22,613 $ 22,868 $ 23,449 $ 24,836 $ 25,186 $ 24,975 $ 25,706
Percent Change %2.20 %0.82 %(3.36) %1.13 %2.54 %5.91 %1.41 %(0.84) %2.93

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS TABLE 26
MEDIAN FAMILY AND PER CAPITA INCOME (Unaudited)
(Adjusted for Inflation)

Year 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Median Family Income $ 60,928 $ 63,260 $ 60,362 $ 60,832 $ 57,037 $ 62,712 $ 62,994 $ 61,747 $ 62,345 $ 64,412
Percent Change %3.83 %(4.58) %0.78 %(6.24) %9.95 %0.45 %(1.98) %0.97 %3.32

Fort Worth Per Capita Income (Adjusted for Inflation)
Year 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Per Capita Income $ 26,069 $ 25,658 $ 25,961 $ 24,685 $ 24,199 $ 24,310 $ 25,376 $ 25,315 $ 25,225 $ 26,040
Percent Change %(1.58) %1.18 %(4.92) %(1.97) %0.46 %4.39 %(0.24) %(0.36) %3.23

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
AVERAGE HOME VALUE
LAST TWENTY FISCAL YEARS (Unaudited)

Year 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Average Home Value $ 94,600 $ 100,200 $ 105,400 $ 110,300 $ 116,100 $ 119,000 $ 123,500 $ 133,800 $ 137,500 $ 142,700
% Change %5.92 %5.19 %4.65 %5.26 %2.50 %3.78 %8.34 %2.77 %3.78

Source: Texas A&M University, Real Estate Center.  For years prior to 2016, figures are MLS described geography.  Beginning in 2016, figures are
geographical for better accuracy.  For FY17, the source is the same; data used is based on a monthly average and not the annual.
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TABLE 27

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

$ 143,100 $ 138,700 $ 143,700 $ 141,400 $ 150,900 $ 164,300 $ 176,700 $ 193,100 $ 214,506 $ 229,864
%0.28 %(3.07) %3.60 %(1.60) %6.72 %8.88 %7.55 %9.28 %11.09 %7.16
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
MEDIAN HOME VALUE
LAST TWENTY FISCAL YEARS (Unaudited)

Year 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Median Home Value $ 75,200 $ 78,000 $ 84,000 $ 90,600 $ 95,200 $ 98,300 $ 101,600 $ 113,300 $ 117,700 $ 118,400
% Change %3.72 %7.69 %7.86 %5.08 %3.26 %3.36 %11.52 %3.88 %0.59

Source: Texas A&M University, Real Estate Center.  For years prior to 2016, figures are MLS described geography.  Beginning in 2016, figures are
geographical for better accuracy. For FY17, the source is the same; data used is based on a monthly median and not the annual.
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TABLE 28

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

$ 117,000 $ 113,400 $ 114,800 $ 110,600 $ 119,100 $ 132,500 $ 141,500 $ 158,800 $ 185,000 $ 201,396
%(1.18) %(3.08) %1.23 %(3.66) %7.69 %11.25 %6.79 %12.23 %16.50 %8.86

220



CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT CITY GOVERNMENT
EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION / PROGRAM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (Unaudited)

Function/Program 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

General Government
Mayor and Council(a) 28 26 26 - -
City Manager 103 41 52 90 89
Performance and Budget(b) 17 9 8 - -
Housing and Community Development(c) 50 83 85 75 57
Planning and Development 136 140 137 135 147
Community Relations 29 72 45 - -
Internal Audit 16 14 14 14 16
City Secretary 8 11 12 10 11
Legal 46 51 52 46 51
Financial Management Services 67 70 71 72 90
Human Resources 101 126 103 104 107
Economic and Community Development(c) 38 - - - -
Economic Development(c) - - - - -
Neighborhood Services(c) - - - - -
Transportation and Public Works(d) 426 559 550 588 564
Property Management(h) - - - - -
Code Compliance(e) 116 173 173 272 284
Public Events 126 132 127 127 123
Municipal Court 174 180 177 191 195
Public Heath 130 - - - -
Environmental Management(e) 115 107 113 - -
Park and Recreation(g) 809 756 705 727 690
Zoo (Contract)(f) - - - - -
Library 259 260 275 286 271

Subtotal
2,794 2,810 2,725 2,737 2,695

Enterprise Fund
Water/Wastewater 812 880 891 892 901
Aviation 27 24 22 24 21

Subtotal 839 904 913 916 922

Internal Service Fund
IT Solutions 118 99 90 100 111
Equipment Services(h) 120 119 104 97 96
Engineering 171 - - - -

Subtotal 409 218 194 197 207

Public Safety
Police-Uniform 1,521 1,538 1,524 1,534 1,539
Police-Civilian 658 675 660 647 677
Fire-Uniform 923 891 869 894 897
Fire-Civilian 48 57 55 44 60

Subtotal 3,150 3,161 3,108 3,119 3,173

Total 7,192 7,093 6,940 6,969 6,997

(a) Mayor and Council Office is included in City Manager's Office since 2011.

(b) Budget and Management Services established in FY05, previously a division of City Manager's Office. In FY09 merged into Financial
Management Services, moved to City Manager's Office in FY11, and in FY13 moved back to Financial Management Services.  In FY17, the
Budget Division was transferred to the newly created Performance and Budget Office.

(c) Economic and Community Development was combined with Housing in 2009, and dissolved in FY16 into Economic Development and
Neighborhood Services.

(d) Street services is a division of Transportation and Public Works Department.

(e) Environmental Management is combined with Transportation and Public Works since 2011.

(f) Fort Worth Zoo management is contracted out to Fort Worth Zoo Association since 2007.

(g) Parks and Community Services is referred to as Park and Recreation beginning FY16.

(h) Property Management was established in FY16 and was overstated due to the inclusion of Equipment Services. 2016 data has been corrected.

Source: Approved Budgets 2008-2017
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TABLE 29

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

- - - - -
58 53 64 63 55

- - - - 25
71 68 76 - -

155 146 143 132 140
- - - - -

15 15 15 15 15
12 11 11 11 11
53 53 51 50 51
88 101 104 100 91
52 51 50 59 59

- - - - -
- - - 22 22
- - - 155 150

617 589 591 441 442
- - - 88 93

289 286 310 353 370
132 133 133 133 133
198 191 184 184 182

- - - - -
- - - - -

396 392 397 362 391
- - - - -

220 220 216 213 213

2,356 2,309 2,345 2,381 2,443

934 940 937 937 949
24 24 24 24 24

958 964 961 961 973

127 133 139 138 136
106 106 106 106 114

- - - - -

233 239 245 244 250

1,594 1,549 1,549 1,599 1,635
448 445 453 455 458
908 884 884 911 925
47 47 47 60 61

2,997 2,925 2,933 3,025 3,079

6,544 6,437 6,484 6,611 6,745
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION / PROGRAM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (Unaudited)

Function/Program 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Public Safety
Fire

Calls for Service - Fire 3,486 2,776 2,281 12,392 10,111
Calls for Service - EMS 51,401 52,566 53,837 65,190 58,770

Police
Calls for Service 312,219 314,942 312,061 299,750 299,793

Municipal Courts
Citations Entered 447,949 451,938 415,008 327,779 277,672
Warrants Issued 198,000 273,951 274,833 318,720 219,478
Jail Cases Prepared 62,405 73,566 81,522 136,312 152,874

Transportation and Public Works
Streets - Lane Miles Maintained Annually 7,218 7,291 7,317 7,325 7,341
Lane Miles - Resurfaced 177 208 164 177 169

Library
Books and audio/visual materials (millions)(a) 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1
Average Monthly Circulation 337,768 349,247 342,697 375,965 369,450

Building Permits
Permits issued (in thousands) 12.0 9.7 10.0 9.8 10.0
Estimated Value (in thousands) 2,186,348 1,487,296 1,678,179 1,352,438 1,454,917

Aviation
Airport Operations (Takeoffs and Landings) 312,799 263,077 229,845 260,059 248,650
Total Fuel Flowage, gallons 7,674,724 7,099,019 6,656,640 7,828,177 7,742,014
Total Fuel Flowage, revenue 728,683 632,715 770,510 910,116 908,212

Water & Sewer
Number of Water Accounts (in thousands) 216 220 221 223 225
Peak Day Water Consumption (million gallons) 335 323 313 368 346
Average Daily Water Consumption (million gallons) 183 178 170 205 265
Water System Storage Capacity (million gallons) 88 92 93 93 93
Actual Annual Water Pumpage (million gallons) 66,914 64,984 62,131 74,997 69,469
Infrastructure Leakage Index(b) N/A N/A 4.52 4.59 4.12

Number of Sewer Accounts (in thousands) 208 210 212 214 216
Average daily sewage treatment (million gallons) 107 106 135 105 110

Municipal Parking
Parking tickets issued 61,130 64,061 61,715 52,261 47,211

N/A = Information not available

(a) Number does not include approximately 1 million governmental documents for the years 2008-2010.

(b) Number based on the calendar year per state requirements - Information N/A (Not Available).

Source: Respective City of Fort Worth departments.
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TABLE 30

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

10,158 10,439 10,333 2,340 2,398
71,511 76,438 79,059 66,712 72,176

266,169 296,561 292,047 289,058 286,373

246,378 232,596 205,553 175,559 155,027
167,764 115,840 195,718 150,281 112,060
141,888 126,739 127,925 104,637 88,610

7,382 7,420 7,437 7,518 7,617
143 110 139 165 149

1.1 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.1
355,877 339,860 309,730 322,724 369,120

10.1 10.8 11.3 12.33 13.44
1,214,680 2,143,490 2,118,305 2,753,962 3,935,427

252,989 257,944 300,013 310,811 331,714
8,260,693 7,457,850 8,371,920 7,845,963 8,822,258

926,437 893,647 1,088,113 1,016,484 1,231,311

228 234 238 241 247
324 297 329 312 263
186 179 179 173 177
90 89 90 95 95

67,929 65,485 65,119 63,162 64,751
3.67 5.21 5.42 7.07 4.33

219 225 229 231 237
95 95 114 124 104

60,354 44,932 42,667 36,753 31,251
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CITY OF FORT WORTH, TEXAS
CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTION / PROGRAM
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (Unaudited)

Function/Program 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Library

Library Facilities Owned 13 13 13 14 14

Library Facilities Leased 2 2 2 2 2

Neighborhood Services (a)

Community and C.A.P. Centers - - - - -

Park and Recreation

Parks and Public Spaces 243 249 253 257 260

Parks Acres 10,929 11,094 11,292 11,609 11,663

Miles of Trails (Jogging, Hiking & Biking) (paved
trails) 60 63 64 66 66

Swimming Pools 7 7 7 7 7

Athletic Fields (Soccer, Football, Baseball &
Rugby) 181 181 181 181 184

Tennis Centers 1 1 1 1 1

Number of Tennis Courts 16 16 16 16 16

Neighborhood Tennis Courts 82 82 82 82 82

Multi-use Courts 107 107 107 107 107

Golf Courses 5 5 5 5 5

Community and C.A.P Centers 21 22 22 22 22

Public Safety

Police Stations Owned 10 11 11 10 12

Police Stations Leased 11 10 9 8 11

Fire Stations 40 42 42 42 42

Public Works

Streets - Lane Miles 7,218 7,291 7,317 7,325 7,341

Traffic Signals 588 (b) 620 (b) 635 (b) 644 (b) 649 (c)

Street Lights 60,950 61,593 62,075 63,007 64,175

Stormwater

Miles of Channels - Improved 326 333 327 330 212

Miles of Storm Pipes 700 714 800 900 930

Water

Water Mains (Miles) 3,395 3,449 3,469 3,480 3,513

Fire Hydrants 17,580 17,947 18,275 18,388 18,616

Wastewater

Miles of Sanitary Sewers 3,380 3,421 3,454 3,527 3,569

(a) Neighborhood Services became a separate department of Park and Recreation in FY2016.

(b) The City also maintains 97 Traffic Signals owned by TXDOT not included in the number noted above.

(c) The City also maintains 100 Traffic Signals owned by TXDOT not included in the number noted above.

(d) The City also maintains 118 Traffic Signals owned by TXDOT not included in the number noted above.

(e) The City also maintains 114 Traffic Signals owned by TXDOT not included in the number noted above.

(f) The City also maintains 193 Traffic Signals owned by TXDOT not included in the number noted above.  In FY2016, traffic signal counts were
standardized to use intersections within a site as measurement. Prior to FY2016 counts were based on site.

(g) The city also maintains 204 signalized intersections owned by TXDOT not included in the number noted above. A total number of Traffic
Signals maintained by the City is 884. In FY2016, traffic signal counts were standardized to use intersections within a site as measurement, prior
to FY2016 counts were based on site. An example includes I-20 @ James/Crowley is measured as four intersections, and I-30 @ Summit
measured as two intersections.

Source: Respective City of Fort Worth departments.
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TABLE 31

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

14 14 14 14 14

2 2 2 2 2

- - - 9 9

260 263 271 274 278

11,663 11,722 11,781 11,878 11,988

71 71 77 120 78

7 2 2 2 2

188 186 186 192 188

1 1 1 1 1

16 16 16 16 16

87 87 88 86 88

107 107 113 113 130

4 4 4 4 4

22 23 23 14 22

12 14 17 17 17

11 10 11 11 11

42 42 42 42 42

7,382 7,420 7,437 7,518 7,617

667 (c) 649 (d) 667 (e) 697 (f) 680 (g)

64,721 65,489 65,894 66,182 67,032

212 212 214 214 214

1,163 943 955 970 973

3,553 3,596 3,386 3,420 3,503

18,879 19,136 18,709 19,182 22,320

3,610 3,643 3,289 3,313 3,459
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